
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
July 27, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, July 27, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public may participate by emailing 

comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and, if desired, specifically requesting that their comments 
be read into the record.  Emailed comments must be received no later than thirty minutes before the 
meeting.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public 

record must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public 
comment at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 

teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. New Utility Bill and Payment Portal Presentation 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Ordinance No. 1315 – An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom 
Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control (Second Reading and 
Adoption) 

3. Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with West Yost & Associates, Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the 
Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 

4. Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Water System 
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 

5. Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Caggiano General Engineering, Inc. for the Construction of the Water System Rehabilitation 
Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds 

6. Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom 
Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision 

7. Resolution No. 10671 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five Solid Waste 
Collection Vehicles 

8. Resolution No. 10636 – A Resolution of the City Council Approving Amendment No. 2 to Lease 
Agreement with the Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building Located at 200 Wool 
Street 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

9. Resolution No. 10672 – A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report, Confirming the 
Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for Maintenance and 
Servicing of Improvements within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District in 
the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

OLD BUSINESS: 

10. Resolution No. 10669 – A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the Regional Water 
Authority’s Resolution 2021-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in 2021 and Authorizing 
the City Manager to Implement Any Future Reduction Requirements 

11. Resolution No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Proposition 218 Notice for 
Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste 

Page 3



4 

12. Resolution No. 10575 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring Its Intent 
to Initiate Procedures to Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based Elections Pursuant 
to California Elections Code Section 10010 and Authorize Related Actions 

NEW BUSINESS: 

13. Resolution No. 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Proclaiming 
Existence of a Local Emergency Due To Extreme Fire Danger 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council is in recess the first half of August 2021. 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for August 24, 2021. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


5 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5



6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



_b'o!,Hf,urr
o &l

or alrrolrra it 9rY!nl

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

Staff will provide a brief presentation on the City's new online utility bill and payment
portal.

Tamagni, Finance Director

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: New Utility Bill and Payment Portal

FROM: Finance Department

1

Page 7

07/27/2021 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

07/27/2021 Item No.1.



I"{_ol"s {3j\3.

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1315 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting
Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water
System Cross-Connection Control (Second Reading and
Adoption)

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Ordinance No. 1315 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of
the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

At the July 13, 2021 meeting, the City Council introduced and held the first reading of
Ordinance l3l5 repealing and re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code
pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control. At the meeting, the City Council
approved the first reading of the Ordinance with no proposed changes to it. No changes have
been made to this item since the first reading. As such, staff recommends that the City Council
conduct a second reading of the Ordinance and move to adopt it as proposed.

Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code, entitled Water System Cross-Connection
Control, provides the City with the means of implementing a cross-connection control program
to comply with the California State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking
Water (DDW) rules and regulations.

The Water Qualrty Division of the Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR)
oversees the program, which requires the annual testing of more than2,500 cross-connection
control devices to prevent backflow into the potable water system. Through this program,City

1

Page 9

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



staff issues notification to customers when tests are due, and customers then arrange for testing
of devices by certified testers. Presently, the testers, who submit the required test report via a
web portal, purchase tags from the City and attach these to devices to indicate completion of
successful testing.

The current process requires the City to purchase tags to sell to testers, at an expense of
approximately $1,300 per year. The tags are only available to purchase in person during
business hours, which is both an imposition on testers' time, and a safety concern due to
increased foot traffic to City facilities. In some instances, testers have submitted reports
without purchasing a tag, thereby avoiding paying the associated fee. With the growth and
modernization of the City, the program is growing as the number of devices that require annual
testing is increasing.

To reduce costs associated with production of tags, enhance safety by reducing foot traffic to
City facilities, and improve overall customer service and efficiency, the Water Quality
Division is proposing discontinuing the requirement to attach tags to devices on completion of
testing. Staff has access to all testing records via the web portal, negating the need to use the
tags, and program revenue would be maintained by charging a test submission fee in place of
the backflow testing tag fee. The web portal is an online database that contains backflow
prevention device records and test results.

Backflow tags will continue to be used for temporary backflow devices. Temporary devices
represent a very small proportion of the overall program. Their records are maintained in-house
and are not submitted to the web portal.

As testers will now be charged when submitting a test report, EWR requests that the Council
authorize a Test Submission Fee of $15 to be included in the User Fee Schedule for Water and
Wastewater Services pursuant to FMC 13.22.090(E). The $15 backflow Test Submission Fee

is the same amount as the current Backflow Testing Tag Fee, which will continue to be used
for tags for temporary backflow devices.

This opportunity was used to review all sections of the Water System Cross-Connection
Control ordinance to identifu other updates. The language in Section 13.22.050 has been
modified to provide the City's public water protection from cross-contamination when
residential homes have two sources of water (public water and well water). In addition, new
verbiage allows the City to require non-residential buildings to upgrade to the minimum level
of cross connection protection at the point of contact to the public water system any time a

building permit is pulled, for any reason. In addition, nomenclature of State and City
departments has been corrected throughout to accurately reflect current titles.

This Ordinance takes the required step to repeal and replace the current Folsom Municipal
Code to reflect this proposal, to allow provision of a more efficient Water System Cross-
Connection Control program, and to bring all sections of Chapter 13.22 up to date.

2
Page 10

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



OUTREACII/FEEDBACK

This Ordinance does not directly impact the general population of Folsom. Due to the nature

of the suggested changes, the only people who will be directly impacted by the change in
Ordinance are backflow testers. They will no longer need to purchase tags for testing of
permanent devices in person and will instead pay when submitting test reports.

EWR Department staff knows many of the backflow testers directly and has engaged in
conversations with many of them over the past year regarding the suggested changes. The
overall feedback has been very positive. Testers appreciate the increased efficiency of the
proposal, in particular the removal of the need to collect back flow tags in person.

DISCUSSION

The changes to Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code facilitate provision of a more
efficient program with reduced costs, enhanced safety, and improved customer service.

In summary, the proposed changes remove any references to the purchase and use of
department supplied tags on permanent devices, while inserting references to instructions
provided on annual notices.

Discontinuing the requirement for physical tags removes the corresponding purchase costs as

well as staff time associated with handling the sale of the tags. Safety and customer service are

also enhanced by negating the requirement for testers to purchase tags in person at City
facilities. Test results will be submitted, and corresponding fees paid, in one transaction
through the web portal. With fees being paid at the time of submiuing the report, there is
reduced risk of avoidance of payment.

EWR is requesting establishment of a new $15 Test Submission Fee pursuant to FMC
13.22.090(E), which is the same amount as the backflow tag fee.

Additional modifications increase the City's ability to enforce protection of the public water
supply and bring the overall chapter up to date.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This proposed ordinance does not have any foreseeable negative financial impact to the Water
Fund. Program revenue will not be affected as fees currently collected through the sale of tags
will still be collected through the equivalent test submission fee, while the cost of producing
tags will be removed.

J
Page 11

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15307 and 15308.

ATTACHMENT

Ordinance No. 1 3 1 5 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter t3 .22 of the Folsom
Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4
Page 12

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



ORDINANCE NO. 1315

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND RE.ENACTING CHAPTER 13.22 OT' THE
FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO WATER SYSTEM CROSS.

CONNECTION CONTROL

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal and re-enact Chapter 13.22 (Water System
Cross-Connection Control) of Title 13 (Water and Sewage) of the Folsom Municipal Code to
allow provision of a more efficient Water System Cross-Connection Control program, with
reduced costs, enhanced safety, and improved customer service, and to bring all sections of the
previous Chapter 13.22 up to date.

SECTION 2 REPEAL AND RE.ENACTMENT TO CODE

Chapter 13.22 of Title 13 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby repealed and re-
enacted to read as follows:

Chapter 13.22
WATER SYSTEM CROSS.CONNECTION CONTROL

Sections:
t3.22.0t0
t3.22.020
13.22.030
13.22.040
13.22.050
t3.22.060
t3.22.070
t3.22.080
13.22.090
13.22.r00
13.22.tt0
t3.22.t20
13.22.t30
t3.22.140
13.22.150
13.22.160
13.22.170
13.22.180

13.22.010 Definitions.

Ordinance No. 1315
Page I ofll

Definitions.
Application.
City responsibility.
Cross-connection control program.
Evaluation ofhazard.
Level of cross-connection protection required.
Approval of backflow prevention devices.
Location of backflow prevention devices.
Backflow prevention device testing, maintenance, and inspection.
Responsible customer representative.
Temporary backflow protection devices.
Backflow prevention device repair, replacement and relocation.
Discontinuance of water service.
Unauthorized activity.
Violation declared a nuisance.
Enforcement.
Penalties.
Remedies cumulative.

Page 13

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



A. "Air-gap separation (AG)" means a physical break between the supply line and a
receiving vessel or drain. The air-gap shall be at least two diameters of the supply pipe measured
vertically above the top rim of the vessel or drain and in no case less than one inch.

B. "Approved backflow prevention device (ABPD)" means an effective assembly used to
prevent backflow into a potable water system which has passed laboratory and field tests by a
testing organization recognized by the DDW and is listed on the approved and published list
maintained by the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross-Connection Control
and Hydraulic Research (US C-FCCCHR).

C. "Approved water supply" means the City's potable water supply or any other water supply
that is regulated by DDW.

D. "Auxiliary supply" means any water supply other than a potable supply regulated by DDW
that is available to the customer.

E. 'oBackflow" means the reversal of flow of water or mixtures of water and other liquids,
gases or other substances into the distribution pipes of a potable supply of water from any source
or sources.

F. ooDDW' means the Califomia State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking
Water.

G. "CA-NV Section AWWA" means the California-Nevada Section of the American Water
Works Association (AWWA).

H. "Certified backflow prevention assembly tester" means an individual who holds a current
certificate as a backflow prevention assembly tester as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or
equivalent organization as recognized by DDW and is certified by Sacramento County's
Environmental Management Department.

I. oocity" means the City of Folsom.

J. "City water system" means those facilities within and without the City that the City uses to
deliver potable water as the DDW recognized water purveyor.

K. "Contamination" means degradation of the quality of the potable water by any substance
which creates a hazard to the public health or which may impair the usefulness or quality of
water.

L. "Cross-connection" means any unprotected actual or potential connection between a public
or customer's potable water system and any source or system through which it is possible to

Ordinance No. 1315
Page2ofll

Page 14

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



introduce into any part of the potable system any used water, contaminant or other substance

other than the potable water with which the system is supplied.

M. ooCross-connection control specialist" means an individual who holds a valid certificate as a

cross-connection control specialist as issued by CA-NV Section AWWA, or equivalent
organization as recognized by DDW and has been designated as the City's cross-connection
control specialist by the Department.

N. "Customer" means any person or entity including the City using water supplied by the City
water system. o'Customer" includes tenants of single-family dwellings or duplexes, owners of
real property and management companies responsible for property management of real property.

O. 'oDepartment" means the City of Folsom Environmental and Water Resources Department.

P. "Director" means the Director of the Department or his or her designee, unless otherwise
stated or indicated by context.

a. ooDiscontinued seryice" means having the water service turned off by the Department.

R. ooDouble check valve backflow prevention assembly (DC)" means an assembly composed of
two independently acting check valves, including shut-off valves and test cocks, that is an

ABPD.

S. "Fire Chief'means the Fire Chief of the City of Folsom, or designee unless otherwise stated

or indicated by context.

T. "Premises" means any and all areas on a customer's property which are served or have the
potential to be served by the City water system.

U. ooPrivate fire service" means a private fire service main and appurtenances installed in
accordance with NFPA 24 on private property and maintained by the property owner for the
explicit intent of providing fire flows either through fire hydrants, fire sprinkler systems, or other
water-based fire protection systems.

V. "Reclaimed water" shall mean wastewater or other water which as a result of treatment is
suitable for nonpotable use.

W. "Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention device (RP)" means a device
incorporating two check valves and an automatically operating differential relief valve located
between the two checks, a tightly closing shut-off valve on each side of the check valve
assembly, and equipped with necessary test cocks for testing, that is an ABPD.

X. 'oservice connection" shall refer to the point of connection of the customer's piping to the
City's water system.

Ordinance No. 1315
Page3of1l

Page 15

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



Y. "single-family dwelling unit" means a building designed for one family and containing one

kitchen.

Z. ooWater distribution supervisor" means the water distribution supervisor in the Department

or his or her designee unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

13,22.020 Application.

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all customers of the City water system.

13.22.030 City responsibility.

The City, and its duly authorized employees, shall operate the public water system and

implement a cross-connection control program. The purpose of this Chapter is to: (A) protect the

City water system against actual or potential cross-connections by isolating within the premises

contamination that may occur because of some undiscovered or unauthorized cross-connection

on the premises; (B) eliminate existing connections between potable water systems and

nonpotable systems that create ahazardto public health; (C) eliminate existing cross-connections
between potable water systems and sources of contamination; and (D) prevent the making of
cross-connections in the future.

13.22.040 Cross-connection control program.

A. The Director is authorizedto develop a cross-connection control program that is consistent

with the intent of this Chapter, DDW regulations, California Code of Regulations, and any

applicable laws. At a minimum, the program shall have the following elements:

1. Conducting surveys as required identiffing those water users where cross-connections
are likely to occur;

2. Require the provision of backflow protection by the water user at the water user's

service connection(s) or within the user's premises or both if required based on the
potential for a cross-connection;

3. Establishment of procedures for testing backflow prevention devices, and maintenance

ofrecords oflocations, tests, and repairs ofthese devices; and

4. Maintain a list of certified backflow prevention assembly testers from the list compiled
by the Sacramento County Environmental Management Department's list.

B. The Director shall oversee this Chapter's implementation, compliance with DDW
Regulations, and any laws regulating cross-connection control.

13.22.050 Evaluation of hazard.

Ordinance No. 1315

Page4ofll Page 16

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



The Department is authorized to evaluate the degree of potential health hazard to the City water
system which may be created either as a result of conditions existing or potential created by a
customer on their premises. The Department shall not be responsible for abatement of cross-

connections which may exist on the customer's premises. Evaluation of the potential for health
hazard, as a minimum, shall consider: (1) existence of cross-connections; (2) nature of materials
on the premises and method of handling; (3) probability of backflow occurring; and (4)
complexity and potential for modifications of piping system.

A. In the evaluation of the degree of potential hazard, consideration shall be given to premises

with the following conditions:

1. Substances harmful to health handled in a manner which could permit their entry into
the city water system. This includes chemical and biological process waters, water from an

approved water supply which has been subjected to deterioration in sanitary quality, and
water from an auxiliary supply.

2. Internal cross-connections that are not corrected or abated to the satisfaction of the
cross-connection control administrator.

3. Cross-connections are likely to occur and entry is restricted so that cross-connection
inspections cannot be made on short notice or with the frequency given in
Section 13.22.090 to assure that cross-connections do not occur.

4. Repeated history of cross-connections being established or reestablished.

B. Periodic inspections of the customer's premises may be required either to evaluate the
potential for cross-connections or adequacy ofbackflow prevention devices or practices. These
inspections may be in response to activities such as changes in use or ownership of the premises.

The City shall provide twenty-four hours' notice prior to inspection of the premises, unless
conditions dictate that a longer or shorter notice period is more reasonable. Failure to provide the
City with access to conduct an inspection shall constitute a violation of this Chapter.

C. Cross-connection control requirements in this Chapter shall be included as a condition of
approval for water service for any new development or redevelopment project, with the
exception of single-family dwelling units unless the single-family dwelling unit meets the
condition as identified in subsection D below. Plans and specifications for any project other than
single-family dwelling units (with the exception of single-family dwelling units meeting the
condition in subsection D) requiring a building permit shall be required to install the minimum
level of cross-connection protection at the point of connection to the public water system as

defined by Section 13.22.060.

D. Any single-family dwelling unit that includes an on-site domestic water pump, fire
protection pump, water well or wastewater pump station will be required to install the minimum

Ordinance No. 1315
Page5ofll Page 17

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



level of cross-connection protection at the point of connection to the public water system as

defined by Section 13.22.060.

13.22.060 Level of cross-connection protection required.

The level of protection required shall be commensurate with the degree of potential public health
hazardthat exists or potentially exists on the customer's premises.

The minimum level of protection for all applications shall be a reduced pressure principle
backflow prevention device (RP) with the exception that the retrofit of fire protection systems,
private and public, without access to an auxiliary supply or other cross-connection shall be

subject to the conditions of the permit from the fire department required for modifications to the
fire system in accordance with Chapter 8.36. The customer may choose a higher level of
protection than that required by the cross-connection control program; however, the customer
shall be responsible for installation in accordance with Section 13.22.080.

13.22.070 Approval of backllow prevention devices.

The cross-connection control specialist, after determining the level of protection required per the
requirements of Sections 13.22.050 and 13.22.060, shall approve the backflow prevention device
to be installed. The proposed device shall be an approved backflow prevention device as defined
in this chapter and shall be located per the requirements of Sectionl3.22.080.Any interior or
exterior coating of the backflow prevention device shall be American National Standards
InstituteA{ational Sanitation Foundation (ANSIAISF) Standard 6I approved coating, in
accordance with AWWA specification.

13.22.080 Location of backflow prevention devices.

A. Backflow prevention devices shall be located as close as practical to the customer's
connection and shall be a minimum of twelve inches and a maximum of thirty-six inches above
finished grade as measured from the bottom of the device. Alternative locations shall be subject
to review and approval in writing by the cross-connection control specialist. There shall be a
minimum of twelve inches of side clearance on the side with the test cocks.

B. Air-gap separation device (AG) shall be located as close as practical to the customer's
connection and all piping between the customer's connection and the receiving tank shall be

entirely visible unless impractical based on existing conditions and as otherwise approved in
writing by the cross-connection control specialist.

13.22.090 Backllow prevention device testing, maintenancen and inspection.

A. Backflow prevention device testing shall be in accordance with the field test procedures as

outlined in the latest edition of Manual of Cross-Connection Control, University of Southern
California, Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research. All tests shall be
performed by a certified tester, from the list of certified testers maintained by the County of

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page6ofll Page 18

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



Sacramento Environmental Management Department and the results of the test shall be
submitted to the Department. No new, repaired, or relocated device that fails the test shall be
placed in service.

B. Customers with a backflow prevention device on their premises shall have the device
inspected and tested on an annual basis by a certified tester. The Department may require a more
frequent testing schedule if is determined to be necessary based on the criteria presented in
Section 13.22.050. When devices are determined to be defective they shall be repaired or
replaced by the customer within fourteen calendar days or a shorter time period based on any
hazardous condition that might impact the City water system or other customer connections, or
service will be discontinued. If service is discontinued, the customer shall pay the City's turn
on/off service fee, as set by ordinance or resolution of the City Council.

C. The Department will noti$/ the customer annually that the backflow prevention device
needs to be tested. This notice shall contain the date when the testing must be completed, at least
thirty days from the date of mailing, and instruction for how to submit the test results. If, forty-
five calendar days after the date of mailing, the customer has not submitted the required test
report, the department will test the backflow prevention device and the customer will be charged
a fee for this service as set by ordinance or resolution of the City Council. In the event the
backflow prevention device fails to pass the test, the customer shall, within fourteen calendar
days, either repair or replace the backflow prevention device as provided in this section, or
service will be discontinued. The customer shall pay the City's fee for testing the backflow
prevention device and the turn on/off service fee if required.

D. Upon completion of a test of the backflow prevention device, the tester shall follow the
instructions provided in the notice to submit the test report and pay the associated fee.

E. Test Submission Fee. The City Council hereby establish a fee of $15 for the submission of
backflow device test results under the provisions of this Chapter. This fee may be amended by
resolution of the City Council from time to time.

F. Discontinuance of service shall be cause for retesting of the backflow device on the service
in accordance with the procedures outlined above.

13.22.100 Responsible customer representative.

A1l customers required to submit a backflow prevention device inspection report per the
requirements of Section13.22.090 shall designate an individual responsible for monitoring the
backflow prevention device and avoidance of cross-connections during operation and
maintenance of the customer's on-site pipelines and equipment, or any modifications thereto. In
addition, this representative shall be responsible for notifuing the cross-connection control
specialist of any potential contamination or pollution of the city water system due to a cross-
connection on the customer's premises. Current contact information shall be supplied annually if
not more frequently on the inspection report. In the event the department is unable to contact a

Ordinance No. 1315
PageTofll

Page 19

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



responsible customer representative after a cross-connection is discovered, service may be

temporarily discontinued at the discretion of the director until such testing occurs.

13,22.110 Tem p o rary backllow p rotection devices.

A. Temporary backflow protection devices of all types shall be subject to the approval of the
cross-connection control specialist. An inspection report for the device shall be submitted for
review and the tester will attach a department supplied tag to the device.

B. Temporary connections for construction water or other approved uses shall be subject to the
conditions and fees identified on the Department's temporary water use application.

13.22.120 Backllow prevention device repairo replacement and relocation.

The customer shall obtain approval from the cross-connection control specialist before a
backflow prevention device is replaced or relocated.

A. Repair. A backflow prevention device may be removed for repair; provided, that the water
use is discontinued until the device is returned to service, or the service connection is equipped
with a temporary backflow prevention device that is approved by the cross-connection control
specialist. A device returned to service must be tested and pass before being placed in service in
accordance with Section 13 .22.090.

B. Replacement. A backflow prevention device may be removed and replaced; provided, that
the water use is discontinued until the replacement device is installed, tested, and passes before
being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.090.

C. Relocation. A backflow prevention device may be relocated upon approval by the cross-
connection control specialist. The relocated device shall continue to provide the current level of
protection or higher as determined by the cross-connection control specialist and shall satisfu
installation requirements as given in Section 13.22.080. The device shall be tested and pass

before being placed in service in accordance with Section 13.22.090.

13.22.130 Discontinuance of water service.

A. The Director may discontinue service to a customer's nonfire connection to the City water
system at the time the Director issues to the customer a second notice of violation of any
provision of this Chapter or determines that immediate discontinuance is necessary for the
protection of the City's water system. If the customer's water service is discontinued due to
violations of this Chapter, the customer shall be subject to penalties specified in
Section 13.22.170. Upon seeking renewed service from the City, the backflow prevention device
being returned to service must be tested in accordance with Section 13.22.090. The customer
shall pay the City's water turn off/on service fee and any other appropriate fees as set by
ordinance or resolution of the City Council. Any decision by the Director to discontinue service
may be appealed as specified in Section 13.22.170(C).

Ordinance No. 1315
Page8ofl1 Page 20

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



B. Property owners with private fire services, upon being issued a notice of violation by the
Director of any provision of this Chapter, shall have thirty calendar days to submit a plan of
correction to the Director. Prior to making any modifications or alterations to the on-site fire
service, a permit shall be obtained from the Folsom Fire Department in accordance with
Chapter 8.36. Failure to comply with this section shall subject the property owner to the penalties
specified in Section 13.22.170, and the service may be discontinued at the discretion of the
Director and the Fire Chief when discontinuance is required to protect the City water system or
other customer connections. Devices used on fire services shall be approved by the DDW and
listed for fire service use and maintained in accordance with State Fire Marshall regulations.

13.22.1 40 Unauthorized activity.

A. Any temporary or permanent connection to the City water system made without review by
the Department, whether it needs a backflow prevention device or not, shall subject the customer
to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170.

B. Any person who makes, maintains, or causes to be maintained a temporary or permanent
cross-connection shall be subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170.

C. Any customer who maintains any plumbing fixture as defined by the California Plumbing
Code, or other appurtenance that discharges to a sanitary sewer, which by reason of its
construction may or potentially may cause contamination of the City water system shall be

subject to the penalties specified in Section 13.22.170.

13.22.150 Violation declared a nuisance.

Any activity in violation of this Chapter will adversely and seriously affect the public health,
safety and welfare, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance and may be remedied as provided
in this Chapter, any other applicable portion of the Folsom Municipal Code or applicable state

law.

13.22.160 Enfo rcem ent.

A. This Chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1.08to 1.10,

inclusive, and any other enforcement mechanism available to the City under the Folsom
Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter, the Director shall enforce the
provisions of this Chapter.

13.22.170 Penalties.

A. The goal of the provisions of this Chapter is to achieve voluntary compliance from the
customer, and the City will take reasonable measures to assure the customer has information
available to promptly and efficiently address cross-connection control issues. Where voluntary

Ordinance No. l3l5
Page9ofll Page 21

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



compliance cannot be achieved through initial contacts and warnings, then appropriate
administrative penalties and further action are required. Except as otherwise provided herein,
violations of any provision of this Chapter shall be addressed as follows:

Violation Penalty

First Written notification and issuance
of a notice to correct.

Second Issuance of an administrative
penalty, discontinued water
service and/or other penalties as

provided in the notice of violation
and as determined by the
Director.

B. Penalties.

1. A violation of this Chapter shall also be an administrative violation as defined in
Section 1.08.020.

2. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Section 1.09.013 shall
be available for enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter. Based on the criteria for
imposition of administrative sanctions set forth in Section 1.09.014, each day a violation of
this Chapter continues it shall be deemed a Level A violation as that term is described in
Section 1.09.0I2 with an initial penalty of up to one hundred dollars.

3. Violations of this Chapter which are deemed to be willful noncompliance or unlawful
connections may be subject up to a Level E violation as determined by the Director.

C. Appeal. There shall be no appeal of the level of protection required as identified in
Section 13.22.060 and any appeal of administrative penalties shall follow the request for hearing
procedures provided in Chapter 1.09. Any order to discontinue water service or any other orders
or decisions of the Director shall be appealable to the City Manager pursuant to
Section 2.08.060; provided, however, that the City Manager's decision shall be final and there
shall be no right of appeal to the City Council.

13.22.180 Remedies cumulative.

The remedies set forth in this Chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the City.
Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this Chapter
shall limit or be deemed to prevent the City from pursuing any other remedy available to the City
under the Folsom Municipal Code or other applicable law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Ordinance No. 1315
Page l0 of 11 Page 22

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MAND TORY DIITY OF'CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part
thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would
have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection,
sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on July 13, 2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on July 27,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member

#'ff i;flil',fl ll T#'"iiffi 
'ts1,"#fi:"li'"'*ilf'J''"J"'ililSl

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1315
Page ll ofll

Page 23

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 24

07/27/2021 Item No.2.



:l"{-}Lt!{$l*:L
O itttttlra lr L.\t(.lt

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with West Yost & Associates,
Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the
Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with West Yost & Associates, Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection
Services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department identifies water infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through water master plans, ongoing water condition
assessment programs, and regulatory changes. Through these efforts, portions of the water
system have been identified as needing rehabilitation or replacement in order to improve the
water distribution system reliability.

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 will address infrastructure improvements
needed throughout the water distribution system at 13 different locations. This work includes
installing isolation valves, providing water service redundancy at locations that only have one
point of connection to the water system, and rebuilding pressure reducing stations to meet
current City standards.

I

Page 25

07/27/2021 Item No.3.



This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with West Yost &
Associates, Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 in the amount of $370,782.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

In October of 2018, the EWR Department completed a pre-qualification process for
construction management services. The consulting firm West Yost & Associates, Inc. was one
of the firms selected to provide these services for this type of project through this recently
completed competitive selection process. West Yost & Associates, Inc. by reason of their past
experience, qualifications, and abilities for performing these types of services, is qualified and
staff recommends they perform the required construction management and inspection services.

The construction management and inspection for this project will require approximately 1,640
person-hours of highly technical and specialized services, including construction inspection.
The proposed fee for construction management and inspection services is consistent with
recent City construction projects with respect to the construction duration. Construction
management services require on-site inspection (both daytime inspection and nighttime
inspection) and include other necessary tasks such as project schedule tracking, review andlor
coordination of project submittals, coordination with the other on-going City construction
projects, customer coordination, materials testing, and overall owner representation throughout
project construction.

This resolution will authoize the City Manager to execute an agreement with West Yost &
Associates, Inc. for construction management and inspection services for the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 in the amount of $370,782.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 was included in the FY 2021-22 Capital
Improvement Plan with a total project budget of $1,924,694. Sufficient funds are available in
the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for this agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is replacement and/or improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or
no expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under
the California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental

2
Page 26

07/27/2021 Item No.3.



Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302
(Replacement or Reconstruction), and/or 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with West Yost & Associates, Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection Services for
the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 27

07/27/2021 Item No.3.



RESOLUTION NO. 10660

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES,INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION

MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE WATER SYSTEM
REHABILITATION PROJECT NO. 2

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified this project as a priority to maintain
integrity and operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS' the infrastructure improvements identified to enhance the City's water
distribution system includes installing isolation valves, providing water service redundancy and
rebuilding pressure reducing stations; and

WHEREAS, West Yost & Associates, Inc. by reason of their past experience and
abilities for performing these types of services, is qualified to perform the required construction
management and inspection services for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 was included in the FY
2021-22 Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for
this agreement; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with West Yost & Associates, Inc. for
construction management and inspection services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project
No. 2 for a not-to-exceed amount of $370,782.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tth day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10660
Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 28

07/27/2021 Item No.3.



jt.'{-}]|*s$,\9"
(r 6tll6lr.! ti l.ll!/ll

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services for
the Water System Rehabilitation ProjectNo. 2

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EV[R) Department identifies water infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through water master plans, ongoing water condition'
assessment programs, and regulatory changes. Through these efforts, portions of the water
system have been identified as needing rehabilitation or replacement in order to improve the
water distribution system reliability.

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 will address infrastructure improvements
needed throughout the water distribution system at 13 different locations. This work includes
installing isolation valves, providing water service redundancy at locations that only have one
point of connection to the water system, and rebuilding pressure reducing stations to meet
current City standards.

1

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Works Engineers,
LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 29

07/27/2021 Item No.4.



This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Works
Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Water System Rehabilitation
Project No. 2 in the amount of $ 1 I l,4Il .

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

In October of 2018, the EWR Department completed a pre-qualification process for
construction management services. The consulting firm Water Works Engineers, LLC was one

of the firms selected to provide these services for this type of project through this recently
completed competitive selection process. Water Works Engineers, LLC by reason of their past

experience, qualifications, and abilities for performing these types of services, is qualified and
staff recommends they perform the required construction administration services.

The construction administration services for this project will include submittal review,
response to request for information and attendance at various meetings during project
construction. Water Works Engineers, LLC was the design consultant for the project and
providing these services is typically completed by the design engineer when construction
begins.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Works
Engineers, LLC for construction administration services for the Water System Rehabilitation
Project No. 2 in the amount of $1 1 l,4ll.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 was included in the FY 2021-22 Capital
Improvement Plan with a total project budget of $1,924,694. Sufficient funds are available in
the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for this agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is replacement andlor improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or
no expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under
the Califomia Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental

Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302
(Replacement or Reconstruction), and/or 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land).

2
Page 30

07/27/2021 Item No.4.



ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. 2.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 31

07/27/2021 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10661

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WATER WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC FOR CONSTRUCTION
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR THE WATER SYSTEM REHABILITATION

PROJECT NO.2

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified this project as a priority to maintain
integrity and operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS' the infrastructure improvements identified to enhance the
distribution system includes installing isolation valves, providing water service red
rebuilding pressure reducing stations; and

City's water
undancy and

WHEREAS, Water Works Engineers, LLC by reason of their past experience and
abilities for performing these types of services, is qualified to perform the required construction
administration services for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 was included in the FY
202I-22 Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for
this agreement; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for
construction administration services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 for a not-
to-exceed amount of $111,4IL

PASSED AND ADOPTED this27ft day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10661
Page I of I

Page 32

07/27/2021 Item No.4.



-f 
I {-l[,t"J {-lrt}.[

(! 3trr6lr.& g. !Irl tl

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Caggiano General Engineering, Inc. for the Construction of the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EUIR) Department identifies water infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through water master plans, ongoing water condition
assessment programs, and regulatory changes. Through these efforts, portions of the water
system have been identified as needing rehabilitation or replacement in order to improve the
water distribution system reliability.

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 will address infrastructure improvements
needed throughout the water distribution system at 13 different locations. This work includes
installing isolation valves, providing water service redundancy at locations that only have one
point of connection to the water system, and rebuilding pressure reducing stations to meet
current City standards.

1

MEETING DATE: 7t27t2021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Caggiano General
Engineering, Inc. for the Construction of the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 33

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Caggiano
General Engineering, Inc. for the construction of the Water System Rehabilitation Project No.
2 inthe amount of $$1,395,785 and the budget for this agreement to include a lloh contingency
in the amount of $139,579and Appropriation of Funds.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 236 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The City completed plans and specifications for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No.
2 and publicly advertised for bids on May 6,2021 and May 13,2021. In addition, the City
provided these documents to www.ciplist.com which is also picked up by several area builders'
exchanges. The Environmental and Water Resources Department received the following bids
on June l0 , 202I for construction of the Water System Rehabilitation Proj ect no. 2:

Contractor Bid Amount
Caggiano General Engineering, Inc $ 1,395,785

McGuire & Hester $1,756,250

Rawles Engineering $2,151,655

Staff has reviewed the bids submitted and has determined thatCaggiarto General Engineering,
Inc. is the lowest responsible and responsive bidder who meets the requirements and
specifications set forth in the invitation for bids.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the contract be
awarded to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, Caggiano General Engineering, Inc. for
$$1,395,785 with the project budgeted for this agreement in the amount of $$1,535,364 which
will include aI0o/o contingency in the amount of $139,579.

Approximate project costs to date, which include design, construction administration services,
construction management and inspection services total approximately $687,010. The Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 was included in the FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement
Plan with atotal project budget of $1,924,694. Therefore, an additional appropriation will be
needed for construction costs, and staff is requesting an appropriation of $$630,000 for atotal
project budget of $ $2,554,694. This appropriation will be in the Water Operating Fund (Fund
520) and funds are available for this appropriation.

2
Page 34

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is replacement and/or improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or
no expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under
the California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental

Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302
(Replacement or Reconstruction), and/or 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Caggiano General Engineering, Inc. for the Construction of the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

a
J

Page 35

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10663

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH CAGGIANO GENERAL ENGINEERING,INC. FOR THE

CONSTRUCTION OF THE WATER SYSTEM REHABILITATION PROJECT NO.2
AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified this project as a priority to maintain
integrity and operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements identified to enhance the City's water
distribution system includes installing isolation valves, providing water service redundancy and
rebuilding pressure reducing stations; and

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from environmental review under the
California Environmental Quality Act; and

WHEREAS, plans and specifications were prepared for this work and publicly
advertised for bids on May 6,2021and May 13,202I; and

WHEREAS, Caggiano General Engineering, Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder, with
an amount of $1,395,785; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds arc available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520),
however an appropriation in the amount of $$630,000 is needed for the project, increasing the
overall project budget to $$2,554,694; and

WHEREAS' the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Caggiano General Engineering, Inc.
for the construction of the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 for a contract amount of
$1,1,395,785 with the budgeted amount to include al|oh contingency for a total $139,579.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to appropriate
$$630,000 to the FY 2021-22 Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for this project. The
appropriation will be from fund balance which is currently available.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Th day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10663
Page I of2 Page 36

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10663
Page2 of2

Page 37

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 38

07/27/2021 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 18 & lC Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC Subdivision

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) forthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase

1A Subdivision was approved by the City Council on March 10,2020.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and
Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC
Subdivision. The Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision
will create atotal of 180 single-family high density (SFHD) residential lots and 18 multi-family
low density (MLD) residential lots. With the approval of the Final Map, the subdivision
process for this phase will be complete.

1

MEETING DATE: 71271202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 18 & lC Subdivision, and Approval of the Final
Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC
Subdivision

F'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 39

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



MANGINI PARKWAY

PHASE 1B & lC

h
rd
&
t-r
?t7

Fl
Fl
El
Fa
m
t-
rA

14

t\.,,,rn'1.

t/rfiCN

tut-irli4
t'

{rllEllfr

The To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision is located on the north side of
White Rock Road, west of East Bidwell Street, south of Mangini Parkway and east ofthe future
Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 2 subdivision in the Folsom Plan Area (FPA) (see above).

POLICY / RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance
require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 &
lC Subdivision have been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other

2
Page 40

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City departments. The Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have

been satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 18 & lC Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information
concerning when the condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit,
etc.), which City department is responsible to verifr that it has been satisfied, and comments
or an explanation on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lB & 1C Subdivision (PN 19-091) on
March 10,2020 in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The
project is consistent with this Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and

all mitigation measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In
addition, none of the conditions described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or
Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have

occurred. Therefore, no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC Subdivision

2. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & 1C Subdivision Final Map

4. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Submiued

PAM JOHNS, Community Development Director

J
Page 41

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorrzingthe
City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the

To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C

Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the To11

Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC Subdivision

Page 42

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 1067O

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OF'FERS OF

DEDICATION FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 18 & lC
SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL OF'THE FINAL MAP FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS

AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 18 & lC SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC
subdivision has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the
approved or conditionally approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at

Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all
offers of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18
& lC subdivision.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Folsom that the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lB & lC subdivision is
hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RISOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to
execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Toll West, Inc. which will do business in
California as Toll Brothers West, Inc. in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and accept the

offers of dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tthday of July 2021, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)
Councilmember(s)

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10670
Page I ofl

Page 43

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

Page 44

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Code Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
City Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 202l,by and
between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Toll West, Inc. which will do

business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc., a Delaware Corporation hereinafter referred to
as "Subdivider".

RECITALS

A Subdivider has presented to the City a cefiain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land
located within the corporate lirnits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the

Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the

Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council
of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & lC Subdivision and is herein refened to as the "subdivision"

Subdivider has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit
A), including, but not lirnited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

bikeways, storm dlainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public
utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational irnprovements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by
the City. The foregoing improvernents, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,

are hereinafter referued to as "tlte required intprovements".

B

C

I

Page 45

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



D City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enters into and executes this subdivision improvement agreement with the City

NOW, THBREFORE, the parties agree as follows

Performance of Work. Subdivider agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his own
expense the lequired improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications
of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development
Depadment, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or
modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,
changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer. The
approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by the
Subdivider as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved
in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,
as shown on Exhibit A, is FIVE MILLION EIGHTY-TWO THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND 221100 DOLLARS ($5,082,739.22).

Work: Satisfaction of City Engineer. All of the work on the required improvements is
to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's
Improvement Standards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable
City ordinances or state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Work: Time for Commencement and Performance. Work on the required
improvements shall be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months
from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the
commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall notify the City Engineer in writing
of the date fixed by Subdivider for commencement of the work.

4. Time of Essence; Extension

a Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The date for completion of the work
of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16.36.110 of
the Folsom Municipal Code.

Improvement Securi[2. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the
Subdivider shall furnish the City:

I

2

-t

5

a. Improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION EIGHTY-TWO
THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND 22IIOO DOLLARS
($5,082,739.22), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the total
estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the cost of any
other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this Agreement,
conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

Separate improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION EIGHTY-
TWO THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND 22IIOO
DOLLARS ($5,082,739.22),which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the

2

b

Page 46

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



estirnated cost of constructing the required improvements, securing payment to
the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing labor, materials, or
equipment to them for the construction of the required improvements.

The Subdivider shall deposit with the City THREE THOUSAND AND
NO/I00 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to conect deficiencies and conditions caused by the
Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the
construction of the subdivision.

d The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percenl (I0%)
construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey rnonuments
in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Govemment Code of the State of California,
and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.
In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may
submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification fi'om the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

Plan Checkinq and Inspection Fees. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the
checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for
inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the
times established by the City.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The Subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend,
save and hold the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or
injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

elt'ol's, or omissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's officers, employees, volunteers, and
agents during perfonnance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,
or fiom any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent
caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subdivider's work. It is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnify and hold
lrarmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil
Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under
this Agreernent does not relieve Subdivider from liability under this indemnification
and liold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to
any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have
been determined to apply, and shall ftirther survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider acknowledges and agrees to
the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.
Subdivider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal
proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

employees, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisfy any judgement that may be

rendered against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result
thereof.

6.

7

3

Page 47

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



B. Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perfonn any of the
Required Improvements shall, at their expense, maintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreement or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever
first occurs, not less than the following coverage and lirnits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City. The
maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be
treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

a Minimum Limits of Insurance. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than:

Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per
occuffence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and properly damage.

Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

b Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the
City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

L General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to
be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products
and completed operations of the Subdivider;premises owned,
leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or bon'owed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the
City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance coverage shall be prirnary insurance
as respects the City, its officers, officials, ernployees and
volunteers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the
City, its officials, ernployees or volunteers shall be excess of the
Subdivider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

4

2

aJ

c

B

Page 48

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Any failure to cornply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
offi cials, employees or volunteers.

D The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is blought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2 Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer
shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or
cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, retum receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurels with a Best's
rating of not less than A: VIL

Verification of Coverage. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,
the Subdivider shall fumish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf. The City reserues the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies at any time.

9. Title to Improvements. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements
constructed under this Agreement by Subdividel shall vest absolutely in the City upon
completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. The City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such
improvements have been constructed in conforrnity with the approved plans and specifications,
approved rnodifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Improvement Standards and

Standard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws
and after 35 days frorn the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

l0 Warranty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective
materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Warranty Security)
throughout the waruanty seculity period which shall be the period of one year following
completion and written acceptance of the improvernents (Warranty Security Period). The
amount of the Walranty Security shall not be less than l0 percent of the cost of the construction
of the improvements, includirrg the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreernent,
which shall be retained for the Watranty Security Period.

5

C

-t

d

e

Page 49

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ll

12

l3

14.

Repair or Reconstr-uction of Defective Work or Materials. If, within the Wamanty Security
Period or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished andlor installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work
done under this Agreement fails to fuIfiIl any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications referred to herein as detennined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstmct any defective or otherwise
unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act
promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require
repairs or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perfotm the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within
thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agree that the Warranty Security fuinished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall
guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of tl-re provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

Subdivider Not Agent of City. Neither Subdivider nor any of Subdivider's agents or
contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance
of Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement.

Notice of Breach and Default. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any paft
thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his
creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,
serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this
Agreement, or of any portion thereof.

Breach of Agreement; Performance Bv Surety or City. In the event of any such notice,
Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the
serving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its intention to
take over the performance thereof within fifteen (15) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to cornpletion by
contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incuned by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

plant or other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefor.

If the fonl of irnprovernent security is other than a bond, therr the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the
manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument.

6

Page 50

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



15 Notices. All notices requiled under this Agreement shall be in writing, and deliveled in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
tr'olsom, CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation
2330 East Bidwell Street, Suite 201

Folsom, CA 95630
ATTN; Greg Van Dam, Vice President - Land Development

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorney's Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,
the prevailing pafy shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attomey's fees, in addition to
any other relief to which he may be entitled.

17. Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors tn
interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City
may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's
Office.

1

Page 51

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreernent as follows

SUBDIVIDER

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc.,
A Delaware Corporation

BY BY:

Print Name Print Name

Title Title

DATE DATE:

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporation

DATE
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

DATE
Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT

DATE
Pam Johns
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM

DATE
Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF ..SUBDIVIDER', MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgenrent pursuant to Civil Code, Section I 1 89, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & 1C Subdivision

8

Page 52

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



BOND #
PREMIUM:

PERFORMANCE BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation in the State of
California, and Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation, (hereinafter designated as "Principal") have entered into an agreement where

by principal agrees to install and complete cefiain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated 2021, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase LB

& lC Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby refered to and made a paft hereof; and,

WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for
the faithful performance of said agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, We, the principal, and
as surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Folsom, hereinafter

referued to as the City; in the penal sum of FIVB MILLION EIGHTY-TWO THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND 221100 DOLLARS ($5,082,739.Z?),lawtul money of the United
States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,
successors, executors, and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep

and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof
made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein
specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save

harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall
become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

As a parl of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face atnount specified therefor,
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attotney's fees,

incuned by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any
judgment rendered.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition
to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be perfomred thereunder or the specifications
accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive
notice of any such change, extension of tirne, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to
the work or to the specifications.

Page 53

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety
above named, on ,2021.

(PRINCIPAL)

(PRINCIPAL)

(suRErY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

BY

BY

Page 54

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



BOND #-
PREMIUM:-

LABOR & MATERIALS BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation of the State of
Califomia, and Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation (hereinafter designated as "Principal"), have entered into an agreement

whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated _ 2021, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B

& 1C Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the

performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Folsom to secure

the claims to which reference is made in Title l5 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code of the State of California;

NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly
bound unto the City of Folsom and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and other
persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code

of Civil Procedure, in the sum of FIVE MILLION EIGHTY-TWO THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE AND 221100 DOLLARS ($5,082,739.22) for materials tuinished or
labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to
such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount
hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face

amount thereof, cost and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred
by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed

as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and

all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title l5 (commencing with
Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their
assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and

void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or
addition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any

manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,

extension, alteration, or addition.

Page 55

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety
above named, on ,2021.

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(suRErY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

Page 56

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Attach Exhibit o'A"

Engineers Estimate signed and stamped by Licensed Civil Engineer

l3

Page 57

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 3

To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C

Subdivision Final Map

Page 58

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



+

OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

I hEREBY STATE TUT I HAVE &MINED THIS FIML MAP OF TOLL SROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH -
PHASE 18 & IC'AND FINO IT TO BE SUESTANThLLY NE SAME AS THE TENTATIVE ffiP APPROVED BY
THE CIfl COUNCIL OF THE Ory OF FOLSOM, AND TMTALL PROVISIONS OF THE SUSOIVISION MP ACT
ANDAlLAPPLISELE CIry OROINANCES ilVE BEEN COMPLIED WTH.

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREEY STAE THAT WE ARE THE ONLY PARTIES HAVING ANY RECORO TITLE
INTERESI IN THE RSL PROPERN INCLUOEO WTHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF flIs FINAL MP OF
"TCLL BROTHERS AI FOLSOII RANCH . PHASE 18 & 1C'ANO OO HEREBY DECSRE IHE CONSENT FROM
NO OTHER P€RSON IS NECES$RY. ANO WE CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION ANO RECORDATION OF
THIS FINAL MAP AND DO HEREBY DEDISTE AS PUBUC RIGHT$OF.WAYANO AS UNLIN EASEMENTSTO
THE ClW OF FOLSOTI A PORTION OF NENLE DRIVE, PORTION OF REG€NCY PARKWAY, SST BIDWELL
STREET. VANG.N' PAR(WAYANDWHITE ROC{ FOAD

WEOONEFEEY OEO1CATE FOE SPECIFIC PUAPOSES THE FOLLOWINC
STEVEN R. KRAHN, RCE49291
CIWENGINEER
crw 0FEoLsoM
LICENSE EXPIRES: 0m0/2022

A PUBLIC EASEMENT FOR TN: INSTALLATION ANO MAINTENANCE OF DRAIN, qS, SEWER AND
WAER PIPES AND FOR !NOERGROUNOWIRESANO CONO!I1S FOR ELECIRI*1, IELWISION AND
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, TOGEIHER WTB ANY AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING
IHEiCTO ON OVER. UNOER AND ACROSS LOIS B, H, O, W, X. AB, AC, AO AE. AF, AG, AH, AI, AJ,
AO A!, AV, AW ANO 8E, AND THOSE STRIPS OF UNO SHOWN HEREON AND DESIGNATED'PUBLIC
UIl|ry SASEMENT' (P.U.E )

OATE:

2 A PUBLICEASEMENT FOR PEOESTR NACCESSON, OVERANO CROSSLOTS O, h.W, X,AB.ANOA
PORTION OF AC. AO. AV ANO AW, ANO THOSE STRLPS OF LAND SHOWN HER€ON ANO D ESIGMTEO
'pE0EsTRr^NACCESS €^S€iiENr' {p.A.E ).

3 A FUELIC EASEII€NT ANO R|GHT.OF.WAY iOR THE INSTALUTION. REPAIR. REMOVAL OR
REPL CEMENT OF LANDSCAPING TOGETHEF WTN ANY AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERIAJNING
THERETO ON, OVER, !NOqR. ACROSSANOAEOVE LOIS O. W X,Ag,ANO A PORTION OFAC. AD,AV
ANO AW, AND TNOSE STR]PS OF LANOS SHOWN HEREON ANO DESIGNAiEO'LANDSCAFE
EASEMENT'(L E.).

4. AN EASEIIENI FOR INGRESS ANO EGRESS FOR SUPPORTANO USE BY LAW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE

PROTECTION. WELFARE AND OINER PUELIC AGENCIES, IHEIR VEHICLES ANO PERSONNEL OVER
LOTBSHOWNIEREONANDDESIGNATEO"EMERGENryVEHICLEACCESSSSEMENT(E,VN.).

5. A PUBLLC ASEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTIONAND MAINTAINING CENTRALIZED Mtr OELIVERY 8OXE5,
P:OESTALS AND SUBS TOGETHER WTH AW ANO ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING THERflO
INCLUDING PEOESTRIAN ACC€SS FOR DELIV:RY AND RECEIPT OF MAIL ON, OVES AND ACROSS
STR]PS OF UNO FLVE (5) FEEI IN WIDTH CONTIGUOUS ANO OUTSIDE ALL RIGHISOF-WAY ANO
PRIVATE STREETS.

CIry SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREEY STAE BAI I HAVE EXAMIN€O THIS FiM! UP OF 'IOLL EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PUSE I8 & lCANDIAMSATISFIEDTMTSAID MAP ISTECHNICALLY CORRECI

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT
GEMLDA.YOUNG.LS, S52
CIrySURVflOR
LICENSE EXPIRESi 0d302022

A NOIARY PUBIIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERNflCATE VERIFES ONLY THE
IDENNry OF THE INDIVIOUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERIIFISTE IS
ANACHED, AND NOT THE TRUIHFULNESS, ACCURACY OR VALIDIry OF TUT DOCUMENA

OATE:

SIAIEOFAUFORNIA CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT
COUNI OF

TOLLWEST INC. WHICHWILL DO EUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA
AS TOLL BROTHERS WEST INC.,
A OESWARECORPORATION

ON- SEFORE ME,-, A NOTARY PUBLIC

WhO PROVED TO ME ON THE SSF OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO 8E THE PERSON(S) WHOS€
NAME(S) IVARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WTHIN INSTRUMENT ANO ACKNOWEOGEO TO ME THAT
HgsHffifl AECUTED THE SAME IN HISHERffHEIR AWHORIEO SPAOryilES), ANO THAT BY
HISERMER SIGMTURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENTTHE PERSON(S), OR THE ENNW UPON BEMLF OF
WHICH THE PERSON(S)ACTEO. SECUTEO THE INSTRUMENI

ICERTIilUNOER PENALryOFPERJURYUNDER'HEUWSOFTHESIATEOFALIFORNIATHATTHE
FOREGOING PAMGRAPB IS TRUEANO CORRECT.

WTNESS WSNOANOOFFICh!SAL

I HEREBY STATETHATTHECIryCOUNCIL OFTHE CIryOF FOLSOM HS APPROVED THIS FINAL MAP OF
TOLL EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH. PHASE 18 & 1C". AND ilS ACCEPTEO. ON B€HALF OF THE
PUBLIC. SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS, ALL RIGHTSOF,WAY AND 4SEMENTS OFFEREO BEREON FOR
DEDIqTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH IHE TERMS OF fuT OFFER ANO HAS APPROVEO TAE
ABANOONMENTOF THE ASEMEMS LISTEO HEREON.

NAME:
ITLE:

DATE CHRISTAFREEMNRE
CIl CLERK

NAME:
TITLE

DATE
SIGMIURE

W PRINOPAI PUCE OF BUSINESS

PRINTED MME RECORDER'S STATEMENT

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT wcoMMlssroN COMMISSION NUMBER: _

FTLEDTHTS..............._DAYOF-,2021,AT_.M.tNBOOK OFMpS,
ATPAGE- ATTHE REOUESIOFUC$Y & SOMPSCVIL ENGINE€RS, INC, TIIL€ IOIHE UND
INCTUDEDIN THIS FINALMAPBEINGVESTEDAS PER CERNFIATE NO, ON
FILEIN THISOFFICE

TNIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY OIRECIION AND IS BASEO UPON A FIELD SURVW IN

CONFORMANCE WTH THE REOUIR€MEMS OF THE SUBDIVISION UP ACT AND IOCAL OROINANCE AT
THE REOUEST OF FOLSOM RSL ESTAIE SOUTH, LLC, A OEUWARE UMITED UABILIfl COMPANY IN
JANUARY 2020. I HEREEY STATE TMT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANNAIY CONFORMS TO THE
CONDITIONALLY APPROVEO TENTATVE MAR THAT THE MONUMENTS WILL BE OF THE CHARACTER AND
W LL OCCUPY IHE POSITIONS AS INOICATEO ANO WLL 8E SET 8Y OECEMEER 31, 2022, ANO IHAT $ID
MONU[IENTSWLL 8E SUFFICIENI TO ENAELE THE S!RVEY TO BE REIFACED-

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OffER OFFICER COMPETING THIS CERNflqE VERINES ONLY ftE
IOENNry OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE MCUMENT TO WHICB THIS CERNflqTE 6
AfrACHED AND NOT THF NUTHFilI NFSS ACCIIRACY OR VAI IDIW OF NAT NOCI IMFW

DONMAIRED
SACMMENTO COUNW RECORDER

DOCUMENTNO,

STATE OF ilLIFORNIA

IIAC(AY & SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS, INC.

STATEOFqUFORNIA

COUNN OF
OEPUfl

FEE: S_

FOR REVIEW
PURPOSES ONLY

ON- BEFORE ME.-, A NOTARY PUBLIC

FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNATEO ON THA' CERTAIN MAP TITLED'PARCEL
MAP' FLED FOR RECORO ON OCTOAER 11, 2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17,
SACMMENTO COUW RECOROS. AND A PORTION OF 4ST BIOWELL STREET PER
OUITCUIM DEED RECORDEO OCTOAER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO. 201910110556 AND
OUITC4IM OEED RECORDEO JUNE 25. 2021 AS OOCUMENT NO. 202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECOROS OF SACMMENTO COUNW, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 d 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, MNGE A AST. M.O,B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

PAUL FERGUSON. JR.- PLS 9265

EXPIRAION DATE' WRCH 3I. 2022

PERSONALLY APPAR€D-
WHO PROVEO TO ME ON
NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRTB€D TO THE WTHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEOGEO TO ME TBAT
HSSHflHEY qECUTED THE $ME tN HISERtrHEIR AUTHORIZED CAPAqT{ES}, ANO NAT BY
HSHERMEIR SIGNATUR€{S) ON THE INSTRUMENTBE PERSON(S), OR THE ENNry UPON BEMTF OF
WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACIED, AECqED THE INSNUMENT,

DATE.

I CERTIil UNOER PENALry OF P€RJURY UND€R BE UWS OFNE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THATTHE
FOREGOING PAUGRAPH tS 

'RUEAND 
CORRECT.

WTNESS MY ilNDAND OFFICIAL sAL

JULY 2021

SHEET 1 OF 16

NAVD88 BENCHIMARK-CITY OF FOLSOM

8ENCHMARK"77' ELEVANON:380,28 NAVO88

ERASS OISK STAMPED "CIry OF FOLSOM BM 77' ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CONCRETE
ORAINAGESTRUCTUFE LOCATIONOFSITEISAPPROXIMATELYl3OOFEETSOUTHOFTtsE NTERSECTION
OT IIANGNI PARKWAY AND E. EIDWELL SIREET ON THE EAST SIOE OF E. BIOWELL STREET,
APPROXIMATE UITTUoET N$037 30.01" LONGITUDE W]?1o6 49.q"

ELEVATION OF38O.28WAS ESTASLISHED BY A OIFFERENIAL LEVELC]RCUIT FROM COUNil BENCFMRK
!01&OO9 SIAMPEO'K.856" IN FEBRUARY 20]1 BY MACKAY ANO SOMPS CIUL ENGINEERS. INC,

SIGMTURE PRINTEDNAME

W PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESS IS COUNry

MYCOMMISSIONEXPIRES:_MYCOMMISSIONNUMBER: _

MACKAY&SOMPS
*dxEBiorh\4R60!..!*19,F6rq4ffi 0()rurs

Page 59

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



FIRST AMERICAN TITLE COMFANY. AS NIsTEE UNDER DEED OF TRUST AND NSIGNMENT OF RENTS
WITN FIXTIRE FILING, RECORDED AUGUST 24, 2020, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2O2OO824O89O ANO
ANI€NOEO BY DOCUNIENT NUM8ER202101220066, FECORDEO JANUAFY 22,2021. OFFICIAL RECOROS,
NEREBY CONSENTS TO THE RECOROATION OF THIS MAF ANO THE SUEOIVISION OF TIE SNDS SHOWN
HEREON.

TRIJSTFF'S STATF[/FNT

NAME,

i]TLE
DATE

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDG I\4 E NT

I CERIry UNDER PENALry OF PERJIRY UNDER THE BWS OF TFE STATE OF CALIFORNIA ThATTHE
FOREGOINGPARAGRAPHISTRUEANDCORRECT

WTNESS MY IAND ANO OFFICIAL SEAL

A NOTARY PUEL]C OR OfrER OF'ICER CONIPLEIING THIS CERNFIATE VERIFIESONLY THE IDENTIry
OF IHE INOIVIDUAL WHO SIGNEO INE OOCUMENI TO WNICH TNIS CERTIFICATE 6 ANACHEO, AND
NOTTIETRUTHFULNESS,ACCURACYORVALIOIWOFTHATOOCU[IENT

STATE OF CAL]FORNIA

COUNTYOF

1. ALL CURVE DIMENSIONS ARE RADIUS. OEITA ANO ARC LENGTH, ALL OISTANCES SHOWN ARE GROUNO
OISTANCES ANO ARE IN FEET ANO DECIMALS fr4EOF. DlE TO ROUNDING THE SUM OF INOVIOUAL
DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUAL THE OVESU DIMENSION.

2. ThIS FIML MAP CONTAINS 1 25.887T ACRES GROSS CONSISTING OF 198 RESIDENNAL LOTS. 20 IENERED
IOTS ANO 3 URGE LOTS (TOT 14, LOT 1D ANO LOT 1E). THE RESIDENNAL LOTS ARE NUMBERED WITH THE
FOLLOWNG SEQUENCES: 1 e98, 1 S136, AND 1 8$2S. THE LEfrEREO IOTS ARE: 8, 0, H, O, w, X, AB. AC,
AO, AE,AF, AG, AH, AI, N, AO, AU, AV. AW, ANO BE,

3. "GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING STUDY . UPOATE FOR REGENCY AT EOISOM UNCH'
(PROJECI NO. E170583.&2) WAS PREPARED BY YoUNGDAHL CoNSULTTNG GROUP, tNC tN MAy,2019, ANo
IS AVAIUELE FOR PUSLIC INSPECTION AT BE CIW OF FOISOM COMMUNIfr DEVELOPMENT
DEPARIMENl

4. ALL FRONT LOT CORNERS WILL 8E S€T IN THE SIO€WAIK WTH A 1.@ FOOT OFFSET ON TH€ SIDE
PROPERfr LINE ENENOED WITH A A DAMEIER BMSS DISC SIAMPED "LS 9265" WHERE SIOEWALK IS
DETACHED, FRONT CORNERS WILL BE SET IN THE SIDilAL( ON frE SIDE LOT LINE WITH A 7.@ FOOT
oFFSETWTH A 1'DTAMETER BMSS DISC STAMPS "LS 9265'(SEE DflATLS HEREON).

5. ALL RSB LOI CORNERS ANO ANGLE POINTS WLL BE SETWTH A XS REgAR AND PqSNC qP STAMPED.LS 
9265". ALL RAR LOI CORNERS THAT FALL WIfrIN A RETAINING WALL OR MSONRY WALL, LOTS 17

THRU 
'8, 

131. ANO 2& THRU 269, WILL BE SET WIIH A !,@ FOOI OFFSET ON EE SIDE PROPERfr LINE
WITHA 

'SREEARAND 
PUSTICqPSIAMPED'!S925YUNLESS OTHERWSE SPECIFIED ONTHIS MP.

6- LOT B (PRIVATE ROAD) SHWN HEREON SMLL BE GRANTED IN FEESIMPLE TO THE REGENCYAT FOLSOM
RANCH OWNERS ASSrcATION AS A PRIVATE ROAD FOR THE BENEFIT AND GENEML UsE OF NE LOIS
SHOWN HEREON.

7. THE PRIVATE AOAO ASEMENT (P.R.E,) AND PR1VATE UNDSCAPE qSEMENT (P.L.E.) SHOWN ON LOT H
AR€ APPURTENAM TO LO] 1A SHOWN HEREON ANO WLL BE MAINilINED BY THE REGENCYAT FOLSOM
RANCH OWNERS ASSMIATION.

8, A PRIVATE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ASEMENT FOR THE EENEFIT ANO GEN€M! USE OF THE MEMBERS OF
THE REGENCY AT FOLSOM RANCH OWNERS ASSOChTION ON. OVER AND ACROSS THOSE SIRIPS OF
UND SHOWN HEREON ANO OESIGMTED'PRVATE PEOESTRIAN ACCES$ (P-CA).

9. LOIS AC AD, A:. AF, AG, AH, A I. AJ. AO, AU, AV. AW AND 8E SHOWN HEREON SHALL BE GRANTEO IN FEE
SIMPLE TO TAE REGENCY AT FOLSOM MNCH OMERS ASSOCANON AS COMMON ARAS FOR
UNOSqPING AND FOR THE BENEFITANO GENEilL USE OF THE LOIS SHOWN HEREON.

10, LOT O SMLL BE GRANIED IN FEE SIMPLE IO IHE REGENCY AT FOLSOM UNCH OWNERS ASSOCIAIION
FORPRIVATERECRSTIONALPURPOSES,ANDMAINTAINED ryTHEHOA.

1]. LOTS O. W, X AND AB ARE UNDSCAPE LOTS IO BE DEEDED IN FEE TO THE CIB OF FOSOM AND
MAINTAINED BYTHE CIR OF FOLSOM.

12. LOI H IS AN OPEN SPACE LOT AND WILL BE DEEO€D IN FEE TO IHE CIN OF FOLSOM 8Y SEPAMTE
DOCUMENT, SU&ECTTO INE PRVAIE ROAD ffiEMENT (P.R.E) SHOWN HEREON.

]3. LOTS 1A, lD AND 1E ARE TO 8E FUTURE PHSED Dfl&OPMENTS AND ARE TO 8E PffiED CONSISTENT
WTH BE VESNNG TENTATIVE MP SUEOIVISION, TOL! EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH R*OIUTION
NO. 1@OO PASSEDANOADOPTED BYNE CIW COUNCIL, CIry OF FOLSOM, MRCH 10.420,

14. PROPERI SUEJECT IO COWMNTS, CONOITIONS AND RESRICTIONS AS CONTAINED IN THE DEEO FROM
GTHERINE HOLTTOUSE MNGINI AND ALBERT D- MNGINI (WHO ACOUIRED NRE AS ALBERT O,
MANAGIND.WFEAND HUs8AND, RECORDED SEPTEMEER 12.2M2, (8OOO2OO2O9I2 (PAGE) 2U. OFFIChL
RECORoSAND FE-RECOROED MY 9,2m7, (BOOK) 20070509 (PAGE) 525, OFFTOAL RECORDS.

15. PROPERil SU&ECT TO THE TERMS ANO PROVISIONS CONTANEO IN THE D@UMENT ENTITLEO 'FIRST
AMENDED ANO RESTATED TIER 1 DryELOPMEM AGREEMENT RECOROED JULY 15, 2014 N BOOK
20140715. PAGE426 0F OFFTCAL RECORDS.
. DOCUMENT{S) OECURING MOOFIMTPNS THEREOF RECOROEO JANUARY 29. 2016 N SOOK

20160129. PAGE 0381 0F OFFTCTAL RECORN.
. DOCUMENT{S) OECURING MODIFISIIONS ftEREOF R€CORDEO JANUARY 29, 2016 S EOOK

20160129. PAGE 0382 0F OFF|C|AL RECORDS.
. OOCUMENT{S) DECUFING MODIFIGIIONS IHAEOF RECOROED OCTOBER 6, 2O2O AS SOOK

20201m. PAGE 1311 0F OFF|C|AL RECORoS.
. .PARIAL 

SSIGNMENT ANO A$UMPTION AGREEMENT REUNVE TO THE FO6OM SPECIFIC PN
AMENOED ANO RESTATEO TIER I OWEIOPMEM AGREEMENT RECORDED AUGUST24.2O2O, AS
INS]RUMENT NO, 2O2W4OE93 OF OFFICAL RECORDS.

18. PROP€RW SUBJEf TO NE TERMS, CONDtrISS, PROVISIONS AND SNPUBNONS AS CONIAINED IN TtsE
AGREEMENT ENTITEO WATER SUPPLY ND FACILIIIES FIMNCING PUN AND AGREEMilT, BY ANO
BEruEil THE Ory OF FOSOM, ANO FOLSOM RAL ESTATE$UTH, L!C, ETAI- RECORDEO}NUMY24,
?013. (BOOn 201S124 (PAGE) 1$2, OFFICIaL RECORDS; AMENDM€M TO BE WATER SUPPIY AND
FACILITIES FIMNCING PUN ANO AGREEMENT. RECOROEO JUNE 3. 2014, BOOK 2014M3, PAGE 959,
OFFICIAL RECORDS| AND AMENOMENT TO THE WATER SUPPLY ANO FACILInES FIMNCING PUN ANO
AGREEMENT, RECORDEDJUNE 3, A14, BOOK 20140603. PAGE $0, OFFICIAL RECOROS

19. THE UND DESCRIBED HEREIN LIES WITHIN IHE BOUNDARY OF THE CIfl OF FOLSOM COMMINIW
FACTL|T|ES DrSTRtfr 41!1 (WATER FACtLtTiES & SUPpLy), A5 DISCLOSED By TmT CERTATN
ASSESSMENT MP, RECORDED DECEMBER 30,2013,AS {8OOK) 20121230 (PACE) 311,ANO tS SU&ECTTO
ANY ruIURE ASSESSMENT THEREOF.

20. PROPERW SUBJECTiOAN SSEMEM OVER $IO SNO FOR AVAION AND INCIDENTAL PURPOSES.AS
GRANTED TO THE COUNil OF $CMMENTO AND THE CIry OF FOSOM. IN DEED RECORDED JULY 15.
2014, (8OOK)2014071s(PAGE)427,OFF|CA!RECORoS.

21, THE UNO DESCRIEED HEREIN LIES WffHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE CIry OF FOLSOM, COMMUNIfr
FAC|LTTTES DTSRTCT N0. 18 (FOLSOM PUNARA-WDE TMpROVEMENTS AND SERVTCES).AS D|SCLOSEo
EYTHATCERTATNASSESSMENT MAP. RECOROEOO€Cry8ER 9,2015, A5 (8@()20151209 (PAGE)427.ANo
IS SUBJECT IO ANY Fq!REASSESSMENT THEREOF.
. DOCUMENT(S) DECURING MOOIFISTIONS ThEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 16, 2016 AS 8OO(

20181116. PAGE U65 0F OFFTChL RECOROS.
. IHE UND OESCRISEO HEREIN LIES WTHIN lHE BOUNDARY OF BE Ory OF FOSOM COMMUNIW

FACTLTTT€S DTSTRTCTNO.23{FO6OM MNCH) TMPRoVEMENTARANO.3. RECOROEDJUNES, ft20N
(BOOK) 2020608 (PAGE) 1611 AS oTSCtOSEO BY THAT CERTATN ASSESSMENT MAp (B@K)130 OF
MPS AT (PAGE)27, RECOR0Eo APR|L20,2020 OF OFF|CTAL RECORDS

21, THE UND OESCRISEO HEREIN LIES WIIHIN THE EOUNOARY OF THE CIry OF FOLSOM COMMUNIil

FACILIIES DISTRICT N0.17 (WLLOW H|LL PTPELTNE),AS DTSCLOSED BY THATCERTATN ASSESSUENT MAp.
RECORDED FEBRUARY 24. 415, re (S@K) 201s0224 (PAGE) 424. AND tS SUBJECT TO ANy FUTURE
ASSE$MENT THEREOF,

AW SSEMENT FOR WAER COURSE OVER BAT PORTION OF THE 4ND LYING WTHIN ALOER CREEK.
TOGflHER WITHANY RIGHTS IN FAVOR OFTHE PUBLIC FOR FISHING AND RECRSTION PURPOSES OVER
THE PORNON OF NE UNO THAT IS PRESENTLY COVEREO SY WATER DISCLOSED ON ASSESSOR PUT
BOOK 72 PAGE 6.

THEUNDLIESWTHTHEBOUNOARI€SOFPROPOSEDSCHOOLFACILIIESIMPROVEMENTOISTRICINO 2.

PURSUANT TO SECION 6&g(G) OF rHE SUSo|VrS|ON ACT THE FIL|NG OF frts FTNAL MA? SMLL
CONSTIIUTE AMNDONMENT OR RAECTION OF TH€ IRRryOSEE OFFER OF DEDICATION ANO
ASEMENTSWTNIN THE EOUNDARIES OFTAE SUSOIVISION LISTED BELOW:
A, TUT PORNON WIHIN PARCEL 4 OF THE IRREVOCAELE OFFER TO DEDICAIE FOR ROAO

RIGHT-OF.WAY AND INSDENTAL PURPOSES IN DEED (BOO() 2O17O3F (PAGE) 527. OFFICIAL
RECOROS AND NO] SSOWN HEREON. (NEW RIGHISF.WAY DEDICATEDWIIH TIIS MP)

8. fuT PORNON OF AN ASEMENT FOR ROAD RIGHT{F-WAY ANO INCIOENTAL PURPOSES IN OEEO

{B@(] 2013@q (PACE) 1031. OFFTC|A! RECORDSWTTHNWHTTE ROCK RoAD.
C. TATPORTIONWTHINPARCEL4OFTHEASEMENIFORPUELICROADWAYANOPUBLICUTILIIIESIN

o€ED(BOOK)20120622(PAGE)I4I3,OFF|C|ALRECORoSANDNOTSHOWNHEREON.
o. aSEMENTFORoRAINAG:(0.E.)AND|NC|oENTALPURPOSES.AREAS7,9.t0.11,12,13.14.15&161N

DEED (8OOK) 201 70329 (PAGE) 528. OFFTChL RECORoS.
E. ABUNER'S RIGHTS DESCRIBED IN S'3 O,R, 167.

23.

21.

22.

ASI BIOWELL STREET (FORMERLY SCOfr ROAD) (NE!V RIGHI.OF.WAY

RECORDS.

SIGNATURE PRLNTEONAME

NIY PRINC]PAL PSCE OF BUS NESS IS COUNfr

NTYCOMNI5SION EXPTRES _ MY COMMTSSTON NUMEER.

I FGFNN

ON- SEFORE NlE,-,A NOTARY PUBLiC

PERSO!^ -LV APPE FEO

WilO PROVEDTO ME ON THE BASISOF SATLSFACTORY EVLOENCE TOBE THE PEFSON(S)WHOSE NAME{S)
]S/ARE SUBSCREED TO TB€ WITHIN INSTRUMEN] AND ACKNOWLEDGEO IO ME THAT HSSHE/THEY
EXECUTED THE SAIIE IN IIS/HER/THEIR AIiHORIZ€D CAPACIN(IES), AND THAT BY HIVHERtrHEIR
SIGNATUFE{S) ON TIE NSTRUMENT THE PERSONIS), OR THE ENTIN UPON 8EHALF OF WHICH THE
PERSON(S)ACTEO. EXECUT'OTHE NSTRUMENT

125'P U E

1 DA. BRASS orSK(rP)

9

I

-t

q lzq lp
"l
1'

dL:)
PAVEMENT

FRONT LOT CORNER. ATTACHED SIDEWALK
TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

REAR LOT LINE

tE-

6

REAAR/CAP

REAR LOT CORNER
WPICAL 4'OFFSET

1'DIA. ARSS DISKWP

E

FRONT LOT CORNER - DETACHED SIDEWALK

TYPICAL 7'OFFSET

I
3

5

?il;s

o
a
@
x
E

a
H
@

o
II

i)
AC

B.M.

ENOY

c/L
D.C.R.

ON

E V.A.

N,O.A,
LO.O.

LS.
(oA)

o.R.

P.L.E.

P.R.E.

P.U,E,

(F)

R.S,

S.F,
s.s.E.

o

SECTION CORNERAS NOIEO

il4 S€CTION CORNERAS NOiED

CENTER OF SECTIONAS NOTED

FOUND MONUMENTAS NOTED

BASIS OF BFARINGS

STANDARD CIfl OF FOLSOM MONUMENTWELL STAMPEO
"ts 9265" TO 8E SET PER(r)

NE SSIS OF BARINGS FOR THIS MP IS THE
NORfrASTERLY UNE OF PARCEL 4 AS SHWN ON
ruT CERTAIN PARCEL UP NAED'PARCE! MAT FILED
FOR RECORO ON JUNE 3,2019 IN BOOK 236 OF PARCEL
MPS, AT PAGE 10. $CRAMENTO COUNR RECORDS
AND HAVING A BARING OF NORTH43'O22YWEST
EEWEENIHE FOUND MONUMENTS SHOWN JECEON

A6PM 9

3958.M.10

0N20191217593
46P.M.10
218P.M.17
87R.S.20
DN 2021@80512- P.U.E.
DN 2019101r0$4
20170329 0R. 0529
DN201912171$4
DN _- OU|T CHM {EASTBIoWELL ST)

5/E" R€8AR WITH PUSTIC CAP STAMPEO 'LS 57€O TO BE SET PER (1 ) OR (4)

SETSTANDARO CIW OF FOLSOM MONUMENTWELL STAMPEO'LS 9265"

SET3/4'1RONPJPEWTHPUSTICPLUG STAMPEO'1S9265'

SET 1& RESRWITts PLASTIC CAP STANFEO'LS 9265'

SET A4" BRASS TAG SIAMPED AS 9265"

OIMENSION POINT

FECORD DATA PER REFERENCE

ACRES

BOOK OFMA?S
BOUNDARY

CENERlINE
OECURATION OF CONVENTS ANO RESIRICIIONS

DOCUMENT NUMBER, O.R.

EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS ASEMENT
HOMEOWNERS ASSMAION
IRFEVOqBlE OFFER OF DEDICATION
UNDSCAFE EASEM€NT

OVERALL

OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO CQUNry
PED€STRI N ACCESS ASEMENT

PROPERfr L]NE

PRIVATE LANOSCAPE EASEMENT (SEENOTE 7)

REFERENCES
(1)

t2)
(3)
(4)
(s)
(6)

cf)
(8)
(9)

00)
(11)

PR]VATE P€O€SIRIAN ACCSSS (SEE NOTE 8)

PRNATE ROADWAY ilSEMENI (SEE NOTE 7)
P!8LIC !TLlry EASEMENT

RADIAL BEARING
RECORO OF SURVEY

SQUARE FEET
SANITARY SEWER E_ASENFNT

SHEET INDEX NU[4BER

- 

EOUNoARY

- 

LOTLINE

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSONI RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP IIED "PARCEL
MAP' FILED FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER 11, 20I2. IN EOOK 218 OF PARCEL MPS AT PAGE 17,
SACRAMENTO COUNW RECORDS, AND A PORTION OF EAST BIOWELL STREET PER
ouFcalM oEEo RECoRDED OCTOEER 11.2019 AS OOCUMENT NO.201910110556 ANO
OUITCSIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25, ZO21 AS DOCUMENT NO,202105251296, OFFICIAL
RECOROS OF SACRAMENTO COUNil, BEING A PORTION OF SECNONS 17 & 20. TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGE 8 AST, M.D,A.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

MACKAY&StlMPS
ENGIXEBS 

'UNNERS 
SURWOBrd5cdaF6h..&br$.idnh

JULY 2021

SHEET 2 OF 16

EXISTNG RIGHTQF.WAY

CENTER LINE

ASEMENTLINE
SECIION LINE
AOJACENT PROPERW LINE
MUNiCIPALLIMIIS

Page 60

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



38

83

m

59

68

&

69

82

40

81

70

86

I\]

LOT H
16.183SC

OPETJ SPACE

41

80

56

63

71

42

79

64

72

43

78

65

44

n

53

74

90

66

45

76

75

46

67

51

50

49
\i6

-tu-tr

{
I

&

Q)
LOT D

204

209

207

206

--+,

\.. / ,!glro"

\

iis:

\
\

\R=7S.m

L:100,31'

A=S'000tr L=31.42

170.00

\

194

195

199

198

r$9

193

281

$&

251

252

254

255

LOT H
r6.4834C

i 161

260

\

N$"U 6'E

147

15SH€EION

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
t

N3tr3/551

NA'3fl5A

LOT 1E
$.2134C

. CENTERLINE OF

_/ ALOER CREE(

.,t \

__1

MANGINI PARKWAY

x8' RE6AR o.c.R. PER lr

t-o.o. PER 20170329 0R 090

r.o.0. PER201703290R0S0 OF
N00"4fr6w

PARCEL 1A

236 P.M. 10 I L'

o

COI/PLEIEDPER (1).

I

o
r.o.D.{2)

I

I

-F
Itl

o

I

-

o
Line Table

41 g'

29.66

113,27

&a.ing

NS'2759W

N01'0234il

N75"0942'E

LI

Q

B

I

z
oz

=@
I

PARCEL 2A
235 P.M. r0

I

\

+
i*
,g

t-

I

51.115)

o 100 200 400

-: SCAE: l'=200'

FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 1B & 1C

AEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO OESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAN MAP ITLED 'PARCEL
MAP' FILEO FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER I1. 2012. IN AOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17,
SACMMENTO COUNry RECOROS, ANO A PORNON OF SST BIDWELL STREET PER
AUIC6IM DEED RECORDED OCTOAER 11.2019 AS DOCUMENT NO. 201910110556 AND
OUITCBIM OEED RECOROED JUNE 25.2021 AS DOCUMENT NO.202106251296, OFFIChL
RECOROS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry. BEING A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 & 20. TOWNSHIP 9

NORTA, MNGE 8 AST, M.0.8.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAIVIENTO COUNry . CALIFORNIA

IRON

CENTER OF SECTION
R=3m.00 A=20's931"

JULY 2021

SHEET 3 OF 16
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

L=716 31

/ N891rs"E2ils.4315)

FOUNO 1 1U
SIAMPED'RE 46 PER (4).

MACKAY&SONPS
ilOIf,Ere PUXNEre SURVdOFS.4ffi 0$l4i1s

Page 61

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



LOT AU
4.580S.F.

P,U,E.

6.99 S.F.

268
6.295S.F.

--1--

258
7,69 S.F

4{"451r

L=31.42

254
7,850S.E

R-2Om

267
5,E38S.F

259
6,628 S.F.

N07"25 2E(R)

253
\ 9.311 S,F.

5.927S_F.

14.14

7
s

6,
i,

A=A'0729' \
!=29.02

262
8.145S-F.

MANGINI

18.123.5

6o

z

12.6 P,u9l- -

9.161 S.F

=

2A

4:

CENTERLINE
ALDER CREE(

Curue Table

Lenglh

33.6E

3.06'

20.12

24.96'

19,48

3.41

9.4E

8.92',

1i.73

10E2

11.7!

108?

5 7E'

28.90',

25.4

34.99

Delta

E0'2421'

7'1814"

3'44il"

2'5535"

0'491y

31'57 10'

31'5/1o',

25"5031-

25'5031'

25'5031'

25'50',31'

1',O229'

82'4715'

n'5211"

5'00!3'

24 00'

)4.04

423 S

38r.50

381.50

381.50

17.00

16.00

26.@

24.AA

26.00

24.00

318 50

20.00

20.00'

400 00'

c1

c2

c3

cn

c5

c5

c1

c8

c9

c10

c11

c12

c13

c14

c15

c16

N45'2342W

LOTlE
35.?134C

{

P;:F-
LOT B

11.0134C
P,U.E/E.[A.

P,U,E.

2171

\
.tt

I

I

.g
!o'

\ 273

SEE SHEET 3

L=31,42' o
ln

<)

r-i

Line Table

Lengrh

10.29

1r.68

400

3S46',

1E.53

1.00

21.95

45.80

8eadng

NS"2424W

N50'2424A

N3E'3307'E

N36'22',&'E

N36'2',S',E

N36'22@'E

N50'2424W

N05'2r304

N31"2022'E

N39"5325'E

t2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

110

EQQNG.4S13'E(R)

,&

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SHEET4OFl5

".5
/t

FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND 50 DESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED'PARCEL
MAP" FILEO FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER 1 1. 2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.

SACRAMENTO COUNW RECORDS. AND A PORTION OF AST EIOWELL STREEI PER
OUITCLAIM DEEO RECORDEO OCTOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO,201910110556 ANO
OUIICLAIM OEEO RECOROED JUNE 25,2021 AS OOCUMENT NO.202106251296, OFFIChL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH RANGEsEAST MDBM

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

mAGxAY&somPS ruLY 2021
ETGNEERS PUtrtrERS SUWfrORS CUEET / nE 4 cor rLLr T vr ru

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES. BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

1992

L=26.s

20.12'

LOT IE
36.2134C ?c

400

.,

I0204080

---l
SruEr l'-40'

PARCEL IA
2J6 P.M. r0

2.5

F
U
UIa
U
Uo

PU.E,/P.A.E./1,E.

SEE SHEET 3
LOT H

SPACEOPEN

272
+

Page 62

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



j'JllEr-

285
5.321 S.F.

283
s,s00s.F.

281
7,1$S.F.

281

278
5,200s.F.

277
qSS.F.

5.630 S.F
272

4,750 S.F

- Ioua". -

24A
6,175 S.F

242
4,7S 9t

244
5,623S.F

245
6,663S.F.

247
5,574S.F.

R=20.00

1.31.42

251
7,&1 S,F,

SEE SHEET 3

LOT H
16.4834C

OPEN SPACE

271

DETAIL'3C'ON SHEET 16

R=s00 00.

.&-
Y

ORi V€
N
F
U
U-a
Ut!a

--'o_ 281

22 *
L=31..2 q

\
3'

+
F
Uu
I
Q
U
Uo

__{vsoq
- 

--:,c 
L:r87 80.-..- -<'-__ o -_- _-___$a'11ry292j!9_-_ __256 I

\
I

BROOKVIEW DRIVE

255 224
U
@)o
I
@
lJ
O

223
222 238

221

254 226

SEE SHEET 6
227

228 229 2J0 231 232 233 234

N FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO OESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED -PARCEL

MAP'FILEO FOR RECORO ON OCTOBER 11.2012, IN EOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACRAMEMO COUNry RECORDS, AND A PORTION OF UST AIOWELL STREET PER
OUITCUIM OEED RECORDED OCTOBER 11. 2019 AS DOCUMENT NO 201910110556 AND
QUITCUIM DEEO RECORDED JUNE 25,2021 AS DOCUMENI NO,202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMEMO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH. RANGE 8 EAST, M.O.A-M.

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

+
JULY 2021

SHEET 5 OF 16
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOIES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,

LEGEND AND REFERENCES

02040ao

-

SfrE: 1'=a0' MACKAY&SOMPS
4dXE* PUf,NE$ SURVEYORStxa.ldistfw,k '$,r0 f,asr o6)rrira

Page 63

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



v
249

2?:
248

22
247

246 SEE SHEET 5

to
245

2 244 243 242 241 240 2J9
234

215.17 237

F
U
UIa
U
Ua

)
^^. R=500 00 4,27.12 59, I =,.,

-t-23' 
5'

235

LoI B

11.0134C
^ P.U.E./E.VI_

k
*q
6

&
co

4.00'

22 22
u
Eo
t

t
Uuo

(-
)dg--I

I

Fr.

i; rsr

t*

rs5

Fo
F
U
UIa
U
Ua

LOT 1E
36213$C

196

SEE SHEET 3 n'622

N

FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLEO 'PARCEL
MAP" FILED FOR RECORO ON OCTOBER 1 1, 2012, IN EOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17
SACRAMENTO COUNry RECORDS ANO A PORTION OF AST BIOWELL STREET PER
OUITCBIM OEED RECORDEO OCIOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 AND
QUITCUIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25,2021 AS DOCUMENT NO.202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNil, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGES EAST, M.O.B-M.

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNW. CALIFORNIA+
JULY 2021

SHEET 6 OF 16

211
5,3@ S.F.7.429S.F.

r----qlE.5'P.uE

a
214

7,259 S.F.

5,E61 S.F.

5.989 S.F.

220
5,497 S.F

r lr{it-':
= ft'o"u'

234

:1rI{

230
5,300s.F.

229
5,E30 S.F.

_JgsjjE-

227
7,@1 S.F.

221
6.776 S.F

\ n=zo.oo

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES AND SHEET 3 FOR BASIS

OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

0204080

--l
SruE:1'=40'

mACxhY&s0mPS
ilolNEs Pux{Es suRvdoRstxG*r{R4r}{.$a s.Pm!. qH4 f6)DnS

Page 64

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



SEE SHEET 'I1

SEE SHEET 3
OF FUTURE

LOT H
16.463SC

OPEN SPACE

LOT 14

12.5 P.V.e

I
AEFUTURE BLKE

a=1000 00
, -.n"<6 n.' L=1061.75'a-,- -- ' A:51.39,03' L=901.d8- 

-a=-3;nsiL-6i4:E_
-"*q

lolS

B 5

fE(R)
LOT 8

11.013SC
r 33.21'/'*. 5.00

R:19.m\
z't

L=30.4'

5.@

\ -,k
_{

?,i
,*' f,.

F- 6 P.U.E.

I

l'
I

I
I

\

LOT D

SEE SHEET 9

oe
+

\

\

02040ao

-: SSLE: 1'-40'
LOT 8

\ F|NAL MAP (PN 19-oe1)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE iB & 1C

aat-'
4=87"14'32'\

1.30.!5 \
209 \'q

d ,'li,Ju" rr5 \
tb

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNATEO ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLEO "PARCEL
MAP' FIIED FOR RECORO ON OCTOBER 11, 2012, IN BOOK 21€ OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACRAMENTO COUNil RECOROS ANO A PORTION OF SST EIOWELL STREET PER
aulTcutM oEEo RECoRDED ocToBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 ANO

AUITCUIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25, 2021 AS DOCUMENT NO, 202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, M,D.B,Ii.

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

194

SEE SHEET 8 208 \

JULY 2021

B

293
5,809S.F.291

E,369 9F

L=28.92

8,833 S.F.

R=20.00'

236
6,731 S.F.

'N\

R-20.00

237
5,228S.F.

9.00

234
7,370 S.F.

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

MAGKAY&SOMPS
4GIf,ERS PUNIEN SURVryOF
{6sirdRs.0d.tur:s.F.a husro p{)Dnt SHEET 7 OF 16

Page 65

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



1s

189
7,S9S.F.

1S0
6.1& S.F

191
5.48S.F.

192
5,075S.F.

193
5,017S.F.

I

2d clt %'sq:^
'6^

Curue Table

17.92

0.93'

0.6E

2A &'

6s.76',

1E.65',

32.S',

31.70'

32.63

31.7q

6&.r9'

51.98

&ila

2"031$

2'311y

315!5'

5'20i4'

1'@6"

93'2001'

90"4842',

93'2E32'

90'4842'

45'0024'

3'52 &"

$0.00

20.00

20.00'

ffi_00'

706.00

1000.00'

20.00

20 00

20.00

20.00

750 00

7T4.00'

c1

c2

c3

u
cs

6

c1

c8

c9

c10

Cl1

c12

R.s22.0q
5 P.U.E

L''N

SEE SHEET 9

LOT O
4

\1s ?qu>
qaT

t)

235t i

'-C-(
+

LOTE

\234

2331 t

ll

1d

'"+,

232t1!t
!t

s
1d

\25

lt
1I

lfi.w--,
* L<t 13

LOT B
11.0134C

4<-o>''",;f
- 
- 

- !!E!E!A.- 
-- -

230
I

l
l
I I

J

i-------
1 I 2ro
tl

SEE SHEET 6

-T--" 1,4V

l=31.12
148.82 4.00

!0_7_'q8_s_olryLFy

R=20.00'

h";,15"LOT 1E
36,213*C FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

SEE SHEET 3

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND 50 OESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAN MAP NTLED "PARCEL
MAP' FILED FOR RECORD ON OCTOEER 11, 2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACMMENTO COUNry RECORDS. AND A PORNON OF AST BIDWELL STREEI PER
OUITCUIM DEED RECOROEO OCTOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO,201910110556 AND
OUITCUIM OEED RECOROED JUNE ?5. 2021 AS DOCUMENT NO. 202106251295 OFFICIAL
RECOROS OF SACRAMENTO COUNW. BEING A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 A 20. TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, MNGE 8 AST, M.O.B,M,

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAL,IENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

MACKAY&SOMPS JULY 2021
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS.
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

200

198
5.618 S.F.

e
9

197
5,616 S.F.

r& s10A)

A=1'18'S'

196
5,363S.F.

P

208
5,487S.F.

- L'31.42

I

I

5

R=20.00

194
9.216 S_F.

/ uoz"oaso'ern)

0204080

-

SCALE: I-=40' ilGINEB PWNEB
16cntbr40d.,s.:$ Fmrb,q6a 00r!n$ SHEET 8 OF 16

Page 66

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



t
291

292,+ SEE SHEET 1O

{22/
6 P,U-E. LOT H

I

I

I

I

b
^(/

O)\

293

.alqq I

I

I
----*---F

1?.rP.U.E. /
233

L=5935 296

!/;/
F
U
UIa
U.Jua

Lol Bf-)
209

2AE

207

204

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,

LEGEND AND REFERENCES

AD\

t,

I
I
I

---o-

AY

48206

LO1 
NC

46 45

47

SEE SHEEI 
12

205

'r!r
ul
a
ul
ula

\

\[

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 1B & 1C

136-p\

\

+
&203

BETNG PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNAIED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP NTLEO "PARCEL
MAP' FIIED FOR RECORO ON OCTOEER 11. 2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17,

SACRAMENTO COUNry RECORDS, AND A PORTION OF AST BIOWELL STREET PER

QUITCUIM OEED RECORDEO OCTOBER 11, 2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 AND
AUITC4IM DEEO RECORDED JUNE 25, 2021 A5 DOCUMENT NO. 202106251296. OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS I7 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NOR]H, RANGE 8 EAST, M.O,B.M.

CITY OF FoLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNW. CALIFORNIA

4 -sy_-_-
B

SEESHEEI 
14

lol

d.
5G '+#' 

$_+"9$"I_k"lg."!$,*,i
JULY 2021

SHEET 9 OF 16
!o1

SEE SHEET 8

LOT AF

A=67'4129' L.2.24

LOT D
5.0204C

P.U.E.

P.U.EF-
I

I
I

"r.r.r.2

N56'49?0E(R)

A=9"235fl L=76.Es

N46'47S1(R)

R=19.00'A-76"2?3'

A=91'20$"
L=30.29'

)

L=6E.90 /

A-93'5305'
L=32 77

236
R=428.00'

\L-

f.

{\
l\4230

LOT 1A
&&5$C

OLIVE
ORCHARD

TOSEASNOONEDWHEN I

LOTIAISSUEOV|DEo I

\
I

69 P!€ (1) ---l
N7E 3123'E

Page 67

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



25

17

FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSON{ RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

PARCEL 2
236 P.M. I

D C.R ARA4 PER
SEE DETAIL'30'

201912171593
ON SHEET N891E 3yE

50
._u

"'fBEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO OESIGNAIED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED "PARCEL
N1AP" FILED FOR RECORO ON OCTOBER 1 1.2012. IN BOOK 21A OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17,
SACRAMENTO COUNW RECOROS, ANO A PORTION OF EAST BIDWELL STREET PER
OUITCUIM DEED RECORDEO OCTOEER 11, 2019 AS OOCUMENT NO. 201910110556 AND
OUITCSIM DEEO RECOROEO JUNE 25,2021 AS DOCUMENT NO.202J06251295, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20. TOWNSHIP S

NORTH. RANGE8 AST, M,D,B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAI,4ENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

it
il
it
lt
il
it

20'P.U.E./+
P.A.E./LE. i 

i
it
il
il
it
il
it
lt
ll

I

I

APPROXIMIE LOCATION

15.79',
BIKETRAIL

mACnY&s0mPS JULY 2021

SHEET 1O OF 16

/
(

I
I

LOT H
16.4834C

I

I

I

OPEN SPACE

_t

16

/
//

//
/

__-]-\-
i\

lt

-it lt
it

SECTION 17 Nsaosl!36:7:031l _ _ _ 4$.70 i
///

//

SECTION 20

";#._-%)aSEE SHEET 3
PARCEL 2

I236 P,M.

{
:\

+

- 16,..-

)?{,*.
o" 

*-
g

"".' LOT 1A

- D.C.R,ARg4 PER I
DN 20r01217r59t :
sEE DEtAtL'3D' I

ON SHEET 15\ 1\r\
I

0244080

-

SCALE:1"40'

:Ea
uJ
u..la

19.40

I

I

OPEN SPACE

it
r',

I

1

",r)

/ bz2"lg$'
/ L:11.69 ,

)

LOT H I
/'- . ---OPEN SPACE

F
IJJu
I
c/)
tu
ul
U)

20 P.U.E./---I
P.A.E./1.E. 

I

R478.00 A-28'94F
25 2t

F
I

tbSHSEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES SEE SHEET 1 1 10

Page 68

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



LOTAD

--l

I

_1__t___

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF
BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SEE SHEET 1O

LOf 1A //

N28"03!AE I

I

20'P.U.Ei)
P.A.E./1.E. I

25

2PER
I

DN 201912171593SE€
OETAIL'3C'SHEET 16

69',P.U.E.(4-Y/

I

I
I
I

I

!
I

I
LOT H

144031AC

Line Table

Leryth

20.m'

!.m

5.49',

Beanng

N88'572fE

NS'627a(R)

N05'213ru

L1

L2

L3

7( ro 
".u.r.1r1OPEN SPACE

I

I

I

LOT 1A
8.954C

I

AL

I

l
I
I

i

I

Curue Table

Ls9S

20.7!

3.70

30s

Ddb

19'4742',

6'371 1"

88"44S'

60.m

3a@

20.m'

c1

a
c3

2S 25

an8'1142" to
IF.; u.l

9r usl :E
3r o)

--.-l u.tz. tul
iu)
I

LOT H
16.44$C

OPEN SPACE

&18'11 42

I

-t
=l
oa

=z

APPRoXTMATE \ .
L@NONOF
FUruRE BIKERIL \

35

----------t-1
N90'00mw t\

i20.48 R.20.m

I
I

1"31.42
s.9' I

I

f.-s

rAlf
rb
lc5

IE:
l:
l:

I

I

I

22.19\1E)
42 3a, P,L,E.

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
-1

I
I

I

+

LOT 1A \l

\ 1q
't"

(9 LOT 1A R=32.00
A=33"591?63 P.u E0) ':( 35 2'

N80"4524'E

0204080

-

SCALE: l'=+0'
A.33'5912'L=35.58 1g

I

I

i

\I

'*-fJI
o.;

Sr
5t

-I

,rl

>r
ol

o

t
e,o

eo
LOT B NBs'o82rE

L=35.59 11-013dC

L=lo.12 R\r
P.U.E./EJA.

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
16.4

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSONI RAN 557.t N0r'0zyT(9)

No1'ozg!{9}2.@(lq--J
PHASE 1B & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO OESTGNATEO ON THAT CERTAIN MAP ITLED'PARCEL
MAP' FILED FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER 1 1, 2012. IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL WPS AT PAGE 17,
SACRAMENTO COUNil RECOROS, ANO A PORTION OF EAST BIDWELL STREET PER

QUITCLAIM DEED RECOROEO OCIOBER 11,2019 AS OOCUMENT NO.201910110556 ANO
OUITCLAIM OEEO RECORDED JUNE 25.2021 AS DOCUMENT NO.202106251296. OFFICIAL
RECOROS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20. TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGE 8 ilST, M.D,B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

LOT AC
42& s.F.

EU-L

40 I ----l---
I o p.u.e.

25

MACKAY&$ONPS JULY 2021

SHEET 11 OF 16 SHEET 11 OF,16
ENGINE4S PUNflERS SUffiORS

siltt oa)rlld

44 4J 42 41

SEE SHEET 12

39

38 37

Page 69

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Fl
Iqri
t-

33
4,7E6S.F

&
=3

d=S.00'
A=21"30S'

36
5,AS.F.

5,01SS.€.

L=29.24'

A.$'40&'

g N01"02sT

&

Z6Y

:RiE

30 P.U.E.

d

----t---
I

I

--.1

5,1qS.E

f9sj.lE__
47

5.350 S.F.

A=S'm00"
l=31A2 tl

5.56OS.F i I

hl

74
4 7Sl S,F,

4

1.31 !2

5,811 S.F.

R=20.@
58

4,92S.F.

NS.5?'2SE 274.8d(0A)

62
5,2@S.F.g

5,!91 S.F.

53
5,581 S F.

NC1'0d11€

66
5,678S.F.

$e1

52
6,257 S F

LOT AD SEE SHEET 11 ilgl

*l

2500 +

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

5012) 
]

I

I

I

I

I

_I

I 4 l.o.D.(2)

REGENCY
LOT 8

6
--+ T

t- 764',r:sr'j8--{<\-
N 89" 0823',E 557.771ClL) \oL

LOT AC
29,262S.F

EU.E.

25

48

t_
l6
'ft9

l3

gtF

3l

F
U
L!
Io
U
U
@

.{h
'(S LOT B

11.0134C
REOTAIL WAY
(PRVATE RO€)q

"q -L1]!s-

ilo-ogL
- -.+rtz!l--Lj1!!37-

I

Nqrrzl

i

I

rt'
t D

oT)

>a
I

t,
s6
3r
?l
Er

=l:ta

la
rL

t=
- -ld

I

I

I

!i
sl

I

49

50

Itt xe&

ia
=lo5F5

tso

N88'sndE 163.37'-+------
Al

30'

51
ERVAlE 

ROAD)

/Lor 
BCurue Table

?0 5E

20.s9

30.21'

10.94

19.4000

19'4000'

19"4000"

1S.40ofl

6000'

60.00'

88.00

3200

c1

c2

c3

c!

,g-

I
o

,, 
12 25 25 s0(2)

a2 FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN AND SO OESIGNATEO ON TBAT CERTAIN MAP TI1LEO'PARCEL
MAP'flLED FOR RECORO ON OCTOEER 11,2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACRAMENTO COUNW RECORDS, AND A PORTION OF ilST BIOWELL STREET PER
qUITChIM OEED RECORDED OCIOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 ANO
QUITCUIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25, 2021 AS DOCUMENT NO. 202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNW, BEING A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, MNGE 8 EAST, M.O.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

mAGXAY&S0nPS ruLY 2021
qOIXEB PU{NES SURVflORSL.ssno{ra.,$ DnEEI lZ Ur lO

80

75 79 SEE SHEET 13

h

+
J7

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS.

LEGEND AND REFERENCES

76

0204080

-- SCAI!: l'=40'

Page 70

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



82
4.552S.F.

80
4,793S.F.

77
4.812 S.F.

I

dlir

I

129.6(oA)

R:20.00 I

98
5.051 s.F.

e1'@12 L-5.4I

4-93'52 2r84 t<ztr
s,167S.E

P!E.

96
4,238S.F.

86
4.749 S.F.

95
4.251 S.F.

\-p

rtr'
91

5,272 S.F.

L=31 89

90
s.950s.F.

a R.2o ao

J

;1
-.1

I
I

5.065S.F

I

lo'
,a

30
4.696St.

26
6,2$SF.

4.374S.F.

20
4,786S.F.

18
4,740 S.F.

16
4.740s,F

-x-oef il-ew-x-SliEET- '- ("n'uer *oP)

REGENCY PARKWAY 

- 
-

R=1E0.00

L=2E.€

SEE SHEET 12 +
I69 I70

{
sli
9';jJI

f

71 2Z 22

72

I

J
:

=3
73

74

. rCP-\

130

\ 75
se' F

U
U-v)
U
Ua

- -_:- lqqgzqE-Zq$-

a\
-1" r

+

^-,TJ >' ;4i.Pk;.-,---,o.-----
o

-3p .

>?-

*1."1-*9 {
R=1222.00'

A.0'1122"

U

=oo
F
U

22

I

I

*,
clrt

II

I

i

\

-c\

\

2r\

(

30 P U.E)

{&.* ,*or)
4.19

3\SEE SHEET 3

f\
1-t4 |RON PIPE

PUSNC PLUG

PER (?)

N73'5s03'E\

0204080:
SGLE: l-=ao

:opue) n*'st^11

PL&

rolO-
e?tsi;"'

ct{'{

F|NAL MAP (PN 1

MAGKAY&SllMPS
4o|NERS MNERS sUWdOrc16tuh64om,krgRab.a*r p6En!

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATEO ON THAT CERTAIN MAP IIILEO 'PARCEL
MAP' FILED FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER 1 1, 2012, IN EOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17,

SACRAMEMO COUNry RECORDS, ANO A PORTION OF UST SIOWELL STREET PER

QUITCUIM DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 11.2019 N DOCUMEM NO.201910110556 AND
OUITCUIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25, 2021 AS DOCUMENT NO. 202106251296, OFFICAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNW. BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20. TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGE 8 AST, M.D.B,M,

Clry OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

Curye Table

44.47

4A 23

21.15

2'06i6"

6'13 18',

7'0224

1200.00

1350.00

250.@

r20.00

c1

c2

c3

c4

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS.
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

JULY 2021

SHEET 13 OF 16

Page 71

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



s,369S.F.

(
I

I
I

76

50
5.$6S.F.

F)

;s

5,S1 S-F.

J]
$/
8/

135
5,267S.F

131
4,750S.F.

130
5.S1S.F,

LOT AF
14.757S.8

P.U,E

F
U
U
Ia
U
Ua

22

I sEE SHEET 7
F1?.5P.U.E.

LOT AH
LOT IA SEE SHEET 11

LOT B
P.U.E.

I

6'P.U.E.--I
N61.4827-E

R=2O00 SEE SHEET
LOT AE;s

t
e !=29.09'

R:19.00' A.75"243'
4.00

LOT AG 4oo SEE SHEET 9
LOT Dxz 21'

_ __I6?"gn,E_
61.&'

LOT B2

17.33
R.52200'

44.00
L=25.3 ll

L_-------r
I

30 P.U.E.

SEE SHEET 3

LOTlD
t! 6654C

47

12.5 P_U.E.

2

I
t2'
I

I

Curve Table

Lenglh

60.74

31.22

31.18

28.52

447

374 14',

3S.09'

358.03

6.r8

26.18

3.60

57.1e'

9.59

3"24',27'

E9'2703'

69'16!2'

3'16!5'

24'1539'

20'583r'

20"5831'

20"5631'

17'545r'

14'592?'

1'0406^

04206'

3'1221'

0"3257'

1022.04'

20.0D

20.0a

500.00

20.00

1022.00'

10m.00'

978.00',

20 00'

20.00'

1000.00'

1022.00

1022.00

1000.00'

c1

c2

c3

c4

c5

c6

c7

c8

cl0

c11

c12

c13

cr5

!

!
67

S
tlJ

-(/
Ot<

Lu

,it'u

/:l{

F
U
Ura
U
Uo

53
J:

Eo !
52

a,

! P.U.E.

1_ +
FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHE,RS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

/

79.

..-cz

I

!
I

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATEO ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLEO "PARCEL
MAP'FILED FOR RECORO ON OCTOBER 11,2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AI PAGE 17,
SACRAIIENTO COUNry RECORDS. AND A PORNON OF EAST BIOWELL STREET PER
OUITCLAIM DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 AND
QUITCLAIM OEEO RECORDED JUNE 25,2021 AS OOCUMENT NO.202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, EEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHiP 9

NORIH RANGE 8 EAST, M.D.8.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNry . CALIFORNIA

-r-
12.5 0204080

-E

P.U,E.

5l

si
L/

I

o
SruE:1'-4o'

JULY 2021

SHEET ,14 OF 16

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS,
LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SHEET14 OF 16

MAGKAY&StlMPS
4GINEEFS PWNES SURVEYORSqt$4 olrr!'trt SEE SHEET 13 7l

74

Page 72

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



I ze, I

I N&'5659W
DETAIL'38'
SSLE:l'.lm'

LOTlE

I
I
I -N16'23124 

g.3t(10)
/ A52"&08A 18.@110)

-J J -R=3s0oa=62'210[r=38.13(10)--Je{
\r-tos"losle m.zs{ro)

+

t
t

CENTERLINEOF\

^LoEF 
CREEK 

)
./ \.-.J- SEE SHEET 3

trru'or'ro*,a,.arl, o)
\" \ to.&rr.-

'-&4ij,q
LOT 1E

zo2
2

N55"2717y 41

C=s0.0o 
ate's?@' t=6ef 0110)

\i14.2i s2"E 2s.s1io)

l-N43'5838"E 84.99110) Ng'06s44 L{4.51110)

69.95110)

DCR PER

CREEK
s5.23110) ,*fls.,

-rol_-R-i0.00'
0N2019r2r71514

PARCEL 2A r=eS r:1t01 \ ty'
.. -.q!,."r-'fi,_rg.q gai""

'r'u, \-o,o
I R=20.00.
LA=5q'01 26'

236 P,M. r0 N03"4? lsa

,&,'

*9f.;r

14.4500)

\ta
""*t

R=1@.00' A=36"441S

\(bd'%\$ PARCEL 2A
236 P.M. 10

\--- , 6-8"27'45'
PARCEL 2

236 P.M. I
sI \\<A47"205'E 58.81(3)

Line Table

L6n9S

$.75',

928'

23.y

697'

86i6'

86adng

N78'0321V

N65'2r17W

N58.22',mW

N1roai4E

N1516 52il

L(10)

e(0)

B(101

L4 {3)

s{101

t
t
I
I
t
t
I

qv-roo'rntelr.za1r1

R{0.05 A=36'5251"
R=5.0q A€'4416"

N62"521dE 16.8313)

LOT H

APPROXIUTE LOSTION r-N61"1014'E 
{.9r(3)

b\3zo"v re rzsr{r)

b

OFFUTUREEIKERIL

DETAIL'3D"
SqLE:1'=P

LOqIION
=N16"45!04 EIKETRAIL

N5.$311

LOT H SEE SHEET 1O

I 
^oo.rrlo* 

o, N6'35474

47.s813) PER FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED'PARCEL
MF'FILED FOR RECORD ON OCTOEER 11, 2012, IN EOOK 218 OF PARCE! MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACRAMENTO COUNry RECORDS, AND A PORNON OF AST BIOWELL STREET PER
QUITCUIM DEEO RECORDED OCTOBER 11,2019 AS DOCUMENT NO.2O191O11O5S AND
QUITCUIM DEED RECORDED JUNE 25,2021 AS DOCUMENT NO.202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMEMO COUNry, BETNG A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH. RANGE 8 EAST, M.O.A.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM. SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

N55"a500W

N55"1340W 32. A=106"3205'
s.€13)N01

I

I
I

J

Ng'3111'E

tr $.2s13)

tt __:_-_L
43.Jot3)J

REMRWNPUSTIC
STAMPED'4S' PER(s)

N00"@28'E
OUITCUIM PER
oN 2019101105$

N35'01071L*
ON r

-l
I

BIDWELL STREET

MACKAY&SOMPS
ROIf,EN PUNNES SURVdORS
16hr6r40N,M:s.Po*rf q6tr o0Dns

JULY 2021

SHEET 15 OF 16

N69"013r8

N51'4S'E
N30"q'07'E

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF
EEARINGS, LEGENO AND REFERENCES

N26a94yE N01l33IE

{FORMERLY SCON ROAD)

Page 73

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



]A DETAIL'3C"
2J6 P.M. 10

LO.D. PER 0N 20170329 0.R. 0527
SdlE:1'=80

F- PUSIC ?& PARCEL 2
236 P.M. 9

LoT H'-6,
s-,'
$;

ai:i

'LS4$3'PER (5) ?&

PARCEL 2
236 P.M. SDN

201910110554
Jo_ i ft '5109'E&__ r81B)(TrE) 9r66

28 r.O.D
20170329

PER
0-R. 0521v OF

N62"23!2'E
=o

uU

2624

,\,0

,
D.C.R.,
DN2O1

AR4 ,"f
N29"48',9'E LOCATION

L BIKEIRA]L
?&

r6.s813)
11.72\3)

N39"03304
N70"2213'Eta^

274 469.651t{BNDY)

'a 211 272 274 10.2s13)
275

276 23 54(3)

SEE SHEET 4 R-105.00'

f-
277 4s.s413)

278
UN85'51sW

219
483.5211)(8NOY)

N09'S 581280 N60.3r0?w

- -s€€
282SH€€T LOT H

16.4834C
OPEN SPACE ft,u'2U 2A5

286 287
2EE

289
290

N48"59'29W

Line Table

bngh

9.9f

10.5q

7.42

25.43',

20.8f

39Af

44.90'

38.15

18.7S

14.52

14.73

1Z4d

12 2S

39.72

60.1 t
558'

14.21',

&07

5.65'

20.56'

B$i.g

N4t172SE

Ng'2603W

N45'40s7W

N&',416W

N77'50 59'E

N86a$flE

N43'0122E

N461729'E

N16'2924"E

N19"3303W

N13'00SW

N411726U

N37'24m4

M9'2q11'E

N49'242E E

N31149'E

N2'42 45A

NSa06W

N87'4242W

N87'4242\

N44'3618'E

L1(3)

p(3)

B (3)

L4 (3)

L5 (3)

L6 (3)

L7 (3)

ts(3)

L9 (3)

110(31

!11 (3)

112(3)

113(3)

114{3)

115i3)

116(3)

117(3)

118(3)

119(3)

120 (31

Q1

Curue Table

lenglh

18.5t

r7.39'

58.&'

24.42'

3&70

55.02'

Dslb

37'401tr

19'55'a'

67'12U'

27'5917

n'1031'

42'01'4t

28.17

50 00'

50.00

50.00

1m.0d

75.00'

c1 (3)

c2 13)

c3 (3)

c4 {3)

cs (3)

c6 (3)

291

30 ssE
201703290R.

L@ATION OF
FUTUREBIKETRAIL

FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

BEING PARCEL 4 N SHOWN ANO SO OESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITLEO "PARCEL
MAP'FILEO FOR RECORD ON OCTOBER 1 1, 2012, IN BOOK 218 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 17.
SACRAMEMO COUNry RECORDS, ANO A PORTION OF A5T EIOWELL STREEI PER
AUITCUTM DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 11,2019 A5 DOCUMENT NO.201910110556 AND
AUITCUIM DEEO RECORDED JUNE 25,2021 AS DOCUMENI NO.202106251296, OFFICIAL
RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORNON OF SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9

NORTH, RANGE 8 AST. M.D-A.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNry. CALIFORNIA

mACxhY&s0mPS JULY 2021
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF

BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES
ilorNEs PUINERS 9URVilORS SHEET 16 OF 16

Page 74

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 4

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 18 & lC Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map

Page 75

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



i
I

Arffimrs{srs
\!/------T;;-

IINIANV€ N INFORMAilON

| ,-1:"\ I

LJ:._.IJ
L:r.|

z"4x -*
!
h
!t
li
I

nINCn

IOrl!StruS
RECENCIIT toiso\r MNC{

ctr sE2
{&!(tr.s.<s,

,t.::1
r: il, I

z* -*

uN -*ry

1i. ***

I ..!

* To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch

COVER SHEET
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

MACKAY& SOMPS

i#13.-Jr

iill
,lil,

'6t".'*

il1At

'','--.",;

NOIES

Page 76

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



I

tolto! ranL 8l Te souff, Ltc

t-

a;
f;t

(

i

6
E

'p
o

_C

"1

9a

9P
r3

t!:cFlcY AI toLsQt{ lNc[
PilAS!]

R{ck i(ond

LOTTINC PLAN
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

lJ.1.l

lNJiol! fli{rr ilipnnnt)
Lr'o.dn Ali{iln*.f .r&ft d
6j( itr fru6ilr0lr ll. :ill

(&.$ldi$! N{ F41)

ti To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch
*

!::3::&;:=ir

)-- '-i

-{bislsgl:g mn8ruY&s0mps

Page 77

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 5

Table of Conditions of Approval for the To11 Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map

Page 78

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 1O4OO

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN EIR/EIS AND APPROVE A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT,

SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT, SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND THE

INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February l9,2020,held a public hearing on the

proposed General Plan Amendment, considered public comment and determined that the

development of active-adult and traditional residential subdivisions on the project site is consistent

with the goals, policies, and objectives of the City of Folsom General Plan and will not result in a
net loss of residential capacity within the Folsom Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February l9,2020,held a public hearing on the

proposed Specific Plan Amendment, considered public comment and determined that the

development of active-adult and traditional residential subdivisions on the project site is consistent

with the goals, policies, and objectives of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and the City's
General Plan, as Amended, and will not result in a net loss ofresidential capacity within the Folsom

Plan Area; and

WIIEREAS, the Planning Commission on February l9,2020,held a public hearing on

the proposed Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, considered public comment and

based on the proposed configuration of the 804 single-family residential lots, determined the

proposed subdivision complies with all City requirements, as well as with the requirements of
the State Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February 19,2A20 held a public hearing on

the proposed Planned Development Permit, considered public comment and determined that

based on the proposed site design, building heights, building setbacks, lot configuration, lot
areas, building coverage, density, and parking, the project is consistent with the City's General

Plan, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and Chapter 17.38 "Planned Development Dishict", of
the Folsom Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February t9,2020held a public hearing on

the Inclusionary Housing Plan for the proposed Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project,

considered public comment and determined that the proposed Inclusionary Housing Plan is

consistent with the City's General Plan and Chapter 17.104 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law

and City Code; and

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the 2011 Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (FPASP EIR/EIS)

Resolution No. 10400
Page I of 155

Page 79

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



A.

B.

has been prepared for the proposed project in accordance with the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby Approve and Adopt the Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS for the

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project, Amend the General Plan land use designations, Amend

the Specific Plan land use designations, Approve a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

creating 804 single-family residential lots, Approve a Planned Development Permit, and Approve

the Inclusionary Housing Plan for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project, as set forth in the

General Plan and Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit attached as Exhibit ooA" and as set forth in
the conditions of approval attached as Exhibit "B" and the following findings:

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AS AMENDED, THE
FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED, AND THE FOLSOM
RANCH CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED A FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR TTIE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE TOLL BROTHERS PROJECT IS

CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT NONE OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES
DESCRIBED IN PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21166 OR CEQA

GUIDELINES SECTIONS ls 162 AND I 5163 REQUIRING THE PREPARATION OF

A SUBSEQUENT EIR OR SUPPLEMENT TO AN EIR EXIST IN THIS CASE.

THE CITY HAS PREPARED AN ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND HAS

DETERMINED THAT THE PROJECT CREATES NO NEW IMPACTS AND DOES

NOT REQUIRE NEW MITIGATION MEASURES IN ADDITION TO THOSE IN THE
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECIFIC PLAN.

G. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF THE
TOLL BROTHERS PROJECT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC

PLAN AND THE ADDENDUM PREPARED THERETO.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 2 of 155

C.

D.

E.

F

Page 80

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



H

I

J.

THE CITY COI.JNCIL HAS CONSIDERED THE ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL EIR

AND THE FINAL EIR TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN BEFORE

MAKING A DECISION ON THE PROJECT.

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY HAS DETERMINED THAT ALL FEASIBLE
MITIGATION MEASURES REQUIRED BY THE FINAL EIR AND THE
ADDENDUM WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT WILL BE UNDERTAKEN.

PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21080.3.1,

THE CITY SENT FORMAL NOTICE TO ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN
TRIBES TRADITIONALLY AND CULTURALLY AFFILIATED WITH THE

PROPOSED PROJECT AREA. THE CITY RECEIVED ONE REQUEST FOR

CONSULTATION AND CONSULTED WITH ONE CALIFORNIA NATIVE
AMERICAN TRIBE IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT.

GENERAL PLAFI AMENDMENT FINDINGS

K. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE

GOALS, POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM GENERAL

PLAN.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN IS IN THE

PUBLIC INTEREST.

THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE

OBJECTIVES OF THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN

AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES.

THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET

LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65352.3, THE CITY
CONTACTED ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES ON THE

CONTACT LIST MAINTAINED BY TFIE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE
COMMISSION IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT. THE CITY DID NOT
RECEIVE A REQUEST FOR CONSULTATION FROM ANY CALIFORNIA NATIVE
AMERICAN TRIBE CONTACTED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS

P. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN

IS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN (AS AMENDED).

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FPASP WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET

LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY.

Resolution No. 10400
Page3ofl55

L

M.

N

o

a.

Page 81

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



S

T

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP FINDINGS

R. THE PROPOSED SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AND THE

SUBDIVISION MAP ACT IN THAT THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS

OF APPROVAL THAT WILL ENSURE THAT THE PROJECT IS DEVELOPED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH CITY STANDARDS.

THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION, TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISIONS FOR ITS

DESIGN AND IMPROVEMENT, IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN
(AS AMENDED), THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN (AS AMENDED),
AND ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE.

THE SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED.

THE SITE IS PHYSICALLY SUITABLE FOR THE PROPOSED DENSITY OF THE

DEVELOPMENT.

AS CONDITIONED, THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY
TO CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE OR SUBSTANTTALLY
AND AVOIDABLY INruRE FISH OR WILDLIFE OR THEIR HABITAT.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL-LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ARE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE SERIOUS

PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY PROBLEMS.

THE DESIGN OF THE SMALL.LOT VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
AND THE TYPE OF IMPROVEMENTS WILL NOT CONFLICT WITH EASEMENTS

FOR ACCESS THROUGH OR USE OF PROPERTY WITHIN THE PROPOSED

SUBDIVISION.

Y SUBJECT TO SECTION 66474,4 OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE LAND IS

NOT SUBJECT TO A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE
CALIFORNIA LAND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1965 (COMMENCING WITH
SECTION s1200 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE).

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Z. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES,

POLICIES, GENERAL LAND USES AND PROGRAMS SPECIFIED IN THE CITY
GENERAL PLAN (AS AMENDED) AND THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC

PLAN (AS AMENDED).

Resolution No. 10400
Page 4 of 155

U

V

W

X.

Page 82

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



AA. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH PUBLIC
CONVENIENCE, GENERAL WELFARE, AND GOOD LAND USE PRACTICES.

BB THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE
HEALTH, SAFETY, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF PERSONS RESIDING IN THE

IMMEDIATE AREA, NOR BE DETRIMENTAL OR INruRIOUS TO PROPERTY OR

PERSONS IN THE GENERAL NEIGHBORHOOD OR TO THE GENERAL
WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE.

CC. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS WILL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT THE
ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY OR THE PRESERVATION OF

PROPERTY VALUES.

DD. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65864 THROUGH 65869.5.

PLANNED DEVNLOPMENT PERMIT FINDINGS

EE. THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF

THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED AND OTHER

APPLICASLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY AND THE GENERAL PLAN.

FF THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE OBJECTIVES, POLICIES

AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF TFTE CITY.

THE MINOR MODIFICATIONS TO THOSE STANDARDS PROPOSED AS PART

OF THIS PROJECT WILL RESULT IN A DEVELOPMENT THAT IS SUPERIOR TO

THAT OBTAINED BY THE RIGID APPLICATION OF THE STANDARDS.

GG. THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE

PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE,

HH. AS CONDITIONED, THE PROJECT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE NECESSARY

PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER

AND DRAINAGE, AND THE PROJECT WILL ADQUATELY PROVIDE FOR THE

FURNISHING OF SUCH FACILITIES.

il. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACTS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MITIGATED TO AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 5 of 155

Page 83

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



LL.

JJ THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE LINACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROLINDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED

PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION, INCLUDING
INGRESS AND EGRESS.

KK. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH,
SAFETY ANID GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY WITHIN
THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS A WHOLE.

ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE
DEVELOPMENT,

DESIGN REVIEW F'INDINGS

MM. THE PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AS AMENDED, THE

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED, AND TI{E APPLICABLE
ZONING ORDINANCES.

NN. THE PROJECT IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE FOLSOM RANCH
CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES.

oo THE BUILDING MATERIALS, TEXTURES, AND COLORS OF THE PROJECT

WILL BE COMPATIBLE WITH SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT AND
CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL DESIGN THEME OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10s day of March,z}ZA,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Council Member(s): Gaylord, Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Aquino
None
None
None

Aquino, MA

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10400
Page 6 of 155

Page 84

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Exhibit A

Resolution No. 10400
Page 7 of 155

Page 85

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Ffi
Oq@(Do
ac
^3_
*3
u5

a

]B

un

r25

t

ffil

tl!t

ffit

t9

l.0rl

UJ

4

il

ua

It

ils

ilta

AC

).1:

1$

ct

6

4

t't

ul

C?!:

J.i -{

ol

lu

wr ciil[,

rlrHct{il

rtxSt:'r:4

$l$rx lff/

Ftrt(l{ti

it.! t[l3aB I aii
ilit6{ {u: (/,tC

r:{r 3rcwE
itll !i:iltr

sfntrotAl-tr t? oPl/t?a {rtta 2pi

r!

TIOPO3TO IAI{D UIE PIAN

n&ar

14l

tft
I tt-

PROPOIED IAND I'SE PTAN

UIOIA

!I

t!

zfl

ilt

ltF

00{lr

GOfi

00

E

Llt

7n

l,

rj

otl

tu

IN

a2

,,a&

N

DJT

tr6

q.rt

rc

tu

, I yt

wilr8i t/d

t:asaDfsl

tu

E rqwt

Errctnr

?ti
6rc

,":'

@hwi

'dcE,

5,r0rKtT t.trat?Gta/ltr {a513 2&,

ll

lo

![ola

rn

Ir

tHttui
EX|STIG/APPXOV0 tAN0 UrE PIAN

'r1tr8,

$

cr0tll

l',.r rr,.rlilr.i,,r ''irt.',1:iiil, l fliC.lIaiiPtAGlA SPAr;,1j,iilr]Lt.iilr':liiilrJrir;:,iiirlf':!l

r,,riEirilri,iil,.ri!,r1tir,,r CIJISIDEOtPROTfCTARtAGPA 5PAI{iltl^r!rlttDii,ibiPtr,:{l

Leggnd {Grrd gd lad us / spxih ff4 lrd @}

l--l sr r sp.sr l--l cc r sp+c

]*srrorsr.sno l-lccrspcc
l--l ur-o r sp*lo iT] nc r sp.Rc

.l worse.u,ro I poprsp.pop

[j urorse.uxo I P/sP.P

f_l uurspru l--l osrspos

lrnorrrprsp-norop WTtoeo*'!weru

Nols: Ths norliem boundary lor Parcal 208 (as ggnenlly sftorvn h€re)

is int€nded lo and shall bs dEemed to align wilh ths lsgal bourdary bsfu€ei
the Oal Avenus Holdings LLC and Nodh tiillsborough LLC ornerships, so

tlul OakAvenue Holdings LLC b lhB sde onnor d Parcgl 208.

2$

I
\.Y

rlI
.r, I'\'r'

,.,F; :'

Approved

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

Specilic Plan Amendment I
General Plan Amendment Proposed

Page 86

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



I

I_

I

toA9

--6r,-it G\-&;#- E laa / f

IHtr}?O'
lfiD

tlltD.D /soF.L$&ro /sp

h

E
j

t
H

eo^D

I

i

I

SIECIFIC PI"AN A'YTENDMENT /

ToIlBrotfters
ai!f,rq'l luruil ffotsl NlLtlR'

milfitmf

GENENAT

r0r $mnor/4DsUtril <>
I{ORTH

ResolutionNo. 10400
Page 9 of 155

0 monLfu

Page 87

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Exhibit B

Resolution No. 10400
Page 10 of 155

Page 88

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTTIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI{T'E PARKWAY, AIYD

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. AI{D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAIY

Responsible
Derrartment

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

Final Developmenl Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development
Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

l. Ceneral PlanlSpecific Pian Amendment Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
2. Illustrative Master Plan Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
3. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps, dated February 5,2020
4. Backbone Infrastructure Exhibit, dated February 5,2A20
5. Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
6. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated February 5,2020
7. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated February 5,2020
8. Preliminary Tree Preservation/Removal Plan, dated February 5,2020
9. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated January 24,2020
10. Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24,2020
I l. Local Road Section Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
12. Trail System Modification Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
| 3. Walkabilily Exhibit, dated January 24,2424
I 4. Trailhead and Signage Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
15. Dog Park Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
I6. Model Home Complex Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
17. Product Mix Exhibit, dated January 24,2420
18. Streetscene Exhibit, dated August 30,2019
19. Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated August 30, 2019
20. Residential Design Details, dated August 30,2019
21. Color and Materials Board, dated August 30, 2019
22. lnclusionary Housing Plan, dated March7,2019

The General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Development Agreement
Amendments, Planned Development Permit, Design Review, and Inclusionary Housing Plan are
approved for the development of a 804-unit single-family residential subdivision (Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch). Implementation of the project shall be consistent with the above referenced
items and these conditions of

Condition No.

Resolution No. 10400
Pagellofl55

Page 89

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



coNDrrroNs oF APPRoVAL FOR TrIE TOLL BROTHSRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN 19-09r)
wEsT oF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, AI\n

SOUTII OF' MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, A}[D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Responsible
Denartment

cD (PXE)

cD (P)

cD (E)

cD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

cD (EXP)

When
Required

G,I

M

M

OG

M

Condition of Approval

Plon Submiltal
All civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irigation plans, shall be
submitted to the Community Development Department for review and approvalto
ensure conformance with this approval and rvith relevant codes, policies, standards and
other requirements of the City of Folsom.
Valiclity
This approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a
period of twenty four months pursuant to Section 16. 1 6. 1 I 0A of the Folsom Municipal
Code and the Subdivision Map Act. The term of the approved Inclusionary Housing
Agreement shall track the term of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, as

may be extended from time to time pursuant to Section 16.16.110.A and 16.16.120 of
tlre Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision Map Act.
FMC Compliance
The Small-Lot Final Map shall comply with the Folsom Municipal Code and the
Subdivision Map Act.
Development Rights
The approval of this Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map conveys the right to
develop. As noted in these conditions of approval for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, the City has identified improvements necessary to develop the subject
parcels. These improvements include on and off-site roadways, water, sewer, storm
drainase. landscaoing. sound-walls. and other improvements.
Public Right of l{ay Dedicution
As provided for in the First Arnended and Restated Development Agreement (ARDA)
and the Amendments No. I and 2 thereto, and any approved amendments thereafter, the
owner/applicant shall dedicate all public rights-of-way and corresponding public utility
easements such that public access is provided to each and every lot within the traditional
home portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project as shown on the Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (Lots l-214). In addition, public utilit5r easements
shall be provided for public utilities within private streets to the satisfaction of the
CommuniW Development Department.

Condition No.

2.

J

4

5

6.

Resolution No. 10400
Page l2 of 155

Page 90

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTImR.S AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN t9-09r)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH O['WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\IIE PARKWAY, ANn

SOUTII OF' MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMSNTS, SLVTSM, PD PERTIIIT. AIII) INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLA}[

Responsible
Department

cD (E)(P)

When
Required

M

Condition of Approval

Street Names
The street names identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Maps:
Avazedo, Black Sage, Blue Oak, Blue Sky, Boulder Creek, Bridgeview, Brookview,
Clearview, Clubhouse, Cold Creek, Copperwood, Coyote Ridge, Creekwood, Creswiew,
Dalea, Dawn Light, Deer Park, Eagle View, Edgewood, Emerald Glen, Fallen Leaf,
Fountain Heights, Fox Hollow, Gateway, Glenbrook, Glenridge, Goldenrod, Granite
Point, Grey Hawk, Gully, Heather Glen, Heritage Oaks, Iron Oak, Japanese Maple,
Knollbrook, [,one Tree, Longview, Manzanit4 Maple, Meadow Crest, Midway,
Monument, Nettle, Oak Bridge, Oakridge, Olive Orchard, Pacific Wren, Panorama,
Paradise, Patinq Pinyon Pine, Quail Run, Rainbow Ridge, Ravine, Redtail, Regency
Parkway, Rimrock, Robinwood, Rock Ridge, Rocky Creek, Rocky Point, Sagewood,
Salvia, Scenic, Skymeadow, Skyway, Springcreek, Starling, Sundown, Sunny Oaks,
Sunnyview. Sweetwater, Timber, Upland, Vale, Valley View, White Cedar. Wildwood.

Condition No.

7

Resolution No. 10400
Page l3 of 155

Page 91

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARKWAY, AT.ID

SOUTH OF MAI'IGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. AIYD INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\I

Responsible
Department

cD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD

When
Reouired

OG

OG

Condition of Approval

Indemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnifl, and hold harmless the City and its
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or
its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the
City or any of its agencies, deparfrnents, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body concerning the project which claim, action or proceeding is brought
within the time period provided therefore in Government Code Section 66499.37 or
other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notify the
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the
defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner
owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The
City may, wiflrin its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding if both of the following occur:

. The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and
o The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such
claim, action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant.
The owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless of whether
a Final Map is ultimatelv recorded with respeet to this proiect.

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subclivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon
compliance with all environmental mitigation measures identified in the Folsom Plan
Area Specific Plan (FEIRIEIS) as amended by the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
CEQA Addendum dated Februarv-20z0 (Aftachment 31 to the staffreport)

Condition No.

8.

9

Resolution No. 10400
Page l4 of 155

Page 92

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RAI\CrI PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, AI\I}

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PER]VIIT, AIII) INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Responsible
Department

CD (E)

cD (P)

When
Required

M

OG

Condition of Approval

ARDA andAmendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. 1 and 2 to the
First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement and any approved
amendments thereafter by and between the City and the ownerlapplicant of the project
including but not limited to Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Easton Valley
Holdings, LLC, Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I
Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and West Scott Road,
LLClToll West Coast, LLC, Amendment No. 2toIhe First Amended and Restated Tier
I Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Oak Avenue
Holdings, LLC, and Amendment No. 3 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I
Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Folsom Real Estate
South. LLClToll West Coast, LLC.
Mitigatbn Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program
pursuant to City Council Resolution No.2634 and Public Resources Code 21081.6. The
mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan FEIR/EIS and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Addendum to the
FPASP EIR/EIS have been incorporated into these conditions of approval in order to
rnitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment. These mitigation monitoring
and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation measure column. Applicant shall
fund on a Time and Materials basis allmitigation monitoring (e.g,, staff and consultant
time).

Condition No

r0

ll

Resolution No. 10400

Page 15 of 155

Page 93

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



POLICE/SECT'RITY REQI]IREMENT
12 The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all

reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be

considered:

a A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be

constructed around the perimeter of construction areas.

Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

G, I,B PD

a

a Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at
intersections or screen overhead lighting.

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AI\D FEE

l3 Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for tle project at the

rate and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No. I
M cD (PXE)

to the Amended and Restated Tier I

cD (E)M
Assessments
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments againstthe
property, or file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

14.

Resolution No. 10400
Page l6 of 155

Page 94

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P), PW, PK

cD (PXE)

cD (PXE)

B

OG

G, I,M,B

FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area
development impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequently adopted
consistent with the Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement
and amendments thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant
shall be subject to all applicable Folsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees
in effect at such time that a building permit is issued. These fees may include, but are
not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee
(SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation Management Fee,

Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee, Housing Trust
Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on
this project will begin on the date of final approval (March 10,2020), or otherwise shall
be governed by the terms of Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be

calculated at the fee rate set forth in the PFFP and the ARDA.
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services of outside legal counsel to assist
in the implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing
and/or revising agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City
utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the
owner/applicant of the outside counsel selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and
the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incurred
and documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required, at
the sole discretion of the City Attorney, to submit a deposit to the City for these services
prior to initiation of ths services. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
reimbursement to the Citv for the services regardless of whether a deposit is required.

Consultant Services
If the City utilizes the services of consultants to prepare special studies or provide
specialized design review or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide
notice to the owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and
hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred
and documented in utilizing these services, including administrative costs for City
personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review ofthe
Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans, or beginning inspection, whichever is
aoolicable.

15

r6.

17.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 17 of 155

Page 95

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



GRADING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

cD (PXE)

cD (E), PW, FD

G, I,B

B

Walls/Fences/Gates
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors of the walls, fences, and gates

shall consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January
24,2020 subject to review and approval by the Community Development Deparfrnent to
ensure consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines.
Ro adw ay I mp r ovement P has ing
The owner/applicant shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Small-
Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map with each applicable phase. Roadways shall be
to the ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

For the purposes ofthese conditions, phasing ofthe project is defined per Figure ES-6 of
the Transportation lmpact Analysis dated November 20, 2019 (Attachment 3l to the

staffreport) and the following:

a Phase 1 consists of the first 305 age-restricted dwelling units within Regency Phase

l, all located on the eastern portion ofthe Project site and labeled as"2021" on
Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20, 2019
(Attachment 3l to the staffreport). Phase I also includes an additional 45 model
home units that would be used for sales and marketing purposes initially.
Conditions of approval for Phase I shall be met before issuance of the first building
permit.

a Phase 2 consists of the next 377 dwelling units (240 age-restricted dwelling units
located within Regency Phase I on the eastern portion of the Project site, and 137

Traditional Subdivision units located on the western portion of the project site.)
These units are labeled as"2022" on Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact
Analysis dated November 20, 2019 (Attachment 31 to the staffreport). Conditions
ofapproval for Phase 2 shall be met before issuance ofthe 306th Regency Phase I
building permit (excludes 45 model home units) orthe first building permit for the
Traditional Subdivision within the project site.

r8

19

Resolution No. 10400
Page l8 of 155

Page 96

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



a Phase 3 consists of the remaining 543 dwelling units (466 age-restricted dwelling
units within Regency Phase I and 2 plus 77 Traditional Subdivision units) These
units are labeled as'2A23" and2024 on Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact
Analysis dated November 20, 2019 (Attachment 31 to ttre staffreport). Conditions
of approval for Phase 3 shall be met before issuance ofthe 546s age reshicted
building permit for Regency Phase l/Phase 2 or the 138th building perrnit for the
Traditional Subdivision within the Projeot site.

The following conditions defined the roadway improvemenb which shall be installed for
each phase, as described above.

Resolution No. 10400
Page l9 of 155

Page 97

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FDB

Phasing of Roadways

Roadway construction shall be phased as described in the Transportation Impact
Analysis and as shown on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis dated
November 20,2019 (Attachment 31 to the staffreport). Changes in the timing and/or
progression of construction of homes may result in a change in the timing and/or
sequencing of roadway construction subject to review and approval by the Community
Development Deparffnent.

Phase 1

r Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street to Driveway #4 located on the
south side of Mangini Parkway as a two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first
building permit in Regency Phase 1.

r Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Steet to
Street F.

r Construct Mangini ParkwaylDriveway #4 intersection, East Bidwell Street/Regency
Parkway intenection, and internal project roads as required to access to new homes.

Phase 2
o Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-

lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit
within the project.

r Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway #l prior to
issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the project.

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #l to White Rock Road as an EVA
access prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within
the Project.

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway #l intersection, Mangini Parkway
Driveway #2 intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #4 intersection, and internal
project roads as required to access new homes.

r Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to planned bridge
over creek at the western of the Phase 2 active adult homes.

Phase 3

20.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 20 of 155

Page 98

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

B

B

a Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #1 to White Rock Road as a two-
lane roadway prior to issuance of the l38th Traditional Subdivision building permit
within the project.
Construct Regency Parkway from prior terminus to Mangini Parkway prior to
issuance of the 546th Regency Phase I building permit within the project.

All driveway intersections and the Oak Avenue ParkwayAvlangini Parkway intersection
shall be constructed as the corresoondine portions ofthose roads are built.
Phasing of Improvements to Speci.frc Intersections

Improvements to specific intersections identified in the November 20,2A19,
Transportation Impact Study (Atiachment 31 to staff report) shall be constructed as

follows in Condition Nos. 22-52:

Mangini Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street westerly to Driveway #4 ('Street
C") as a two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 building
permit.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mangini Parkwq (Segment 2)

Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 ("Street C") to Oak Avenue Parkway as

a two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit
within the project.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

21.

22.

23

24

Resolution No. 10400
Page 2l of 155

Page 99

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

B

B

B

Regeney Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to the planned bridge
over creek at the western edge of the Regency Phase I Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306tb Regency Phase I building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 3)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from the eastern edge of the planned
bridge over the creek bisecting the project site to Mangini Parkway.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546e overall
Regency Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Mangini Parkway to
Driveway L

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Conshuct Oak Avenue Parkway as an BVA from Driveway 1 to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Driveway 1 to White Rock
Road.

Timing: Priorto issuance of the 138th Traditional Subdivision building permit.

25.

26.

27

28

29

Resolution No. 10400
Page 22 of I 55

Page 100

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

OakAvenue Parkway/Driveway I (Stage I)

Construct Driveway as shown in (Figure 43 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

r Northbound: Oak Ave Parkway shall be barricaded south of Driveway I and
configured as an EVA;

e Southbound: one sharedthrough-left lane;
. Westbound: one shared lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway 1 (Stage 2)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 44 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

. Northbound: one shared through-right lane with a 150' riglrt turn taper;
r Southbound: one sharedthrough-left lane;
e Westbound: one shared lane;
r Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 138fi Traditional Subdivision building permit.

30.

31.

Resolution No, 10400
Page23 ofl55

Page 101

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway I (Cumalative Right-of-Wtry)

Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City of Folsom for future construction of the
ultimate Driveway 1 intersection (Figure 45 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

. Northbound: one left-turn lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one
shared through-right lane with a 150' right turn taper;

o Southbound: one left-turn lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one
shared through-right lane with a 150 right tum taper;

o Westbound: one shared lane;
r Eastbound: one shared lane;
. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

M ang i n i Par kway/D riv ew ay 2

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 46 of the November 2A,2Al9 Transportation
Impact Study):

o Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
o Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

32.

33

Resolution No. 10400
Page 24 of I 55

Page 102

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

CD (E), PW, FDB

Mangini Parkway/Regency Parkway (Drivewry 3)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 47 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
lmpact Study):

e Northbound: one shared lane;
r Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
r F.astbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pooket with 60'taper;
r Control: side-sfeet-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall
Regency Phase 112 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

M ang ini P ar kw ayID rivew ay 1

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 48 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
r Eastbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
r Control: side-sheet-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

34.

35

Resolution No. 10400
Page 25 of 155

Page 103

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

Mangini Parkway/Driveway 5 (Stage 1)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 49 of the November 20,2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

r Northbound: one shared lane;
r Westbound: one shared through-left turn lane;
o Eastbound: one sharedthrough-rightturn lane;
e Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model
home unit building permits).

M ang ini Par lew ay/Drivew ay 5 Rig ht-of-Way

Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City of Folsom for future oonstruction ofthe
ultimate Mangini ParkwaylDriveway 5 intersection (Figure 50 of the November 20,
20 1 9 Transportation Impact Study):

r Northbound: one shared lane;
. Southbound: one right turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper and one shared

through-left lane;
r Westbound: one through-right lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with

60'taper;
r Eastbound: one through-right lane and one Ieft turn lane in a 60' pocket with

60'taper;
o Control: side-street-stop-contol.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model
home unit building permits).

36

3'I

Resolution No- 10400
Page 26 of 155

Page 104

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Stage I

Construct driveway as follows:

. Northbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;
r Southbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with

60'taper;
r Eastbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be

subject to City Engineers prior approval.
e Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase i building permit.

East Bfulwell Street/Regency Parkwuy (Driveway 6)

Modif driveway as shown in (Figure 5l of the November 20,2019, Transportation
Impact Study), unless intersection has been signalized:

a

Northbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;
Southbound: one through lane and one right h.rm lane in a 150' pocket with
60'taper;
Eastbound: one shared lane, plus a 300' northbound acceleration lane on East
Bidwell Street to receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second NB lane on
East Bidwell Street starting from Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300'
acceleration lane);
Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be
subjeet to City Engineers prior approval.

Control : side-street-stop-conhol.

a

a

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546tr' overall
Regency Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

38.

39.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 27 of 155

Page 105

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FDB

Mangini Parkwty/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Right-of-Wry

The owner/applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City of Folsom for future
construction of the ultimate Mangini Parkway/Driveway 6 intersection (Figure 52 of the
Novem ber 20, 20 19, Tran sportation Impact Study):

r Northbound: one left turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes,
and a right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;

o Southbound: one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes,
and two left turn lanes in a250' pocket with 120'taper. (Note that the FPASP
assumed a single southbound left tum lane.);

o Westbound: one shared left-through-right lane, and one right turn lane;
r Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be

subject to City Engineers approval.
r Eastbound: one shared lane

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regenoy Phase I building permit

40.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 28 of 155

Page 106

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FDB

Phase 1 Internal Stop Control

Stop Control shall be installed at the following five locations within the Regency Phase

I portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

a Regency Parkway/Street A (two-way-stop-control). Stop on A, no control on
Regency.

Regency Parkway/Street D (two-way-stop-control). Stop on D, no control on
Regency.
Regency Parkway/Street E (all-way-stop-control).

Regency Parkway/Street F (two-way-stopcontrol). Stop on F, no contol on
Regency.
Street D/Street S (all-way-stop-control).

a

a

a

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from
the City Engineer. Looation of Stop Confiol is shown in Figwe Z4,page 73 of the

November 20, 2A19, Transportation Impact Study.

Timing: prior to issuance of tlre first Regency Phase I building permit.

41

Resolution No. 10400
Page 29 of I 55

Page 107

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

Phase 1 Internal Stop Control (Regency Phase I)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations within the Regency Phase I
portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch projecf

o Regency Parkway/Street G (two-way-stop-control). Stop on G, no control on
Regency.

Regency Parkway/Street H (two-way-stopcontrol. Stop on H, no control on
Regency.

a

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from
the City Engineer. Location of Stop Conhol is shown in Figure Z*,Page 73 of the
November 20, 2079, Transportation Impact Study.

Timing: prior to issuance of the 306rh Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45

model home unit building permits).

Phnse 2 Internal Stop Control (Traditianal Subdivision)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations:

. Street TAlStreet TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TA.
o Street TA/Street TG (two-way-stopconfol). Stop on TG, no control on TA.
o Street TB/Street TC (two-way-stop-contol). Stop on TC, no control on TB.

Roundabouts may replace stop control at intemal intersections with authorization from
the City Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in preceding Figure 25,page74.

Timing: prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

42.

43

Resolution No. 10400
Page 30 of 155

Page 108

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

Regency Phase 2 Internal Stop Control

Stop Control shall be installed at any intemal Regency Phase 2 intersections with four
(or more) legs as directed by the City Engineer. Roundabouts may replace stop control
at internal intersections with authorization from the City Engineer.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546d' overall
Regency Phase 1/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Oak Ave ParkwaylWhite Rock Rd

Implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) has programmed to
realign this portion of White Rock Road and building a partial signal to accommodate
anticipated U-Turns. Expand or construct a signalized intersection as follows:

o SB: A single shared lane for left and right turns.
. EB: A through lane and a left/U-turn in 300' pocket plus taper.
r WB: A through lane and a right-tum in 300' pocket plus taper.
r Signalize with protected phasing for left turns and U-turns.
o Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority adopted standards.

OR

(B) Channelize the intersection on the existing White Rock Road alignment to restrict
turning movements to westbound right turns and southbound right turns. The westbound
right turn requires a 365' deceleration lane, and the southbound right turn requires a
960' acceleration lane (Figure 53 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact
Study).

Timing: Prior to opening the segment of Oak Avenue Parkway between Driveway I and
White Rock Road, or prior to issuance of the 138h Traditional Subdivision building
permit, whichever occurs first.

44

45.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 3l of 155

Page 109

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PV/, FDB

East BfuIwell St./White Rock Road

Signalize the existing White Rock Rd/East Bidwell Sheet intersection implementing
either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has
programmed to relocate and signalize the East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road
intersection as shown in the October 2077 geometric conceptual drawing , or equivalent
improvements (i.e., three southbound approach lanes, four eastbound approach lanes,
and three westbound approach lanes). Figure 54 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study provides a conceptual intersection layout for this
mitigation. Under option A, fair share is defined as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Project's responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee. The
Applicant is required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee.

Option A can be considered to be implemented once the JPA has let contracts for
construction of the new intersection. This will ensure that the mitigation is constructed
before project traffic adds 5 or more seconds of delay to the intersection.

OR

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road intersection with
the existing geometry. Figure 55 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact
Study provides a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

46

Resolution No. 10400
Page 32 of 155

Page 110

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

East Bidwell St/IVIangini Pkwy

Signalize the intersection with the following geometry (Figure 56 of the November 20,
20 I 9, Transportation Impact Study):

o NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one
right-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper;

. SB: One left-tum lane in a20A' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one
right-turn lane in a 15O'pocket with 60'taper;

. EB and WB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane,
and one right-turn lane in a 2O0'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Il,Iangini Pkwy

Expand the intersection and update signal configuration as follows (Figure 57 of the

N ovem ber 20, 20 I 9 Tran sportation Impact Study):

r NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and one

right-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper (the second through lane should be

developed 300' south ofthe intersection);
. SB: One left-turn lane in a2A0' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right-turn lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;
. EB and WB: One left-turn lane in a200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane,

and one right-turn lane in a 2O0'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall
Regency Phase 1/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

47

48.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 33 of 155

Page 111

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and signalize the East Bidwell SVAlder Creek Parkway intersection as
shown in Figure 58 of the November 20,2019, Transpor0ation Impact Study:

a NB Approach: One U-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper, one through lane,
and one rightturn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper.
SB Approach: One Ieft turn lane in a200' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through
lane.
WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-tum lane in a200' pocket plus 60'
taper.

a

o

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and modiff signal at the East Bidwell SVAlder Creek Parkway intersection
as shown in Figure 59 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study:

a NB Approach: One U-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper, two through lanes,
and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper.
SB Approach: One left turn lane in a240' pocket plus 60' taper, and two through
lanes. The second SB through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way, the
estimated taper for merging the two southbound lanes into one should be 660 feet
long based on a 55 mph design speed and l2-foot lane width.
WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a2A0' pocket plus 60'
taper.

a

a

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546e overall
Regency Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

49

50.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 34 of 155

Page 112

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E), PW, FD

B

B

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell St/Savannah Pkwy intersection with the following
geometry (Figure 60 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

r NB Approach: One shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;
. SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through

lane;
r WB Approach: One left turn lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through

lane;
. SB departure: Construct a soutlbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound

left turn traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate

taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Swannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell St/Savannah Pkwy intersection with the following
geometry (Figure 6l of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

. NB Approach: One through lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150'

taper;
r SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through

lane;
r WB Approach: One left turn lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through

lane;
. SB departure: Construct a soutlbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound

left turn traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate

taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall
Regency Phasel/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

51.

52.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 35 of 155

Page 113

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), PW, FD

cD (E)

cD (E)

G, I,M

G,I

G

a

a

Ut i lily I nfr as t r uct ur e

Utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed
appropriate and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer.

A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the
roadway and utility phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City
Engineer shall determine what roadway and utility improvements are appropriate
and necessary to serve the sub-phase.

Offsile improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the ownership
or control of the owner/applicant, all rights-of-entry, and if necessary, a permanent

easement shall be obtained and provided to the City. AII rights of entry, constuction
easements, either permanent or temporary and other easements shall be obtained as set

forth in Amendments No. 1 and 2 to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all
affected parties and shall be recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder, where
applicable, prior to approval of grading and/or improvement plans.

Mine Shaft Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifu, open

cuts, tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project
site, with specific recommendations for the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet

all applicable health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be
prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be
reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval of grading plans.

53.

54.

55

Resolution No. 10400
Page 36 of I 55

Page 114

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E)

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

cD (E) PW

G

G,I

G

G

Prepare Traflic Control Plan
Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and interseotions affected by
construction shall be prepared by the owner/applicant. The Traffic Control PIan
prepared by the owner/applicant shall, at minimum, include the following measures:

a

o

a

a

Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity during non-construction
periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of
construction signage.
Maintaining alternate one-way traffic flow past the lay down area and site access
when feasible.
Heavy trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest
commute hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

A minimum 72-hour advance notice of access restrictions for residents, businesses,

and Iocal emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification of
alternative routes and detours to enable for the avoidance of the immediate
construction zone.

A phone number and City contact for inquiries about the schedule of the
construction throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in a
local newspaper, via the City's web site, or at City Hall and will be updated on a
monthly basis.

State nnd Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide
evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject
to staff review Drior to approval of any sradins or improvement plan.

|Yater QuaIiU Cert{ication
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required
before issuance of the record of decision and before issuance of the Section 404 permit.
Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the owner/applicant shall
obtain water quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part of the
issuance of water quality certification shall be implemented pursuant to the permit
conditions.
L an ds lide /S lop e F ail ure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading
activities to identifu existing landslides and potential slope failure hazards. The said
engineer shall be notified a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or grading to
facilitate meetinss with the sradine contractor in the field.

56.

51

58

59

Resolution No. 10400
Page 37 of I 55

Page 115

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



IMPROVEMENT PLAi\ REQI]IREMENTS

cD (E)

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

M

I

I

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improvements
necessary to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved by
the Community Development Department prior to approval of a Final Map.
Stanclard Constr uctio n Spec ficatio ns and Details
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gufiers, sidewalks, bicycle
lanes and trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements shall
be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the City of Folsom Standmd
Constrttction Specifications and Details and the Des.ign and Procedures MoruaI and
Improv e ment St and ards -

Water and Sewer Infrastructure
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within tle street right of
way. In the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed
in an area other than the public right ofway, such as through an open space corridor,
landscaped area, etc., the following criteria must be met;

. The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements
r An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations,

maintenance and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along the
entire water and/or sewer line alignment. However, no access road is required
within the two pedestrian paseos (Lot BI and BJ) as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map)

o In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on
private residential properly.

o The domestic water and irrigation system owned and maintained by the City shall be
separately metered per City of Folsom Snndtd Constnrction Spebifications and
Details.

60.

61.

62

Resolution No. 10400
Page 38 of 155

Page 116

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P)

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

cD (E)

I

M

I, OG

M

a

a

Lighting Plan
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to
the Community Development Deparhnent. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the
Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines:

Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill
on adjacent properties;

Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential
areas and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures that
are of unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;
Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze

or finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or
screened lighting, and appropriate signage in the offrce/commercial areas to prevent

light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and

Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part of the building and landscaping
design in the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent
with the overall site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only
the face with no off-site

a

a

a

Utility Coordinution
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion of this
project with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant
shall provide the City with written confirmation of public utility service prior to
apDroval ofall final maps.

Rep lacing H azardo us Facilities
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous
public sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle frail facilities along the site frontage
and/or boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Department.
Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be
placed underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's cost.
The owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground easements for
the electrical facilities that will be necessary to service development of the project.

63

64

6s

66.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 39 of I 55

Page 117

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E), EWR

cD (PXB)

cD (EXP)

I

I

I

Water Meter Fixed Network S\tstem
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, fumish and install all infrastructure associated
with the water meter fxed network system for any City-owned and maintained water
meter within the proiect.

Vertical Curb
All curbs located adjacent to landscaping whether natural or manioured, and where
oarkinq is allowed shall be vertical.
Class II Bike Lanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped, and the legends painted to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Department. No parking shall be permitted within the Class
II bike lanes.

67

68.

69

Resolution No. 10400
Page 40 of I 55

Page 118

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (EXP)I,O

Noise Barriers
Based on the EnvironmentalNoise Assessment (the "2019 Noise Assessment") prepared

by Bollard Acoustical Consultants on November24,2019, the following measures shall
be implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department:

r 6-foot-tall solid noise barriers, relativeto backyard elevations, shall be constructed
along all residential property boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Steet, Mangini
Parkway, and Oak Avenue Parkway prior to occupancy of any residences adjacent to
the aforementioned streets.

o For the proposed Traditional Subdivision portion of the project located at the
northeast comer of White Rock Road and Oak Avenue Parkway , a 7-foot-tall solid
noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all properly
boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road prior to ocoupancy of any residences

adjacent to White Rock Road.

r For the proposed Regency Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions ofthe project (which are

located at the northwest comer of the intersection of White Rock Road and East
Bidwell Street and north of White Rock Road in the central portion of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project site), an 8-foot-tall solid noise barrier, relative to
backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all residential property boundaries
adjacent to White Rock Road.

. Suitable materials for the traffic noise barriers include masonry and precast concrete
panels. The overall barrier height may be achieved by utilizing a barrier and earthen

berm combination. Other materials may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an

acoustical consultant and approved by the Community Development Department prior
to use.

r Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences in this
development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to
achieve compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria

For the first row of homes located within the Traditional Subdivision portion of the
project located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing second-
floor building facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

a

70.

Resolution No. I0400
Page4l ofl55

Page 119

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD(E), EWR, PWG,I

Master Plan Updates
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater
Master Plan, and Water Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates
to the approved master plans, if applicable, for the proposed changes to the master plans
as a result of the proposed project. The updates to the master plans for the proposed
project shall be reviewed and approved by the City prior to approval ofgrading and/or
improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location,
and timing of the proposed facilities. Improvements shall be constructed in phases as

the project develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any
necessary oflsite improvements to support development of a particular phase or phases,

subject to prior approval by the City. Off-site improvements may include roadways to
provide secondary access, water transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a

looped water system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-
potable water pipelines and infrastructure, and drainage facilities including on or off-site
detention. No changes in infrastucture from that shown on the approved master plan
shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master plan has been revised and

approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be modified to accommodate
the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage
improvements with corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these
studies and the latest edition of the City of Folsom Stnzdard Cowtntaion Srccfrcaions
and Details, andthe Design and Procedures Mawnl mtd Improvernent Etandads.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-
development conditions.

7l

Resolution No. 10400
Page 42 of 155

Page 120

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E)

cD (E)

G,I

OG

B est Ma nag eme nt Pract ices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that
meet the requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality
Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management
Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from
tlre Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction.
Detailed information about the SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9,
"Hydrology and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into
Alder Creek and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote
Creek. The owner/applicant shall establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site.
The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for2-,5-, and 100-year storm events.
These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the
stormwater system on the Specific Plan Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring
standards, and a monitoring program shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their
approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be designed and constructed to ensure
that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and
Water Qualiql," are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and assooiated tributaries, as well as tributaries to
Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-
project conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as

necessary. The mitigation me{$ures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are

met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking corrective measures to meet the
performance standard.
Litter Conlrol
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and
sweeping of all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm
drains shall be cleaned immediately before the commencement of the rainy season
(October l5).

72.

73

Resolution No. 10400
Page 43 of 155

Page 121

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



FIRE DEPT REOUIREMENTS

cD (P), FDM,B

Prepare fuel modificutinn plan (FMP).
The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan consistent with the FPA
Open Space Management Plan to the City for review and approval by the City. Final
approval of the plan shall occur prior to the issuance of a building permit for any new
construction. A Fuel Modification Plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans showing fuel
modification zones indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan
and an inigation plan. A fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared
by one of the following: a California state licensed landscape architect, or state licensed
landscape contractor, or a landscape designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable
to the Fire Code Official.

Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to new property
owners. Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan shall be submitted to
the City for approval prior to implementation.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 30-foot-wide fuel modification easement(s) for all
residential properties located adjaoent to open space areas within the developmenl The
owner/applicant shall dedicate easements, if applicablg for the required fuel
modification buffer. The fuel modification easement(s) shall be shown on the Final Map.
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance of the fuel modification
areas until such time that the City takes ownership of the open space areas that are to be
deeded to the City within the project site.

74.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 44 of I 55

Page 122

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P), FDG, I,M,B

All-Weather Access flnd Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before
combustible materials are allowed on any project site or other approved alternative
method as approved by the Fire Department. All-weather emerg€ncy access roads and
fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided before combustible material or
vertical construction is allowed on any project site or other approved altemative method
as approved by the Fire Department. (All-weather access is defined as six inches of
compacted aggregate base from May I to September 30 and two inches asphalt concrete

over six inches aggregate base from October to April 30). The building shall have
illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the property. Size and

location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire
Department.
o Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow

for the proposed residential portion of the project is determined to be 875 GPM for
one hour.

o All public streets shall meet City of Folsom Sfreet Standards.

r The maximum length of any dead-end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance

with the Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Departrnent).
o All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be

provided before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and

2"AC over 6" AB from October I to April 30
o The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area may be required to be

completed and operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes

within the Folsom Plan Area is met.

75

Resolution No. 10400
Page 45 of 155

Page 123

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



LAFIDSCAPE/TREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS

cD (PXE)G,I

The owner/applicant shall obtain a tree removal permit, mitigate for removal of protected
and heritage trees in accordance with Chapter 12.16 of the City of Folsom Municipal
Code for Tree Preservation, and minimize indirect impacts to trees to be preserved. This
shall include the following:

. A Tree Permit Application containing an application form, justification statement,
site map, preservation program, and arborist's report shall be submitted to the City of
Folsom by the owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Permit prior to commencement
of any grading or site improvement activities.

A Mitigation PIan shall be prepared by the owner/applicant to mitigate for the
removal of the protected Canopy Oak Trees and Isolated Oak Trees within the
development site. The Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall consist of
replacement trees and/or payment of "In-Lieu" fees on a diameter insh bases

consistent with I 0- 14, 10-15 of the FPASP. Replacement trees may be located within
the boundaries of the development parcel, a natural parkway, landscape corridor or
passive or preserve open space zone, preferably within the Folsom Plan Area. The
Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall be subject to review and approval by
the City. The Mitigation Plan for the Canopy Oak Trees shall be consistent with the
mitigation requirements established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

The Conservation Areas shall be fenced prior to construction. In addition, oak trees
to be preserved within the Passive Recreation Open Spaces shall be fenced with
high-visibility fencing prior to starting construction. The fencing shall be installed
outside the tree preservation zone ofoak trees, and shall surround the entirety ofthe
tree preservation zone area. Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is
prohibited within the Tree Protection Zone of Protected Trees at all times. Signs
shall be posted on exclusion fencing stating that the enclosed trees are to be
preserved. Signs shall state the penalfy for damage to, or removal of the protected
tree.

a

a

t6-

Resolution No. 10400
Page 46 of 155

Page 124

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (PXE)

cD (PXE)

G

B

a The owner/applicant shall retain an ISA certified project arborist for implementation
ofthe project. The project arborist shall be responsible for overseeing onsite tree
removal and tree preservation. Oak trees located adjacent to construction areas that
may be indirectly impacted due to work within or near the Tree Protection Zone shall
be identified and tagged by the project arborist during construction activities. The
indirectly impacted trees shall be monitored by the project arborist for five years in
accordance with the Conceptual Oak Plan and FPASP EIR/EIS Mitigation Measure

3A.3-5. Trees that appear to be dead or dying within five years of project
implementation will be replaced as per the requirements of this Plan.

Lanelscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape
architect and approved by the City prior to the approval of the first building permit. Said
plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree
planting exhibit demonstrating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to
the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. The tree exhibit shall
include all street trees, accent ftees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trees
proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply with all State and local rules,

regulations, Covernor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water conservation

and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient
requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill l88l) (State Model
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply with
any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most
current American National Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI 4-300) by qualified
tree care professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance
or any other purpose shall not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall
be specified within the approved landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-
year establishment and training period. The owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide
landscape rules or regulations on water usage. Owner/applicant shall comply with any

state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape water usage and landscaping
requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all landscaping in the Toll
Brothers

77

18

Resolution No. 10400
Page 47 of 155

Page 125

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P)[, oG
Right of Way Landscqing
Landscaping along all road rights of way and in public open space lots shall be insta[ed
when the adioinine road or lots are oonstructed-

79

ResolutionNo. 10400
Page 48 of 155

Page 126

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



MAP REQUIREMENTS

cD (E)

cD (PXE)

M

M

S u beliv isio n Improv ement Ag reement
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agreement with the City, identifoing all required improvements, if any, to
be constructed with each proposed phase of development. The owner/applicant shall
provide security acceptable to the City, guaranteeing construction of the improvements.
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing PIan shall be approved by the City Council, and the
Inclusionary Housing Agreement approved by the City Attomey shall be executed prior
to recordation of the first Small-Lot Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
nroiect.

80

81.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 49 of 155

Page 127

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P) PKM

Department of ReaI Estate Public Report
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Department of Real Estate
Public Report and the CC&R's for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project the
following items:

1) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity
to the proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities
(basketball courts, a baseball field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground
equipment) that may generate noise impacts during various times, including but
not limited to evening and nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also
disclose that the existing public parks include nighttime sports lighting that may
generate lighting impacts during evening and nighuime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos and
natural ly occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting digging, or removal of any stone, artifact or other prehistoric or
historic object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance ofany
archaeological site or historic properly, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight
path and that overflight noise may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or
used for agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by
written disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of Folsom,
advising any transferee of the potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding
agricultural operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the
County of Sacramento concerning any such propefty within the County zoned
for agricultural uses within one mile of the subject property being transfened.

6) The project site is located adacent to the future JPA Connector which may
generate noise impacts during various times including but not limited to evening
and n hours.

82.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 50 of 155

Page 128

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

M

M

Pablic AfliA Easements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the public and private streets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-
foot (12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD,
Pacific Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all
public and private street rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional
width to accommodate extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of
the public utility easements adjacent to public and private right of way may be reduced
with prior aDproval from public utility companies.
Final Map Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be filed by the owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall
be to the satisfaction of the CommuniW Development Deoartment.
B ac kbo ne I nfrastr uct ure
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. 1 thereto, the owner/applicant
shall provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary

Infrastructure to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights of
way, public utility easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements,

irrevocable oflers of dedication and temporary construction easements. All required
easements as listed necessary for the Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by
the City and recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing
requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the ARDA, and any amendments thereto.
New Permanent Benchmarks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new perrnanent benchmarks on the
(NAVD 88) datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations
in the vicinity of the projecVsubdivision as directed by the City Engineer. The type and
specifications for the permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the City. The new
benchmarks shall be placed by the owner/applioant within 6 months from the date of
aoproval of the vesting tentative subdivision map.
Centralized Mail Delivery Units
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of
centralized mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for
the placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such
base shall be determined pursuant to the applicable requirements of the U. S. Postal
Service and the City of Folsom Community Development Deparknent with due
consideration for street lieht location, trafFrc safety. security, and consumer convenience.

83.

84.

8s

86

87.

Resolution No. 10400
Page5l ofl55

Page 129

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E)

cD (P), FCUSD

cD(E)

B

B

M

Recorrled Final Map
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy
of the recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development
Department. The exception to this requirement are model homes; subject to approval of
the Community Development Deparfrnent, building permits for model homes only may
be issued prior to recording of the Final Map.
Recorcled Final Map
Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-
Cordova Unified School District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.
C redit Re imb ur s e me nl Agreenw nt
Prior to the recordation of the first Small-lnt Final Map, the owner/applicant and City
shall enter into a credit and reimbursement agreement for constructed improvements that
are included in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financing Plan.

88.

89.

90

Resolution No. 10400
Page 52 of 155

Page 130

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



ARCHITECTURE/SmE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

cD (P) (B)B

The Regency Phase I portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project
(Lots l-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) shall
comply with the following architecture and design requirements:

L This approval is for five, one-story master plans in four architectural styles with
three color and material options each for the Regency portion of the Toll
Brothers project. The applicant shall submit building plans that comply with this
approval and the attached building elevations dated August 30,2019.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Regency single-family and
townhome residential units shall be consistent with the submitted building
elevations, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot
permits to assure no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roof-line,
same elevation style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots
abutting the open space areas, mechanical equipment shall be looated out of
view from open space areas.

5. Decorative light fixtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District
Design Guidelines and unique to each architectural design theme, shall be added

to the front building elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the
Commun ity Development Department.

6. A minimum of one street shall be planted in the front yard of each residential lot
within the subdivision. A minimum of two frees are required along the street-
side of all corner lots. All front yard irrigation and landscaping shall be installed
prior to a Building Permit Final.

7. A maximum of 25o/o of the townhome product located on interior lots shall been
itted to at the entrance location to the residence.

91

Resolution No. 10400
Page 53 of 155

Page 131

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (P) PR

cD (P) (E)

P AND RECREATION

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

B

B

B

M, OG

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential units within the traditional
Subdivisions (Lots l-214 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map) and Regency Phase 2 (421 unmapped residential units) portions of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review
and/or Planned Development approval from the Planning Commission for all residences
to be built within the aforementioned portions ofthe project area. If the architecture is
not consistent with the Folsom Ranch Cenhal District Design Guidelines, tlre owner
applicant may modify the plans or apply for a modification to the Design Guidelines to
be reviewed by the Planning Commission.

In addition, the final design of the clubhouse within the Regency Phase 1 portion of the
project shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. If other
clubhouse structures are proposed with the Regency Phase 2 portion of the project or the
traditional Subdivision portion of the project, they will also be subject to review and

the P Commission.
M ec h anical E q u ip ment S cr e ening
AII mechanical equipment shall be concealed from view of public and private streets,

neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction
of the Community Development Departnent.

The owner/applicant shall modifo the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parlcs Plan to identi!
the relocated public park lands that are outside ofthe project area prior to issuance ofthe
first building permit for Regency Phase 1. The relocated parklands shall include 8 acres

adjacent to the planned Local Park No. 4 (LP4) which is 2.3 acres in size, resulting in a
10.3-acre park site. The remaining 2 acres shall be relocated adjacent to Local Park No.
2 (LPZ) which is 1.1 acres in size, resulting in a 3.l-acre park site. Final parkland
Iocation and size shall be approved bv the Parks and Recreation Director.
The owner/applieant shall provide 7.5-acres of private recreation facilities within the
"Regency" Phase I Subdivision (Lot D: 5.0-acres)Q,ot G: 0.5-aores)(Lot F: 0.5-acres)
and "Traditional Homes" Subdivision (Lot E: 1.5-acres) portions of the proposed project

as shown on the Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps. The final size and
location of the private amenity within tlre "Regency''Phase 2 Subdivision as shown on
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Master Plan Exhibit will be determined with
anoroval of the future entitlements associated with "Regencv" Phase 2.

92.

93

94.

95

Resolution No. 10400
Page 54 of 155

Page 132

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P), PR

CD (E) (P). PR
MISCELLAhIEOUS REQUIREMENTS

B, OG

B, OG

B, OG

B

G,I, OG

G,I, OG

OG

G.I

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (342nd building permit) within Phase lB of
the Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing
Exhibit, dated January z4,z0}A,the owner/applicant shall begin construction of the
private amenity and maintain continual Drogress until completion.
Prior to issuance of the last building permit (590ttr building permit) in Phase lC of the
Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit,
dated January 24,2A29, the owner/applicant shall begin consbuction of the two private
dog-oark amenities and maintain continual Drogress until completion.
Prior to issuance of the l37h building permit within Traditional Subdivision portion of
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch projecl the owner/applicant shall begin construction
of the nrivate amenitv and maintain continual Drotrress until comoletion.
Prior to the issuance of the last building permit within Regency Phase l, the
owner/applicant shall complete grading of the public trails on Lots H, I, J, and N, and
the Class I trail parallel to Mangini Parkway on [,ots Q and R, as shown on the Toll
Brothers Public Trails System Modification Exhibit and Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map. dated January 24,2420.
The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all graded subdivision trails and
completed Class I trail parallel to Mangini Parkway within the responsibility of the
development Homeowner's Association (HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the
City. Th€ City shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result of
these trails until the transfer of Open Space ownership to the Citv is complete.

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all private trail connections within
the responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association (HOA) in perpetuity.
The City shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result of these
private trail connections to the public trails within the subdivision.
The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all 86.l-acres of Open Space
(Measure W Open Space) and fuel modification buffers, in accordance with the Folsom
PIan Area Open Space Master Plan, within the responsibility of the development
Homeowner's Association (HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City. The City
shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result of this Open Space

until the transfer of Open Space ownership to the City is complete. In addition, the Open
Space shall not be deeded to the City until development on both sides adjacent to the
Open Space are complete and at such a time the Citv is ready to take ownership.
Parkland dedications shall be calculated as net acrease.

96.

9'l

98.

99

r 00.

r0r

102.

t03

Resolution No. 10400
Page 55 of 155

Page 133

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E) (P), PR

cD (E) (P)

B

OG

The owner/applicant shall update the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to reflect all
changes and modifications to the General Plan I"^and Use and Specific Plan Land Use
diagrams, tables, and exhibits to reflect changes resulting from the Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch project prior to issuance of the first building permit to the satisfaction of
the Community Develooment Department.
The Regency Phase 1 (Lots l-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map dated October 17,2019) and the Regency Phase 2 unmapped portions
of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project shall be limited to age-resfiicted (Age 55+)
residential units.

r 04.

r 05.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 56 of I 55

Page 134

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Mitigation Measures
Toll Brothers nt Folsom Ranch Project Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program MMRP). Table I below describes the mitigation measures from the
FPASP (May 201 l) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility Alternative (November 2012), Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50

Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014), the Westland Eagle Specific Plan Amendment (September 2015), and the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Proiect.

Responsible Agency

Aesthetics

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department.

Timing

l. Plans and

specifications: before
approval ofgrading
plans and building
permits

2. Construction:
before the approval
ofoccupancy
permits associated
with residential and

commercial units

3. Maintenance: in
perpetuity

Before approval of
grading plans and
during construction
for all project
phases.

Mitigation Measures

Construct and Maintain a Landscape Corridor Adjacent to U.S. 50. The
project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
adjacent to U.S. 50 shall fund, construct and maintain a landscaped corridor
within the SPA, south of U.S. 50. This corridor shall be 50 feet wide, except that
the landscaped conidor width shall be reduced to 25 feet adjacent to the proposed

regional mall. Landscaping plans and specifications shall be approved by Caltrans

and the City ofFolsom, and constructed by the project applicant(s) before the start
of earthmoving activities associated with residential or commercialunits.
Landscaped areas would not be required within the preserved oak woodlands. As
practicable, landscaping shall primarily contain native and/or droughttolerant
plants. Landscaped corridors shall be maintained in perpetuity to the satisfaction
of the City of Folsom.

Screen Construction Staging Areas. The project applicant(s) for any particular
discretionary development application shall locate staging and material storage

areas as far away from sensitive biological resources and sensitive land uses (e.g.,

residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas

shall be approved by the appropriate agency (identified below) before the
approval ofgrading plans for all project phases and shall be screened from
adjacent occupied land uses in earlier deve lopment phases to the maximum extent
practicable. Screens may include, but are not limited to, the use of such visual
barriers such as berms or fences. The screen design shall be approved by the

appropriate agency to further reduce visual effects to the extent possible.

Mitigation for the oFsite elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries shall be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties. and Calhans) to reduce to the extent feasible

Mitigation
Number
(Source)

3A.l-l
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.l-4
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

Condition
No.

106-1

106-2

I 06.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 57 of 155

Page 135

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
.Development Department

Before approval of
building permits.

the visual effects of construction activities on adjacent project land uses that have
already been developed.

Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and
Implement a Lighting Plan.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall:

> Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-intensity
nighttime lighting and glare as part of the Folsom Specific Plan design

guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to design features, namely

directional shielding for sheet lighting, parking lot lighting, and other
substantial light sources, that would reduce effects of nighttime lighting. In
addition, consideration shall be given to the use of automatic shutoffs or
motion sensors for lighting features to further reduce excess nighttime light.

> Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to preventthe light from
shining offof the surface intended to be illuminated.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the project applicant(s) of all
project phases shall:

> Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent

light spill on adjacent properties.

> Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nightime sporting
activities, and/or security shall be screened or aimed no higher than 45

degrees above straight down (half-way between staight down and sfraight to
the side) when the source is visible from any off-site residential properly or
public roadway.

> For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight
fixtures that are of unusually high intensity or brightness (e.g., harsh mercury

vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or that blink or flash.

> Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare
building glaze or finish, neutral, earth-toned colored paint and roofing
materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage in the

offrce/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from advenely affecting
motorists on nearby roadways.

> Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and

landscape design in the Folsom Specific Plan area. Lighting fixtures shall be

architecturally consistent with the overall site design.

3A,t-5
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-3

Resolution No. 10400
Page 58 of 155

Page 136

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
ofall grading plans

by the City and
throughout project
construction, where
applicable, for all
project phases.

Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by
Construction of On-Site Elements. To reduce short-term construction emissions,
the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
shall require their contractors to implement SMAQMD's list of Basic
Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control
Practices, and Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices (list below) in effect at the
time individual portions of the site undergo constuction. In addition to
SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction operations shall comply with all
applicable SMAQMD rules and regulations.

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

> Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are

not limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas,

and access roads.

> Lighting of off-site facilities within the City of Folsom shall be consistent
with the City's General Plan standards.

> Lighting of the off-site detention basin shall be consistent with Sacramento
County General Plan standards.

> Lighting of the two local roadway connections from Folsom Heights oFsite
into El Dorado Hills shall be consistent with El Dorado County General Plan

standards.

A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within the each agency's
jurisdictional boundaries (specified below) shall be submitted to the relevant
jurisdictional agency for review and approval, which shall include the above
elements. The lighting plan may be submitted concurrently with other
improvement plans, and shall be submitted before the installation of any lighting
or the approval of building permits for each phase. The project applicant(s) for
any particular discretionary development application shall implement the
approved lighting plan.

Mitigation for the oflsite elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
prnject phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties).

3A.2-la
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

Air Quality
106-4

Resolution No. 10400
Page 59 of 155

Page 137

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul tucks
transporting soil, sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks
that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should be covered.

> Use wet power vacuum steet sweepers to remove any visible frackout mud
or dirt onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use ofdry power

sweeping is prohibited.

> Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).

> All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be

completed as soon as possible. In addition, building pads should be laid as

soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are used.

> Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or
reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the state airborne
toxics control measure ffitle 13, Section 2485 of the California Code of
Regulationsl). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers

at the entrances to the site.

> Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according

to manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a

certified mechanic and determine to be running in proper condition before it
is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas

> Water exposed soilwith adequate frequency for continued moist soil.
However, do not overwater to the extent that sediment flows offthe site.

> Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds

exceed 20 mph.

> Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in
disturbed areas as soon as possible. Water appropriately until vegetation is
established.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads

> Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash offall trucks and

equipment leaving the site.

> Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to
l2-inch layer ofwood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation ofroad
dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

Resolution No. I0400
Page 60 of I 55

Page 138

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> Post a publicly visible sigr with the telephone number and person to contact

at the construction site regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond

and take corrective action within 48 hours. The phone number of SMAQMD
and the City contact person shall also be posted to ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices

> The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City ofFolsom
Community Development Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating that
the heavy-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more) off-road vehicles to be used in
the construction project, including owned, leased, and subcontractor vehicles,
will achieve a project wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction and 45o/o

particulate reduction compared to the most cunent California Air Resources

Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of constuction. Acceptable
options for reducing emissions may include use of late-model engines, low-
emission diesel products, alternative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-
treatment products, and/or other options as they become available. The

project applican(s) ofeach project phase or its representative shall submit to
the City of Folsom Community Development Departrnent and SMAQMD a

comprehensive inventory ofall off-road construction equipment, equal to or
greater than 50 hp, that would be used an aggregate of40 or more hours during

any portion ofthe constuction project. The inventory shall include the

horsepower rating, engine production year, and projected hours ofuse for each

piece of equipment. The inventory shall be updated and submitted monthly

throughout the duration ofthe project except that an inventory shall not be

required for any 30-day period in which no construction activity occurs. At
least 48 hours prior to the use of heavyduty off-road equipment the project

representative shall provide SMAQMD with the anticipated construction

timeline including start date, and name and phone number of the project

manager and on-site foreman. S1v1qQMD's Construction Mitigation Calculator
can be used to identif an equipment fleet that achieves this reduction
(SMAQMD 20A7$. The project shall ensure that emissions from all oflroad
diesel powered equipment used on the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for
more than three minutes in any one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40

percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately, and dre

City and SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of
noncompliant equipment. A visual survey of all in-operation equipment shall

be made at least and a of he visual results

Resolution No. 10400
Page 6l of 155

Page 139

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



The City of Folsom Community
Development Department shall not
grant any grading permits to the
respective project applicant(s) until
the respective project applicant(s)
have paid the appropriate off-site
mitigation fee to SMAQMD.

Before the approval
of all grading plans

by the City and

throughout project
construction for all
project phases.

shall be submitted throughout the duration ofthe project, except that the

monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no

construction activity occurs. The monthly summary shall include tre quantity
and type of vehicles surveyed as well as the dates of each survey. SMAQMD
staffand/or other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to determine

compliance. Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede other

SMAQMD or state rules or regulations.

If at the time of construction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or new
guidance applicable to conshuction emissions, compliance with the

regulation or new guidance may completely or partially replace this
mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained

herein, and if SMAQMD so permits.

Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOx Emissions
Generated by Construction of On-Site Elements.

Implementation of the project or the other four other action altematives would
result in construction-generated NOx emissions that exceed the SMAQMD
threshold of significance, even after implementation of the SMAQMD Enhanced

Exhaust Control Practices (listed in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-la). Additionally,
Mitigation Measure 3A.4-l (lrnplement Additional Measures to Control
Construction-Generated 6HG Emissions, pages 3A.4-14 to l5) has the potential
to both reduce and increase NOx emissions, depending on the types of alternative
fuels and engine types employed. Therefore, the project applioant(s) shall pay
SMAQMD an off-site mitigation fee for implementation of any of the five action
alternatives for the purpose of reducing NOx emissions to a less-than-significant
level (i.e., less than 85 lb/day). AllNOx emission reductions and increases

associated with GHG mitigation shall be added to or subtracted from the amount
above the construction threshold to determine off-site mitigation fees, when
possible. The specific fee amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction
emissions can be more accurately determined: that is, if the CifyAJSACE select
and certifo the EIR/EIS and approves the Proposed Project or one ofthe other
four other action alternatives, the City and the applicants must establish the
phasing by which development would occur, and the applicants must develop a
detailed construction schedule. Calculation offees associated with each project
development phase shall be conducted by the project applicant(s) in consultation
with SMAQMD staff before ttre approval of grading plans by the City. The
project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
pay into SMAQMD's ofl-site constuction mitisation fund to further mitieate

3A.2-lb
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

10G5

Resolution No. 10400
Page 62 of 1 55

Page 140

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
of all grading ptans

by the City.

construction generated emissions of NOx that exceed SMAQMD's daily emission
threshold of 85 lb/day. The calculation of daily NOx emissions shall be based on
the cost rate established by SMAQMD at the time the calculation and payment are

made. At the time of writing this EIUEIS the cost rate is $16,000 to reduce I ton
of NOx plus a 5% administrative fee (SMAQMD 2008c). The determination of
the final mitigation fee shall be conducted in coordination with SMAQMD before
any ground disturbance occurs for any project phase. Based on information
available at the time of writing this EIR./EIS, and assuming that constuction
would be performed at a consistent rate over a l9-year period (and averaging of
22 work days per month), it is estimated that the off-site constuction mitigation
fees would range from $517,410 to $824,149, depending on which alternative is

selected. Because the fee is based on the mass quantity of emissions that exceed
SMAQMD's daily threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total fees would be

substantially greater if construction activity is more intpnse during some phases

and less intense during other phases ofthe l9-year build out period, and in any
event, based on the actual cost rate applied by SMAQMD. (This fee is used by
SMAQMD to purchase oflsite emissions reductions. Such purchases are made
through SMAQMD's Heavy Duty Incentive Program, through which select
owners of heavy-duty equipment in Sacramento County can repower or retrofit
their old engines with cleaner engines or technologies.)

Analyze and Disclose Projected PMro Emission Concentrations at Nearby
Sensitive Receptors Resulting from Construction of On-Site Elements. Prior to
construction ofeach discretionary development entitlement ofon-site land uses,

the project applicant shall perform a project-level CEQA analysis (e.g.,

supporting documentation for an exemption, negative declaration, or project-
specific EIR) that includes detailed dispersion modeling of construction-generated
PMto to disclose what PMro concentrations would be at nearby sensitive receptors.
The dispersion modeling shall be performed in accordance with applicable
SMAQMD guidance that is in place at the time the analysis is performed. At the
time of writing this EIR/EIS, SMAQMD's most current and most detailed
guidance for addressing construction-generated PMro emissions is found in its
Guide to Air Quality Assessment in Sacramento County (SMAQMD 2009a). The
project-level analysis shall incorporate detailed parameters ofthe construction
equipment and activities, including the year during which construction would be
performed, as well as the proximity of potentially affected receptors, including
receptors proposed by the project that exist at the time the construction activity
would occur.

3A.2-1c

$PASP
ErR/ErS)

106-6

Resolution No. 10400
Page 63 of 155

Page 141

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Deve lopment Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before issuance of
subdivision maps or
improvement plans.

Before the approval
of all grading plans

by the City and
throughout project
construction, where
applicable, for all
project phases.

Before the approval
of all grading plans

bythe SMAQMD
and throughout
project construction,
where applicable, for
all project phases.

Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation Plan to
Reduce Operational Air Pollutant Emisions. To reduce operational emissions,

the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
shall implement all measures prescribed in the SMAQMD-approved Folsom PIan

Area Specific Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan (AQMP) (Torrence Planning 2008),
a copy of which is included in Appendix C2. The AQMP is intended to improve
mobility, reduce vehicle miles traveled, and improve air quality as required by AB
32 and SB 375. The AQMP includes, among others, measures desigred to provide
bicycle parking at commercial land uses, an integrated pedestrian/bicycle path

network, transit stops with shelters, a prohibition against the use the wood-burning
fireplaces, energy star roofing materials, electric lawnmowers provided to
homeowners at no charge, and on-site hansportation alternatives to passenger

vehicles (including light rail) that provide connectivity with other local and regional

alternative transportation networks.

Develop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Construction-Generated Toxic Air Contaminant Emissions. The project
applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall

develop a plan to reduce the exposure ofsensitive receptors to TACs generated by
project construction activity associated with buildout of the selected altemative.
Each plan shall be developed by the project applicant(s) in consultation with
SMAQMD. The plan shallbe submitted to the City for review and approval
before the approval ofany grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences

are the least likely to be occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in
use, and prohibiting heavy tucks from idling. Applicable measures shall be

included in all project plans and specifications for all project phases.

The implementation and enforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall

be funded by the project applicant(s) for the respective phase ofdevelopment

Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants. The following measures

shall be implemented to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to Toxic Air
Contaminants.

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to emit
TACs or host TAC-generating activity (e.g., loading docks) shall be located

away from existing and proposed on-site sensitive receptors such thatthey do

not expose sensitive receptors to TAC emissions that exceed an incremental

3A.2-2
(FPASP
ETRATS)

3A.2-4a
(FPASP
EIRTTTS)

3A.2-4b
(FPASP
EIR/f,IS)

t06-7

106-8

106-9

Resolution No. 10400
Page 64 of I 55

Page 142

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
of all grading plans
by the City and
throuehout Droiect

increase of l0 in I million for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic
Hazard Index of 1.0.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard
near the southwest corner ofthe SPA shall be set back as far as possible from
the boundary ofthe corporation yard and/or relocated to another area.

> Where necessary to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to an incremental
increase of I 0 in 1 million for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic
Hazard Index of 1.0, proposed commercial and indusfiial land uses that
would host diesel trucks shall incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce

the main propulsion engine idling time through alternative technologies such
as, IdleAire, electrification oftruck parking, and altemative energy sources

for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely turned off.

> Signs shall be posted in at all loading docks and truck loading areas which
indicate that diesel-powered delivery trucks must be shut offwhen not in use

for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to reduce idling emissions.

This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled
Commercial Motor Vehicle Idling, which was approved by the California
Office of Administrative Law in January 2005.

> Implement the following additional guidelines, which are recommended in

ARB's Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective (ARB 2005)
and are considered to be advisory and not regulatory:

. Sensitive receptors, such as residential units and daycare centers, shall not
be located in the same building as dry-cleaning operations that use

perchloroethylene. Dry-cleaning operations that use perchloroethylene shall
not be located within 300 feet ofany sensitive receptor. A setback of500
feet shall be provided for operations with two or more machines.

. Large gasoline stations (defined as facilities with a throughput of 3.6 million
gallons per year or greater) and sensitive land uses shall not be sited within
300 feet of each other. Small gasoline-dispensing facilities (less than 3.6

million gallons ofthroughput per year) and sensitive land uses shall not be

sited within 50 feet of each other.

Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if
necessary, Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Control PIan. A site
investigation shall be performed to determine whether and where NOA is present

in the soil and rock on the SPA. The site investieation shall include the collection

3A.2-5
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106-10

Resolution No. 10400
Page 65 of 155

Page 143

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

construction, where
applicable, for all
project phases.

Before the approval
of building permits
by the City and
throughout project
construction, where
applicable, for all
project phases.

of soil and rock samples by a qualified geologist. If the site investigation
determines that NOA is present on the SPA then the project applicant shall
prepare an Asbestos Dust Control Plan for approval by SIvIAQMD as required in
Title 17, Section 93105 of the California Code of Regulations, "Asbestos
Airborne Toxic ControlMeasure for Conshuction, Grading Quarrying, and
Surface Mining Operations." The Asbestos Dust Conhol Plan shall specify
measures, such as periodic watering to reduce airbome dust and ceasing
construction during high winds. Measures in the Asbestos Dust Control Plan may
include but shall not be limited to dust contol measures required by Mitigation
Measure 3A.2-la. The project applicant shall submit the plan to the Folsom
Community Development Department for review and SMAQMD for review and
approval before construction of the first project phase. SMAQMD approval ofthe
plan must be received before any asbestos-containing rock (serpentinite) can be
disturbed. Upon approvalof the Asbestos Dust C,ontrol Plan by SMAQMD, the
applicant shall ensure that construction contractors implement the terms of the
plan throughout the construction period.

Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Operational Odorous Emissions. The project applicant(s) for any particular
discretionary development application shall implement the following measures:

> The odor-producing potential ofland uses shall be considered when the exact
type of facility that would occupy areas zoned for commercial, industrial, or
mixed-use land uses is determined. Facilities that have the potentialto emit
objectionable odors shall be located as far away as feasible from existing and
proposed sensitive receptors.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard
near the southwest corner ofthe SPA shall be set back as far as possible from
the boundary ofthe corporation yard and/or relocated to another area. (This

measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit exposure to
TAC emissions.)

> Before the approval ofbuilding permits, odor control devices shall be

identified to mitigate the exposure of receptors to objectionable odors if a
potential odor-producing source is to occupy an area zoned for commercial,
industrial, or mixed-use land uses. The identified odor control devices shall
be installed before the issuance of certificates ofoccupancy for the
potentially odor-producing use. The odor producing potential ofa source and
control devices shall be determined in coordination with SMAOMD and

3A.2-6
(FPASP
ErRvErs)

106-11

Resolution No. 10400
Page 66 of I 55

Page 144

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Departmentimprovement and

drainage plans, and

on an ongoing basis
throughout and after
project constuction,
as required for all
project phases.

approval ofDesign Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans
to Avoid and Minimize Erosion and Runoff to AII Wetlands and Other
Waters That Are to Remain on the SPA and Use Low Impact Development
Features.

To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrolory, the project
applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall include
stormwater drainage plans and erosion and sediment contol plans in their
improvement plans and shall submit these plans to ttre City Public Works

For ofl-site elements within Sacramentofor review and

based on the number of complaints associated with existing sources ofthe
same nature.

The deeds to all properties located within the plan area that are within one

mile of an on- or oflsite area zoned or used for agricultural use (including
livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by a written disclosure from the

transferor, in a form approved by the City of Folsom, advising any transferee

ofthe potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding agricultural
operations, which disclosure shall direct the hansferee to contact the County
of Sacramento concerning any such properly within the County zoned for
agricultural uses within one mile of the subject property being transfened.

Truck loading docks and delivery areas shall be located as far away as

feasible from existing and proposed sensitive receptors.

Signs shall be posted at all loading docks and truck loading areas which
indicate that diesel-powered delivery trucks must be shut offwhen not in use

for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to reduce idling emissions.

This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled
Commercial Motor Vehicle ldling, which was approved by California's
Office of Administrative Law in January 2005. (This measure is also required
by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to host

diesel hucks shall incorporate idle reduction shategies that reduce the main
propulsion engine idling time through alternative technologies such as,

IdleAire, electrification oftruck parking, and alternative energy sources for
TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely turned off. (This measure is

also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.24b to limit TAC emissions.)

3A.3-1a
(FPASP
ErR/nrs)

Biological Resources

106-12

Resolution No. 10400
Page 67 of I 55

Page 145

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



County or El Dorado County jurisdiction (e.g., ofi-site detention basin and off-site
roadway connections to El Dorado Hills), plans shall be submitted to the
appropriate county planning department. Before approval of these improvement
plans, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development
application shall obtain aNPDES MS4 Municipal Stormwater Permit and
Grading Permit, comply with the City's Grading Ordinance and County drainage
and stormwater quality standards, and commit to implementing all measures in
their drainage plans and erosion and sediment conhol plans to avoid and minimize
erosion and runoff into Alder Creek and all wetlands and other waters that would
remain on-site. Detailed information about stormwater runoffstandards and
relevant City and County regulation is provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and
Water Quality."
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development entitlement
shall implement stormwater quality treatment controls consistent with the
Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions in
effect at the time the application is submitted. Appropriate runoffcontrols such as

berms, storm gates, off-stream detention basins, overflow collection areas,

filtration systems, and sediment traps shall be implemented to control siltation and

the potential discharge of pollutants, Development plans shall incorporate Low
Impact Development (LID) features, such as pervious sfiips, permeable
pavements, bioretention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter
downspouts, and rain gardens, where appropriate. Use of LID features is

recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on water quality, hydrolory, and

stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for protecting water quality in
the proposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems shall be used

for all roadway crossings over wetlands and other waters that are retained in the

on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain the naturaland restored
channels ofcreeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed
with sufficient span width and depth to provide for wildlife movement along the
creek corridors even during high-flow or flood events, as specified in the 4M
permit.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the project applicant(s) for any
particular discretionary development application shall prepare a Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management Practices
(BMPs) that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the
Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction.
Detailed inforrnation about the SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9,
"Hydrology and Water Quality."

Resolution No. 10400
Page 68 of 155

Page 146

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
ofgrading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities
for any project
development phase

containing wetland
features or other
waters of the U.S,
The MMP must be

aooroved before anv

Each project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder
Creek and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote
Creek. The project applicant(s) shall establish a baseline ofconditions for
drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and
100-year storm events. These baseline conditions shall be used to develop
monitoring standards for the stormwater system on the SPA. The baseline
conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring program shall be submitted to
USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall
be designed and conshucted to ensure that the performance skndards, which are

described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be

designed as off-stream detention basins. Discharge sites into Alder Creek and
associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and
Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project conditions are being
met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as necessary. The mitigation
measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met for 5

consecutive years without undertaking conective measures to meet the
performance standard.

See FEIR/FEIS Appendix S showing that the detention basin in the northeast

corner of the SPA has been moved offstream.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applican(s) ofeach applicable
project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El
Dorado County for the roadway connections, Samamento County for the
detention basin west of Prairie City Road, and Caltrans for the U.S. 50
interchange improvements) such that the performance standards described in
Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met.

Secure Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and Implement All Permit
Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions and Values of Wetlands, Other
Waters of the U.S., and Waters of &e State.

Before the approval ofgrading and improvementplans and before any
groundbreaking activity associated with each distinct discretionary development
entitlemen! the project applicant($ for any particular discretionary development
application requiring fill of wetlands or other waters of the U.S. or waters of the
state shall obtain all necessary permits under Sections 401 and 404 of the CWA or
the state's Porter-Cologne Act for the respective phase. For each respective
discretionary development entitlement, all permits, regulatory approvals, and
permit conditions for effects on wetland habitats shall be secured before

3A.3-lb
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-13

Resolution No. 10400

Page 69 of 155

Page 147

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



impact on wetlands
can occur.

Mitigation shall be
implemented on an

ongoing basis
tlroughout and after
construction, as

required.

implementation of any grading activities within 250 feet of waters of the U.S. or
wetland habitats or lesser distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified
biologist with approval from USFWS, including waters of ttre state, that
potentially support Federally listed species. The project applican(s) shall commit
to replace, restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance with
USACE and the Central Valley RWQCB) the acreage of all wetlands and other
waters of the U.S. that would be removed, lost andlor degraded with
implementation of project plans for that development increment. Wetland habitat
shall be restored, enhanced, and/or replaced at an acreage and location and by
methods agreeable to USACE, the Central Valley RWQCB, and the City, as

appropriate, depending on agencyjurisdiction, and as determined during the
Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes. As part of the Section 404
permitting process, a draft wetland mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) shall
be developed for the project on behalfofthe project applicant(s). Before any
grounddisturbing activities in an area that would adversely affect wetlands and
before engaging in mitigation activities associated with each discretionary
development entitlement, the project applican(s) shall submit the draft wetland
MMP to USACE, the CentralValley RWQCB, Sacramento County, El Dorado
County, and the City for review and approval ofthose portions ofthe plan over
which they have jurisdiction. The MMP would have to be finalized prior to
impacting any wetlands. Once the final MMP is approved and implemented,
mitigation monitoring shall continue for a minimum of 5 years from completion
of mitigation, or human intewention (including recontouring and grading), or
until the performance standards identified in the approved MMP have been met
whichever is longer.

As part of the MMP, the project applicant(s) shall prepare and submit plans for
the creation ofaquatic habitat in order to adequately offset and replace the aquatic
functions and services that would be lost at the SPA, account for the temporal loss

of habitat, and contain an adequate margin of safety to reflect anticipated success.

Restoration of previously altered and degraded wetlands shall be a priority of the
MMP for offsetting losses of aquatic functions on the SPA because it is typically
easier to achieve functional success in restored wetlands than in tlose created
from uplands. The MMP must demonstrate how the aquatic functions and values
that would be lost through project implementation will be replaced.

The habitat MMP for jurisdictional wetland features shall be consistent with
USACE's and EPA's April 10, 2008 Final Rule for Compensatory Mitigation for
Losses of Aquatic Resources (33 CFR Parts 325 and 332 and 40 CFR Part 230)
and USACE's October 26,2010 Memorandum Re: Minimum Level of

Resolution No. 10400
Page 70 of I 55

Page 148

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Documentation Required for Permit Decisions. According to the Final Rule,
mitigation banks should be given preference over other types of mitigation
because a lot of the risk and uncertainty regarding mitigation success is alleviated
by the fact that mitigation bank wetlands must be established and demonstrating
functionality before credits can be sold. The use of mitigation credits also alleviates
temporal losses of wetland function while compensatory wetlands are being
established. Mitigation banks also tend to be on larger, more ecologically valuable
parcels and are subjected to more rigorous scientific study and planning and

implementation procedures than typieal permittee-responsible mitigation sites
(USACE and EPA,2008). Permittee-responsible on-site mitigation areas can be

exposed to long-term negative effects ofsurrounding development since they tend
to be smaller and less buffered than mitigation banks. The Final Rule also

establishes a preference for a'fuatershed approach" in selecting locations for
compensatory mitigation project locations, that mitigation selection must be

"appropriate and practicable" and that mitigation banks must address watershed
needs based on criteria set forth in the Final Rule. The watershed approach
accomplishes this objective by expanding the informational and analytic basis of
mitigation project site selection decisions and ensuring that both authorized impacts

and mitigation are considered on a watershed scale rather than on$ project by
project This requires a degree of flexibility so that district engineers can authorize

mitigation projects that most effectively address the case-specific circumstances and
needs of the watershed, while remaining practicable for the permiftee. The SPA
includes portions ofthe Alder Creek" Buffalo Creek, Coyote Cree( and Carson
Creek Watersheds. The majority ofthe SPA is within the Alder Creek Watershed.
Alder Creek and Buffalo Creek are part of the Lower American River Watershed.
Carson Creek and Coyote Creek are part of the Cosumnes River Watershed.
Mitigation credits may be available within the Cosumnes Watershed, but not within
the American River Watershed and not within the sub-watersheds ofttre SPA.
Therefore, aquatic habiAts may need to be restored or created on the SPA and

adjacent off-site tands, preferably within the affected watersheds, in order to
successfully replace lost functions at the appropriate watershed scale where loss of
function would occur. It is not likely feasible to provide compensatory mitigation
for all aquatic resource impacts on site.

Therefore, a combination of on-site and off-site permittee-responsible mitigation
and mitigation banking would likely be necessary to achieve the no-net-loss
standard.

The SPA is located within the service areas of several approved mitigation banks
(e.e.. Brvte Ranch. Clav Station. Fitzeerald Ranch. and Twin Ciw Mitieation

Resolution No. 10400
Page 7l of 155

Page 149

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Bank). The majority of compensatory mitigation for wetland impacts is proposed
to be accomplished at an agency approved mitigation bank or banks authorized to
sell credis to offset impacts in the SPA. The applicants' biological consultant,
ECORP, has identified availability of approximately 3l vernalpoolcredits and
228 seasonal wetland credits at mitigation banks whose service area includes the
SPA. Additional credits may also be available from pending, but not yet
approved, mitigation banks. However, availability is subject to change and, as

noted above, a combination of mitigation bank credits and permittee-responsible
on and off-site mitigation may be necessary to fully offset project impacts on
wetlands and other waters of the U.S. If USACE determines that the use of
mitigation bank credits is not sufficient mitigation to offset impacts within the
SPA, the October 26,2010 Memorandum Re: Minimum Level of Documentation
Required for Permit Decisions requires USACE to specifically demonstrate why
the use of bank credits is not acceptable to USACE in accordance with Section 33

CFR 332.3(a)(l).

Compensatory mitigation for losses of stream and intermittent drainage channels
shall follow the Final Rule Guidelines, which specifu that compensatory
mitigation should be achieved through in-kind preservation, restoration, or
enhancement within the same watershed, subject to practicability considerations.
The wetland MMP shall address how to mitigate impacts on vernal pool, seasonal

swale, seasonal wetland, seep, marsh, pond, and intermittent and perennial sheam
habitat, and shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented to avoid andior
mitigate any oflsite project-related impacts. The wetland compensation section of
the habitat MMP shall include the following:

> Compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites.

ln General, compensatory mitigation sites should me,et the following criteri4
based on the Final Rule;

' located within the same watershed as the wetland or other waters that would
be lost, as appropriate and practicable;

. located in the most likely position to successfully replace wetland functions
lost on the impact site considering watershed-scale features such as aquatic

habitat diversity, habitat connectivity, available water sources and

hydrologic relationships, land use trends, ecological benefits, and

compatibility with adjacent land uses, and the likelihood for success and

sustainability;

Resolution No. 10400
Page72 of 155

Page 150

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> A complete assessment ofthe existing biologicalresources in both the on-site
preservation areas and off-site compensatory mitigation areas, including
wetland firnctional assessment using the California Rapid Assessment

Method (CRAM) (Collins et al. 2008), or other appropriate wetland
assessment protocol as determined through consultation with USACE and the

USFWS, to establish baseline conditions;

> Specific creation and restoration plans for each mitigation site;

> Use of CRAM to comparc compensatory wetlands to the baseline CRAM
scores from wetlands in the SPA. The compensatory wetland CRAM scores

shall be compared against the highest quality wetland of each type from the

SPA;

> CRAM scores, or other wetland assessment protocol scores, from the

compensatory wetlands shall be compared against the highest quality wetland
scores for each wetland type to dosument success of compensatory wetlands
in replacing the functions of the affected wetlands to be replaced;

> Monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements, and

the fol lowing elements:

. ecological performance standards, based on the best available science, that
can be assessed in a practicable manner (e.g., performance standards

proposed by Barbour et al. 2007). Performance standards must be based on

athibutes that are objective and verifiable;

I assessments conducted annually for 5 years after oonstruction or restoration
of compensatory wetlands to determine whether these areas are acquiring
wetland functions and to plot the performance hajectory of preserved,

restored, or created wetlands over time.

I ass€ssments results for compensatory wetlands shall also be oompared

against scores for reference wetlands assessed in the same year;

I assessments analysis conducted annually for 5 years after any construction
adjacent to wetlands preserved on the SPA to determine whether these areas

are retaining functions and values. Assessments results for wetlands
preserved on site shall also be compared against scores for reference

wetlands assessed in the same year;

. analysis of assessments datq including assessment of potential stessors, to
determine whether any remedial activities may be necessary;

Resolution No. 10400
Page 73 of 155

Page 151

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



: corrective measures if performance standards are not met;
r monitoring of plant communities as performance criteria (annual measure of

success, during monitoring period) and success criteria (indicative of
achievement of mitigation habitat requirement at end of monitoring period)
for hydrologic function have become established and the creation site
"mafures" over time;

. GIS analysis of compensatory wetlands to demonshate actual acreage of
functioning wetland habitat;

' adaptive management measures to be applied if performance standards and
acreage requirements are not being met;

. responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

' responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifying
success or prescribing implementation or conective actions.

A final operations and management plan (oMP) for all on- and off-site permittee-
sponsored wetland preservation and mitigation areas shall be prepared and
submitted to USACE and USFWS for review, comment and preliminary approval
prior to the issuance of any permits under section 404 of the cwA. The plan shall
include detailed information on the habitats present within the preservation and
mitigation areas, the long-term management and monitoring of these habitats,
legal protection for the preservation and mitigation areas (e.g., conservation
easement declaration of restrictions), and funding mechanism information (e.g.,
endowment). A final OMP for each discretionary development entitlement
affecting wetlands must be approved prior to construction.

USACE has determined that the project will require an individual permit. In its
final stage and once approved by USACE, the MMP for the project is expected to
detail proposed wetland restoration, enhancemen! and/or replacement a&ivities
that would ensure no net loss of aquatic functions in the project vicinity. Approval
and implementation of the wetland MMP shall aim to fully mitigate all
unavoidable impacts on jurisdictional waters of the u.s., including jurisdictional
wetlands. In addition to USACE approval, approval by the City, Sacramento
County, El Dorado County, and the Central Valley RWQCB, as appropriate
depending on agencyjurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and
Section 404 permitting processes, will also be required. Approvals from
Sacram-ento county and El Dorado county shall be required for impacts resulting
from off-site project elements occurring in these counties, such as the off-site
detention basin in Sacramento and the roadway connections into EI

Resolution No. 10400
Page 74 of I 55

Page 152

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



California Department of Fish and

Game and City of Folsom Community
Development Department.

Before the approval
of grading and
improvement plans,

before any ground
disturbing activities,
and during project
conshuction as

applicable for all
project phases.

Dorado County. To satisfy the requirements of the City and the Cental Valley
RWQCB, mitigation of impacts on the nonjurisdiotionalwetlands beyond the
jurisdiction of USACE shall be included in the same MMP. All mitigation
requirements determined through this process shall be implemented before
grading plans are approved. The MMP shall be submitted to USACE and
approved prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA.
Water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the CWA will be required
before issuance ofa Section 404 permit. Before construction in any areas

containing wetland features, the project applicant(s) shall obtain water quality
certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance of
water quality certification shall be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e.,
Caltrans, El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties),

Avoid Direct Loss of Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests. To mitigate
impacts on Swainson's hawk and other raptors (including bunowing owl), the
project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall retain a qualified biologistto
conduct preconstruction surveys and to identifu active nests on and within 0.5
mile of the SPA and active burrows on the SPA. The surveys shall be conducted
before the approval of grading and/or improvement plans (as applicable) and no
less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the beginning ofconshuction
for all project phases. To the extent feasible, guidelines provided in
Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys
in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk Technical Advisory Committee 2000)
shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. If no nests are found, no
further mitigation is required.

Ifactive nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's hawks and other raptors
shall be avoided by establishing appropriate buffers around the nests. No project
activity shall commence within the buffer area until the young have fledged, the
nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has determined in
consultation with DFG that reducing the buffer would not result in nest
abandonment. DFG guidelines recommend implementation of 0.25- or O.S-mile-
wide buffers, but the size of the buffer may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and
the City, in consultation with DFG, determine that such an adjustment would not
be likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitorins of the nest by a qualified

3A'.3-2a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-14

Resolution No. 10400
Page 75 of 155

Page 153

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Depaftment

Before the approval
of grading,
improvement or
construction plans

and before any
ground disturbing
activity in any
project development
phase that would
affect Swainson's
hawk foraging
habitat.

biologist during and after construction activities will be required if the activity has
potential to adversely affect the nest.

If active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for
review and approval before any ground-disturbing activities.

The City shall consult with DFG. The mitigation plan may consist of installation
of one-way doors on all burrows to allow owls to exit but not reenter, and
construction of artificial burrows within the project vicinity, as needed; however,
burrow owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified biologist verifies that the
burrow does not contain eggs or dependent young. lf active bunows contain eggs
and/or young, no construction shall occur within 50 feet ofthe bunow until young
have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there are no owls inside burrows, these
burows may be collapsed.

Mitigation for the offl-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El
Dorado andior Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), such that the performance
criteria set forth in DFG's guidelines are determined to be met.

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2b: Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk
Mitigation Plan.

To mitigate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat, the project
applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and implement a Swainson's hawk
mitigation plan including but not limited to the requirements described below.

Before the approval ofgrading and improvement plans or before any ground-
disturbing activities, whichever occurs first, the project applicant(s) shall
preserve, to the satisfaction ofthe City or Sacramento County, as appropriate
depending on agency jurisdiction, suitable Swainson's hawk foraging habitat to
ensure l:1 mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's hawk foraging habitat lost
as a result of the project, as determined by the City, or Sacramento County, after
consultation with DFG and a qualified biologist.

The l:l habitat value shall be based on Swainson's hawk nesting distribution and
an assessment of habitat quality, availability, and use within the City's planning
area, or Sacramento Counfy jurisdiction. The mitigation ntio shall be consistent
with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the StaffReport
Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the
Central Valley of California, which call for the following mitigation ratios for loss
of foraging habitat in these categories: 1:l if within 1 mile of an active nest site,
0.75:l if over I mile but less than 5 miles, and 0.5:l if over 5 miles but less than

3A.3-2b
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

106-15

Resolution No. 10400
Page 76 of 155

Page 154

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



l0 miles from an active nest site. Such mitigation shall be accomplished through
credit purchase from an established mitigation bank approved to sell Swainson's
hawk foraging habitat credits to mitigate losses in the SPA, if availablq or
through the transfer offee title or perpetual conservation easement. The
mitigation land shall be located within the known foraging area and within
Sacramento County. The City, or Sacramento County if outside City jurisdiction,
after consultation with DFG, will determine the appropriateness of the mitigation
land.

Before approval of such proposed mitigation, the City, or Sacramento County for
the off-site detention basin, shall consult with DFG regarding the appropriateness
of the mitigation. If mitigation is accomplished through conservation easement,

then such an easement shall ensure the continued management ofthe land to
maintain Swainson's hawk foraging values, including but not limited to ongoing
agricultural uses and the maintenance of all existing water rights associated with
the land. The conservation easement shall be recordable and shall prohibit any
activity that substantially impairs or diminishes the land's capacity as suitable
Swainson's hawk habitat.

The project applican(s) shall transfer said Swainson's hawk mitigation land,
through either conservation easement or fee title, to a third party, nonprofit
conservation organization (Conservation Operator), with the City and DFG named

as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified
conservation easement land manager that manages land as its primary function.
Additionally, the Conservation Operator shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit
conservation organization that meets the criteria of Civil Code Section 815.3(a)
and shall be selected or approved by the City or County, after consultation with
DFG. The City, or County, after consultation with DFG and the Conservation
Operator, shall approve the content and form ofthe conservation easement. The
City, or County, DFG, and the Conservation Operator shall each have the power
to enforce the terms of the conservation easement. The Conservation Operator
shall monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms of
the easement.

The project applicant(s), after consultation with the City, or County of
jurisdiction, DFG, and the Conservation Operator, shall establish an endowment
or some other financial mechanism that is sufficient to fund in perpetuity the
operation, maintenance, management and enforcement of the conservation
easement, If an endowment is used, either the endowment funds shall be

submitted to the City for impacts on lands within the City's jurisdiction or
Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin to be distributed to an

Resolution No. 10400
Page 77 of 155

Page 155

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
ofany ground-
disturbing activity
within 500 feet of
suitable nesting

habitat as applicable
for all project
phases.

appropriate third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they shall be submitted
directly to the third-parly nonprofit conservation agency in exchange for an

agreement to manage and maintain the lands in perpetuity. The Conservation
Operator shall not sell, lease, or transfer any interest ofany conservation easement
or mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval of the City and DFG.
Mitigation lands established or acquired for impacts incuned at the oflsite
detention basin shall require approval from Sacramento County prior to sale or
transfer of mitigation lands or conservation easement.

lf the Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manage,
maintain, and enforce the interest shall be transfened to another entify acceptable
to the City and DFG, or Sacramento County and DFG depending on jurisdiction
of the affected habitat. The City Planning Department shall ensure that mitigation
habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's planning area is
properly established and is functioning as habitat by reviewing regular monitoring
reports prepared by the Conservation Operator of the mitigation site(s).
Monitoring of the mitigation site(s) shall continue for the first l0 years after
establishment of the easement and shall be funded through the endowment or
other appropriate funding mechanism, established by the project applicant(s),
Sacramento County shall review the monitoring reports for impacts on habitat at

the off-site detention basin.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento Counfy
and Caltrans).

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies. To
avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant(s) of all
project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey for any project activity that
would occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August
3l). The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by aqualified biologist before

any activity occurring within 500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including
freshwater marsh and areas ofriparian scrub vegetation. The survey shall be

conducted within l4 days before project activity begins.

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no further mitigation is required. If a
colony is found, the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting
colony. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area until a qualified
biologist confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size of the buffer shall
be determined in consultation with DFG. Buffer size is anticioated to ranse from

3A.3-2c
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

r06-16

Resolution No. 10400
Page 78 of 155

Page 156

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
Sacramento District; U.S. Fish and

Wildlife Service; and City of Folsom
Community Development Department

Before the approval
ofany ground-
disturbing activity
wittrin 500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as applicable
for all project
phases.

Before the approval
ofany grading or
improvement plans,
before any ground
disturbing activities
within 250 feet of

100 to 500 feet, depending on the nature ofthe project activity, the extent of
existing disfurbance in the are4 and other relevant circumstances.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries (i.e., U.S. 50 interchange improvements) must be developed by the
project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase in consultation with the
affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans) and must be suffrcient to achieve the
performance criteria described above.

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts. The project
applicant ofall project phases containing potential bat roosting habitat shall retain
a qualified biologist to conduct surveys for roosting bats. Surveys shall be
conducted in the fall to determine if the mine shaft is used as a hibernaculum and
in spring and/or summer to determine if it is used as a maternity or day roost.
Surveys shall consist of evening emergence surveys to note the presence or
absence of bats and could consist of visual surveys at the time of emergence. If
evidence of bat use is observed, the number and species of bats using the roost
shall be determined. Bat detectors may be used to supplement survey efforts. If no
bat roosts are found, then no further study shall be required.

If roosts of pallid bat or Townsend's big-eared bats are determined to be present

and must be removed, the bats shall be excluded from the roosting site. A
mitigation program addressing compensation, exclusion methods, and roost
removal procedures shall be developed in consultation with DFG before
implementation. Exclusion methods may include use of one-way doors at roost
entmnces (bats may leave but not reenter), or sealing roost entrances when the site
can be confirmed to contain no bats. Exclusion efforts may be restricted during
periods of sensitive activity (e.g., during hibernation or while females in maternity
colonies are nursing young). The loss of each roost (if any) will be replaced in
consultation with DFG and may include construction and installation of bat boxes
suitable to the bat species and colony size excluded from the original roosting site.
Roost replacement will be implemented before bats are excluded from the original
roost sites. Once the replacement roosts are constructed and it is confirmed that
bats are not present in the original roost site, the mine shaft may be removed.

Secure Take Authorization for Federally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates
and Implement All Permit Conditions. No project construction shall proceed in
areas supporting potential habitat for Federally listed vemal pool invertebrates, or
within adequate buffer areas (250 feet or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS), until a biological
opinion (80) or Not Likelv to Adversely Affect NLAA) letter has been issued bv

3A.3-2d
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.3-2g
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-17

106-18

Resolution No. 10400
Page 79 of I 55

Page 157

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



said habitat or lesser
distance deemed
sufficiently
protective by a
qualified biologist
wittr approval from
USFWS, and on an

ongoing basis
throughout
construction as

applicable for all
project phases as

required by the
mitigation plan, B0,
and/or BMPs.

USFWS and the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development
entitlements affecting such areas have abided by conditions in the BO (including
conservation and minimization measures) intended to be completed before on-site
construction. Conservation and minimization measures shall include preparation

of supporting documentation describing methods to protect existing vernal pools
during and after project construction, a detailed monitoring plan, and reporting
requirements.

As described under Mitigation Measure 3A.3-la, an MMP shall be developed that
describes details how loss of vemal pool and other wetland habitats shall be

offset including details on creation ofhabitat, account for the temporal loss of
habitat, contain performance standards to ensure succ€ss, and outline remedial
actions if performance standards are not met.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
potentially affecting vernal pool habitat shall complete and implement a habitat
MMP that will result in no net loss of acreage, function, and value of affected
vernal pool habitat. The final habitat MMP shall be consistent with guidance

provided in Programmatic Formal Endangered Species Act Consultation on
Issuance of 404 Permits for Projects with Relatively Small Effects on Listed
Vernal Pool Crustaceans within the Jurisdiction ofthe Sacramento Field Office,
California (USFWS 1996) or shall provide an alternative approach that is
acceptable to the City, USACE, and USFWS and accomplishes no net loss of
habitat acreage, function, and value.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
"potentially affecting vemal pool habitat" shall ensure that there is sufficient
upland habitat within the target areas for creation and restoration ofvernal pools
and vernal pool complexes to provide ecosystem health. This standard shall be

accomplished by requiring the project applicant(s) for any discretionary
development application affecting vemal pool or seasonal wetland habitat to
identify the extent ofindirectly affected vernal pool and seasonal wetland habitat,
either by identifoing all such habitat within 250 feet of project construction
activities or by providing an alternative technical evaluation. If a lesser distance is
pursued, this distance shall be approved by USFWS. The project applicant(s) shall
preserve acreage ofvernal pool habitat for each wetted acre ofany indirectly
affected vernal pool habitat at a ratio approved by USFWS at the conclusion of
the Section 7 consultation. This mitigation shall occur before the approval of any
grading or improvement plans for any project phase that would allow work within
250 feet of such habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently protective by a

oualified biolosist with aoproval from USFWS" and before anv eround disturbine

Resolution No. 10400
Page 80 of 155

Page 158

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



California Department of Fish and

Game and City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before the approval
ofgrading or
improvement plans

or any construction
activities (including
clearing and

grubbing) that affect
the bed and bank or
riparian and

freshwater marsh
habitat associated
with Alder Creek
and other on-site or
off-site drainage
channels and ponds.

activity within 250 feet of the habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS. The project
applicant(s) will not be required to complete this mitigation measure for direct or
indirect impacts that have already been mitigated to the satisfaction ofUSFWS
through another BO or mitigation plan (i.e., if impacts on specific habitat acreage

are mitigated by one project phase or element ttre project applican(s) will not be

required to mitigate for it again in another phase of the project).

A standard set of BMPs shall be applied to construction occuning in areas within
250 feet of off-site vernal pool habitat, or within any lesser distance deemed

adequate by a qualified biologist (with approval from USFWS) to constitute a
sufficient buffer from such habitat. Refer to Section 3A.9, "Hydrolory and Water

Quality - Land" for the details of BMPs to be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional

boundaries must be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase in consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-4a: Secure and Implement Section 1602 Streambed
Alteration Agreement The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary
development application shall obtain a Section 1602 streambed alteration
agreement from DFG for all conshuction activities that would occur in the bed

and bank ofAlder Creek and other drainage channels and ponds on the SPA. As a
condition of issuance of the streambed alteration agreement, the project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application affecting
riparian habitat shall hire a qualified restoration ecologist to prepare a riparian
habitat MMP. The draft MMP shall describe specific method(s) to be

implemented to avoid and/or compensate for impacts on the stream channel of
Alder Creek and other drainage channels within DFG jurisdiction, and the bed

and banks of the on-site ponds. Mitigation measures may include establishment or
restoration ofriparian habitat within ttre project's open space areas along
preserved sfteam conidors, riparian habitat restoration oflsite, or preservation
and enhancement of existing riparian habitat either on or offthe SPA. The
compensation habitat shall be similar in composition and structure to the habitat
to be removed and shall be at ratios adequateto offsetthe loss ofriparian habitat
functions and services at the SPA. The riparian habitat oompensation section of
the habitat MMP shall include the following:

> compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites;

3A.3-4a
(FPASP
EIRiEIS)

106-19

Resolution No. 10400
Page 8l of 155

Page 159

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> complete assessment of the existing biological resources in both the on-site
and off-site preservation and restoration areas;

> site-specific management procedures to benefit establishment and

maintenance of native riparian plant species, including black willow, arroyo
willow, white alder, and Fremont cottonwood;

> a planting and inigation progam if needed for establishment of native
riparian trees and shrubs at sfiategic locations within each mitigation site
(planting and inigation may not be necessary if preservation of functioning
riparian habitat is chosen as mitigation or if restoration can be accomplished
without irrigation or planting);

> in kind reference habitats for comparison with compensatory riparian habitats
(using performance and success criteria) to document success;

> monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements
(compensatory riparian habitats shall be monitored for a minimum period of
five years);

> ecological performance standards, based on the best available science and

including specifications for native riparian plant densities, species

composition, amount ofdead woody vegetation gaps and bare ground, and

survivorship; at a minimum, compensatory mitigation planting sites must
achieve 80% survival ofplanted riparian trees and shrubs by the end ofthe
five-year maintenance and monitoring period or dead and dying hees shall be

replaced and monitoring continued until 80% survivorship is achieved;

> corrective measures if performance standards are not met;

> responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

> responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifling
success or prescribing implementation or corrective actions.

Any conditions of issuance of the Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be

implemented as part of project construction activities that adversely affect the bed

and bank and riparian habitat associated with Alder Creek and other drainage
channels and ponds that are within the projeot area that is subject to DFG
jurisdiction. The agreement shall be executed by the project applican{s) and DFG
before the approval of any gading or improvement plans or any construction
activities in anv nroiect ohase that could ootentiallv affect the bed and bank of

Resolution No. 10400
Page 82 of 155

Page 160

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



California Department of Fish and
Game, and City of Folsom

Community Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
project phase.

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
proiect nhase

Alder Creek and other on-site or off-site drainage channels under DFG
jurisdiction and their associated freshwater marsh and riparian habitat.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the
project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase wittr the Caltrans.

Conduct Surveys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland;
Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatoty
Mitigation. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a qualified

botanist to conduct preconstruction surveys to determine ifvalley needlegrass

grassland is present on the SPA. This could be done concunently with any
special-status plant surveys conducted on site as special-status plant surveys are

floristic in nature, i.e. require that all species encountered be identified, and

require preparation of a plant community map. If valley needlegrass grassland is

not found on the SPA, the botanist shall document the findings in a letter report to
the City of Folsom, and no further mitigation shall be required. Valley
needlegrass grassland was not found in any of the off-site project elements.

Ifvalley needlegrass grassland is found on the SPA, the location and extent ofthe
community shall be mapped and the acreage of this community type, if any, that

would be removed by project implementation shall be calculated. The project

applican(s) for any particular discretionary development application affecting

valley needlegrass grassland shall consult with DFG and the City of Folsom to

determine appropriate mitigation for removal of valley needlegrass grassland

resulting from project implementation, Mitigation measures shall include one or

more of the following components sufficient to achieve no net loss of valley
needlegrass grassland acreage: establishment ofvalley needlegrass grassland

within project's open space areas currently characterized by annual grassland,

establishment ofvalley needlegrass grassland off-site, or preservation and

enhancement of existing valley needlegrass grassland either on or offthe SPA.

The applicant(s) shall compensate for any loss ofvalley needlegrass grassland

resulting from project implementation at a minimum l:l replacement ratio.

Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation
Plan, Replace Native Oak Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to
Avoid and Minimize Indirect Impacts on Oak Trees Retained On Site. The
project applicant(s) shall prepare an oak woodland mitigation and monitoring
plan. The project applican(s) ofall on- and off-site project phases containing oak
woodland habitat or individual trees shall adhere to the requiremen8 described

below, which are consistent with those outlined in California Public Resources

Code 21083.4. Pursuant to Samamento County General Plan policy, the acreage

3A.3-4b
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.3-5
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

106-20

r06-21

Resolution No. 10400
Page 83 of 155

Page 161

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



containing protected

trees or oak
woodland.

of oak woodland habitat for determining impacts and mitigation requirements was

calculated as the oak tree canopy area within stands ofoak fees having greater

than l0% cover plus a 30-foot-radius buffer measured from the outer edge ofthe
tree canopy. Oak ftees located in areas greater than 30 feet from stands meeting
the greater than l0% tree canopy cover criterion were considered isolated trees
and not part of the blue oak woodland community. Mitigation for impacts on
isolated oak trees is discussed separately below.

> Preserve approximately 399 acres of existing oak woodland habitat in the

SPA (this acreage is based on the extent ofoak woodland habitat as

determined from aerial photograph interpretation; however, following
completion of ground verification by a qualified arborist, the actual amount
of oak woodland present within impact areas could be slightly greater or
lesser than the amount calculated from aerial photograph and, thereforq the

amount preserved could also be slightly greater or lesser than 399 acres).

> Create 243 acres ofoak woodland habitat in the SPA by planting a

combination of blue oak acorns, seedlings, and trees in the following SPA

locations:

. Non-wooded areas that are adjacent to or contiguous with the existing oak

woodland habitat.

. Preserve and passive open space zones throughout the SPA.

. Open space areas that are adjacent to existing oak woodlands that will be

impacted by project grading (i.e, catch slopes).

. Other practical locations within the SPA in or adjacent to open space.

' Oak Woodlands Mitigation Planting Criteria

The following oak woodland mitigation planting criteria shall be used to create
oak woodland habitat:

> A minimum of 55 planting sites per acre (with a total of 70 units, as defined
below) will mitigate for one acre of oak woodland impacts. A combination of
acorns, seedlings, and various sizes of container tees (#l container, #5

container, #15 container) ortransplanted trees shall be incorporated into the

planting design. Mitigation acreage that is planted solely with larger oak tees
(no acorns) shall have a minimum of 35 planfing sites per acre. The units are

defined as follows:

Resolution No. 10400
Page 84 of 155

Page 162

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



. One established acorn equals one unit (acoms will be over planted to
maximize potential germination).

. One oak seedling equals one unit.

. One #l container oak tree equals two units.

, One #5 container oak hee equals three units.

. One #15 container oaktree equals four units.

' One 24-inch boxed oak tree equals six units.

. One transplanted oak tree equals four units per hunk diameter inch (dbh).

. Native non oak species characteristic of oak woodlands shall be included in
the mitigation planting plan to au$nent overall habitat values. Each non oak

tree species shall represent unit values described above for oak tees, but non

oak species shall comprise no more than 10% of the mitigation plantings.

Preserve and protect existing off-site oak woodland habitat. Existing,

unprotected oak woodland habitat within Sacramento and El Dorado

Counties may be secured and placed under conservation easement in lieu of
onsite mitigation measures if necessary. The off-site locations would be

managed as oak woodland habilat in perpetuity.

Create oak woodlands offsite. Plant a combination of blue oak acorns,

seedlings, and trees at off-site location(s), ifneeded to achieve the creation

goal of 243 acres of new blue oak woodland habitat. This measure would
only be needed if243 acres ofblue oak woodland could not be created in the

SPA. Off-site creation shallfollow the same guidelines as outlined in the

Mitigation Planting Criteria for onsite creation. Off+ite hee planting shall

occur at sites within Sacramento County that should naturally support blue

oak woodland and shall be used to restore former blue oak woodland habitat

that has been degraded or removed through human activities. Restoration

shall be designed to result in species composition and densities similar to

those in the SPA prior to project development. Planted areas shall be placed

under conservation easement and managed as oak woodland habitat in
perpetuity.

The oak woodland mitigation plan prepared by the project applicant(s) shall
include a maintenance and monitoring program for any replacement fees.
The program shall include monitoring and reporting requirements, schedule,

and success criteria. lacement oak trees shall be maintained and

Resolution No. 10400
Page 85 of 155

Page 163

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



monitored for a minimum of eight years from the date of planting and
inigation shall be provided to planted hees for the first five years after
planting. Any replacement trees that die during the monitoring period shall be

replaced in sufficient numbers to achieve 80% survival rate for planted hees
by the end of the eight-year maintenance and monitoring period. Dead and

dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring continued until 80%
survivorship is achieved. Security acceptable to the City and sufficient to
cover maintenance and monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to
the City Planning Department. The security will be forfeited if the project
applicant or designated responsible party fails to provide maintenance and

monitoring and meet the success criteria.

Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation

The project applican(s) ofall on-site project phases containing oak woodland
habitat or isolated trees and the off-site Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue
interchange improvements to U.S. 50; Rowberry Drive Overcrossing; and ttre
underground sewer force main shall develop a map depicting the tree canopy of
all oak trees in the survey area and identiling the acreage of tree canopy that
would be preserved and the acreage that would be removed. A tree permit for
removal of isolated oak trees (those not located within the delineated boundary of
oak woodland habitat) shall be obtained from the City Planning Director. As a
condition of the tree removal permig project applicant(s) shall be required to
develop a Planting and Maintenanoe Agreement. The City's Tree Preservation
Code requires compensatory mitigation and the City and the project applicants
have developed a plan, as set forth Section l0 of the Folsom Plan fuea Specific
Plan (attached to this EIR/EIS as Appendix N) specifically to avoid and minimize
adverse effects on isolated oaktrees from project development and to provide
compensatory mitigation for removal of protected trees in the SPA. In addition to
the language contained in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the following
elements shall be included in a protected tree mitigation plan to be developed by
the project applicants and agreed upon by the City:

> Project applicant(s) ofprojects containing isolated oak rees shall retain a
certified arborist or registered professional forester to perform a determinate

survey oftree species, size (dbh), condition, and location for all areas ofthe
project site proposed for free removal and encroachment ofdevelopment. The
condition of individual trees shall be assessed according to the American

Resolution No. 10400
Page 86 of 155

Page 164

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Society of Consulting Arborists rating system with the following added

explanations:

. 5 = Excellent; No problems - tee has no structural problems, branches are

properly spaced and hee characteristics are nearly perfect for the species.

. 4 = Good; No apparent problems - Fee is in good condition and no apparent
problems from visual inspection. If potential stuctural or health problems

are tended at this stage, future hazard can be reduced and more serious

health problems can be averted.

. 3 = Fair; Minor problems - There are some minor structural or health

problems that pose no immediate danger, When the recommended actions in

an arborist report are completed con'ectly the defect(s) can be minimized or

eliminated.

. 2 = Poor; Major problems - the tree is in poor condition, but the condition

could be improved with correct arboriculturalwork including, but not

limited to: pruning, cabling, bracing, bolting, guying, spraying, mistletoe

removal, vertical mulching, and fertilization. If the recommended actions are

completed correctly, hazard can be reduced and the rating can be elevated to

a 3. If no action is taken the hee is considered a liability and should be

removed.

' I = Hazardous or non conectable condition - the tree is in extremely poor

condition and in non-reversible decline. This rating is assigned to a hee that

has structural and/or health problems that no amount of tree care work or

effort can change. The issues may or may not be considered a dangerous

situation. The tree may also be infested wittr a disease or pes(s) that is non-

controllable at this time and is causing an unacceptable risk ofspreading the

disease or pests(s) to other trees.

' 0 = Dead - the tree has no significant signs of life (dead or very close to
being dead).

Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation Planting Criteria

> The determination for whether an isolated tee shall be preserved, removed
without compensation, or removed with compensatory mitigation shall be

based on the condition and size ofthe tree as follows:

' Trees rated 0 or I may be removed with no mitigation.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 87 of 155

Page 165

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



r Trees rated 2 may be removed at50o/o of the normal Folsom Municipal Code

mitigation.

. Trees rated 3, 4, and/or 5 may be removed at the normal Folsom Municipal
Code mitigation.

. Native isolated oaks measuring 24 inches or greater dbh for a single tunk or
40 inches or more for a multi-trunked tree and rated a 3 to 5 shall be

retained, unless retaining wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall (from bottom of
footing to the top of the wall) would be required to protect the tree(s) from
mass grading of the SpA properties.

. Native oaks measuring between 12 and24 inches dbh and rated a 4 or 5

shall not be removed or mitigated unless wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall (from
bottom of footing to the top of the wall) would be required to protect the

tree(s) from mass grading ofthe SPA properties. Trees in this size class but
rated 2 or 3 shall not be removed unless unreasonable costs to save the

tree(s) (greater than the cost of implementing the isolated oak tree mitigation
planting criteria described here) would result.

r Native oaks measuring 5 inches or greater dbh but less than 12 inches dbh

shall not be removed unless unreasonable costs to save the tree(s) (greater

than the cost of implementing the isolated oak tree mitigation planting

criteria described here) would result,

. Native oak trees measuring 1 inch or grcater dbh but less than 5 inches dbh

may be preserved to receive a Small Tree Preservation Credit (STPC). Any
tree that is to be considered for preservation credit shall be evaluated,

included in the arborist report, and shall have been found to be rated a 3, 4,
or a 5. Credits shall only be accepted if the nee protection zone (TPQ (i.e.,
the outer edge of the tree canopy drip line) is protected with fencing in the
exact manner that 5 inches dbh and greater trees are protected on a

construction site, and the spacing is equal to the proper tree spacing dictated

by the Folsom Master Tree List. STPC shall not count if they the tree is in a
poor growing space due to its position within the TPZ of another protected

tree to be preserved. The City shall accept the preservation ofnative oak
trees in this size class as credit towards the total removed inches based on
the following STPC criteria:

Folsom Municipal Code requires one of the following be planted as

compensation for each diameter inch of protected hee removed:

Resolution No. 10400
Page 88 of 155

Page 166

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



. half of a Z4.inch box tree;

. one #15 containerhee;

. two #5 containerhees; or

. $150 in-lieu payment or other fee set by City Council Resolufion.

> The Planting and Maintenance Agreement shall include a planting plan,
planting and irrigation design details, and a weaning schedule for ttre
establishment period. The plan shall include a 5-year establishment period for
trees and 8 years for planted acorns with an annual monitoring report that
includes corrections needed with proposed work plan, and notice of
compliance within 9O-days of annual monitoring report. Security in an form
acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover maintenance and monitoring
costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department. The

security will be forfeited ifthe project applicant or designated responsible

party fails to fulfill the Planting and Maintenance Agreement.

> To avoid and minimize indirect impacts on protected hees to remain on the

SPA, the project applicant(s) ofall affected project phases shall install high

visibility fencing outside the outer edge of the drip lines of all trees to be

retained on the SPA during project construction. The fencing may be

installed around groups or stands of trees or whole wooded areas bust must

be installed so that the drip lines ofall trees are protected. Grading, trenching,

equipment or materials storage, parking, paving, inigation, and landscaping

shall be prohibited within the fenced areas (i.e. drip lines of protected hees).

If the activities listed cannot be avoided within the drip line of a particular

tree, that tree shall be counted as an affected tree and compensatory

mitigation shall be provided, or the tres in question shall be monitored for a
period offive years and replaced only ifthe tree appears to be dead or dying
within five years of project implementation.

Through a combination of the mitigation options presented above along with the
proposed on-site preservation ofblue oak woodland habitat in the open space

areas, the project applican(s) can safisfy the mitigation requirements for removal
of trees protected under the Folsom Municipal Code while also mitigating the
impacts on oak woodland habitat as determined through consultation with the

Sacramento County Planning Department (for County ofF-site impacts only)
and/or the City of Folsom,

Resolution No. 10400
Page 89 of 155

Page 167

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

California Department of Fish and
Game, and City of Folsom

Community Development Department

California Department of Fish and

Game, and City of Folsom
Community Development Department

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
project phase.

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing within
suitable tadpole
habitat.

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or anv ground

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the
project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with Caltrans.

Conduct Environmental Awareness Training for Construction Employees.

Prior to beginning construction activities, the Project Applicant shallemploy a

qualified biologist to develop and conduct environmental awareness training for
construction employees. The haining shall describe the importance of onsite
biological resources, including special-status wildlife habitats; potential nests of
special-status birds; and roosting habitat for special-status bats. The biologist shall
also explain the importance of other responsibilities related to the protection of
wildlife during construction such as inspecting open trenches and looking under
vehicles and machinery prior to moving them to ensure there are no lizards,
snakes, small mammals, or other wildlife that could become trapped, injured, or
killed in construction areas or under equipment.

The environmental awareness program shall be provided to all construction
personnel to briefthem on the life history ofspecial-status species in or adjacent

to the project area, the need to avoid impacts on sensitive biological resources,

any terms and conditions required by State and federal agencies, and the penalties

for not complying with biological mitigation requirements. If new construction
personnel are added to the project, the contractor's superintendent shall ensure

that the personnel receive the mandatory training before starting work. An
environmental awareness handout that describes and illustrates sensitive resources

to be avoided during project construction and identifies all relevant permit
conditions shall be provided to each person.

Conduct Preconstruction Western Spadefoot Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a
preconstruction western spadefoot survey within 48 hours of the initiation of
construction activity within suitable tadpole habitat (e.g., vernal pools, seasonal

wetlands, and drainages with standing water) forwestem spadefoot.If no western

spadefoot individuals are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist
shall document the findings in a letter report to CDFW and the City, and no

further mitigation shall be required. If western spadefoot individuals are found,
the qualified biologist shall consult with CDFW to determine appropriate
avoidance measures.

Conduet Preconstruction Northwestern Pond Turtle Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a
preconstruction northwestern pond turtle survey within 48 hours of the initiation

ws-1
(Addendum)

ws-2
(Addendum)

NWPT-I
(Addendum)

106-22

106-23

106-24

Resolution No. 10400
Page 90 of 155

Page 168

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



California Department of Fish and

Game, and City of Folsom
Community Development Department

Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources

City of Folsom Community
Development Department; U.S. Army
Corp ofEngineers;

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, within
suitable northwestern
pond turtle habitat.

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
project phase.

During all
construction phases

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any ground
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
project phase.

of construction activity within suitable habitat for northwestem pond turtle. If no
northwestern pond turtles are found during the preconstruction survey, the
biologist shall document the findings in a letter report to CDFW and the City, and
no further mitigation shall be required. If northwestern pond turtles are found, the
qualified biologist shall capture and relocate the turtles to a suitable preserved

location in the vicinity ofthe project.

Preconstruction Nesting Bird Survey.

The Project Applicant shall conduct a preconstuction nesting bird survey ofall
areas associated with construction activities on the project site within 14 days
prior to commencement of construction during the nesting season (l February
through 31 August).

Ifactive nests are found, a no-disturbance buffer around the nest shall be

established. The buffer distance shall be established by a qualified biologist in
consultation with CDFW. The buffer shall be maintained untilthe fledglings are

capable of flight and become independent of the nest to be determined by a
qualified biologist. Once the young are independent of the nest no further
measures are necessary. Pre-construction nesting surveys are not required for
construction activity outside ofthe nesting season.

Conply with the Programmatic Agement
The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a
management framework for identifying historic properties, determining adverse
effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required under Section 106 ofthe
National Historic Preservation Act. This document is incorporated by reference.
The PA is available for public inspection and review at ttre California Office of
Historic Preservation 172523rd Street Sacramento, CA 95816.

Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the
California Register of Ilistoric Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or
Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or Destruction Cannot
be Avoided.

These steps may be combined with deliverables and management steps performed
for Section 106 provided that management documents prepared for ttre PA also
clearly reference the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) listing
criteria and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Prior to ground
disturbing work for each individual development phase or off-site element the
applicable oversight asencv (CiW of Folsom. El Dorado CounW. Sacramento

NB.1
(Addendum)

3A.$1a
(Addendum)

3A"Slb
(Addendum)

106-25

106-26

t0G27

Resolution No. 10400
Page 9l of 155

Page 169

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



County, or Caltrans), or icant(s) all project phases, with
applicable oversight agency, shall perform the following actions:

> The project applicant shall retain the services ofa qualified archaeologist to
perform an inventory of cultural resources within each individual

development phase or oflsite element subject to approval under CEQA.

Identified resources shall be evaluated for listing on the CRHR The

inventory report shall also identify locations that are sensitive for
undiscovered cultural resources based upon the location ofknown resources,

geomorphology, and topography. The inventory report shall specify the
location of monitoring of ground-disturbing work in these areas by a
qualified archaeologist and monitoring in the vicinity of identified resources

that may be damaged by construction, ifappropriate.

> The identification of any sensitive locations subject to monitoring during

construction of each individual development phase shall be performed in

concert with monitoring activities performed under the PA to minimize the

potential for confl icting requirements.

> For each resource that is determined eligible for the CRHR, the applicable

agency or the project applican(s) for any particular discretionary

development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the services ofa
qualified archaeologist who shall determine if irnplementation of the

individual project development would result in damage or destuction of
"significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources. These findings shall be

reviewed by the applicable agency for consistency with the significance

thresholds and treatment measures provided in this EIRJEIS.

> Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid

impacts on eligible or listed resources. Altematively, these resources may be

preserved in place ifpossible, as suggested under California Public Resources

Code Section 21083.2. Avoidance of historic properties is required under

certain circumstances under the Public Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800.

> Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the project

applicant(s) ofall project phases (under the applicable agency's direction)

shall prepare and implement treatment measures that are determined to be

necessary by a qual ified archaeologist. These measures may consist of data

recovery excavations for resources that are eligible for listing because ofthe
data contain contribute to for

Resolution No. 10400
Page 92 of I 55

Page 170

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
iDevelopment Department; U.S. Army
Corp of Engineers

Before approval of
grading or
improvement plans

or any gound
disturbing activities,
including grubbing
or clearing, for any
project phase.

historical architectural, engineered, or landscape features, treatment measures

may consist of a preparation of interpretive, nanative, or photographic

documentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable oversight

agency for consistency with the significance thresholds and standards

provided in this EIRJEIS,

> To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation
Measure, the archaeologist retained by either the applicable oversight agency

or the project applican(s) ofall project phases shall prepare an appropriate
prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant prehistoric,

ethnographic, and historic themes and research questions against which to

determine the significance of identified resources and appropriate treatment.

> These steps and documents may be combined with the phasing of
management and documents prepared pursuant to the FAPA to minimize the

potential for inconsistency and duplicative management efforts.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of tlre City of Folsom's jurisdictional

boundaries shall be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or

Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring If
Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are Discoveredn Assess the
Significance of the Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

To reduce potential impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources, the

project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall do the following:

> Before the start ofground-disturbing activities, the project applicant(s) ofall
project phases shall retain a qualified archaeologist to conduct training for
construction workers as necessary based upon the sensitivity ofthe project

APE, to educate them about the possibility of encountering buried cultural

resources and inform them ofthe proper procedures should cultural resourc€s

be encountered.

> As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and

3A,5-lb, if the archaeologist determines that any portion of the SPA or the

off-site elements should be monitored for potential discovery of as-yet-

unknown cultural resources, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall

implement such monitoring in the locations specified by the archaeologist.

3A"$2
(Addendum)

10628

Resolution No. 10400
Page 93 of 155

Page 171

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



USACE should review and approve any recommendations by archaeologists

with respect to monitoring.

> Should any cultural resources, such as shucfural features, unusual amounts of
bone or shell, artifacts, or architectural remains be encountered during any
construction activities, work shall be suspended in the vicinity of the find and

the appropriate oversight agency(ies) (identified below) shall be notified
immediately. The appropriate oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified

archaeologist who shall conduct a field investigation of the specific site and

shall assess the significance ofthe find by evaluating the resource for
eligibility for listing on the CRHR and the NRHP. If the resource is eligible
for listing on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to disturbance or
destruction, the actions required in Mitigation Measures 3A.5-la and 3A.5-1b
shall be implemented. The oversight agency shall be responsible for approval

of recommended mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light of the

approved land uses and shall implement the approved mitigation before
resuming construction activities at the archaeological site.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties, or Calfrans).

The project applicant in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an

archaeological sensitivity training program is developed and implemented during a
pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The sensitivity training
program shall provide information about notification procedures when potential
archaeological material is discovered, procedures for coordination between
construction personnel and monitoring personnel, and information about other
treatment or issues that may arise if cultural resources (including human remains)
are discovered during project construction. This protocol shall be communicated to
all new construction personnel during orientation and on a poster that is placed in a
visible location inside the construction job trailer. The phone number of the USACE
cultural resources staffmember shall also be included.

The on-site sensitivity training shall be carried out each time a new contractor will
begin work in the APE and at the beginning ofeach construction season by each

contractor.

Resolution No. I0400
Page 94 of 155

Page 172

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Coroner; Native
American Heritage Commission; City
of Folsom Community Development
Department

During all ground
disturbing activities,
for any project
phase.

Ifunanticipated discoveries ofadditional historic properties, defined in 36 CFR
800.1 6 (l), are made during the construction of the project, the USACE shall
ensure that they will be protected by implementing the following measures:

> The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, if given the authority
to halt construction activities, shall ensure that work in that area is

immediately halted within a 100-foot radius of the unanticipated discovery
until the find is examined by a penon meeting the professional qualifications

standards specified in Section 2.2 of Attachment G of the HPMP. The

Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, if present, shall notif the

USACE within 24 houn of the discovery.

> The USACE shall notify the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO)

within one working day of an unanticipated discovery and may initiate

interim treatment measures in accordance with this FIPTP. Once the USACE

makes a formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the USACE will
notifu the SHPO within 48 hours of the determination and afford the SFIPO

an opportunity to comment on appropriate treatment. The SHPO shall

respond within 72 hours of the request to consult. Failure of the SHP0 to
respond within 72 hours shall not prohibit the USACE from implementing

the treatment measures.

The project applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in the

form of a completed haining roster and copy oftaining materials.

Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and
Conply with California Health and Safety Code Procedures.

In accordance with the California Health and Safety Code, if human remains are

uncovered during ground-disturbing activities, including those associated with
off-site elements, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall immediately
halt all ground-disturbing activities in the area of the find and notifu the

Sacramento County Coroner and a professional archaeologist skilled in
osteological analysis to determine the nature of the remains. The coroner is
required to examine all discoveries of human remains within 48 hours of
receiving notice of a discovery on private or public lands (California Health and

Safety Code Section 7050.5[b]). If the coroner determines that the remains are

those of a Native American, he or she must contact the NAHC by phone within 24

hours of making that determination (California Health and Safep Code Section
7050[c]).

3A"$,3
(Addendum)

106-29

Resolution No. 10400
Page 95 of 155

Page 173

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



After the coroner's findings are complete, the project applicant(s), an

archaeologist, and the NAHC-designated Most Likely Descendant shall determine
the ultimate fteatment and disposition of the remains and take appropriate steps to
ensure that additional human interments are not disturbed. The responsibilities for
acting on notification of a discovery ofNative American human remains are
identified in Section 5097.9 of the California Public Resources Code.

Upon the discovery of Native American remains, the procedures above regarding
involvement of the applicable county coroner, notification of the NAHC, and
identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall be followed. The project
applicant(s) of all project phasas shall ensure that the immediate vicinity
(according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards and
practices) is not damaged or disturbed by further development activity until
consultation with the Most Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most Likely
Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the site to inspectthe
site and make recommendations. A range of possible treatments for the remains
may be discussed: nondestructive removal and analysis, preservation in place,
relinquishment of the remains and associated items to the descendants, or other
culturally appropriate treatment. As suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Statutes
of2006), the concerned parties may extend discussions beyond the initial 48
hours to allow for the discovery of additional remains. AB 2641(e) includes a list
of site protection measures and states that the project applicant(s) shall comply
with one or more of the following requirements:

> record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center,

> use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement or

> record a reinternment document with the county.

The project applicant(s) or its authorized representative ofall project phases shall
rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave goods with
appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface
disturbance if the NAHC is unable to identify an Most Likely Descendant or if the
Most Likely Descendant fails to make a recommendation within 48 hours after
being granted access to the site. The project applican(s) or its authorized
representative may also reinter the remains in a location not subject to further
disturbance if it rejects *rs recommendation of the Most Likely Descendant and
mediation by the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner,
Ground disturbance in the zone of suspended activity shall not recommence
without authorization from the archaeologist.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 96 of 155

Page 174

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before issuance of
building permits and
ground-disturbing
activities.

boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., ElDorado and/or
Sacramento Counties, or Caltans).

The project applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance
in the form of a completed training roster and oopy of training materials.

Folsom's jurisdictionaltheM

construction activities begin any project development phasq the project
applicant(s) ofeach project phase shall hire a licensed geotechnical engineer to
prepare a final geotechnical subsurface investigation report for the on- and oflsite
facilities, which shall be submitted for review and approval to the appropriate
City or county department (identified below). The final geotechnical engineering
report shall address and make recommendations on the following:

> site preparation;

> soil bearing capacity;

> appropriate sources and fypes offill;
> potential need for soil amendments;

> road, pavement, and parking areas;

> structural foundations, including retaining-wall design;

> grading practices;

> soil corrosion ofconcrete and steel;

> erosion/winterization;

> seismic ground shaking;

> liquefaction; and

> expansive/unstablesoils.

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the
geotechnical investigation shall include subsurface testing ofsoil and
groundwater conditions, and shall determine appropriate foundation designs that
are consistent with the version of the CBC that is applicable at the time building
and grading permits are applied for. All recommendations contained in the final
geotechnical engineering report shall be implemented by the project applicant(s)

and Implement
andissuedareRecommendations.

SPrepare
Appropriate

ofeach recommendations contained in the

3A.7-1a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

Geology and Soils

r06-30

Resolution No. 10400
Page 97 of 155

Page 175

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before issuance of
building permits and
ground-disturbing
activities.

Before the start of
conshuction
activities.

engineering report shall be noted on the grading plans and implemented as

appropriate before construction begins. Design and construction ofall new project
development shall be in accordance with the CBC. The project applicant(s) shall
provide for engineering inspection and certification that earthwork has been
performed in conformity with recommendations contained in the geotechnical
report.

Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities. All earthwork shall be
monitored by a qualified geotechnical or soils engineer retained by the project
applicant(s) of each project phase. The geotechnical or soils engineer shall
provide oversight during all excavation, placement offill, and disposal of
materials removed from and deposited on both on- and off-site construction areas.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agendies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties, or Calnans).

Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan.
Before grading permits are issued, the project applican(s) ofeach project phase

that would be located within the City of Folsom shall retain a California
Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The
grading and erosion control plan shall be submitted to the City Public Works
Department before issuance of grading permits for allnew development. The plan
shall be consistent with the City's Grading Ordinance, the City's Hillside
Development Guidelines, and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the
site-specific grading associated with development for all project phases.

For the two off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills, the project applicant(s) of that
phase shall retain a Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and
erosion control plan. The grading and erosion control plan shall be submitted to
the El Dorado County Public Works Department and the El Dorado Hills
Communify Service District before issuance of grading permits for roadway
construction in El Dorado Hills. The plan shall be consistent with El Dorado
County's Grading Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance and the state's
NPDES permiq and shall include the site-specific grading associated with
roadway development.

For the off-site detention basin west of Prairie City Road, the project applicant(s)
of that phase shall retain a California Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a
grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion control plan shall be

submitted to the Sauamento Counry Public Works Deparfinent before issuance of

3A.7-lb
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.7-3
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106-31

105-32

Resolution No. 10400
Page 98 of 155

Page 176

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before and during
earthmoving
activities.

During earthmoving
activities in the Ione
and Mehrten
Formations.

a grading permit. The plan shall be consistent with Sacramento County's Grading,
Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance and the state's NPDES permig and
shall include the site-specific grading associated with construction of the
detention basin.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule,
and maintenance schedule of all erosion and sediment control measures, a
description ofmeasures designed to confiol dust and stabilize the construction-site
road and entrance, and a description ofthe location and methods ofstorage and
disposal of construction materials. Erosion and sediment contol measures could
include the use of detention basins, berms, swales, watles, and silt fencing, and
covering or watering of stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion. Stabilization on
steep slopes could include construction of retaining walls and reseeding with
vegetation after construction. Stabilization of construction entrances to minimize
trackout (control dust) is commonly achieved by installing filter fabric and
crushed rock to a depth ofapproximately I foot. The project applicant(s) shall
ensure that the construction contractor is responsible for securing a source of
transportation and deposition of excavated materials.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agendies) (i.e., EI Dorado and/or
Sauamento Counties).

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.9-l (discussed in Section 3A.9,
"Hydrology and Water Quality - Land") would also help reduce erosion-related
impacts.

Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations. The project
applicant(s) ofall project phases shall either install subdrains (which typically
consist ofperforated pipe and gravel, sunounded by nonwoven geotextile fabric),
or take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer
for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused by surface
infiltration, water seepage, and perched water during the winter months away
from bui ld ing foundations.

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if Paleontological
Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Prepare
and Implement a Recovery PIan as Required.

To minimize potential adverse impacts on previously unknown potentially unique,
scientifically important paleontological resources. the proiect applicant(s) of all

3A.7-5
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.7-10
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-33

106-34

Resolution No. 10400
Page 99 of 155

Page 177

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



of Folsom Community
Development DeparEnentsmall-lot final maps

and building permits
for all discretionary
development project,
including all on- and
off-site elements and
implementation
throughout project
construction-

BeforeImplement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated
Emissions.

To further reduce construction-generated GHG emissions, the project applieant(s)
any particular discretionary development application shall implement all feasible
measures for reducing GHG emissions associated with construction that are
recommended by SMAQMD at the time individual portions of the site undergo
construction. Such measures may reduce GHG exhaust emissions from the use of
on-site equipment, worker commute trips, and truck trips carrying materials and

equipment to and from the SPA, as wellas GHG emissions embodied in the
concrete).

each

Other
to

e'8''
Prior

conshuction
consfructionIN

for
used

selected
materials

materials to

> Before the start of any earthmoving activities for any project phase in the
lone or Mehrten Formations, the project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified
paleontologist or archaeologist to train all construction personnel involved
with earthmoving activities, including the site superintendent, regarding the
possibility ofencountering fossils, the appearance and types offossils likely
to be seen during construction, and proper notification procedures should
fossils be encountered.

> Ifpaleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the
construction crew shall immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find and

notiff the appropriate lead agency (identified below). The project applicant(s)
shall retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the resource and prepare a
recovery plan in accordance with Society of Vertebrate Paleontolory
guidelines (1996). The recovery plan may include, but is not limited to, a
field survey, construction monitoring, sampling and data recovery
procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen recovered, and a
report of findings. Recommendations in the recovery plan that are determined

by the lead agency to be necessary and feasible shall be implemented before
construction activities can resume at the site where the paleontological
resources were discovered.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

MehrtenandIonethelnoccurwould
lowing:fol

construction
thedo

where
shal

ect

3A.4-l
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change

106-3s

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 00 of I 55

Page 178

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



contractors
the project applicant(s) shall obtain the most curent list of reduction
measures that are recommended by SMAQMD and stipulate that these measures

be implemented in the respective request for bid as well as the subsequent

construction contract with the selected primary contactor. The project
applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application may submit
to the City and SMAQMD a report that substantiates why specific measures are

considered infeasible for construction ofthat particular development phase and/or
at that point in time. The report, including the substantiation for not implementing
particular GHG reduction measures, shall be approved by the City, in consultation
with SMAQMD prior to the release of a request for bid by the project applicant(s)
for seeking a primary contractor to manage the construction of each development
project. By requiring that the list of feasible measures be established prior to the

selection of a primary contactor, this measure requires that the ability of a
contractor to effectively implement the selected GHG reduction measures be

inherent to the selection process.

SMAQMD's recommended measures for reducing construction-related GHG
emissions at the time of writing this EIR/EIS are listed below and the project

applicant(s) shall, at a minimum, be required to implement the following:

> Improve fuel efficiency from construction equipment:

. reduce unnecessary idling (modify work practices, install auxiliary power

for driver comfort);

r perform equipment maintenance (inspections, detect failures early,

corrections);

r train equipment operators in proper use of equipment;

. use the proper size ofequipment forthejob; and

. use equipment with new technologies (repowered engineso electric drive
trains).

> Use alternative fuels for elechicity generators and welders at consftuction

sites such as propane or solar, or use elechical power.

> Use an ARB-approved low-carbon fuel, such as biodieselor renewable diesel

for construction equipment. (Emissions of oxides of nitrogen fNOx]
emissions from the use of low carbon fuel must be reviewed and increases

mitigated.) Additional information about low carbon fuels is available from
ARB's [,ow Carbon Fuel Standard Program (ARB 2009b).

Resolution No. 10400
Page l0l of 155

Page 179

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before approval of
finalmaps and/or
building permits for
all project phases

requiring
discretionary
approval, including
all on- and off-site
elements.

> Encourage and provide carpools, shuttle vans, transit passes and/or secure

bicycle parking for construction worker commutes.

> Reduce electricity use in the construction office by using compact fluorescent
bulbs, powering offcomputers every day, and replacing heating and cooling
units with more efficient ones.

> Recycle or salvage non-hazardous construction and demolition debris (goal

of at least 75%by weight).

> Use locally sourced or recycled materials for construction materials (goal of
at least 20% based on costs for building materials, and based on volume for
roadway, parking lot, sidewalk and curb materials).

> Minimize the amount of concrete used for paved surfaces or use a low carbon

concrete option.

> Produce concrete on-site if determined to be less emissive than transporting
ready mix.

> Use EPA-certified SmartWay trucks for deliveries and equipment transport.
Additional information about the SmartWay Transport Partnership Program

is available from ARB's Heavy-Duty Vehicle Greenhouse Gas Measure

(ARB 2009c) and EPA (EPA 2009).

> Develop a plan in consultation with SMAQMD to efficiently use water for
adequate dust control. This may consist of the use of nonpotable water from a
local source.

In addition to SMAQMD+ecommended measures, construction activity shall comply
with all applicable rules and regulations estrablished by SMAQMD and ARB.

Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program
and/or Off-Site Tree Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees. The trees on
the project site contain sequestered carbon and would continue to provide future
carbon sequestration during their growing life. For all harvestable tees that are

subject to removal, the project applican(s) for any particular discretionary
development application shall participate in and provide necessary funding for
urban and community forestry program (such as

the UrbanWood program managed by the Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute

[Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute 2009]) to ensure that wood with an equivalent
carbon sequestration value to that of all harvestable removed trees is harvested for
an end-use that would retain its carbon sequestration (e.g., furniture building,
cabinet makine). For all nonharvestable tees that are subiect to removal. the

3A.+2b
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

106-36

Resolution No. 10400
Page 102 of 155

Page 180

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before and during
earth moving
activities

Complete Investigations Related to the Extent to Which Soil and/or
Groundwater May Have Been Contaminated in Areas Not Covered by the
Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments and Implement Required
Measures. The project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application
shall conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (where an Phase I has not
been conducted), and if necessary, Phase II Environmental Site Assessments,
and/or other appropriate testing for all areas ofthe SPA and include, as necessary,
analysis of soil and/or groundwater samples for the potential contamination sites
that have not yet been covered by previous investigations (as shown in Exhibit
3A.8-l) before construction activities begin in those areas. Recommendations in
the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments to address any contamination
that is found shall be implemented before initiating ground-disturbing activities in
these areas.

The project applicant(s) shall implement the following measures before ground-
disturbing activities to reduce health hazards associated with potential exposure to
hazardous substances:

level of tree planting that at a minimum, increases carbon sequeshation by an
amount equivalent to what would have been sequestered by the blue oak
woodland during its lifetime. This program shall be funded by the project
applicant(s) of each development phase and reviewed for comment by an

independent Certified Arborist unaffrliated with the project applicant(s) and shall
be coordinated with the requirements of Mitigation Measure 3.3-5, as stated in
Section 3A.3, "Biological Resources - Land." Final approval of the program shall
be provided by the City. Components of the program may include, but not be
limited to, providing urban tree canopy in the Cify of Folsom, or reforestation in
suitable areas outside the City. Reforestation in natural habitat areas outside the
City of Folsom would simultaneously mitigate the loss of oak woodland habitat
while planting trees within the urban forest canopy would not. The California
Urban Forestry Greenhouse Gas Reporting Protocol shall be used to assess this
mitigation program (CCAR 2008). All unused vegetation and tree material shall
be mulched for use in landscaping on the project site, shipped to the nearest
composting facility, or shipped to a landfill that is equipped with a methane
collection system, or combusted in a biomass power plant. Tree and vegetative
material should not be bumed on- or off-site unless used as fuel in a biomass
power plant.

tree program that includes aanproject appl ican(s) shall

3A.8-2
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

106-37

Resolution No. 10400
Page 103 of 155

Page 181

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

At the submission of
tentative map
applications.

> Prepare a plan that identifies any necessary remediation activities appropriate
for proposed on- and off-site uses, including excavation and removal ofon-
site contaminated soils, redistribution of clean fill material in the SPA, and

closure of any abandoned mine shafts. The plan shall include measures that
ensure the safe transport, use, and disposal ofcontaminated soil and building
debris removed from the site. In the event that contaminated groundwater is

encountered during site excavation activities, the contractor shall report the

contamination to the appropriate regulatory agencies, dewater the excavated

area, and treat the contaminated goundwater to remove contaminants before
discharge into the sanitary sewer system. The project applicant(s) shall be

required to comply with the plan and applicable Federal, state, and local laws.

The plan shall outline measures for specific handling and reporting
prccedures for hazardous materials and disposal of hazardous materials

removed from the site at an appropriate off-site disposal facility.

> Notif the appropriate Federal, state, and local agencies ifevidence of
previously undiscovered soil or groundwater contamination (e.g., stained soil,
odorous groundwater) is encountered during conshuction activities. Any
contaminated areas shall be remediated in accordance with recommendations

made by the Sacramento County Environmental Management Department,
Central Valley RWQCB, DTSC, and/or other appropriate Federal, state, or
local regulatory agencies.

> Obtain an assessment conducted by PG&E and SMUD pertaining to the
contents of any existing pole-mounted hansformers located in the SPA. The
assessment shall determine whether existing on-site elechical transformers
contain PCBs and whether there are any records ofspills from such

equipment. If equipment containing PCB is identified, the maintenance

and/or disposal ofthe transformer shall be subject to ttre regulations ofthe
Toxic Substances Control Act under the authority of the Sacramento County

Env ironmental Health Department.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applican(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure. Potential purchasers of
residential properties near the transmission lines shall be made aware of the
controversy sunounding EMF exposure. The California Departnent of Real

Estate shall be requested to insert an appropriate notification into the aDplicant's

3A.8-6
(FPASP
EIR/XIS)

106-38

Resolution No. I0400
Page 104 of 155

Page 182

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Before issuance of
grading permits for
the project water
features.

final Subdivision Public Report application, which shallbe provided to purchasers
of properties within 100 feet from the 100-l l5kV power line, or within 150 feet
from the 220-230 kV power line . The notification would include a discussion of
the scientific studies and conclusions reached to date, acknowledge that the
notification distance is not based on specific biological evidence, but rather, the
distance where background levels may increase, and provide that, given some
uncertainty in the data this notification is merely provided to allow purchasers to
make an informed decision.

Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Conhol District To ensure that
operation and design of the stormwafer system, including multiple planned

detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations of the Sacramento-Yolo
Mosquito and Vector Confiol District regarding mosquito control, the project
applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and implement a Vector Control Plan.
This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and

Vector Control District and shall be submitted to the City for approval before

issuance of the grading permit for the detention basins under the City's jurisdiction.

For the oflsite detention basin, the plan shall be submitted to Sacramento County
for approval before issuance ofthe grading permit for the off-site detention basin.

The plan shall incorporate specific measures deemed sufficient by the City to
minimize public health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Conhol Dishict BMP Manual (Samamento-

Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008). The plan shall include, but is not

limited to, the following components:

> Description ofthe project.

> Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that would
control on-site water levels.

> Goals of the plan.

> Description of the water management elements and features that would be

implemented, including:

. BMPs that would implemented on-site;

r public education and awareness;

. sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal of garbage);

. mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating water levels, biological
agents, pesticides, Iarvacides, circulating water); and

3A.8-7
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

10G39

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 05 of I 55

Page 183

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Hydrology and Water Qualify

r stormwater management (consistent with Stormwater Management Plan).

> Long-term maintenance ofthe detention basins and all related facilities (e.g.,

specific ongoing enforceable conditions or maintenance by a homeowner's
association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the
project applicant(s) shall coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Control District to identify and implement BMPs based on their potential
effectiveness for SPA conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are not
lirnited to, the following:

> build shoreline perimeters as ste€p and uniform as practicable to discourage

dense plant growth;

> perform routine maintenance !o reduce emergent plant densities to facilitate
the ability of mosquito predators (i.e., fish) to move throughout vegetated

area;

> design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to
drain fully and prevent standing water. The design slope should take into

consideration buildup of sediment between maintenance periods. Compaction
during grading may also be needed to avoid slumping and sefiling;

> coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with
mosquito treatment operations;

> enforce the prompt removal of silt screens installed during construction when
no longer needed to protect water quality;

> if the sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception
of the inlet and outlet, submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the

available surface area of water for mosquito egglaying (female mosquitoes

can fly through pipes); and

> design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other
necessary equipment to allow for easy dewatering of the unit if necessary
(Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Conhol District 2008).

The project applicant(s) ofthe project phase containing the off-site detention
basin shall coordinate mitigation for the off-site with the affected oversight
agency (i.e., Sacramento County).

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 06 of 1 55

Page 184

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Submittal of the
State Construction
General Permit NOI
and SWPPP (where
applicable) and

development and
submittal of any
other locally
required plans and

specifications before
the issuance of
grading permits for
all on-site project
phases and off-site
elements and
implementation
throughout project
construction.

Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepnre and Implement
SWPPP and BMPs. Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the project
applicant(s) of all projects disturbing one or more acres (including phased

construction of smaller areas which are part of a larger project) shall obtain
coverage under the SWRCB's NPDES stormwater permit for general construction
activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including preparation and submittal of a
project-specific SWPPP at the time the NOI is filed. The project applicant(s) shall
also prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment conhol and
engineering plans and specifications for pollution prevention and control to
Sacramento County, City of Folsom, El Dorado County (for the oflsite roadways
into El Dorado Hills under the Proposed Project Alternative). The SWPPP and
other appropriate plans shall identi! and speci!:
> the use of an effective combination of robust erosion and sediment control

BMPs and construction techniques accepted by the local jurisdictions for use

in the project area at the time ofconsfuction, that shall reduce the potential
for runoffand the release, mobilization, and exposure of pollutants, including
legacy sources ofmercury from project-related construction sites. These may
include but would not be limited to temporary erosion conhol and soil
stabilization measures, sedimentation ponds, inletprotection, perforated riser
pipes, check dams, and silt fences

> the implementation of approved local plans, non-stormwater management

controls, permanent post-construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance

responsibil ities;

> the pollutants that are likely to be used during consftuction that could be

present in stormwater drainage and nonstormwater discharges, including
fuels, lubricants, and other types of materials used for equipment operation;

> spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to prevent or
clean up spills of hazardous waste and of hazardous materials used for
equipment operation, and emergency procedures for responding to spills;

> personnel training requirements and procedures that shall be used to ensure

that workers are aware of permit requirements and proper installation
methods for BMPs specified in the SWPPP; and

> the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to
implementation of the SWPPP.

3A.9-1
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

t06-40

Resolution No. 10400
Page 107 of 155

Page 185

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

Before approval of
grading plans and
building permits of
all project phases.

> Where applicablq BMPs identified in the SWPPP shall be in place

throughout all site work and constructiorVdemolition activities and shall be

used in all subsequent site development activities. BMPs may include, but are

not limited to, such measures as those listed below.

> Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in disturbed
areas to minimize discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances,

in compliance with state and local standards in eflect at the time of
construction. These measures may include silt fences, staked straw bales or
wattles, sedimenVsilt basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and

temporary vegetation.

> Esbblishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas disturbed

by construction by slowing runoffvelocities, trapping sediment, and

enhancing fi ltration and transpiration.

> Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to conFol erosion and runoff
by conveying surface runoff down sloping land, intercepting and diverting
runoffto a watercourse or channel, preventing sheet flow over sloped

surfaces, preventing runoffaccumulation at the base ofa grade, and avoiding

flood damage along roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved SWPPP shall be maintained and available at alltimes on
the construction site.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange

improvements, Caltrans shall coordinate with the development and
implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its own
SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water quality
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the ma,rimum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the oFsite elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties, or Calhans).

Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements
Contained in Those Plans.

Before the approval of grading plans and building permits, the project applicant(s)
of all project phases shall submit final drainage plans to the City, and to El
Dorado County for the off-site roadway connections into El Dorado Hills,
demonstrating that off-site upstream runoffwould be appropriately conveyed

3L.9-2
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-4r

Resolution No. 10400
Page 1 08 of I 55

Page 186

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



through the SPA, and that project-related on-site runoffwould be appropriately
contained in detention basins or managed with through other improvements (e.g.,
source controls, biotechnical sheam stabilization) to reduce flooding and
hydromodfi cation impacts.

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

> an accurate calculation ofpre-project and post-project runoffscenarios,
obtained using appropriate engineering methods, that accurately evaluates
potential changes to runoff, including increased surface runoff;

> runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 10O-year (0.01 AEP) storm events
(and other, smaller storm events as required) shall be performed and the hunk
drainage pipeline sizes confinned based on alignments and detention facility
locations finalized in the design phase;

> a description ofthe proposed maintenance program for the on-site drainage

system;

> project-specific standards for installing drainage systems;

r City and El Dorado County flood conhol design requirements and measures

designed to comply with them;

Implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in the
erosive force of flows beyond a specific range of conditions needed to limit
hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorphology. These BMPs will
be designed and consfructed in accordance with the forthcoming SSQP
Hydromodification Management Plan (to be adopted by the RWQCB) and may

include, but are not limited to, the following:

> use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in
stormwater runoffat the point of origination (these may include, but are not
limited to: surface swales; replacement of conventional impervious surfaces
with pervious surfaces [e.9., porous pavement]; impervious surfaces

disconnection; and trees planted to intercept stormwated;

> enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow
duration characteristics;

> bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing
vegetative and rock stabilization, and inset floodplain restoration features that
provide for enhancement of riparian habitat and maintenance of natural
hydrologic and channel to floodplain interactions;

Resolution No. 10400
Page 109 of 155

Page 187

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department and Public
Worla Department

Prepare plans before
the issuance of
grading permits for
all project phases

and o$site elements
and implementation
throughout project
conshuction.

> minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility
outfall channel with the existing receiving channel gradient to reduce flow
velocity; and

> minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankmen! and
other encroachments into the channel and floodplain corridor, and utilize
open bottom box culverts to allow sediment passage on smaller drainage
courses.

The final drainage plan shall demonshate to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom
Community Development and Public Works Departments and El Dorado County
Department of Transportation that 100-year (0.01 AEP) flood flows would be
appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to poople or damage to
structures within or down gradient of the SPA would not occur, and that
hydromodification would not be increased from pre-development levels such that
existing sheam geomorphology would be changed (the range of conditions should
be calculated for each receiving water if feasible, or a conservative estimate
should be used, e.g., an Ep of I +10% or other as approved by ttre Sacramento
Stormwater Quality Partnership and/or City of Folsom Public Works
Department).

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with El Dorado County.

Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan. Before
approval of the grading permis for any development project requiring a

subdivision map, a detailed BMP and water quality maintenance plan shall be
prepared by a qualified engineer retained by the project applicant(s) the
development project. Drafu ofthe plan shall be submiued to the City of Folsom
and El Dorado County for tlre off-site roadway connections into El Dorado Hills,
for review and approval concurently with development of tentative subdivision
maps for all project phases. The plan shall finalize the water quality
improvements and further detail the structural and nonstructuralBMPs proposed
for the project. The plan shall include the elements desuibed below.

> A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis of proposed conditions
incorporating the proposed drainage design features.

> Predevelopment and post development calculations demonstrating that the
proposed water quality BMPs meet or exceed requirements established by the
City of Folsom and includine details reeardins the size. seometrv. and

3A.9-3
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

n6-42

Resolution No. 10400
Page I l0 of 155

Page 188

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



functionaltiming of storage and release pursuant to the "'Stormwater Quaiity
Design Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions" ([SSQP 2007b]
per NPDES Permit No. CAS082597 WDR Order No. R5-2008-0l42,page
46) and El Dorado County's NPDES SWMP (County of El Dorado 2004).

> Source control programs to control water quality pollutants on the SPA,
which may include but are limited to recycling, street sweeping, storm drain
cleaning, household hazardous waste collection, waste minimization,
prevention of spills and illegal dumping, and effective management of public
hash collection areas.

> A pond managementcomponentfortheproposed basinsthatshall include
management and maintenance requirements for the design features and

BMPs, and responsible parties for maintenance and funding.

> LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality
maintenance plan. These may include, but are not limited to:

. surface swales;

. replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces
(e.g., porous pavement);

. impervious surfaces disconnection; and

r trees planted to intercept stormwater.

New stormwater facilities shall be placed along tlre natural drainage courses
within the SPA to the extent practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage
patterns. The reduction in runoffas a result of the LID configurations shall be

quantified based on the runoffreduction credit system methodology described in
"Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer
Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detention
basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to handle these runoff
volumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange
improvements, it is anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the
development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and

implernent its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure
that water quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum
extent practicable.

Resolution No. 10400
Pagelllofl55

Page 189

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

Noise and Vibration

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Prior to submittal to
the City of tentative
maps or
improvement plans.

Before and during
construction
activities on the SPA
and wittrin El
Dorado Hills.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional

boundaries must be coordinated by the project applican($ ofeach applicable
project phase with El Dorado County and Calhans.

Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site
and Make Improvements if Necessary. Prior to submittal to the City of tentative
maps or improvement plans the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall
perform conduct studies to determine the extent ofinundation in the case ofdam
failure. Ifthe studies determine potential exposure of people or structures to a
significant risk of flooding as a result of the failure of a dam, the applicants(s)
shall implement of any feasible recommendations provided in that study,
potentially through drainage improvements, subject to the approval of the City of
Folsom Public Works Department.

Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement
a Noise Control Plan, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise near
Sensitive Receptors. To reduce impacts associated with noise generated during
project related construction activities, the project applican(s) and their primary
contractors for engineering design and construction of all project phases shall
ensure that the following requirements are implemented at each work site in any
year of project construction to avoid and minimize construction noise effects on

sensitive receptors. The project applicant(s) and primary construction
contracto(s) shall employ noise-reducing construction practioes. Measures that
shall be used to limit noise shall include the measures listed below:

> Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours

between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m, Monday through Friday, and between 8 a-m. and 6

p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.

> Alt construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located as

far as possible from nearby noise-sensitive land uses.

> AII construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with
noise-reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in
accord ance w ith manufacturers' recommendations. Equipment engine

shrouds shall be closed during equipment operation.

> All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to
prevent idling.

3A.9-4
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

3A.11-1
(FPASP
ErRlErs)

106-43

106-44

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 12 of 155

Page 190

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter

procedures (e.g,, using welding instead of riveting, mixing concrete offsite
instead ofon-site).

> Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating

equipment (e.9., compressors and generators) as planned phases are built out
and future noise sensitive receptors are located within close proximity to
future construction activities.

> Written notification of construction activities shall be provided to all noise-

sensitive receptors located wittrin 850 feet of conshuction activities.
Notification shall include anticipated dates and hours during which
construction activities are anticipated to occur and contact information,
including a daytime telephone number, for the project representative to be

contacted in tire event that noise levels are deemed excessive.

Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior
noise levels (e.g., closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the

notification.

> To the extent feasible, acoustic baniers (e.g., lead curtains, sound bariers)
shall be constructed to reduce construction-generated noise levels al affected
noise-sensitive land uses. The baniers shall be designed to obstuct the line of
sight between the noise-sensitive land use and on-site constuction
equipment. When inslalled properly, acoustic baniers can reduce

construction noise levels by approximately 8-10 dB (EPA 1971).

> When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged

construction noise, noise-atenuating buffers such as strucfures, truck trailers,
or soil piles shall be located between noise sources and future residences to
shield sensitive receptors from construction noise.

> The primary conhactor shall prepare and implement a construction noise

management plan. This plan shall identi$ specific measures to ensure

compliance with the noise control measures specified above. The noise

control plan shall be submitted to the City of Folsom before any noise-
generating construction activity begins. Construction shall not commence

until the construction noise management plan is approved by the City of
Folsom. Mitigation for the two off-site roadway conneotions into El Dorado
Coun8 must be coordinated by the proiect applicant(s) of the applicable

Resolution No. 10400
Page I l3 of 155

Page 191

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

City of Folsom Community
Deve lopment Department

Before and during
bulldozing and

blasting activities on
the SPA and wittrin
El Dorado Hills and

the County of
Sacramento

Before submittalof
improvement plans

for each project
phase, and during
project operations
for testing of
emergency
generators.

project phase with El Dorado County, since the roadway extensions are

outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries.

Implement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Groundborne Noise or Vibrstion from Project Generated Construction
Activities.

> To the extent feasible, blasting activities shall not be conducted within 275

feet of existing or future sensitive receptors.

> To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted within 50

feet ofexisting or future sensitive receptors.

> All blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blasting personnel

licensed to operate in the State of Califomia.

> A blasting plan, including estimates of vibration levels at the residence

closest to the blast, shall be submitted to the enforcement agency for review

and approval prior to the commencement of the first blast.

> Each blastshall be monitored and documented for groundbourne noise and

vibration levels at the nearest sensitive land use and associated recorded

submitted to the enforcement agency.

Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary
Sources.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project shall
implement the following measures to reduce the effect of noise levels generated

by on-site stationary noise sources that would be located within 600 feet of any
noise-sensitive receptor:

> Routine testing and preventive maintenance of emergency elecfrical
generators shall be conducted during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e.,

7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All elecfiicalgenerators shall be equipped with noise

control (e.g., muffler) devices in accordance with manufacturers'

specifications.

> External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate

features designed to reduce noise emissions below the stationary noise source

criteria- These features may include, but are not limited to, locating
generators within equipment rooms or enclosures that incorporate noise-

reduction features, such as acoustical louvers, and exhaust and intake

silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be oriented so that maior openings (i.e.,

3A,11-3
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.11-5
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106-45

106-46

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 14 of 155

Page 192

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Prior to building
occupancy

intake louvers, exhaust) arc directed away
receptors.

nearby noise-sensitive

> Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not
exceed the stationary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50

dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7 a.m. to l0 p.m.] and

less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [0 p.m. to
7 a.m.l). Reduction of parking lot noise can be achieved by locating parking

lots as far away as feasible from noise sensitive land uses, or using buildings
and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for noise-sensitive
land uses.

> Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not

exceed the stationary noise source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50

dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7 a,m. to 10 p.m.] and

less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to

7 a.m.l). Reduction of loading dock noise can be achieved by locating
loading docks as far away as possible from noise sensitive land uses,

constructing noise baniers between loading docks and noise-sensitive land

uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic

shielding for noise-sensitive land uses.

Exterior Traflic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall design and construct noise
barriers, as dekiled below, to reduce traffic noise levels below the City of Folsom
exterior criteria of 60 dB Ldn.

> 6-foot tall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be

constructed along all property boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street
Mangini Parkway, and Oak Avenue Parkway.

> For the proposed Traditional Subdivisions portion ofthe project, a 7-foot tall
solid noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along
all property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

> For the proposed Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase I and Phase 2 portions of
the project, an 8-foot tall solid noise barier, relative to backyard elevations,

shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent to White Rock
Road.

Suitable materials for the traffic noise baniers include masonry and precast

concrete panels. The overall banier height may be achieved by utilizing a barrier

4.13-1
(Addendum)

t06-47

Resolution No. 10400
Page I l5 of 155

Page 193

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Public Services

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

Prior to building
occupancy

Before the approval
ofall relevant plans

and/or permits and
during construction
ofall project phases.

and earthen berm combination. Other maierials may be acceptable but shall be

reviewed by an acoustical consultant prior to use.

Barrier height requirements are based on a property boundary setback of I 17-122

feet from the ultimate alignment of White Rock Road under the approved Capital
Southeast Connector project. If 90 days prior to pulling building permits for the

Toll Brothers site, it is determined that there is no evidence that the White Rock
Road improvements are funded and moving forward, as described under the
approved Capital Southeast Connector project, the project applicant shall obtain
the services of a noise consultant to reconduct a site-specific acoustical analysis

based on the actual property boundary setback to determine ttre appropriate noise

reduction measures to reduce traffic noise levels in accordance with adopted City
of Folsom noise standards.

Interior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following
construction design features have been implemented.

> For the first-row of homes located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-,

and east-facing upper-floor building facades shall maintain minimum
window assembly STC ratings of 34.

> Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences

in this development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as

desired to achieve compliance with the applicable interior noise levelcriteria.

Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffrc Control Plan. The project
applicant(s) ofall project phases shall prepare and implementtraffic control plans
for construction activities that may affect road rights-of-way. The traffic contol
plans must follow any applicable standards ofthe agency responsible for the
affected roadway and must be approved and signed by a professional engineer.
Measures typically used in traffic control plans include advertising of planned
lane closures, warning signage, a flag person to direct taffic flows when needed,
and methods to ensure continued access by emergency vehicles. During project
construction, access to existing land uses shall be maintained at all times, with
detours used as necessary during road closures. Traflic control plans shall be

submitted to the appropriate City or County department or the California
Deoaftment of Transoortation (Calhans) for review and aooroval before the

4,13-2
(Addendum)

3A.l+l
(FPASP
ErRlErs)

106-48

106-49

Resolution No. 10400
Page 1 l6 of 155

Page 194

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Fire Department, City
of Folsom Community Development
Department

Before issuance of
building permis and
issuance of
occupancy permits
or final inspections
for all project
phases.

approval ofall project plans or permits, for all project phases where
implementation may cause impacts on traffic.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdiotional
boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable
project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or
Sacramento Counties and Calbans).

Incorporate California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requirementsl
and EDHFD Requirements, if Necessary, into Project Design and Submit
Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire Department for Review and
Approval. To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, the
project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall do the following, as described
below.

L Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the California
Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter

8.36), and other applicable requirements based on the City of Folsom Fire
Department fi re prevention standards.

Improvement plans showing the incorporation automatic sprinkler systems, the
availability of adequate fire flow, and the locations of hydrants shall be submitted
to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and approval. In addition,
approved plans showing access desigr shall be provided to the City of Folsom
Fire Department as described by Zoning Code Section 17.57.080 ("Vehicular
Access Requirements"). These plans shall describe access-road length,
dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting equipment. The installation of
security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall be approved by the City of
Folsom Fire Department. The design and operation ofgates and barricades shall
be in accordance with the Sacramento County Emergenry Access Gates and
Baniers Standard, as required by the City of Folsom Fire Code.

2. Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations Document
Submittal List to the City of Folsom Community Development Deparhnent
Building Division for review and approval before the issuance of building
permits.

In addition to the above measures, the project applican{s) ofall project phases

shall incorporate the provisions described below for the portion of ttre SPA within
the EDHFD service are4 if it is determined through City/El Dorado County
negotiations that EDHFD would serve the l7E-acre portion of the SPA.

3. Incorporate into project designs applicable requirements based on the EDIIFD
fire standards. For commercial

3tt-l+Z
(FPASP
EIRUEIS)

106-50

Resolution No. 10400
Page I I7 of 155

Page 195

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Fire Department, City
of Folsom Community Development
Department

Traffic and Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

Before issuance of
building permits and

issuance of
occupancy permits
or final inspections
for all project
phases.

A phasing analysis
shall be performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented and
when fair share

showing roadways, land splits, buildings, fire sprinkler systems, fire alarm
systems, and other commercial building improvements shall be submitted to the
EDHFD for review and approval. For residential development improvement
plans showing propefty lines and adjacent streets or roads; total acreage or square
footage of the parcel; the footprint of all stuctures; driveway plan views
describing width, length, furnouts, turnarounds, radiuses, and surfaces; and
driveway profile views showing the percent grade from the access road to the
structure and vertical clearance shall be submitted to the EDI{FD for review and
approval.

4. Submit a Fire Prevention Plan Checklist to the EDIIFD for review and approval
before the issuance of building permits. In addition, residential development
requiring automation fire sprinklers shall submit sprinkler design sheet(s) and
hydraulic calculations from a California State Licensed C-I6 Contractor.

The City shall not authorize the occupancy ofany structures until the project
applicant(s) have obtained a Certificate of Occupancy from the Cify of Folsom
Community Development Department verifying that all fire prevention items
have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction ofthe City ofFolsom Fire
Department and/or the EDHFD for the 178-acre area of the SPA within the
EDHFD service area.

Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs. The project
applicant(s) ofall project phases shall incorporate into their project designs fire
flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code, and/or
EDHFD for those areas of the SPA within the EDHFD service area and shall
verifu to City of Folsom Fire Department that adequate water flow is

available, prior to approval of improvement plans and issuance of occupancy
permits or final inspections for all project phases.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection
(Intersection l). To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one right-turn
lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements,
as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Folsom
Bou levard/B lue Ravine Road intersection (Intersection I ).

34.14-3
(FPASP

EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-51

106-52

Resolution No. 10400
Pagell8ofl55

Page 196

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

funding should be
paid.

A phasing analysis
shall be performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented and
when fair share

funding should be

paid,

A phasing analysis
shall be performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented.

A phasing analysis
shallbe performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented.

A phasing analysis
shall be performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Frir Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements at the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection
(Intersection 2). To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to
consist of two left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road
i ntersection (lntersection 2).

The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct knprovements to the Scott Road
(West)/White Rock Road Intersection (Intersection 2t). To ensure that the
Scott Road (West)AMhite Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS,
a traffic signal must be installed.

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley
Parkway Intersection

(Intersection 41). To ensure that the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be
reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left turn lane and two through lanes, and
the westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftruo through lanes and
one dedicated right-turn lane. The applicant shall firnd and constructthese
improvements.

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/lVliddle
Road Intersection

(Intersection 44). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Ir4iddle Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, control all movements with a stop
sign. The applicant shall fund and construct these improvements.

3A.15-lb

(FPASP
ETRiEIS)

3.d15-1c

FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-1e

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.r5-rf
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

106-53

106-s4

106-s5

106-56

Resolution No. 10400
Page ll9ofl55

Page 197

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Public Works
Department and Caltrans

Sacramento County Public Works
Department

Sacramento County Public Works
Deparhnent

A phasing analysis
shall be performed
prior to approval of
the first subdivision
map to determine
when the
improvement should
be implemented.

Before project build
out. Design of the
White Rock Road

widening to four
lanes, from Grant
Line Road to Prairie
City Road, with
Intersection
improvements has

begun, and because

this widening project
is environmentally
cleared and fully
funded, it's
construction is

expected to be

complete before the
first phase ofthe
Proposed Project or
altemative is built.

Before project build
out. Construction of
phase two of the
Hazel Avenue
widening, from
Madison Avenue to

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the
Ilazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County
Intersection 2). To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS, this intersection must be grade separated including
'Jug handle" ramps. No at grade improvement is feasible. Grade separating and
extended (south) Hazel Avenue with improvements to the U.S. SO/Hazel Avenue
interchange is a mitigation measure for the approved Easton-Glenbrough Specific
Plan development project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel
Avenue/Fo lsom Bou levard i ntersection (Sacamento County Intersection 2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection and to White Rock Road
widening between the Rancho Cordova City linit to Prairie City Road
(Sacramento County Intersection 3). Improvements must be made to ensure
that the Grant Line RoadlWhite Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable

LOS. The cunently County proposed White Rock Road widening project will
widen and realign White Rock Road from the Rancho Cordova City limit to the El
Dorado County line (this analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and build
alternatives will widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City road to
the El Dorado County Line). This widening includes improvements to the Grant
Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road to be the through
movement. The improvements include two eastbound through lanes, one
eastbound right turn lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound right
turn lanes, two westbound left turn lanes and two westbound through lanes. This
improvement also includes the signalization of the White Rock Road and Grant
Line Road intersection. With implementation of this improvement, the
intersection would operate at an acceptable LOS A. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the Grant Line RoadAilhite Rock Road intersection (Sacramento

County Intersection 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eazel Avenue between Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive
(Roadway Segment 10). To ensure that Hazel Avenue operates at an acceptable
LOS between Curragh Downs Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue
must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part of the County adopted
Hazel Avenue widening project.

3A.15-lh

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-1i
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.l$rj
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

r06-57

r06-58

106-59

Resolution No. 10400
Page 120 of 155

Page 198

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



tEl Dorado County Department of
:Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

Curragh Downs
Drive, is expected to
be completed by year
2013, before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed Project or
alternative is
complete. The
applicant shall pay
its proportionate
share of funding of
improvements to the
agency responsible
for improvements,
based on a program
established by that
agency to reduce the
impacts to Hazel
Avenue between
Madison Avenue and
Curragh Downs
Drive (Sacramento

County Roadway
Segment l0).

Before project build
out. A phasing

ana$sis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed orior to

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Inprovements to Reduee Impacts on
the White Rock Road/Windfield Way Intersection @l Dorado County
Intersection 3). To ensure that the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS, the inGrsection must be signalized and separate

northbound left and right turn lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by ttrat agency to reduce the
impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection (El Dorado County
Intersection 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound U.S. 50 as an alternative to improvements at the Folsom
Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4).
Consestion on eastbound U.S. 50 is causins vehicles to use Folsom Boulevard as

3A.15-ll
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-lo
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

106-60

106-61

Resolution No. 10400
Page l2l of 155

Page 199

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation and the City of Rancho
Cordova Department of Public Works

Caltrans

approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. Construction of
the Sacramento 50

Bus-Carpool Lane
and Community
Enhancements
Project is expected to
be completed by year
20 13, before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed Proiect or

an alternate parallel route until they reach U.S. 50, where they must get back on
the freeway due to the lack of a parallel route. It is prefened to alleviate the
congestion on U.S. 50 than to upgrade the intersection at the end ofthis reliever
route. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of firnding of improvements
to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound
Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the Folsom

Boulevard/U.S. 50 eastbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS,
auxiliary lanes should be added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east

of Folsom Boulevard. This was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
the Grant Line Road/ State Route 16Intersection (Caltrans Intersection l2).
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches must be

reconfigured to consist of one left-turn lane and one shared through/right-turn
lane. Protected left-turn signal phasing must be provided on the northbound and

southbound approaches. Improvements to the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection are contained within the County Development Fee Program, and are

scheduled for Measure A funding.

Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans, Sacramento

County, and the City of Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection
(Caltrans Intersection l2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway
Segment 1). To ensure ttrat Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS
between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus-carpool (HOV) Iane must
be conshucted. This improvement is cunently planned as part of the Sacramento

50 Bus-Carpool Lane and Community Enhancements Project. The applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible

for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard
(Freeway Segment l).

3.4,.15-lp
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.15-1q
(FPASP
ErR/XrS)

106-62

106-63

Resolution No. 10400
Page 122 of 155

Page 200

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

altemative is

complete.

Construction of the
Sacramento 50 Bus-
Carpool Lane and

Community
Enhancements
Project has started
since the

writing of tlre Draft
EISIEIR.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase
the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed nrior to

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on

Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway
Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations

Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Projecl This improvement is

included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that

agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and

Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of lnprovements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road
(Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbound U.S, 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, an auxiliary
lane must be conshucted. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom
Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Westbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard
(Freeway Segment 16). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS beween Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary

3A.15-1r
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-1s
(rPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.15-1u
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06-64

106-65

106-66

Resolution No. 10400
Page 123 of 155

Page 201

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Rancho Cordova Department
of Public Works and Sacramento
County Department of Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Departnent and Sacramento County
Departrnent of Transportat ion

approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during

lane must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Trafiic
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City
Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment l6).
Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Inprcts on
Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway
Segment I8). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS
between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffrc Operations
Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Projecg and included in the
proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and

Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment l8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4). To
ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom

Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to the
Prairie City Road diverge must be conshucted. This improvement was
recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility
Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom

Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge 5). To ensure
that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road

off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations
Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane
improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobilitv Fee Prosram. The

3A.15-1v
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.1llw
(FPASP
EIR/DrS)

3A.15-1x
(rPASP
ErR/EIS)

fi6-67

106-68

r06-69

Resolution No. 10400
Page 124 of 155

Page 202

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Work
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 EastboundlPrairie City Road

diverge (Freeway Diverge 5).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Eastbound/?rairie City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6). To
ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City
Road onramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott
Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in
the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay is
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a
nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road direct merge
(Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of bnprovements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 EastboundlPrairie City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue
Parlrway Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8). To ensure that Eastbound U.S.
50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak
Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptrable to CalFans should

be implemented to eliminate the unacceptable weaving conditions. Such an

improvement may involve a "braided ramp".

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism
paid for by applicanl to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City
Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave (Freeway Weave

8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 EastboundlOak Avenue Parlcway Loop Merge (Freeway Merge 9).

To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Oak
Avenue Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street- Scott
Road diverge must be conshucted. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in
the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a
nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge
(Freeway Merge 9).

3A.15-ly
(FPASP
ErRlErs)

3A.15-lz
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3.d15-laa
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-70

106-71

106-12

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 25 of I 55

Page 203

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

ana$sis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed Drior to

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.
50

Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23). To
ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound
Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should starl the westbound auxiliary lane that
ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 WestboundiEmpire Ranch Road

loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 23).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway
Merge 29). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the

northbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbound
auxiliary lane that ends at the Prairie City Road offramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Oak Avenue Parkway would merge into ttris extended auxiliary lane.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue
Parkway loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 29).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 WestboundlPrairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge
32). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the
Prairie City Road loop ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off
ramp diverge must be conshucted. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in
the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a
nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie Ciry Road Loop Ramp

Merge (Freeway Merge 32).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.
50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 33).
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie
Citv Road direct ramp merse, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard offramp

3A.15-1dd
(FPASP
ErR/XrS)

3A.15-1ee
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.lSrff
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-lgg
(FPASP
EIRIETS)

106-73

rc6-74

10G75

106-76

Resolution No. 10400
Page 126 of 155

Page 204

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department and Sacramento County
Department of Transportation

Sacrarnento County Department of
Transportation and City of Rancho
Cordova Department of Public Works

City of Folsom Public Works
Deparhnent

approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before approval of
improvement plans

for all project phases

any particular
discretionary
development
application that
includes residential
and commercial or
mixed-use
develooment. As a

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in tlre
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a
nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road direct ramp merge
(Freeway Merge 33).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.
50 EastboundlFolsom Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34). To ensure that
Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom Boulevard
Divergq an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge must be

conshucted. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by
Caltrans. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in tlre proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or ottrer appropriate and

reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge (Freeway Diverge 34).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 38).

To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Hazel
Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard offramp
diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge (Freeway
Merge 38).

Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development Concurrent
with Housing Development, and Develop and Provide Options for Alternative
Transportation Modes. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary
development application including commercial or mixed-use development along
with residential uses shall develop commercial and mixed-use development
concurrent with housing development, to the extent feasible in light of market
realities and other considerations, to internalize vehicle trips. Pedestrian and

bicycle facilities shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the City Public Works
Department. To further minimize impacts from the increased demand on area

roadways and intersections, the project applicant(s) for any particular
discretionary development application involvinA schools or commercial centers

3A.15-lhh
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.1s-1ii
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-2a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-77

106-7E

106-79

Resolution No. I0400
Page 127 of 155

Page 205

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Departrnent

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Work
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

condition ofproject
approval and/or as a

condition of the

development
agreement for all
project phases.

Concurrent with
construction for all
project phases.

Concurrent with
construction for all
project phases.

As a condition of
project approval
and/or as a condition
of the development
agreement for all
project phases.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

shall develop and implement safe and secure bicycle parking to promote
alternative transportation uses and reduce the volume of single-occupancy
vehicles using area roadways and intersections. The project applicant(s) for any
particular discretionary development application shall participate in capital
improvements and operating funds for transit service to increase the percent of
travel by transit. The project's fair-share participation and the associated timing of
the improvements and service shall be identified in the project conditions of
approval and/or the project's development agreement. Improvements and service
shall be coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT.

Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program.
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
shall pay an appropriate amount into the City's existing Transportation System
Management Fee Program to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile
travel on area roadways and intersections.

Participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation Management Association.
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
shalljoin and participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation Management
Association to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travel on area

roadways and intersections.

Pay Full Cost of Identilied Improvements thst Are Not Funded by the City's
Fee Program. In accordance with Measure W, the project applicant(s) for any
particular discretionary development application shall provide fair-share
contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program to fully fund
improvements only required because ofthe Specific Plan.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom
Intersection 2). To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection

operates at a LOS D with less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound
approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-tum lane, two through lanes,

and one dedicated right-tum lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropliate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to
the Sibley Sheet/Blue Ravine Road intenection (Folsom Intersection 2).

3A.15-2b
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

3.d15-2c
(FPASP
ETRIEIS)

3A.15-3
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-4a
(TPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-80

106-81

106-82

106-83

Resolution No. 10400
Page 128 of 155

Page 206

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Departrnent

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Deparfnent

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe fint
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine durine

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/East Bidwell Street Intersection
(Folsom Intersection 6), To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/East Bidwell
Street intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound (East Bidwell
Street) approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, four
through lanes and a right-turn lane, and the westbound (East Bidwell Street)

approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left tum lanes, four through
lanes, and a right-turn lane. It is against the Cify of Folsom policy to have eight
lane roads because of the impacts to non motorized traffic and adjacent

development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the East Bidwell StreeVCollege Street Intersection (Folsom
Intersection 7). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street/College Street intersection
operates at acceptable LOS C or better, the westbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist ofone left-turn lanq one left-through lane, and two
dedicated righrturn lanes. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to
the East Bidwell Street/Nesmith Court intersection (Folsom Intersection 7).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the East Bidwell Street/Iron Point Road Intersection
(Folsom Intersection 21). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street /Iron Point Road

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist of wo left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn
lane, and the southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-
turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane. It is against the City of
Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because of the impacts to non motorized
traffic and adjacent development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the Serpa Way/ Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom

Intersection 23). To improve LOS at the Serpa Way/ Iron Point Road

intersection, the northbound approaches must be restiped to consist ofone left-
turn lane, one shared left+hrough lanes, and one right-turn lane. The applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for

3A.t5-4b
(FPASP
ETRiEIS)

3A-15-4c
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.15-4d
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.l$4e
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

106-84

106-Es

106-86

106-87

Resolution No. 10400
Page 129 of 155

Page 207

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Work
Department

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out, A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe fint
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine durins

by applicant to reduce the impacts to the Serpa Walron Point Road Intersection
(Folsom Intersection 23).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of
Improvements to the Empire Ranch Road/Iron Point Road Intersection
(Folsom Intersection 24). To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road I Iron Point
Road intersection operates at a LOS D or better, all of the following
improvements are required: The eastbound approach must be reconfigured to
consist of one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right-turn lane. The
westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, one
through lane, and a through-right lane. The northbound approach must be
reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, three through lanes, and a right-turn
lane. The southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-tum
lanes, three through lanes, and a right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its
proporlionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a

nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to
reduce the impacts to the Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road Intersection
Before project build out. A phasing analysis should be performed prior to
approval of the first subdivision map to determine during which project phase the

improvement should be built. (Folsom Intersection 24).

The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvenents to the Oak Avenue
ParkwaylEaston Valley Parkway Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33). To
ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Parkway intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS the southbound approach must be reconfigured to
consist of two left-tum lanes, two through lanes, and two right-turn lanes. The
applicant shall fund and construct these improvements.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
the Grant Line RoadftVhite Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County
Intersection 3). To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E or better this intersection should be

replaced by some type of grade separated intersection or interchange.
Improvements to this intersection are identified in the Sacramento County's
Proposed General Plan. Implementation of these imDrovements would assist in

3A-15-4f
(rPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4g
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.ls-4i
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

106-88

10689

106-90

Resolution No. 10400
Page 130 of 155

Page 208

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sauamento County Department of
Transportation.

which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

reducing traffic impacts on this intersection by providing acceptable operation.
Intersection improvements must be implemented by Sacramento County. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line RoadlWhite Rock Road
Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard
(Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). To improve operation on Grant
Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this roadway
segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the

Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; however, it is
not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that
agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and

Kiefel Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). The identified
improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to the

Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segment.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson llighway
(Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). To improve operation on Grant
Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this roadway segment

could be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento

County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the

2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by
Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share offunding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway
(Sacramento County Roadway Segment E). The identified improvement would
more than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U.S. 50

project on this roadway segment.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Ilazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps
(Sacramento County Roadway Segments f2-F). To improve operation on

3A.1s-4j
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4k
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-41
(FPASP
EIRiXIS)

106-91

106-92

106-93

Resolution No. 10400
Page 131 of 155

Page 209

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built,

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which proiect phase

Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 westbound ftrmps,
this roadway segment could be widened to eight lanes. This improvement is

inconsistent with Sacramento County's general plan because the county's policy
requires a maximum roadway cross section of six lanes. Analysis shown later
indicates that improvements at the impacted intersection in this segment can be

mitigated (see Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4q). Improvements to impacted
intersections on this segment will improve operations on this roadway segment
and, therefore; mitigate this segment impact. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agenoy to reduce the
impacts to Hazel Avenue between Cunagh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound
Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments l2-13).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road
(Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22).To improve operation on White
Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this roadway
segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035

MTP but is not included in the Sacramento County General Plan. Improvements
to this roadway segment must be implemented by Sacramento County. The

identified improvement would more than oflset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 projeot on this roadway segment. However, because

of other development in the region that would substantially increase traffic levels,

this roadway segment would continue to operate at an unacceptable LOS F even

with the capacity improvements identified to mitigate Folsom South of U.S. 50

impacts. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to White Rock Road between

Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment
22).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Irnprovements to Reduce Impaets on
White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road
(Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28). To improve operation on White
Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road, this roadway
segment must be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this roadway segment

must be implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements. based on a Drosram established bv that asencv to reduce the

3A.l$4rn
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.1$4n
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106-94

106-9s

Resolution No. 10400
Page 132 of 155

Page 210

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

impacts to White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing
Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segnent 28).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado Counfy
1). To ensure that the White Rock RoadlCarson Crossing Road intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane must be converted
into a separate free right turn lane, or double right. Improvements to this
intersection must be implemented by El Dorado Cnunty. The applicant shall pay

its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado
County l).
Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrnns
Intersection 1). To ensure that the Hazel AvenudU.S. 50 westbound ramps

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the westbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist ofone dedicated lefttum lane, one shared leftthrough
lane and three dedicated righrturn lanes. Improvements to this intersecfion must
be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agencyto reduce the

impacts to the Hazel Avenuefu.S. 50 Westbound Ramps Intersection (Calhans

Intersection l).
Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound US 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway
Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS
between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane

could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept
Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor System Management Plan;therefore,
it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol
South East Connector, including widening While Rock Road and Grant Line
Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some haffic from U.S. 50 and

partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment l).

3A.15-4o
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4p
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4q
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-96

106-97

106-98

Resolution No. 10400
Page 133 of 155

Page 211

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be

performed prior to
approval ofttre first
subdivision map to
determine during
which oroiect ohase

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound US 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue
(Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS between Rancho Cordova Parkway and HazelAvenue, an additional
eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the
Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Conidor System Management Plan;
therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltans by 2030. Construction of
the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and

Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic offof
U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its
ploportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel
Avenue (Freeway Segment 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound US 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road
(Freeway Segment 5). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable

LOS betrveen Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary
lane should be converted to a mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at the

Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.1540. lmprovements
to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This improvement is

not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calkans State Route 50 Conidor
System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by
Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including
widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access,

could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact.
The applicant shallpay its proportionate share of funding of improvemen8, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism
paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom

Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
Eastbound US 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway
(Freeway Segment 6). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable
LOS between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie
City Road slip on ramp should merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that
extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see Mitigation
Measures 3A.154u, v and w), and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on
ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp and start an

3.d15-4r
(FPASP

ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4s
(FPASP
ETRnIS)

3A.15-4t
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106-99

r06-100

106-101

Resolution No. 10400
Page 134 of 155

Page 212

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation,

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out, A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed orior to

extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp.
Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City
Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segment 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Inprovements to Reduce Impacts on
the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge
Q. To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the
northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary
lane that extends to and drops at fte Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see

mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, w and x), and the southbound Prairie City Road
flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and

start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Sfteet- Scott Road off
ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans.
The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism
paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound i Prairie City
Road slip ramp merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Lnprovements to Reduce Imprcts on
the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue
Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7). To ensure that Eastbound US
50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp
should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak
Avenue Parkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.154u, v and x), and the
southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak
Avenue Parkway offramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East
Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment
must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to
the U.S. 50 Eastbound I Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue
Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Eastbound I Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway
Merge 8). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the
southbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should merge with the eastbound

3A.15-4u
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4v
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4w
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-102

142-r03

106-104

Resolution No. 10400
Page 135 of 155

Page 213

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento County Department of
Transportation.

City of Folsom Public Works
Departnent

approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing

analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which pmject phase

the improvement
should be built.

Before project build
out. A phasing
analysis should be
performed prior to
approval ofthe first
subdivision map to
determine during
which project phase

the improvement
should be built.

Prior to issuance of
phase 3 building
permits.

auxiliary lane that starts at the southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on
ramp and ends at the Bast Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp (see mitigation
measure 3A.154u, v and w). Improvements to this freeway segment must be

implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to
U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge
8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on
U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway
Merge 2?). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the

northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start dre westbound

auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. The slip
on ramp from southbound Empire Ranch Road slip ramp would merge into this
extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be

implernented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to
the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge
21).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Inpacts on
U,S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge
35). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the

northbound Prairie City Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard off ramp. The slip on ramp
from southbound Prairie City Road slip ramp would merge into this eKended
auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by
Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offirnding of
improvements! as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and

reliable mechanism paid for by applicant to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound i Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35).

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway @riveway #6). Prior to buildout of the
Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant shall constructthe intersection as shown
in Figure 4-2 of the Addendum:

> Northbound: one thru lane and one left turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with
60-foot taper;

3A.15-4x
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.l$4y
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

4.17-t
(Addendum)

106-105

106-106

106-107

Resolution No. 10400
Page 136 of 155

Page 214

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsorn Public Works
Department

Prior to issuance of
phase I building
permits.

Signalize the
intersection and

conduct all
geometric
imorovements- with

> Southbound: one thru lane and one right tum lane in a 150-foot pocket with
60-foot taper;

> Westbound: one shared lane, plus a 300-foot northbound acceleration lane on

East Bidwell Streetto receive left-tums from Regency Parkway (a second

northbound lane on East Bidwell Street starting from Regency Parkway is
equivalent to the 300-foot acceleration lane); and

> Control: side-street-stop-control;

Note that unsignalized left tums to East Bidwell Street are against City policy.
The northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Sheet is an interim
configuration until the intersection warrants signalization. Signalization will be

triggered as part of the entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal
at this location is included in Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and plan area fees

paid by the Project contribute towards its conshuction in the future.

East Bidwell StreetAilhite Rock Road. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers
Site, the project applicant shall implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority project has

programmed to relocate and signalize the East Bidwell Street/White Rock
Road intersection as shown in the October 2017 geomefric conceptual drawing,
or equivalent improvements (i.e,, three southbound approach lanes, four
eastbound approach lanes, and three westbound approach lanes). Figure 4-3 of
the Addendum provides a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.
Under this scenario, fair share is defined as the projeot's responsibility to the

Sacramento Counfy Transportation Development Fee. The projeot applicant is

required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee.

Option A can be considered to be implemented once the JPA has let contracts

for construction of ttre new intersection. This will insure that the mitigation is

constructed before project haffic adds five or more seconds of delay to tlre
intersection.

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Steet/White Rock Road intersection
with the existing geometry. Figure 44 of the Addendum provides a conceptual

intersection layout for this mitigation.

East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers
Site, the project applicant shall signalize the intersection with the following
geometry (Figure 4-5 of the Addendum):

4.17-2
(Addendum)

4.17-3
(Addendum)

r06-108

106-109

Resolution No. 10400
Page 137 of 155

Page 215

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

City of Folsom Public Works
Departnent

the exception oftlre
second northbound
thru lane prior to
issuance of phase I
building permits.
Construct the second
northbound thru lane
prior to issuance of
phase 2 building
permits.

Construct all
geometric
improvements with
the exception ofone
thru northbound lane
prior to issuance of
phase I building
permits. Conshuct
the second thru
northbound lane
prior to issuance of
phase 3 building
permits.

Consfruct all
geomehic
improvements with
the exception ofone
tlru northbound lane
and one thru
southbound lane

> Northbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two
thru lanes, and one right-turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper

(the second thru lane shall be developed 300 feet south ofthe intersection);

> Southbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one

thru lane, and one right-turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper;

> Eastbound and westbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-
foot taper, one thru lane, and one right-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket with a
60-foot taper.

Note that northbound East Bidwell street will remain at two lanes from Mangini
Parkway to US 50.

East Bidwell StreeUSavannah Parlcway. Prior to buildout of *re Toll Brothers
site, the project applicant shall reconstruct the intersection with the following
geometry (Figure 4-6 of the Addendum):

> Northbound approach: One thru lane and one shared through-right lane with a

I 50-foot taper;

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 1S0-foot pocket plus 60-foot
taper, and one through lane;

> Westbound approach: One left turn lane in a 60-foot pocket plus 60-foot
taper, and one through lane;

> Southbound departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration

lane for westbound left tum traffic. The acceleration lane should be in a 300-
foot pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Note that unsignalized left tums to East Bidwell Street are against City policy.
The southbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim
configuration untilthe intersection warrants signalization. Signalization willbe
triggered as part of the entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal
at this location is included in FPASP, and plan area fees paid by the project
applicant contribute towards its construction in the future.

East Bidwell StreeUAlder Creek Parlnray. Prior to buildout of the Toll
Brothers Site, the project applicant shall reconstruct and signalize the intersection
as shown in Figure 4-7 of the Addendum:

> Northbound approach: One U-turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot
taper, two through lanes, and one right turn lane in a 150-foot pocket plus 60-
foot taper.

4.17-4
(Addendum)

4.t7-5
(Addendum)

106-110

106-1ll

Resolution No. I0400
Page I 38 of I 55

Page 216

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Public Works
Department

Utilities and Service Systems

City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Works Department

prior to issuance of
phase I building
permits. Construct
the second thru
northbound lane and
the second thru
southbound lane
prior to issuance of
phase 3 building
permits.

Priorto issuance of
phase 3 building
permits

Before approval of
final maps and
issuance of building
permits for any
project phases.

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 240-foot pocket plus 60-foot
taper, and two through lanes. The second southbound through lane can be

dropped south of Old Ranch Way.

> Westbound approach: One right tum lane, plus one left-tum lane in a 200-
foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

The above mitigations are consistent with the ultimate geometry for East Bidwell
near Alder Creek Pkwy and builds on conditions of approvalfrom neighboring
projects.

White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Parkway. Prior to project buildout, the project
applicant shall implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has

programmed to realign this portion of White Rock Road and build a partial signal
to accommodate anticipated U-Turns. Expand or construct a signalized
intersection as follows :

> Southbound: A single shared lane for left and right turns.

> Eastbound: A thru lane and a left/U-turn in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Westbound: A thru lane and a right-tum in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Signalize with protected phasing for left-turns and U-tums.

> Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint
Powers Authority adopted standards.

(B) Channelize the White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Pkwy intersection on the
existing White Rock Road alignment to restrict tuming movements to westbound
right turns and southbound right tums. The westbound right turn requires a 365-
foot deceleration lane, and the southbound right turn requires a 960-foot
acceleration lane. Figure 4-8 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual layout for
the mitigated intersection.

Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance
Facilities and Implement On- and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or
Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the approval ofttre final
map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, tre project
applicant(s) of all project phases shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an
adequate wastewater conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured

4.17-6
(Addendum)

3A.l6l
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-112

106-113

Resolution No. 10400
Page 139 of 155

Page 217

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Works Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Works Department

City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Works Department

Before approval of
final maps and
issuance of building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval of
final maps and
issuance of building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval of
final maps and

issuance of building

through payment of the City's facilities augmentation fee as described under the
Folsom Municipal Code Title 3, Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee -
Folsom South Area Facilities Plan," or other sureties to the City's satisfaction.
Both on-site wastewater conveyance infrastructure and off-site force main
sufficient to provide adequate service to the project shall be in place for tire
amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval of the final
rnap and issuance of building permits for all project phases, or their financing
shall be ensured to the satisfaction ofthe City.

Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity. The project
applicant(s) ofall project phases shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the
SRWTP for new wastewat€r flows generated by the project This shall involve
preparing a tentative map-level study and paying connection and capacity fees as

identified by SRCSD. Approval of the final map and issuance of building permits
for all project phases shall not be granted untilthe City verifies adequate SRWTP
capacity is available for the amount of development identified in the tentative
map.

Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. a. Prior to approval of any

small-lot tentative subdivision map subject to Government Code Section 66473.7
(SB 221), the City shall comply with that statute. Prior to approval of any small-
lot tentative subdivision map for a proposed residential project not subject to that
statute, the City need not comply with Section 66473.7, or formally consult with
any public water system that would provide water to the affected areq
nevertheless, the City shall make a factual showing or impose conditions similar
to those required by Section 66473.7 to ensure an adequate water supply for
development authorized by the map. b. Prior to recordation ofeach final
subdivision map, or prior to City approval of any similar project-specific
discretionary approval or entitlement required for nonresidential uses, the project
applicant(s) ofthat project phase or activity shall demonstrate the availability ofa
reliable and sufficient water supply from a public water system for the amount of
development that would be authorized by the final subdivision map or projectr
specific discretionary nonresidential approval or entitlement. Such a
demonstration shall consist of information showing that both existing sources are

available or needed supplies and improvements will be in place prior to
occupancy.

Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and
Implement Off-Site Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate
Financing Is Secured. Before the approval ofthe final subdivision map and

3A.16-3
(rPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.18-1
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3d18-2a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-1r4

106-115

106-116

Resolution No. 10400
Page 140 of 155

Page 218

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Worlcs Department

Additional Measures

City of Folsom Community
Development Department

permits for any
project phases.

Before approval of
final maps and
issuance of building
permits for any
project phases.

Prior to approval of
first tentative map or
discretionary
approvalwithin SPA
that would place

sensitive receptors
along roadways that
quarry trucks would
reasonably use to
access U.S. Highway
50.

issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) ofany
particular discretionary development application shall submit proof to the City of
Folsom that an adequate off-site water conveyance system either has been

constructed or is ensured or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. The off-site
water conveyance infrastrucfure suffrcient to provide adequate service to the
project shall be in place for the amount of development identified in the tentative
map before approval of the final subdivision map and issuance of building permits
for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction ofthe
City. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued for any building within the

SPA until the water conveyance infrastructure sufiicientto serve such building
has been constructed and is in place.

Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity (if the Off-Site
Water Treatment Plant Option is Selected). If an off-site water treatment plant
(WTP) alternative is selected (as opposed to the on-site WTP alternative), the
project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
demonstrate adequate capacity at the off-site WTP. This shall involve preparing a
tentative ma5level study and paying connection and capacity fees as determined

by the City. Approval of the final project map shall not be granted until the City
verifies adequate water heatment capacity either is available or is certain to be

available when needed for the amount of development identified in the tentative
map before approval of the final map and issuance of building permits for all
project phases. A certificate ofoccupancy shall not be issued for any building
within the SPA until the water treatment capacity sufficient to serve such building
has been consfucted and is in place.

Implement East Sacrsmento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management
Plan or Other Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from Quarry Truck
Traffrc. The City of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East

Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a
cooperative effort led by the County of Sacramento, with the input of the City of
Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova and other interested parties, including
representatives of quarry project applicants. When the County Board of
Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert quarry project in November
2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a development agreementthat
requires Teichert's participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to
imolement roadwav capaciw and safeW imorovements required to imorove the

3A.18-2b
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure AIR-
1-Land

(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106-1 l7

106-ll8

Resolution No. 10400
Page l4l of 155

Page 219

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



compatibility of truck fiaffic from the quanies with the future urban development
in the Folsom Specific Plan area and otherjurisdictions that will be affected by
quarry truck traffic. The development a$eement adopted by the County for the
Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate sales from
Teicherl's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City of Folsom does not have
direct jurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project
applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion ofthe
County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the quarries,

has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance
with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's authorig to control the

activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or other actions, such as the

approval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate
quarry truck traffic, that would be applicable within ttre City's jurisdictional
boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, the City ofFolsom considers itselfa
"responsible agency''(as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR
Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a
future TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on roadways
within the jurisdiction of the City. In a responsible agency role, the City would
follow the proc€ss specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and

approval of the environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after
such documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA
Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as ofthe
completion of this FEIR/FEIS, the City would have to speculate as to those
portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation within its
jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the implementation of as-yet
unceftain components. Accordingly, formulation of the precise means of
mitigating the potential cumulative air quality impacts pursuant to the TMP is not
currently feasible or practical. However, as the prefened, feasible, and intended

mitigation shategy to address the oumulative impacts of quarry truck traffrc
through the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to be implemented those
po$ions of the TMP (as described above) that are within its authority to control.
In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or haffrc measures

imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the risk of cancer to sensitive
receptors along routes within the SPA from toxic air contaminant emissions to no
more than 296 in one million (SMAQMD 2009. March. Recommended Protocol
for Evaluating the Location of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major Roadways,
Version 2.2:7). or such different threshold of sisnificance mandated by

Resolution No. I0400
Page 142 of 155

Page 220

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



SMAQMD or ARB at the time, any cumu
quality impacts from truck toxic air contaminants would be less than significant.

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the

following measures could (and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quarry
project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Oates, and Granite [Walltown]) to help
ensure exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by quarry truck traffic
to the 296-in-one-million threshold of significance identified above. The City
encourages implementation of the following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to discuss

mitigation strategies, implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis and/or Healttr Risk Assessment

(HRA) should be conducted by the City of Folsom and funded by the truck
applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in

the SPA that would be located along the sides of roadway segments that are

identified in Tible 44 as being potentially significant under any of the

analyzed scenarios. Each project-level analysis shall be performed according to
the standards set forth by SMAQMD for the purpose of disclosure to tlre public

and decision makers. The project-level analysis shall account for the location

of the receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, the

projected future traffic volume for the year 2030 (including the proportion of
diesel trucks), and emission rates representative ofthe vehicle fleet for the year

when the sensitive land uses would first become operationaland/or occupied. If
the incremental increase in cancer risk determined by in the HRA exceeds 296

in one million (or a different ttrreshold of significance recommended by
SMAQMD or ARB at the time, if any), then project design mitigation should

be employed, which may include the following:

' Increase the setback distance between the roadway and affected receptor. If
this mitigation measure is determined by the City of Folsom to be necessary,

based on the results of the HRA, the quarry kuck applicant(s) should pay the

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s) and the City of
Folsom a fee that shall serve as compensation for lost development profit
and lost City tax revenues, all as determined by the parties. Said mitigation
fee shall be determined in consultation with the quarry project applicant(s),
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project applican(s), and the City
of Folsom. No trucks shall be allowed to on

Resolution No. 10400
Page 143 of 155

Page 221

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation fees

are paid.

. Implement tiered tree planting of fine-needle species, such as redwood,
along the near side of the roadway segments and, if feasible, along the
roadway 500 feet in both directions of the initial planting (e.g., 500 feet
norlh and south of a roadway that runs east-west) to enhance the dispenion
and filtration of mobile-source TACs associated with the adjacent roadway,
These trees should be planted at a density such that a solid visual buffer is
achieved after the tees reach maturity, which breaks the line of sight
between U.S. 50 and the proposed homes. These trees should be planted

before occupation ofany affected sensitive land uses. This measure

encourages the planting ofthese trees in advance ofthe construction of
potentially affected receptors to allow the trees to become established and

progress toward maturity. The life of these trees should be maintained
through the duration ofthe quarry projects. The planting, cost, and ongoing
maintenance of these trees should be funded by the quarry pmject

applicant(s).

. To improve the indoor air quality at affected receptors, implement the

following measures before the occupancy ofthe affected residences and

schools:

. equip all affected residences and school buildings developed in the SPA
with High Efficiency Particle Arresting (IIEPA) filter systems at all
mechanical air intake points to the interior rooms;

' use the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to
maintain all residential units under positive pressure at all times;

. locate air intake systems for HVAC as far away from roadway air pollution
sources as possible; and

, develop and implement an ongoing education and maintenance plan about
the filtration systems associated with HVAC for residences and schools.

To the extent this indoor air quality mitigation would not already be implemented
as part of the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project development, this
mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project applicant(s) before any quarry
trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of any residence
or school within the SPA.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 144 of 155

Page 222

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department

Prior to approval of
first tentative map or
discretionary
approvalwithin SPA
that would place

sensitive receptors
along roadways that
quarry trucks would
reasonably use to
access U.S. 50.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management
Plan or Other Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to
Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Trafric. The City of Folsom is a
participant in the development of an East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining
Truck Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of
Sacramento, with the input of the City of Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova
and other interested parties, including representatives ofquarry project applicants.

When the County Board of Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert
quarry project in November 2010, it also adopted conditions of approval and a
development agreement that requires Teichert's participation in, and fair share

funding of, a TMP to implement roadway capacity and safety improvements
required to improve the compatibility of huck traffic from the quarries with the

future urban development in the SPA and other jurisdictions that will be affected

by quury truck traffic. The development agre,ement adopted by the County for the

Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate sales from
Teichert's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City of Folsom does not have

directjurisdiction over the Teichert DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project

applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion ofthe
County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the quarries,

has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance

with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's authority to control the
activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or other actions, such as the

approval and implementation of specializpd road improvements to accommodate
quarry truck haftic, that would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional

boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, the City ofFolsom considen itselfa
"responsible agenry" (as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR
Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a
future TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on roadways

within the jurisdiction of the Cify. In a responsible agency role, the City would
follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and

approval of the environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after
such documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA
Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as of the

completion of this FEIR/FEIS, the City would have to speculate as to those
portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation within its
jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the of as yet uncertain

formulation of the means of m the

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure
NOISE-I.
Land

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106-119

Resolution No. 10400
Page 145 of 155

Page 223

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



potential cumulative noise impacts pumuant to the TMP is not cunently feasible
or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and intended mitigation strategy
to address the cumulative impacts of quarry truck traffic through the SPA, the
City shall implement or cause to be implemented those portions of the TMP (as

described above) that are within its authority to control. In implementing the
TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or traffic measures imposed by the City
within the SPA reduce the traffic noise exposure to sensitive receptors along
routes within the SPA so as to ensure that sensitive receptors are not exposed to
interior noise levels in excess of 45 dBA, or increases in interior noise levels of 3
dBA or more, whichever is more restrictive. With this mitigation, the cumulative
noise impacts from fruck traffic would be less than significant.

As an ahemative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the
following measures could (and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quarry
project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and Granite fWalltown]) to help
ensure interior noise levels for sensitive receptors to noise generated by quarry
truck traffic would not exceed 45 dBA or increase of 3 dBA over existing
conditions, as identified above. The City encourages implementation of the
following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to
discuss mitigation strategies, implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis should be conducted bythe
City ofFolsom and funded by the quarry fuck applicant(s) for all proposed

sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA that would be

located along the sides of roadway segments that are identified in Table 4-8

as being potentially significant under any ofthe analyzed scenarios. The

analysis should be conducted using an approved three dimensional traffic
noise modsling program (i.e., TNM or SoundPlan). Each project-level
analysis should be performed according to the standards set forth by the City
of Folsom for the purpose of disclosure to the public and decision makers.

The project-level analysis should account for the location ofthe receptors

relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, and the projected

future traffic volume for the year 2030 (including the percentage of heavy
trucks). If the incremental increase in traffic noise levels are determined to
exceed the threshold of significance recommended by the City of Folsom,
then design mitigation should be employed, which may include the
following:

Resolution No. 10400
Page 146 of 155

Page 224

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



Model the benefits of soundwalls (berm/wall combination) along the quarry
truck hauling roadways and affected receptors not to exceed a total height of
eight feet (two-foot berm and six-foot concrete mason wall). If this mitigation
measure is determined by the City of Folsom to be inadequate, additional
three dimensional traffic noise modeling should be conducted with the
inclusion ofrubberized asphalt at the expense ofthe quarry truck
applicant(s). No quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway
segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation has

been agreed upon by the City ofFolsom and fees for construction ofsaid
mitigation are paid by the quarry truck applican(s).

Implement the installation of rubberized asphalt (quiet pavement) on roadway
segments adjacent to sensitive receptors that carry quarry trucls if
soundwalls do not provide adequate reduction oftraffic noise levels. The
inclusion of rubberized asphalt would provide an additional 3 to 5 dB of
traffic noise reduction. The cost of conshuction using rubberized asphalt

should be borne by the quarry truck applicant(s). Said mitigation fee should
be determined in consultation with the quarry project applicant(s), the Folsom
South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of Folsom.
No quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway segment

immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation fees are paid,

To improve the indoor noise levels at affected receptors, implement the

following measures before the occupancy of the affected residences and

schools:

. Conduct an interior noise analysis once detailed construction plans of
residences adjacent to affected roadways are available to determine the
required window package at second and third floor receptors to achieve the

interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn without quarry hucks.

. Determine the interior quarry truck traffic noise level increases at second

and third floor receptors adjacent to affected roadways compared to no
quarry truck conditions. Window package upgrades are expected to be

necessary due to the traffic noise level increases caused by quarry trucks
along affected roadways. Quarry truck applicant(s) should pay forthe cost of
window package upgrades (increased sound transmission class rated
windows) required to achieve the interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn
with the inclusion of quarry huck haffic.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 147 of 155

Page 225

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



City of Folsom Community
Development Department and City of
Folsom Public Work Department

approval of
final maps and
issuance of building
permits for any
project phase, the
project applicant
shall demonstrate to
the City's
satisfaction the fair
share contribution
towards
implementation of
Backbone
Infrastructure and
Off-Site Water
Facility
improvements and
associated required
mitigation as

identified in the

Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50
Backbone
Infrastructure
Mitigated Negative
Declaration
(December 2014) or
the Revised
Proposed Af-Sile
Water Facility
Ahernative
Addendam to the
FPASP EINEIS

To the extent this noise mitigation would not already be implemented as pa*
of the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project development, this

mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project applicant(s) before any
quarry hucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of
any residence or school within the SPA.

Coordinate and Fund the Backbone Infrastructure and Off-Site Water
Facility Alternative. The project applicant shallparticipate in the FPASP
owners' group and shall fund and contribute ttreir fair share to the backbone
infrastructure and off-site water facility alternative improvements. The project
applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to implement the following
measures detailed in the Falson SoNh of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone
Infrastrrcture Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 20 l4):

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-l: Design above ground pump station

and storage tank facilities to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-2: Develop and implement a

landscaping plan for pump station and storage tank faoilities to reduce visual

impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-I: Prepare and Implement NOX
Reduction Plan

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-2: Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to
SMAQMD to off-set NOX Emissions Generated by Construction.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-4: Implement A Site Investigation to
Determine the Presence of NOA and, if necessary, Prepare and Implement an

Asbestos Dust Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-l: Conduct Special-Status Plant

Surveys; Implement Avoidance and Mitigation Measures or Compensatory
Mitigation

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the

Biological Opinion (BO) for Federally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the

Biological Opinion for Impacts on Valley EIderberry Longhorn Beetle.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-4: Western Spadefoot Toad

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-5: Western Pond Turtle

N/A10Gr

Resolution No. 10400
Page 148 of 155

Page 226

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



(approved December
2012); as applicable.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swainson's Hawk Nesting
Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging
Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-7: Tricolored Blackbird

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8: Nesting Raptors

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds and
Migratory Birds

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-I0: Special-Status Bats

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 Master
Streambed Alteration Agreement

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-I3: Conduct Surveys to Identify and

Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement Avoidance and Minimization
Measures or Compensatory Mitigation, if necessary

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean Water
Act Section 404 Permit and Section 401 Permit and Implement All Permit
Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of Wetlands, Other Watsrs of
the U.S., and Waters of the State

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-15: Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare

and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation Plan, ReplaceNative Oak Trees

Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and Minimize Indirect Impacts

on Oak Trees and Oak Woodland Habitat Retained On-Site.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-l l: American Badger

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-l: Comply with the applicable
procedures in the FAPA and implementation of applicable historic property
treatment plans

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Constuction Personnel
Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if Required, Stop Work if Cultural
Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Perform
Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing
Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply witlr Califomia
Health and Safety Code Procedures.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 149 of 155

Page 227

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-l: Prepare Site-Specific
Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and Implement Appropriate
Recommendations.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-3: Monitor Earthwork during
Earthmoving Activities.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(a): Prepare and Implement the
Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-S(b): Prepare and Implement the
appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan for the detention basin West of
Prairie City Road.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-l: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory
Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VII-I: Greenhouse Gas Emissions

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XVI-I: Prepare and Implement a

Construction Traffic Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 Water
Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water
Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water
Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water
Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XII-l North of U.S. Highway 50 Water
Improvements

In addition, the project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to
implement the following measures detailed in the rtevised Proposed Of-Site
Water Facility Alternative Addendum to the FPASP EINEIS (approved December
11,2012):

> 38.l-2a: Enhance Exterior Appearance ofStructural Facilities.

> 3B.l-2b: Prepare Landscaping Plan.

> 38.l-3a: Conformance to Construction Lighting Standards.

> 38.1-3b: Prepare and Submit a Lighting Master Plan.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 150 of 155

Page 228

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> 38.2-la: Develop and Implement a Constnrction NOX Reduction Plan.

> 3B.2-lc: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and aParticulate Mafier
Monitoring Program during Construction.

> 38.2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors.

> 38.2-3b: Conduct Project-Level DPM Screening and Implement Measures to
Reduce Annual DPM to Acceptable Concentrations.

> 38.4-1a: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction.

> 38.4-lb Prepare and Implement an Off-site Water Facilities Climate Action
Plan.

> 3A.5-la: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement.

> 3A.5-lb: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the
California Register of Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or
Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or Destruction Cannot
be Avoided.

> 3A.5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site
Monitoring if Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered,
Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatrnent orAvoidance as
Required.

> 34.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are
Encountered and Comply with California Health and Safety Code
Procedures.

> 3B.7-1a: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off-site
Water Facilities and Implement Required Measures.

> 38.7-lb: Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final
Pipeline Design.

> 38.74: Implement Corrosion Protection Measures.

> 38.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if
Paleontological Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe
Find, and Prepare and Impiement a Recovery Plan as Required.

> 3B.8-la: Transporl Store, and Handle Conshuction-Related Hazardous
Materials in Compliance with Relevant Regulations and Guidelines.

> 3B.8-l b: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Management Plan.

Resolution No. 10400
Page l5l of 155

Page 229

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



> 38.8-5a: Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for Selected
Alignment.

> 38.8-5b: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan.

> 3B.8-7a: Keep Construction Area Clear of Combustible Materials.

> 38.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment.

> 38.9-1a: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and
Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> 38.9-1b: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction
Dewatering in Accordance with the Central Valley Regional Water euality
Control Board.

> 38.9-3a: Prepare and Implement Drainage Plan(s) for Structural Facilities.

> 3B.9-3b: Ensure the Provision of Suffrcient Outlet Protection and On-site
Containment.

> 3B.l l-la: Limit Construction Hours.

> 38.11-lb: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging.

> 38.l I-l c: Maximize the Use of Noise Barriers.

> 38.l l-ld: Prohibit Non-EssentialNoise Sources During Construction.

> 3B.l l -l e: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing
Noise Complaints.

> 38.l l-3: Implement OperationalNoise Minimization Measures.

> 38. I 2- I : Provide for Continued Recreational Access as Identified in
Mitigation Measure 3. l4-la.

> 38.15-la: Prepare Traffic Control Plan.

> 38.15-lb: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions.

> 3B.16-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground
Services Alert.

> 38.l 6-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate
Installation Methods to Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions.

> 38.17-1a: Implement Constuction Dewatering Best Management Practices.

> 38.17-1b: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program.

> 3A.l 8-1 : Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability.

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 52 of I 55

Page 230

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E) (P)M

34.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities
and Implement Off-Site Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That
Adequate Financing Is Secured.

White Rock Road Shoulder Improvemcnts
The owner/applicant shall oonshuct shoulder improvements along the
project's entire frontage of westbound White Rock Road to the
satisfaction of the City prior to approval of the first small lot final
map. In lieu of constructing the aforementioned interim shoulder
improvements, the owner/applicant may enter into a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with the city and post adequate security to the
City's satisfaction to ensure construction of said improvements; the
security shall be for a minimum period of 10 years.

If shoulder improvements are conskucted and/or funded by the
owner/applican! then said costs may be included in any applicable fee
program established and approved for the Folsom Plan Area subject to
approval by the City and the actual costs expended by the
owner/applicant may therefore be eligible for a credit and/or
reimbursement.

Ifconstruction ofthe capital Southeast connector Project between scott
Road and the El Dorado County line has commenced during the term of
the required Subdivision Improvement Agreemen! then the shoulder
improvement condition will be deemed satisfied and the security shail be
released to the owner/applicant.

107.

Resolution No. 10400
Page 153 of155

Page 231

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



cD (E) (P)M

The owner/applicant shall preserve the oak trees shown in the blue color
on the attached Site Plan Exhibit for the Traditional Subdivision. The
owner/applicant shall also make every attempt to preserve the tree shown
in red on the attached Site Plan Exhibit provided that the City Arborist
concurs (since this oak tree will be approximately 3' lower than adjacent
pad grades). The additional land created fiom elimination of lots 49,56,
and 57 as shown on the Site PIan Exhibit shall be incorporated into the
adjacent residential lots to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department. Consistent with FPASP Policy 10.19, the
Community Development Director will allow modifications to the
development standards to order to acoommodate preservation ofthe oak
tree on l'ot 62 as shown on the attached Site Plan Exhibit. This condition
shall be satisfied prior to approval of the Final Map for the Traditional
Subdivision.

108.

Resolution No. 10400
Page I 54 of I 55

Page 232

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



sslJo sgl etBd

00t0I 'oN uoBnloseu

-t
-
*

.8
t
Jt
f
tl

r^
<!\o

L-

qo 6

(-
I
I
I

I

JI(_-

6gE

J

o
O. :-,<) F;

L,-

ra':t
@ctr{)=

L

-l

€r{) c.iro=
I

. 
----J.g-t m

E.-
FHit

t

r'.!.
,l

r---*-1
ll
ll

l-,-

sfr\-1

I
I
I
I
I

--J

r
t
t
I
I
I

at
6

q
Fo I)

--1

, lr)

6ag
l-..)
I
I

e8g
L---

a

I
I
I

€
+E

r----1
ll
tl

L,

t-?

T--*--r
I

.5 -l

=tEL
Et$
Els
-t
EI
ll
9l

x
o 'r/f !

t
oO\ ciaos

1
r--
I @

Ori'qF
t+:

I
i
I

--l

--l 6Fo
t_
f-
i Fc{.<. ts

L

<?
F

-o--

;
t'

,lt
t

l"l

JJ

€D:

oqsg
7--'
I
I
!
t
I

aft.-f
.q
o

I
t
t
t

q
**

i- *'
I
I

llqlqxg ueld elIS

Page 233

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 234

07/27/2021 Item No.6.



It'{-!1,s,$tr'.{.

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10671 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Western Truck Parts and
Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five Solid Waste
Collection Vehicles

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recorlmends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10671 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Western
Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five Solid Waste Collection Vehicles.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Deparfinent must maintain a fleet of collection vehicles that is able to provide
efficient and reliable solid waste collection service. The City's requirement for these collection
vehicles is based on the need to replace its aging fleet (pursuant to the Solid Waste Division's
approved replacement schedule) and to provide the current level of services. The vehicles being
purchased will augment current vehicles to help support the new organics collection mandate.

This resolution will authoize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Western Truck
Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. (Western Truck) for the purchase of three automated
side loader collection vehicles and two front loader collection vehicles. The total cost for the
purchase of these vehicles will not exceed $1,808,989.78. Sufficient funds to purchase the
replacement vehicles are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 SoIid Waste
Operating Fund (Fund 540).

I
Page 235

07/27/2021 Item No.7.



POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for
the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public
procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

Sourcewell, which was previously known as the National Joint Powers Agency, is a national
cooperative purchasing entity of which the City of Folsom is a member. The City has purchased

numerous items through Sourcewell.

Western Truck has a current contract with Sourcewell for solid waste collection vehicles at a
price that has been assessed to be fair, reasonable, and competitive.

Sourcewell contract number #060920-PMC will be utilized for the purchase of solid waste

collection vehicles.

o New Way Automated Side Loader with Peterbilt chassis - $369,513.18 per vehicle
o New Way Front Loader with Peterbilt chassis - 5350,225.12per vehicle

This price includes taxes, tire fees and delivery.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

A total of $2,777,783 has been appropriated within the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Solid Waste

Operating Budget to purchase vehicles. The Department is requesting that the new contract be

authorized for a not to exceed amount of $1,808,989.78. Sufficient funds to purchase the
replacement vehicles are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Solid Waste

Operating Fund (Fund 540).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10671 - A Resolution Authoizng the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five
Solid Waste Collection Vehicles

1

2Page 236

07/27/2021 Item No.7.



Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Works Director

JPage 237

07/27/2021 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 1067I

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WESTERN TRUCK PARTS AND EQUIPMENT COMPANYO

LLC. TO PURCHASE FIVE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLES

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has validated its need to purchase three
automated side loader and two front loader solid waste collection vehicles based on an approved
replacement and expansion schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through Sourcewell, which used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to Westem Truck Parts and Equipment
Company, LLC in an amount not to exceed $1,808,989.78; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Solid Waste Fund
(Fund 540) Budget which included $2,777,783 for the purchase of vehicles; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends the execution of a contract with Westem Truck Parts and

Equipment Company, LLC. for the purchase of three automated side loader and two front loader
solid waste collection vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment
Company, LLC. to purchase three New Way Automated Side Loader and two New Way Front
Loader Solid Waste Collection Vehicles with Peterbilt chassis for the Public Works Department
at a not to exceed amount of $1,808,989.78.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Th day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10671
Page 1 of I Page 238

07/27/2021 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council move to adopt Resolution No. 10636 -
A Resolution of the City Council Approving Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement with the
Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building Located at 200 Wool Street.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City Council previously considered the proposed amendment to the lease of the Depot
Building on June 8,202I and voted to continue the matter to a future meeting in order to
consider issues raised by local organizations and members of the public. Following further
input from the Folsom Chamber of Commerce ("Chamber") and the Folsom Historic District
Association ("FHDA"), the City Council discussed the matter in Closed Session on July 13,

2021, and this item is being brought back in open session for further consideration.

The Chamber has leased the Depot Building at200 Wool Street from the former Folsom
Redevelopment Agency and tho City of Folsom continuously since 1989. The current lease

authorized by the Council runs from January 1,2015 to December 31, 2022. Rent for the
property has been $1.00 per year for more than a decade, if not longer.

The 2,383 square feet property is zoned HD in the General Plan, which means it can be used

for retail, service, public/quasi-public and office uses, as well as small light industrial and

residential uses (subject to certain limitations). The Chamber has used the property as its
principal place of business, as well as a Visitor's Center for people visiting the City and the
Historic District.

1

MEETING DATE: 7t27t202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10636 - A Resolution of the City Council
Approving Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement with the
Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building Located
at200 Wool Street

FROM: City Manager's Office

Page 239

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



POLICY / RULE

The City Council is vested with authority to approve agreements to lease City facilities and

City-owned real properties.

ANALYSIS

The current lease of the Depot Building is set to expire on December 31, 2022. The
Chamber requested that the lease be extended for possibly 20 more years (5-year renewal
from January 1,2023, with three 5-year options to extend), and to allow a portion of the

leased premises to be sublet to a third-party under a revenue-sharing arrangement upon
approval of the proposed lease amendment by the City Council. Rent remains at $1.00 per
year, with the same existing obligations for maintenance, upkeep, insurance, and

indemnification. The request is made long in advance of the December 2022 expiration due

to the Chamber's desire to make improvements to the property.

The Chamber has been a good steward of this historical structure and has provided valuable
services to the Historic District with the Visitor's Center and services to the community. The
Chamber has continued to provide maintenance and upkeep to the building. Staff believes
there continues to be substantial public benefit to the Historic District and the City to lease

the Depot Building to the Chamber under terms and conditions of the existing lease,

modified as follows:

Term of the lease extended to December 31,2027

Rent remains $1.00 per year.

Chamber has option to extend the lease 3 times; each extension is 5 years. If
Chamber exercises all 3 options, the total term of the lease under this Amendment
No. 2 will be 20 yeens (terminating on December 31,2042).

Chamber may sublease a portion of the Depot Building under a revenue-sharing
arrangement. Once the Chamber recovers its initial investment in tenant
improvement of the subleased arca,the revenue from the sublease shall be shared

with the City on a 50Yo-50o/o basis.

a

a

a

a

All proposed improvements to the Depot Building require City review and approval.

Chamber shall make the Ambassador Room readily available for community use and

amphitheater use as directed by the City.

The City has not experienced any issue with the Chamber leasing the Depot Building,
operating the Visitor's Center, making lease payments, or honoring the lease terms.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

This action is likely to generate nominal revenue to the City's General Fund

a

a

2
Page 240

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The proposed extension of existing lease of public facility is exempt from environmental
review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing
Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10636 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving Amendment No. 2
to Lease Agreement with the Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building
Located at200 Wool Street

2. Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement

3. Amendment No. I to Lease Agreement

4. Lease Agreement dated May 27,2014

Re spectfully submitted,

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

J
Page 241

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 242

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10636

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT NO.2 TO
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE FOLSOM CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

F'OR THE DEPOT BUILDING LOCATED AT 2OO WOOL STREET

WHEREAS, the Folsom Chamber of Commerce ("Chamber") has leased the property

and building at200 Wool Street (the "Depot Building") continuously since 1989 from the former
Folsom Redevelopment Agency ("RDA") and the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, on April 18,2012 the Folsom Successor Agency Oversight Board, pursuant

to Resolution No. 004-FSAOB, approved the transfer of Parcel B, on which the Depot Building
sits, to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City acquired Parcel B by Grant Deed on March 17,2012; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has in the past authorized extensions of the Depot

Building lease to the Chamber, most recently on September 12, 2017, with the current lease

expiring on December 3I,2022; and

WHEREAS' the Chamber has expressed a desire to extend the lease under the same

terms as the current lease, and to allow subleasing a portion of the Depot Building under a

revenue-sharing arrangement with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue leasing the Depot Building to the Chamber; and

WHEREAS' the Chamber provides substantial public benefit to the City and to the

Historic District by its presence at the Depot Building including but not limited to, operating the

Visitor's Center, providing assistance to merchants, businesses and visitors in the Historic
District and the City generally, and providing assistance with tourism, economic development

and events throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the public benefit provided by the Chamber

supports continuing the lease with the Chamber under the terms in the current lease and as

modified by Amendment No. 2 to the Lease Agreement.

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement for
premises located at 200 Wool Street - SP Depot Building, dated May 27, 2014, in a form
acceptable to the City Afiorney, to extend the lease to December 31,2027 with options to renew.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tn day of July,202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN

Resolution No. 10636
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Page 243

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10636
Page2 of2 Page 244

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 245

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



CITY OF FOLSOM
AMENDMENT NO. 2

TO
LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT:

2OO WOOL STREET - SP DEPOT BUILDING

The Lease Agreement between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Chamber of
Commerce dated May 27,2014 ("Lease") for premises located at200 Wool Street (SP

Depot Building), previously amended by Amendment No. 1 dated September 29,2017,
is further amended by this Amendment No. 2 as follows:

1. Section 2, Term, of the Lease is hereby amended as follows:

The term of this Lease shall terminate on December 31,2027, with such rights of
prior termination as may be provided herein.

The Chamber has the option to extend the Lease 3 times as follows: No later
than 60 days prior to the expiration of the Lease term provided for in this
Amendment No. 2 or any extended term, the Chamber may request, in writing,
that the City extend the Lease for 5 more years. Should the Chamber exercise
all 3 options to extend, the Lease under this Amendment No. 2 shall terminate on
December 31,2042.

2. Section 7, Termination, of the Lease is hereby amended as follows

City may terminate this Lease, in whole or in part and with or without cause, at
any time during the lease term, or any extension thereof, by giving Chamber
notice, in writing, at least 12 months prior to the date when any such termination
shall become effect.

3. Section 10, Subletting/Assignments, of the Lease is hereby amended as follows:

Chamber shall not sublet the Premises, in whole or in part, nor assign this Lease
or any interest therein, except as agreed to by the City Manager in writing. As
later provided herein, Chamber may rent, on a periodic basis, portion of the
Premises (see Use of Premises).

Should the Chamber sublease a portion of the Premises for longer than 30 days,
the Chamber shall share 50% of the revenue from the sublease with the City,
payable on the 1Oth day of each month. The aforementioned revenue-sharing
requirement shall commence once the Chamber has recovered its initial
investment in tenant improvement for the subleased area. All proposed tenant
improvement for the sublease area, including the projected costs, shall require
prior submittal to the City for review and approval in accordance with Section 20.
The term of the sublease shall not exceed the then-current term of the
Chamber's lease, and the sublease shall contain the same indemnity and

1-

Page 246

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



insurance requirements in favor of the City as in Sections 12 and 13 of the
Lease.

4. Section 24, Use of Premises, of the Lease is hereby amended as follows

The Premises shall be used for the official functions of the Chamber. Chamber
may rent portions of the Premises on a periodic basis, not to exceed 30
consecutive days at any given time, for private parties, classes, and other similar
uses with the consent of the City Manager or his/her designee. Unless prior
approval is first obtained from the City Manager, no portion of the Premises shall
be rented on an ongoing basis for more than 30 days. The parties recognize that
the Chamber occasionally rents out space on the Premises for meetings or
conferences and nothing in this Section is intended to prohibit such use.
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Chamber shall make the
Ambassador Room readily available for community use and amphitheater use as
directed by the City.

ln the event that the Premises are rented or permissibly used as set forth above,
either the Chamber's insurance shall cover the activity, or the Chamber shall
obtain insurance from the person or entity renting, using, or subleasing the
portion of the Premises that complies in all particulars with the insurance
requirements set forth in Exhibit B.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 2 to
Lease Agreement to be duly executed.

Date:

Date:

c
A

itv
M

of Folsom,
unicipal Corporation

By: Elarne Andersen, Crty Manager

Folsom Chamber of Commerce,
A California Non-Profit Corporation

By

By

/,

Page 247

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



Approved As To Form

Steven Wang, City Attorney Date

Attests Funding Available

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO Date

NOTIGE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF LESSEE MUST BE NOTARIZED.
1189 must

be attached for each perSon executinq this asreement on behalf of consultant. California Civil
Section provides, at part (b): "Any certiTicate of acknowledgment taken in another place shall be
sufficient in this' stdte if it is t-at<en in accordance with the laws of the plaie where the
acknowledgment is made."

3

Page 248

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



AfiACHMENT 3

Page 249

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



CITY OF FOLSOM
AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO
LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT:

2OO WOOL STREET. SP DEPOT BUILDING

The Lease between the city of Folsom and the Folsom chamber of commerce, dated May 27 
'

zOia, isamended as set forth on Exhibit 1, Amendment to Section 2' Term. (Exhibit 1 is

attached hereto and incorporated herein.)

tN WITNESS WHEREO F.

v'
the parties hereto have caused this Agreernent to be duly executed,

Date
q

-.2-7, t

Approved As To Form:

Steven City AttorneY

Attests

c Freemantle, City Clerk

ce ac
attached for ea
provides, at Part
btate if it is taken

An
n

Folsorn Chattrber of Commerce

Lease Agreement

By: Evert w. Palmer, u Ity Manager

City of
A Mun

Folsom,
icipal

Folsom
A

By:

Commerce,
Corporation

L-

By:

Fu

4bF44"

J W.F ncis, Finance Di

F

lo 1t/ttr
Date

Date

made

Folsom File No. 173-21 12-066
..ilfinilfifiillilfififiilfitn1

va

must be
$ection

nt in thisackn
wt the laws of e

on behalf

31856
Page 250

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



EXHIBIT 1

AMENDMENT TO SECTTON 2. (TERM)

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT:
2OO WOOL STREET. SP DEPOT BUILDING

2. Term

The term of this Lease shall commence on January 1,2015, and shall terminate on Decernber
31,2022, with such rights of priortermination as may be provided herein,

On the commencement of this Lease, the prior lease and any amendments thereto shall expire
and be of no further force or effect, except that any insurance policy currently in effect shall
remain in full force and the Chamber's indemnification obligations shall survive the termination
of any prior agreements.

Folsonr Charnber of Comlnerce
Lease Agreoment

Page 251

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



cAr.rFoRNtA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOIIULEDGMEiIT clvlL coDE $ 1189

A notary public or other officor completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individuai who signed the

documeni to which this cerlificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

county ot *'oUA.ne.nJA
I

On
Date

personally appeared

before me,
Here lnsert Name and Title ofp

of Signe(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are

"rOsirineo 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in

trGfnerltfreir authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/h-er/tneir signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),

or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALW OF PERJUHY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

JENNIFER R. CANNELL

Notary Publh - Calirornia

Sactrmento Counly

Commission fl 2187132

My Comm. Expires Ma|l9. 2021

of Notary Public

Place Notary SsalAbove
OPTIONAL

Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudutent reattachment of this form ta an unintended document-

Description of Attached Document
Title or Type of Document:

WITNESS my hand and otficialseal.

Document Date: - ".. Number of Pages:

Signe(s) Other Than Named Abovo:

Capacity{ies} Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name: Signer's Name:

{-J Corporate Officer - Title(s): IJ Corporate Officer - Title(s):
tlPartner - trLimited IGeneral
l-l lndividual il Attorney in Fact
fl Trustee tl Guardian or Conservator
t.."1 Other:

Signer ls Representing: Signer ls Representing:

,

@2016 Nation4 Notary Association . www.NationalNotary.org . 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800'876-6827) ltem #5907

n Partner - tr Limited n General
[J lndividual tJ AttorneY in Fact
n Trustee [J Guardian or Conservator
t--lOther:

Page 252

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 253

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



- u*"ffi#*.
Folsom City Clerk's Department

CITV OF TOLSOM

T,EASE AGRtrEMrcNT FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT:
2(lO WOOL STREET - SP DNPOT BUILDING

F$r-ssn'{

'lhis [,ease, dated lbr reference pulposes only, May 27,2014, is nrade by and between the

City of i'olsom, a lvlunicipal Corporation, hereinafter relbrred to as "City" and the Folsom

Chamber of Commerc", a California Non-Profit Corporation, heteinafter referrcd to as

"Cltarnber."

]UITNES$E'LTI:

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of both that certain real propertY at200 Wool Street

and the building thereon commonly known as the Depot Building; and

WHEREAS, the City, which already owned the Depot Building, acquired the real

prnperty from the Folsom Rideveloprnent Agcncy ("RDA"; by Grant Deed on Marsh 17,2012,

lnifo*ilte the dissolution of the RDA pursuant to legislation (ABxl 26 and AB 1484); and

WHER"EAS, on April 18,2012, the Oversight Board of the City of Folsom approved the

transfer of parcel B, on which the Depot Building sits, to the City, put'suant to Resolution 004-

F'SAOB; and

WHSREAS, the Chamber has leased the properly and building a1200 Wool Street

continuously since 1989, first from the RDA and then from the city; and

WHAREAS, the present lease expires on January 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue to lease the property and the Depot Building to

the Chamber, and the Chamber desires to entef into a new lease with the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual ptomises hereinafter set forth, City

and Chamber agree as fbllows:

1. Inqornpration of Recitals

'fhe parties hereto acknowledge the accuracy of the above recitals and incorporate them

into this Lease Agreement ('Lease').

2. Term

The term of this l,ease shall commence on January l, 2015, and shall terminats on the

fir'st day of .lanuary, 201 8, with such rights of prior termination as may be provided hercin.

Folsom File No' 173-2112-066
.'lifi 

illrfirililfl lfiflfifi lfr un
31856

Page 254

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



On the comlnencelnelt of this Lease, the prior lease and any amendments thereto shall

expire and be of no f'urther force or effect, except that.any, insurance policy currently in.etftct

shall remain in full foroe and the Chamber's indemnification obligations shall survive the

terminatiou of any prior agreements.

3. Ackng,lvlq{lsement of Po$$ible Chanue of Condllions

The City has the legal right to entet into this lease and the property was_lawfully

transferred to the City. the parties acknowledge that all actions of the Oversight Board of the

Citv 
"ir"rrom 

may 6e subject to directives and rulings of the State of California in connection

witir the winding up of ttreiffairs of the RDA. Should the State issue directives or make binding

clecisions which materially affect this Lease, and/or the ownership status of the parcel, the City

will pr.ovide the Charnbeiwittr reasonable notice and the Chamber agrees to comply with all

such final directives, rulings or decisions.

Additionally, the Chamber acknowledges that there will be ongoing construction and

development of the area surrounding the Depot Building. The Chamber enters into this Lease

will fuil awareness of ongoing construction, development and changing site conditions as more

fully set forth herein.

4, Dcscriptior,t

The City hereby leases to the Charnber the "Premises," more pafiicularly described as the

Soutlrem pacific Uepo't Building located at2A0 Wool Street, Folsom, California, and a portion of

the gr.ounds as more-particularlf set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein

by reference.

The parties shall do a walk through inspection and document the current eondition of the

Premises prior to the commencement of this Lease.

5. Rent

Rent ip the amount of one dollar per year ($ 1 .00) shall be payable by the Chamber to the

City on the lirst day of each year of the tertn of the L,ease'

6. Utilities

Chamber agrees to pay all utilities for the Premises, including, but not limited to, water,

electr.icity, gas, sewer, and garbage during the term of the Lease.

7, Terminatio$

City may terminate this [,ease, in whole or in pa$, at any time during the three year term,

or any extension thereotl by giving Chamber notice, in writing, at least twelve (12) months prior

to the date when any such iennination shall become effective. Additionally, City may terminate

Page 255

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



portions of the leasecl Premises grounds, excepting the SP De-pgt Building, during the term

trereof Uy giving Chamber notice, in writing, at lcast ninety (90) days prior to the date when any

such tenrrination shall become efftctive.

'I'he provisions of Paragraph 3 regarding dilectives or decisiotrs of the State of California

supersecle any rights or provisions of this paragraph'

8. Hol$ Over

Slrould the Charnber hold over the Premises, or any portion thereof, after expiration of

the term of this Lease, or any extension thereof, with thtl written colnent of the City, express or

impliecl, it shall be deemed !o be a month-to-month tenancy only. The renl; payable to the City

for any iroldover period, without the written consent of the City shall be $2,600 per month.

9, Notigpp

All lotices to be given pursuant to this Lease by either party to the otlter shall be deemed

to have been fully givcn ivhen made in writing and deposited in the United States mail, certified,

postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

@r:
President and CEO, Folsom Chamber of Commerce

200 Wool Street, F'olsom, CA 95630

Phone: 916-985'2698
Fax: 916-985-4117

With a copy to the then current Chair of the Chamber Board of Directors at the

above-referenced address.

s:
CitY Manager, CitY of Folsom

50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630

Phone: 916'355:7201
Fax: 916-35 5'7328

'l'he acldr.ess to which potices may be mailed may be changed by written notice to the

acldress, and in t6e manner set forth above. Nothing herein shall preclude the giving of notice by

personal service.

10. Subletting / Assisnmcnts

Chamber shall not sublet the Prernises, in whole or in part, nor assign this Lease or any

interest therein, except as agrced to by the City Manager in writing. As latetprovided herein,

Chamber m&y rent, on u peiiodic basis, portions of the Premises (sea Use of Premises).

Page 256

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



I l. Partnership /-Asencv Disclaimer

Chamber, ancl apy an<j all agents arrd employees of Chamber', shall act in an independent

capacity an6 not as officirs or empioyees of'the City or any political subdivisions of the City.

Nothing in this Lease shall be construecl or constructed as constituting the parties hereto as

partners,

12. Hpld Hqrlnlesq

Chamber assumes full responsibility lor the condition of the Premises and for any and all

activities conducted thereon by Chanrber or its sub-lessees during the term of this Lease.

Chamber, on behalf of itself and its sub-lessees, agrees to indemnifyo protect, defend, save and

ItotO ttte iity, it* officem, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from any arrd all claims or

causes of aciion for death or ir{uiy to persons, or damage to property resulting finm intentional

or negligent actsn errors, or omissions of chamber or chamber's officersn employees, agents,

volunteers, contractorso sub-contractors and sub-lessees during the term ofthis Lea$e, or from

any violatircn of any federal, state, or municipal law or ot'dinance, to the extent caused, in whole

orin part, by the *illfut misconduct, negligent acts or omissions of Chamber or its officers,

employees, igents, volunteers, contractors, sub-contractors or sub-lessees, or by the nature and

the-character bf Charnber's or sub-lessee's activities. It is understood that the duty of Chamber

to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set fofih in Section 2778 of the

California iiuil Cod"- Acceptance by the City of insurance ceftificates and endorsements

required under this Lease dois not relieve the Chamber from liability undel this indemnification

*A notd harmless clause. 'l'his indemnification and hold hatmless clause shall apply to any

damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been

detefrined to apply, By execution of this Lease, Chamber acknowledges and agreesto the

provisions of this dection and that it is a material element of consideration. These obligations of

ihe Chamber shall survive zury termination of the Lease and any amendments thereto.

13. Insurance

Chamber shall furnish a Certificate of Insumnce to the City, with the City of Folsom, its

officers, authoriz-ed agents, volunteers and employees named as additionally named insureds'

Such insurance shall be in an amount and contain the terms as set forth in Exhibit B to this

Lease, anct is incorpolated herein by reference.

Chamber agree$ to keep in place its own policy covering its personal prnperty and agrees

that the City ilsgrance shall not 
"ou"r 

any personal property loss or damage or any injury on the

prcmises.

l4- Non-Discrimination

Chamber agrees that it witl not discriminate against any empkryee or applicant for

employment becau.se of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age or physical

tranOicap. Chamber agrees to take action to ensure that applicants are employed and treated

Page 257

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



durigg employment without regarcl to their raceo coloro religion, ancestry, nationalorigin, sex,

;t;, ; physical landicap. 1,Se c Catifornia Government Code $$ 1 2920- 12994 for futther details.)

15. Los$..qq

The City will not be responsible for losses or damage to petsonal propelty, equipment or

materials of Chamber except where such loss or damage is solely caused by the City.

16, Debt Liabilitv Disclaimer

The City shall not be liable for any debts or claims that arise fiom the operation of this

L,ease.

17, Taxes fo$sessorY l$.terest

Should any taxes be levied pertaining to the Premises or personal property on the

premises, Chamber agrees to pay ail lawful taxes, assessments, or charges which at any time may

be levie<j. It is underitood that this Lease may create a possessol'y interest subject to pl'operty

taxation and Chamber may be subject to the payment of taxes levied on such possessory interest.

l8- Comnliance with Laws

Chamber shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all the laws and requirements of
all municipal, county, state and federal authorities now in force, or which may be in force

pertaining to the leased Premises.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 'the City of Folsom has conducted a Self-

Evaluation Plal alcl has adopted a Transition Plan pertaining to various locations in the City,

including the Premises. City agrees to pay for all ADA required exterior structuml

impro.,reirents to the SP Depot-Building and grounds. For purposes of this Lease, ADA lequired

exierior structural improvernents shall include, but not be limited ton exterior improvements to

the structure of the sf, Depot Building and immovable structures on the grounds of the Premises,

such as walkways, t?mps, balconies, and steps. The City shall make such improventents over

time and consisient witir the Transition Plan as adopted or later amended' As described herein,

such alterations shall be done with minimal disruption to Chamber activities and shall be

reasonably coorclinated by the parties. 'l'he City shall notte responsible for ADA required

improvemelts on the intErior of the SP l)epot Building. Chamber agrees to pay for and is

responsible for any non-structural improvemant on the llremises, including, but not limited to,

furnis6ings, benches, tables, racks, and ATM machines. Chamber shall be responsible for any

interior {DA r.equirements necessitated by any of its employees, customeru or guests. Upon

satisfbctory completion of any ADA work by Chamber, the City shall provide written

notification that iuch work has beeu completed to the satisfaction of the City'

19. Coqdition of,Premises / Constru$tio$-,of the Plaza

Chamber occupies the Premises presently and accepts the Premises as being in good

Page 258

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



oldgl.o condition and repair unless otherwise specified hereitr, and agrees that on the last day of

the term, of sooner terminatiorr of this Lease, to sunender to the city the Ptemises with any

$ppurtenances or improvements thereto, in the same condition as when teceived, reasonable use

anb *.ar thereof and damage by act of God excepted.

The parties rer:ognize that certain areas in and around the Premises will be distutbed,

access will be restrictedlbut not baned), utilities maybe temporarily interrupted, and Charnber

activities on the premises may be lirnitecl at times. Chamber recogttizes the Light and ability to

alter, disturb, and interf'ere with access and use of the Premises without compensation to

Chamber. C'ity agrees that, to the extent reasonable and feasible, it shall endeavor to lirnit

disruption unA *itt pr.ovide advance notice where possible. Excepting emergcncies and

accidents, utilities and access to the Premises will not be disrupted for mote than four (4) hours

on any one day without advanced notice to Chamber and reasonable efforts made to

accommodate the Chamber's access to, and rrse Of the Premises.

20. Alterations

Chamber shall make no structural alteration to the Premises without the written consent

of City and with any required permits. As a condition to giving any such consent, the City may,

at its option, requiri Chambelio r€move any such altetutions, improvements or additions at the

expiration of the Lease and to restore the Premises to its priot condition. Unless the City

teqrit"* their removal, all alterations, improvements or additions which are made to the Premises

by'Chamber shall become the property of the City and shall be surrendered with the Premises at

the expiration or ear:lier terminatiorr of the Lease, in good condition, reasonable wear and tear

excepted.

21. Mgintena4qc and Renair-of Premi$es

l, Chamber, at its sole cost arrd expense, shall repair and maintain the Premises arrd all

improvements on the Premises in good condition. I'he parties agl'ee that maintenancs mean$

ongoing work unclertaken to remedy deficiencies that occur through nonnal use in order to keep

the*preirises and all improvements thereon in good repair and working order. For exatnples, it is

considered maintenance if:
a. 'I'5e fi.equency of repair for an item is typically less than five (5) years; or

b. Thc cosi or benefit of continued maintenance of an item is less than its

rcPlacement cost.

2. In adclition to the maintenance obligations set forth above, Chamber shall hear the cost

of agy repair that is outside the definition of maintenance up to $1,000.00 fbl any single itenr of
repair ufto a nraxinrum of $5,000.00 per calendar yea[, excepting interior ADA costs which are

the responsibility of the Chamber.-3. 
Chamber shall rnaintain the Premiseso exterior sidewalks and landscape on a weekly

basis at its sole cost and expense.

By entering into this l-easeo Chamber accepts the Premises as being in good and sanitary

or.der, condition, aird repair, and agrees on the last day of said term, or sooner ternrination of this

Lease, to surrender said Prernises in the sanre condition as when received, ordinary wear and tear

Page 259

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



excepted. The par.ties also acknowledge that Clramber is cunently in possession of the Premiscs

undei' the existing Lease, arrd has continually ocoupied the Premises since 1989.

22. Protcction of PreErises

No dumping of refuse by Chamber is pernritted in any area of the Premises, and Chamber

shall not co**it oi suffer to be colnmitted any waste or nuisance upon the Prcmises. Charnber

agfees not to cut of reilrove any ffees or brush thereon except as approved in writing, and in

alnan.., by the City, Chamber further agrees that it shall at all times exeroise due diligence in

the prntection of the Premises against damage or destruction by fire or other cause.

23, Hazar4pus S.gbstances

Chamber agree$ that it will comply with all laws, either Fedoral, State or local, existing

during the term of the Lease pertaining to the use, storage, transportation, and disposal of any

hazardous substance as that tenn is defined in such applicable law. In the event City, or any of
its affiliates, successol.s, principals, employees or agents should incur any liability, costn expense,

including attorneys' ftes and costso as a result of the Chamber's use, storage trzursportation, or

disposal of any hazatdous substance, including any petroleum derivative, the Chamber shall

indemnify, defend antl hold harmless any of these individuals against such liability. Where the

Chanberis found to be in breach of this provision due to the issuance of a government order

directing the Chamber to cease and desist any illegal action in connection with a hazardous

substanCe, or to remediate a contaminated condition caused by the Chamber, or any person

acting under Chamber's direct conffol and authority, Chamber shall be responsible for all costs

and expenses complying with such order, including any and all expenses irnposed on or incumed

by City in connection with, or in response to such government otder. In the event a government

o*d"r is issued naming the Chamber or the Chamber incurs any liability, during or after the term

of the Lease, in connection with contamination which pre-existed, the Chamber's obligations and

occupancy gnder this Lease or which were not caused by the Chamber, City shall hold harmless,

indemnify, and defsnd the Chamber in connection therewith and shall be solely responsible as

between Chamber and the City for all efforts and expenses therefore.

24. Use-qf Pre$ises

The Premises shall be used for the official functions of the Folsom Chamber of
Commerce. Chamber may rent portions of the Prenrises on a periodic basis for private parties,

clas$e$, arrd other sinrilar uses with the consent of the City Managero or his/her designee. No
pol.tion of the Premises shall be rented on an ongoing basis if such rental will compete with an

existing business in the t{istoric District and no portion shall be rented lbr the sole purpose of
selling food or clrink. The parties recogniz.e that the Chamber occasionally rcnts out space on the

Premises for nreetings or conferenoes and nothing irr this section is intended to prohibit such use'

In the event that the Premises are rented or permissibly used as set forth aboveo either the

Chamber's insurance shall cover the activity, or the Chamber shall obtain insurance fium the

person or entity rcnting ol using the Premises that complies in all particulars with the

requirements set forth in Exhibit B.

Page 260

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



25. Citv's Bight to Eptqf

During the term of this Leaseo and upon reasonable notice, there shall be and is hereby

expressly reserved to the City, and to any of its agents, contractors, employees, or

repr.eseniatives, the right at any and all times, and any and all places, to tetnpomrily enter upon

the Premises for survey, inspection or othcr lawful City purpose'

26. Relocatipn

This tenancy is of a temporary nature, and the parties to this Lease agrce that no

Relocation Payment or Relocation Advisoty Assistance or costs pul'suant to Government Code

sections 7260, et .req., or any regulations irrplementing or intelpreting such sections will be

sought or providec{ in any form as a consequence ofpast, prcsent or future tenancy,

21, S-gfrender pf Premises

Chamber shall peaceably surrender the Premises to the City at the end of the Lease term

or any extensions thereof, in broom-slean condition and in as good condition as when Chamber

took possession under this Lease and as documented by the walk through inspection, normal

wear-and tear excepted. Chamber shall, on City's request, remove Chamber's pl'operty on or

before the Expiratibn Date and promptly repair all damage to the Premises caused by such

removal.

If Chamber abandons or sunenders the Premises, or is dispossessed by process of law or

otherwise, Chamber shall remove from the Premises all of Chamber's propefiy, and repair any

damage caused by such removal. If such rcmoval is not completed before the expiration or

termination of the Lease, City shall have the right, but no obligation, to remove same, and the

Chamber shall pay City, on demand, for all reasonable costs of removal and storagc of the

property and for ientai value of the Premises from the end o{'the Lease term though the end of
irt" ti*6 reasonably requirecl for renroval. City shall also have the right to retain or dispose of all

or any portion of sirch property if Chamber does not pay all such costs and tetrieve the property

withiir ien (10) days afier notice fi'onr the City, in which event title to said possessions shall be

transferred to,'und ve$t in the City. Chamber waives all claims against the City for any damage

or loss resulting from City's rernoval, storage, retention or disposition of any such property. On

the Expiratio,t but", Chamber shall sun'ender all keys to the Premises, and said keys shall be

deliveied to the City at the address specified in the Notice section of this Lease.

28. Easements and Rishts gilWnv

This Lease is subject to all existing easemonts and rights of way. City further reserves

the right to grant additional public utility easements as may be necessary, whether recotded or

unrecirded,-and Chamber hereby consents to the granting of any such easements. Any public

utility rcquesting an easement will be required to reimburse City for any danrages caused by

construction work in the utility eascment area'

Page 261

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



29. RecgJprv o.f L-PsQl Fees

If actiol is brought by the parties to this Lease to enforce the tet'ms containcd herein, the

prevailing party shall Ue entiiled to rccover attorneys' fees in said action as the court shall

istermine io be reasonable, which shall be fixed by the coutt as part of the costs of said action.

30. Mutua.l Consent / AmendmeFt

Notwithstanding any provision conlained herein to the contmry, this Lease may be

altered, changed or amJrrdedby the written mutual consent of the parties. T'he City Council

ressr.ves the a=uthority to review and decide any amendments to this l,ease that alter the term

and/or termination provisions, or the firrancial obligations of either party herein. 'fhe City

Manager has the authority to execllte any and all other amendments to this Lease.

31. Waiver

If City waives the performance of any term, covenant or condition contained in this

Lease, such waiver shall not be deemed to be a waiver of that or subsequent term, covenant or

condiiion. F'ailure by City to enforce any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease for

unv l."gttr of time sliall not be deemed to waive or decrease City's right to insist thereafter upon

,iri"t piformance by Chamber'. Waiver by City of any term, covenant, or condition contained in

this Llase may only be made by a written document properly signed by the City Manager or

designee.

32. Bindiqig Clausp

The terms of this Lease and the covenants and agreements herein, shall apply to, and

shall bind and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, assigns, and successors in interest

of the parties hereto.

33. Severabilitv

If a1y provision of this Lease is detelmined to be illegal or unentbrceable, this

determination *ltull not affbct any other provision of this Lease, and all other provisions shall

rcmain in full force and effbct.

34. Bntire Aqrpentent / I{ease ModificqJion

This Lease and any attached exhibits coustitute the entire agreement between the City

and Charnber. No prior written or prior, contemporaneous or subsequent oral promises or

reprcsentations shall be binding. This Lease, together with_its exhibits, contains all agreements

olithe parties hereto regarding ihe subject matter hereofand supersedes any prior negotiations.

There have been no ,.*f,rr**nlations Uy City or understatrdings made between the City and the

Chamber other than those set {brth in this Lease and its exhibits. Any ambiguous language in the

contract shall be interpreted as to its fair nreaning, and not strictly for or against either pafty as

both parties to this Lease jointly pal"ticipated in its preparation. Each parl;y has consulted with, or

Page 262

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel before entering into this Lease and lirlly

understands the terms and conditions set forth herein'

35. Ilrokers

Chamber.and City leprcsent and warrant to each other that neither of them has consulted

or negotiated with any broker or finder with regard to the Premises'

36. Sgctiqr Hgadings

All section headings contained helein are fbr convenience of r:efbtence only, and are not

intended to define or linrit the scope of any prcvision of this Lease.

37 Essencc of Tir.ne

Time is of the essence for each and all of the provisions, covenants and conditions of this

I]ND OF TI}XT - SICNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

I.,ease.

38. Govcrn-ing Law

This l,ease and all provisions herein shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California and venue shall lie in the County of Sacramento, State of California.

39. Ag$hp,ritv of Sisnq.fqrigs

City and Chamber represent and warmnt that the person executing the l,ease is duly

authorizecl to execute and deliver same on behalf of the entity for whiclt he or she is signing,

whether it be a colporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership or

otlierwise, apd thaithis Lease is binding upon said entity in accordance with its terms.

Page 263

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



IN WITNtriSS WHARAOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly

executed.

CHAMBER OF"COMMERCE: (If a corporotlon, nutsl ha sigtrul by lwo ollicers 0f the
corporullorr per Corporaliotts Code section 313)

Q4- l5'/Jo?a-
l'ax I.D. Number

Signature

Print Name

Title

Ever"t W City Manager

AV

w. Finance

GINAL APPROVED AS T'O FORM:

(p l

s

Date

Print Name

Title

CITY OF FOLSOM, A Municipal Corporation:

f)ate

ATTES'I:

I

als
Christa S City Clerk

tnust

J

\clztl rt
Bruce C. Cline, City Attomey Date

89

at oaft (
is faken

orovides.
itate if ii

Page 264

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of Califomia
County of Sacramento )

On June 4,2014,before me, C.L. Glass. Notary Public" personally appeared

Joseph P. Gasliardi

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) iskre
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that heA'he&ey executed the same

in his/herffieir authorized capacity(ies); and that by hisAe+'4he* signature(+) on the instrument
the person(s)6 or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) actedo executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERruRY under the laws of State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

LkA*\MSrcNRtunn
PLACENOTARY SEAI ABOVE

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document

and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document,

Description of attached document

Title or type of document: Lease Agreement for Prer.nises Located at 200 Wool Street - SP

Depot Buildine the Citv of Folsom and Folsom Chamber of

Document Date: Number of Pages:-
Signer(s) Other than Named Above:

Comml$lon # t9171ll
Notrry Publlc - Crllfornlr

Srcramento Counly

c. L.

Page 265

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



EXI-IIBI'T A

Page 266

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



ff
H
d

Leidesdarff Street
I

of lhe
Iiae of

of the

Point of Baglnning

sp
so

N53?.4'538 230.00'
E
0

2G
ss
83'a

s'

rt Chamber of

L -----s$a4'Sgw u

d
(l

Sutter Street Cfiamber of Commerce
Lease Area . n-ot-zo(E

I

Parcel E
15,154* sq ft

Parcel G
29,017* sq ft

6@V./prdp7aa! u4 tt4, I ffi..t5-*n95 Attt cg-N

-m
EF

3d$
ri! 

= 
i+i m

{dffi:ijoz:iu

EEH"i
6E8
-a'Emsn'I6

-m
U)

Page 267

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



EXHIBITA
2ol2

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PREMISES- LiicereoAr 2oowool STREET
(sP DEPOT BUILDING)

DESCATPTIoN Or
cI'rYOI|nOLSOn4

CIIAMBER OT COMIVINRCI'
LtrASAARDA

ocroBlrR-2009

BETNG A PoRTloN OF ',DEpoT GROUND'i A8 s,/o'yAt oN TflE "MAP OF FALSoM''

SAID MAF 8EIN6 I:ILED IN THE SACF.I.MENTO COUNTY RECOROERS OFT4CE IN

BOOK 1 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 7, AITY OF FOLSOM' CAUNTY OF SACRAMENTQ STATE

OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOITO''USJ

EEGINNING AI A POINT ON THESOUTHWESTEft LY LINE OF THE NORTHWESTERLY

PRoJEcTtoNoFwooL$TREETFRC,Mwf/'ctlpotvTT,.,E,NIERs6cr,oNoFTHE
SOUTHP{STER LY NAHT-OF'WAY LINE OF LEIOESOORFF STREFT AMD SATD

souTHWEsTERLYLINEoF'1HEN}RTHflE9TERLYPRoJEanoNoFwooLsrREEr
EEARS NoRrrt 36'64',01" wE T 100'00 FEET; THENCE FRoM sn'D-:l',|ll oF

EEGINMNaALoN6sA'DsoUIt,WEsTERtYL|NEANDPRoJecnoNsoUTHSS,64,0T,

EAST S!i.OO FEET; THENCETEAV'NG SA'D t'A'E SOUTH 69o04'63'WE9T 23A'00 FEET:

THE^,oE^,oR?,1136.64,01,wilsT85.00F88?;THENGFNoRTH69"0463,EASTe30.00

FEET TO TH E P OI NT OF 8E6,NA'ING.

PREPAREDAY

GA. voulvcco JsuLTlNG"H*)6_k?

8y: GE|?#.LDA. YoUNG

rs 38.t2

E <P.6-30.10

L:Volsonulddovalolmont AglncylRailroad Nek amnll?at2'0'0lp'oloscd'/esse'doo

DATE: Octobotl, 20Ag

A.
y.ouNcl

[u,3853

Page 268

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



EXI{II]IT B

Insumnce

At all tirnes dgring the tcrm ollthis Lease, at its sole cost, Chamber shall maintain policies of
insurance as set fofth herein:

1. Proper:ty Insumnge. Fire and extended coverage insurance covering the Prcmises,

improvements, equipment and furnishings located thereon, and Chamber's per$onal

plopefty in amounts not less than their fi.rll replacement value.

2. Gqtrera[.Iniability:

a. Comprehensive general liability insumnce includirrg, but not limited to,
protection for claims of bodily iqjury or death and property damage liability,
blanket contractual liability, arrd product and completed operations liability.

b. Coveiage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Conrmercial

Cenetal Liability coverage form CG 0001 (occurrence).

c. Claims-made coverage is not acceptable.

d. The limits of liability shall not be less than:

Each occurrence: One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000)

Products & Coprpleted Operations: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Contractual Liability: One Million Dollars ($l'000'000)

e. If a general aggl'egate linrit of liability is used, the minimum general aggregate

shall be twice the 'each occunence' linrit orjthe policy shall contain an

endorsement stating that the general aggregate lirnit shall apply separately to
the projeot that is the subject ofthe contract.

f: lf a products and completed opelations aggregate limit of liability is used, the

minimum products and completed operation aggregate shall be twice the each

occurrence limit or the policy shall contain an endorsement stating that the

products arrd completed operations aggregate limit shall apply separately to the

projeet which is the subject of the confact.

3. Worker'sComPensation

a. Worker's Compensation Insumnce, with coverage as rcquircd by the State of
California (unless the Chamber is a qualified self-insurer with the State of
California), and Employers Liabi lity covemge.

b. Employer's Liability Coverage shall not be less than the statutory

requirements.

4. Other lg{Utance Provi.dg0$:

a. The Charnber's General Liability shall contain the following provisions:

i. The City, its officials, enrployees, agents and volunteers shall be

specifically named and covered as additional insured as respects liability
arising out of activities perfbrmed by or on behalf of the Chamber, and

premises occupied or used by the Chamber. This shall be set fbt'th in a

Page 269

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



separate additional insured endorcement in a form acceptable to the City
Attofney.

ii, The policy shall contain no special lirnitations on the scope of coverage

aflbrded to the City, its officials, employees, agent$ or volunteers'

b. For any claims related to the l,ease or the leased Premiseso the Chamber's

insumnce coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its officers,

officials, employees, agents, or volunteers and any City insurance shall be

excess of the Chamber's insurance and shall not contribute to it.

c. Any fhilure to comply with rcporting or other provisions of the policies on the

part of the Chamber, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect
coverage provided to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents or

volunteers.

d. The Chamber's Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability policies

shall contain an endorsement that waives any rights of subrogation against the

City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and voluuteers.

e. Chamber shall endeavor to require that each insurance policy shall state that

coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in

coverage or in limits, non-renewed, or nraterially changed except after 30 days

prior written notice by certified mail has been given to the city. 'Ien days

prior written notice by certified mail shall be given to the City in the event of
cancellation due to nonpayment of premium.

5, Accentability of Insurers: Insurance.is to be placed with insurers with a Bests'

rating of no less than A:VII.
6. The Chaprber shall furnish the City with Certificates of Insurance and separate

original additional insurcd endorsements or insurance binders, signed by a person

authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, evidencing the coverage

required by this section, ancl any Supplementary Conditions, in a form acceptable

to ihe City Attorney. Upon request, the Chamber shall fumish complete, certified
copies of all required insurance policies, including original endorsements

specifi cally required hereunder.

T . Chanrber shall, prior to the effective date of this Lea$e, and annually thereafter

within ten (10) days following renewal of each such policy required hercin, or upoll

City's request, f.urnish to City copies of the policies or certificates of insurance and

additional insured endorsetnents reasonably acceptable to the Folsom Clty
Attorney. Any self-insured retention or deductible shall be subject to the prior

approval of the City,

L The Chamber shall leport, by telephone within 24 hours, and also report in writing
to the City within 48 hours, after Chamber or its agents have knowledge of any

accident or occunen$e involving the death of, or serious injury to any person or
persons on the leased Premises.

9. Such report shall contain:

a. the date and time of the occuruence,

b. the names and addresses ofall persons involved, and

Page 270

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



c, a description ofthe accident or occunence and the naturc and extent ofthe
injury or damage.

10. The City, at its discretion, ntay increase the amounts and types of insurunce

coverage required hercunder at any time during the term of the contract by giving

30 days wt{tten notice.

11. If the Chamber fails to procure or maintain insurance as required by this section,

and any Supplementary Conditions, or fails to furnish the City with prool'of such

insurance, the City, at its disctetion, may pfocurc any or all such insurance.

Prcmiums for such insurance procured by the City shall be due and payable by the

Chamber inrrnediately upon the City's obtaining the insurance and making demand

tlterefor.

12. Failurr of the City to obtain such insurance shall in no way relieve the Chamber

{tom any of its rcsponsibilities under the contract'

13. The failure of the City to enforce irr a tirnely manner any of the provisions of this

section shall not act as a waiver to enforcement of any of these provisions at any

time during the term of the contract.

Page 271

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 272

07/27/2021 Item No.8.



q

,t'{-l},S(-11!}9"

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing to receive testimony and to
allow for the submittal of ballots before the close of the public hearing.

Staff recommends that following the close of the public hearing, the item be continued to the
end of the meeting while the City Clerk canvasses the ballots.

If the majority of the votes are in favor of the proposed district, staff recommends that the City
Council adopt Resolution No. 10672 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report,
Confirming the Diagram and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for
Maintenance and Servicing of Improvements within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping
and Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On May ll ,2021 , the City Council approved Resolution No. 1 0625 - A Resolution Approving
the Preliminary Engineers Report, Declaring the Intentionto Orderthe Formation of the Prairie
Oaks Ranch No.2 Landscaping and Lighting District, to Levy and Collect Assessments, to
Provide Notice of Public Hearing and Direct the Mailing of Assessment Ballots Within the

Proposed Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 Landscaping and Lighting District in the City of Folsom.

I

meeting DATE: 7t271202t

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10672 -A Resolution Approving the Final
Engineer's Report, Confirming the Diagram and Assessments,

and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for Maintenance and

Servicing of Improvements Within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2
Landscaping and Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal
Year 2021-22

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 273

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



on April 12,2021, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10611 A Resolution Initiating
Proceedings for the Formation of a Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District to be

Known as Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 Landscaping and Lighting District.

The attached Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 (Attachment 2) is submitted
for City Council review and approval. Included within the report is the following:

Plans and specifications for the maintenance of the improvements.

Estimate of the cost of maintaining the improvements.

Diagram of the assessment district.

Assessment of the estimated costs for maintaining the improvements.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53753, ballots were mailed to all current property
owners within the proposed district. Along with the ballot, the property owners received afact
sheet describing the purpose of the new district in addition to a description of the proposed
annual assessment. For Fiscal Year 2021-2022 the proposed Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 annual
assessment will be $313.91 per year as well as an escalator not to exceed 3%o that would allow
yearly adjustments if needed in the future.

Under the provisions of Proposition 218, a public hearing must be held on the levy of new
assessments at least 45 days after notice of the proposed assessment was mailed to record
owners of each parcel in the new District. The attached resolution directs the mailing of such

notice and sets the public hearing for July 27 ,2021, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers,

50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California 95630.

At the public hearing, ballots will be counted and, in the absence of a majority protest against

the imposition of a new assessment, the City Council may consider approving this resolution
to approve the Final Engineer's Report, form the district, and authorizethe levy and collection
of the new assessments. The proceeding for the formation of a new assessment district shall
be abandoned if a majority protest exists.

As part of the formation process, and in order to levy the annual assessment should the district
be formed, an Engineer's Report must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Article XIIID, Section 4 of the California Constitution (also known as Proposition 218) and

Article 4 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1 972 (Sections 22565 through 2257 4 of the
Streets and Highways Code).

POLICY / RULE

The City Council is required to approve, or modifu and approve, the Engineer's Report as part
of the formation process pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and
Highways Code $ 22586). The City Council is also required to adopt a resolution declaring

A.

B.

C.

D.

2Page 274

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



the intention to form a new landscaping and lighting district and to levy and collect assessments

pursuant to Section 22587 of the Streets and Highways Code.

ANALYSIS

The Prairie Oaks Ranch Landscaping and Lighting District ("District") was formed by
Resolution No. 4799 on July 25, 1995 to maintain improvements within the district. These

improvements were described as landscape corridors, project entryways, project signage,

landscaped medians, streetlights, sound walls/fences, and open space areas. This district was

formed prior to Proposition 218 and therefore did not have an escalator built into the annual

rate.

The underlying district is one of the oldest districts in the City that has not already gone through

the Proposition 218 process. The lack of CPI prevents the district from adjusting with inflation
and maintaining its intended level of service. The District maintains the aforementioned
improvements along the frontages of Blue Ravine Road, Prairie City Road, Russi Road, Grover
Road, and Riley Street, as well as the median on Iron Point Road between Prairie City Road

and Bamhill Drive. In addition to maintaining these areas the district is also responsible for
servicing costs for irrigation water and electricity to the street and landscape lights.

Revenue from the existing district assessment (approximately $195,000 annually) is allocated
yearly to maintain the district's features but is deficient roughly $82,000 annually. Of the

$287,000 budgeted last year approximately 70%o of the budget cunently covers scheduled and

unscheduled landscape maintenance; 2.5Yo to streetlight maintenance and supplies; 30%;o to

water and electricity; and 33%o to incidental cost (non-landscape contract services, electrical

repairs, vandalism response/repairs, hazard tree removal, sidewalk repair, yearly backflow
testing, preparation of Engineer's Reports, publications/mailings, staff, overhead, county

auditor fee). The existing budget has been unable to fund the expected day-to-day unscheduled

costs such as inigation repairs and plantitree replacements, in addition to not being able to set

aside funds for life-cycle costs in the district. This in turn puts this district in a deficit annually
that one way or another needs to be addressed.

The primary objective of forming a new Landscaping and Lighting District, separate from the

existing Prairie Oaks Ranch District, is to address the deferred maintenance items over and

above the maintenance and services provided in the existing District, as well as to provide the
necessary funds to achieve the intended level of services and maintenance within the L&L
District boundaries. These include, but are not limited to, replacing missing or dead plant
material; systematically replacing plant material that is over 25 years old which is showing
signs of severe decline; centralizing the districts inigation controllers to conserve water and

improve inigation management; repairing old and non-functioning sprinkler and drip systems;

repair I replace broken landscape and entry lighting; supplement the existing scheduled and

unscheduled maintenance budget; and allocating funds for future repairs and life-cycle costs.

The intent is to allow funds from the existing district to remain in place to continue funding
most of the day-to-day costs of the district, while the new district will fund the needed repairs

JPage 275

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



and set aside for long-term repair and replacements. The district boundary of the new proposed

district is identical to the existing district.

As part of the process to form a new assessment district, staff conducted public outreach to
educate and inform the Prairie Oaks Ranch property owners about the proposed new
assessment. MeetingswereheldonFebruary lTth,andMarch 11,2021. Eachpropertyowner
was mailed apost card and a letter inviting them to the meetings. In addition, the City's website
includes information about the proposed assessment and staff has spoken with numerous
residents via phone calls and emails about the proposed measure as well. City Staff as well as

the current Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee representative for Prairie
Oaks Ranch, has distributed information about the new district via mail, the City Website, and

social media. Early feedback from the meetings with residents is most property owners
understand the need and value of a supplementary assessment.

In calculating the new district's assessment, the consultant factored in the type and quantity of
improvements, the age and condition, the repairs andlor replacements needed, and the funds
required to sustain maintenance within the district into future years. In discussions with the
property owners atthe outreach meetings it became apparent that the majority of the property
owners desire is to see the improvements repaired / improved. As such, the City's engineering
consultant structured an assessment proposal that would facilitate the renovation of the

approved improvements over a 10-year period.

This report and resolution is being submitted for City Council review and approval. The
preliminary Engineer's Report is prepared in accordance with Proposition 218 and the Streets

and Highways Code and includes the following: plans and specifications, estimated costs and

budgets, method of apportionment, the assessment for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, and the
assessment diagram.

The property owners of Prairie Oaks Ranch Landscaping and Lighting District were sent a
ballot to vote on the proposal to form a new assessment district in early June, meeting the
required 45-day period for the District property owners to consider the proposed assessment.

At the public hearing, ballots will be counted and, in the absence of a majority protest against

the imposition of a new assessment, the City Council may consider approving this resolution
to approve the Final Engineer's Report, form the district, and authorizethe levy and collection
of the new assessments. The formation of a new assessment district shall be abandoned if a

majority protest exists.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There will be no direct fiscal impact to the City of Folsom General Fund. All costs associated

with this district will be borne by the district and for the benefit of the district residents.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This does not apply as there is no environmental review aspect to the engineer's report.

4
Page 276

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



I

)

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10672 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report,
Confirming the Diagram and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for
Maintenance and Servicing of Improvements Within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2
Landscaping and Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Final Engineer's Report - Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District, JuIy 2021

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Director
Parks & Recreation Department

5
Page 277

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 278

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10672

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL ENGINEER'S REPORTO CONFIRMING
THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENTS, AND ORDERING THE LEVY OF'

ASSESSMENTS FOR MAINTENANCE AND SERVICING OF' IMPROVEMENTS
WITHIN PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH NO.2 LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICT

IN THE CITY OF F'OLSOM FOR F'ISCAL YEAR 202I.22

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2021, this City Council adopted Resolution No. 10611, a
resolution initiating proceeding for the formation of a Landscaping and Lighting Assessment

District to be known as Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District; and

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021, this City Council adopted Resolution No. 10624, a

resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report, Declaring the Intention to Order
Formation of the Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District, to Levy and

Collect Assessments, to Provide Notice of Public Hearing and Direct the Mailing of Assessment

Ballots within the Proposed Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District in the
City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, on July 27,2021, ballots were counted and there was no majority protest

regarding the formation of the Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 Landscaping and Lighting District.

NOW, THEREFORE' THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CrrY OF FOLSOM DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Approve as submitted, the Final Engineer's Report filed with the City Clerk for Prairie
Oaks Ranch No.2 Assessment District, July 2021for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

Confirm and approve the diagram and assessments as set forth in the Final Engineer's

Report for Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 Assessment District for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

Order the maintenance and servicing of improvements as set forth in the Final Engineer's
Report for Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 Assessment District for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Declare that the assessments set forth in the Engineer's Report now constitute liens upon
the lots or parcels ofland described in said report.

Direct the City Clerk to file a certified copy of said diagram and assessments with the
Auditor of Sacramento County no later than the second Monday in August 202I.

Request that the Auditor of Sacramento County enter on the Sacramento County
Assessment Roll the assessment for each lot or parcel of land in the amount indicated in
the Engineer's Report.

Resolution No. 10672
Page I of2

I

2.

J

4.

5

6

Page 279

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this27ft day of July 202lby the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmembers:

NOES: Councilmembers:

ABSENT: Councilmembers:

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10672
Page2 of2 Page 280

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 281

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Crv or Fomonn
PnRtRre Onrs RRrucn No. 2
LaruoscaprNc AND Ltenrlrue Assessruemr Dtsrntcr

Frrunl Eruerruern's Rrpont

FISCAL YEAR 2O2T-22
JUw2OZL

PURSUANT To rHE LRrrroscaptrue Rruo Lte Hrtruc Acr or 1972 nruo Anlcu XlllD op rHe

Cnu po Rru rn Corustrutrotrr

Erucrrue en or Wonr:

SClConsultingGroup
4745 Mnruaets Blvo
FnTRFTELD, CRlr ponrutn 94534
PHone 707.430.4300
Fex707,430.43L9
www.sci-cg.com

Page 282

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



(Tnrs nncr lrureNltoxnllv lerr emrur)

Page 283

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe i

Cwor Folsoll

CrY Couttcn-

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor

YK Chalamcherla, Member

KerriHowell, Member

Rosario Rodriguez, Member

Pnnrs & Rrcnelrot Dtnecron

Lonaine Poggione

Mulrcrpll Larosclpe Senvrces Mamcen

Zachary Perras

EHcneenorWonr

SClConsulting Group

Crvor Fomon
Pnnrnre Onxs Assessurw Dlsrntcr No.2
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2021-22

s

Page 284

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnep ii

TIeLe oF CoNTENTS

Ovenvtew....,
Assessuerur PRocess,......

Lecrsmrve ANALYSIs .....,..

PuHs mo SpecrnclrpNs ........,......

DescRrptrott or lupRoveuENTS ....,...,,,,

EsrrtlRrr or GostnHo Buoerr Ftscn-Yem 2021-22

Mernoo or ApponrtoNMENT

Drscussrolr or Berurrtt
BEruerr FRcrons.

GeNEml vEnsus Specru Brruerr...
Zones op Brruerr.,,
MerHo0 or AssessutENT.,,,,..........,..

REsrorrurnu PRopeRrtrs

cotvttrlencnt/lruousrntnt- Pnoprnrtrs , ., .

VRcRrur Pnopenttes .......
Ornrn PnoprRrrs.
Cot tsutrlen Pnlce lruogx ADJUSTMENTS

AssessmEnr Stlremem..

Assesslrem Dnonnm......

Assessuem Rou- .,........,

1

1

1

2

5

5

7

I
8

I
10

13

13

15

16

17

18

18

t9

21

23

CrY OF FOLSOM

PRARTE OAKs Assrssvem DlsrRtcr No. 2

ENGINEER,S REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConeultlngcroup

Page 285

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnep iii

Lsr or Frcunrs

Froune 1 - Esrrn,tRrg or Cosr Ruo 8u00er........ 7

FrcuRe 2 - SuutrrRnv or CoMstNeo Cosr Esrtrr,tRrE ......,,,.,......, ,.....,,,,...,,,,,.... 19

CFYoF FoLSOM

PnRrnre onrs ASSESSMENT DtsrRtcr No.2
Erlc rHeen's Rep oat, FY 2021 -22

-

SClGonsultlngGroup

Page 286

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 1

lnmooucrton

Ovenuew

The Prairie Oaks Ranch Landscaping and Lighting District ("Prairie Oaks Ranch L&1")was

originally formed in 1995. As a special benefit assessment district, the purpose is the

maintenance, improvement, and servicing of landscape corridors, streetscapes, and

streetlights as well as providing power and water for the aforementioned improvements.

The original District's special assessment does not include an annual "cost of living"

increase, and therefore, the assessment rate has remained static for over 26 years, while

the cost of maintaining and servicing the Prairie Oaks Ranch improvements has increased.

This has made it difficult to continue maintaining and servicing the Prairie Oaks Ranch L&L

at the same service level as when the Prairie Oaks Ranch L&L was formed. ln addition,

common maintenance activities have been reduced and/or deferred. For instance,

landscaped areas need significant repairs or replacement. Therefore, this Engineer's Report

("Report") proposes that the Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting

Assessment District ("Assessment District") be formed, including a cost-of-living increase

provision, to provide additional funding for maintenance, repairs and improvements in the

Prairie Oaks Ranch L&L area as time goes on.

Assessmerr PRocEss

This Enginee/s Report establishes the budget for the improvements ("improvements") and

services to be undertaken by the Assessment District that will be funded by the proposed

2021-22assessments and also determines the benefits received from the maintenance and

improvements by property within the District as well as the method of assessment

apportionment to lots and parcels, This Report and the proposed assessments have been

made pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Actol1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the

California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XlllD of the California

Constitution (the "Article").

Following the submittal of this Report to the City of Folsom City Council ("Council") for
preliminary approval, the Council may, by Resolution, call for an assessment ballot

proceeding and Public Hearing on the establishment of the Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District.

lf the Council approves such Resolution and calls for the mailing of notices and ballots, a

notice of assessment and assessment ballot will be mailed to property owners at least 45

days prior to the date of the Public Hearing set by the Council. Such notice would include a

description of the assessments as well as an explanation of the method of voting on the

assessments, Each notice would include a ballot on which the property owner could mark

his or her approval or disapproval of the assessments and a ballot return envelope,

Grv or FoLsoM

Pnnrne Onxs ASSESSMENT DtsrRtcr No.2
ENGINEER,S RepOnr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultlngGroup

Page 287

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee 2

After the ballots are mailed to property owners, a minimum 45-day time period must be

provided for the return of the assessment ballots, Following this 45-day time period, a public

hearing must be held for the purpose of allowing public testimony regarding the proposed

assessments and services. At this hearing, the public would have the opportunity to provide

input on this issue and would have a final opportunity to submit ballots, After the conclusion

of the public input portion of the hearing, the hearing may be continued to a later time to

allow time for the tabulation of ballots.

With the passage of Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996, The Right to Vote on Taxes Act,

now Article XlllC and XlllD of the California Constitution, the proposed assessments can be

levied for fiscal year 2021-22 and future years, only if the ballots submitted in favor of the

assessments are greater than the ballots submitted in opposition to the assessments. (Each

ballot is weighted by the amount of proposed assessment for the property that it represents).

lf it is determined, when the tabulation results are announced, that the assessment ballots

submitted in opposition to the proposed assessments do not exceed the assessment ballots

submitted in favor of the assessments (weighted by the proportional financial obligation of

the property for which ballots are submitted) the Council may take action, by resolution, to

approve the levy of the assessments for fiscal year 2021-22 and future fiscal years, lf the

assessments are so confirmed and approved, the levies would be submifted to the

Sacramento County Auditor for inclusion on the property tax rolls for flscal year 2021-22.

lf the Assessments are so confirmed and approved, the assessment information will be

submifted to the County Audito/Controller. The County Audito/Controller will include the

Assessments on the property tax roll for Fiscal Year 2021-22. The procedures for levy of the

assessments in future years commence with the creation of a budget for the upcoming fiscal

year's costs and services, an updated assessment roll listing all parcels and their proposed

assessments for the upcoming fiscal year and the preparation of an updated Enginee/s

Report. After these documents are prepared and submitted, they could be reviewed and

preliminarily approved by the Council at a public meeting. At this meeting, the Council could

also call for the publication in a local newspaper of the intent to continue the assessment

and set the date for a noticed public hearing, At the annual public hearing, members of the

public could provide input to the Council prior to the Council's decision on continuing the

services and assessments for the next fiscal year.

Lecpurvr Anru-vsls

Pnoposmon 218

This assessment is formed consistent with Proposition 218, The Right to Vote on Taxes Act,

which was approved by the voters of California on November 6, 1996, and is now Article

XlllC and XlllD of the California Constitution, Proposition 218 provides procedures and

requirements for benefit assessments to be levied to fund the cost of providing seryices,

improvements, as well as maintenance and operation expenses to a public improvement

which benefits the assessed property.

GrY op FoLsoM
Pmrnr Onxs Assessuew Drsrnrcr No.2
Er'rclruEEn',s REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneultlngGroup

Page 288

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee 3

Proposition 218 describes a number of important requirements, including a property-owner

balloting, for the formation and continuation of assessments, and these requirements are

satisfied by the process used to establish this assessment,

Srltcot Vlt-lrv TnxpAyERs AssocrATroN, lttc. v Smm Cum Couruw Opet Splce
Aurnonrv

ln July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling in Silicon Valley Taxpayers

Association, lnc, v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority ("SVTA vs. SCCOSA"). This

ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive

assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important elements of the

ruling included further emphasis that:

o Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit
o The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly defined

o Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to property

in the assessment district

Dmusv, Dowmowr Ponoru PnopeRrv

0n June 8, 2009, the 4tn District Court of Appeal amended its original opinion upholding a

benefit assessment for property in the downtown area of the City of Pomona. 0n July 22,

2009, the California Supreme Court denied review, On this date, Dahms became good law

and binding precedent for assessments, ln Dahms the court upheld an assessment that was

100% special beneflt (i.e, 0% general benefit) on the rationale that the services and

improvements funded by the assessments were directly provided to property in the

assessment district, This Court also upheld discounts and exemptions from the assessment

for certain properties,

BoHnHoeR v. Town op TreunoH

On December 31, 2009, the 1st District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment

approved by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an area

of the Town of Tiburon. The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that the

assessments had been apportioned to assessed property based in part on relative costs

within sub-areas of the assessment district instead of proportional special benefits.

Beurz v. Gounrv or RveRsroe

0n May 26,2010 the 4tt' District Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Steven Beutz v.

County of Riverside ("Beutz") appeal, This decision overturned an assessment for park

maintenance in Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefits associated with

improvements and services were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the

special benefits,

GolorH Hrr-L NeroHaonrooo AssoctATtoN v. Cry or Sm Dteco

On Septemb er 22,2011 , the 4th District Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden Hill

Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego appeal. This decision overtumed an

Cmor Folsom
Pnnrnre Onxs AssEssNErur Drstnrcr No.2
ENGINEER,S REPORT, FY 2021.22

-

SClConeultlngcroup

Page 289

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pner 4

assessment for street and landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill

neighborhood of San Diego, California, The court described two primary reasons for its
decision. First, like in Beutz, the court found the general benefits associated with services

were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the special benefits. Second,

the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for the assessment on its own

parcels.

CompInHce WtrH CURRENT LAW

This Enginee/s Report is consistent with the requirements of Article XlllC and XlllD of the

California Constitution and with the SVIA decision because the assessments are for special,

not general, benefit; the improvements to be funded are clearly defined; the improvements

are directly available to and will directly benefit property in the Assessment District; and the

improvements provide a direct advantage to property in the Assessment Dishict that would

not be received in absence of the Assessments,

This Enginee/s Report is consistent with Dahms because, similar to the Downtown Pomona

assessment validated in Dahms, the services will be directly provided to property in the

Assessment District. Moreover, while Dahms could be used as the basis for a finding of 0%

general benefits, this Enginee/s Report establishes a more conservative measure of general

benefits.

This Engineer's Report is consistent with Beufa Dahms and Greater Golden H// because

the improvements will directly beneflt property in the Assessment District and the general

benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and excluded from the

Assessments. The Engineer's Report is consistent with Bonander because the

Assessments have been apporlioned based on the overall cost of the improvements and

proportional special benefit to each property.

Cmor Folsom
PnRrnrE Onrs AssEsstvtprur Dtsrntcr No. 2

ENGINeER'S RePORT, FY 2021.22

-

SClConeultlngcroup

Page 290

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



PAGE 5

Puns mo SpecrrcAfloNs

The formula below describes the relationship between the final levelof services, the baseline

level of service based on existing funding, and the enhanced level of services funded by the

assessment if it is approved, lt should be noted, due to the fact that current operating costs

are increasing at a faster rate than current funding sources, the baseline level of services is

diminishing over time,

Final Level of
Servlce

Cunent Baseline Level

of Serulce
+

Proposed Enhanced

Level of Service

Below is a more detailed description of these improvements that are provided for the special

benefit of property in the Assessment District,

The existing Prairie Oaks Ranch Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District maintains

improvements in locations throughout its boundaries. The work and improvements to be

undertaken by the new formation of Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 Assessment District, and the

cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual assessment, will provide special benefit to

Assessor Parcels within the District as defined in the Method of Assessment herein,

Consistent with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (the "Act") the improvements,

maintenance and services are generally described as follows in the section below,

DescRIpTIoN OF IMPROVEMENTS

Within the Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 Landscaping and Lighting District, the improvements

to be maintained from this new assessment are generally described as including, but not

limited to monument sign repair and/or replacement, including the installation, maintenance

and servicing of landscaping, turf renovation, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage

systems, street lighting and all necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies,

utilities and equipment, as applicable, for specified public property within the District

boundaries that convey special benefits to private properties within the District.

As applied herein, "maintenance" means the furnishing of services and materials for the

ordinary and usual maintenance, operation and servicing of the improvements, including

repair, removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life,

growth, health, and beauty of landscaping including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying,

fertilization, ortreating fordiseases or injury; removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other

solid waste and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting and other improvements to remove

or cover graffiti,

"servicing" means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating agent

for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any improvements

maintaining, operating and servicing street and traffic safety lighting, and water for irrigation

of any landscaping; maintaining, operating and servicing street and traffic safety lighting, or

ClwoF FoLsoM
Pnnrnre ORrs AssessuEu Drsrnrcr No. 2

ENGINgER'S REPORT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultlngGroup

Page 291

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pner 6

the maintenance of any other improvements not covered by the original Prairie Oaks

Landscaping and Lighting District.

"Maintenance and lmprovements" ("M&l') identifies the type of improvement (e,9., re-

landscaping a corridor); the estimated cost; any installments required for short-term (less

than five years) and long term (not greater than 30 years) improvements, and the

approximate schedule for completion of the improvements, These M&l are funded by fund

balance monies, Fund balance monies are monies that have been collected in prior years in

anticipation of being used for specific improvements and/or are intended for replacement or

improvement of capital items (e.9, walls, monument, fence) within a district.

lncidental expenses include all of the following: (a) The costs of preparation of the report,

including plans, specifications, estimates, diagram, and assessment; (b) the costs of
printing, advertising, and the giving of published, posted, and mailed notices; (c)

compensation payable to the County for collection of assessments; (d) compensation of any

engineer or attorney employed to render services in proceedings pursuant to this part; (e)

any other expenses incidental to the construction, installation, or maintenance and servicing

of the improvements; (0 any expenses incidental to the issuance of bonds or notes pursuant

to Streets & Highways Code Section 22662.5; and (g) costs associated with any elections

held for the approval of a new or increased assessment (Streets & Highways Code $22526).

CfioF FoLsoM

PnnrnrE onxs ASSESSMENT Drsrnpr No,2
ENGrr'rEER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultlngGroup

Page 292

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pncr 7

EsrIuIre oF COST AND BUDGET FFCAL YCAN2O21.22

Figure I - Estimate of Cost and Budget

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2
Edi mated Budget 2021 -22

General Maintenance
Scheduled
Unscheduled

Proposed Projects
lnigation repairs and replacements
Landscape replacement
Tree maintenance
LED Streetlight retrofits

Landscape lights retrofit
Monument sign maintenance and repair
Fence/Soundwall replacement and repair
Open Space maintenance
Misc.

Service Costs
Streetl ights/E lectrical/Water

Repay Owrage
lncidental Costs

Administration/Contracts/others

$6,600.00
$10,000.00

$2,500.00
$112,500.00

$15,000.00
$10,743.06
$5,000.00
$4,500.00

$17,500.00
$22,500.00
$2,000.00

$10,000.00
$25,000.00

$38,487.59
Total $282,330.65

Assessment to Property
Total SFE

Units
899.4

Assessment
per SFE

$313,91

Assessment
Total

$282,330.65

Total $282,330.65

Cwor Folsom
PnnrnrE ORxs AssessutEt'tt DtstRtcT N0.2
ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultlngGroup

Page 293

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 8

Meruoo oF APPoRTIONMENT

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived

from the proposed additional maintenance and servicing of the improvements and the

methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within the Assessment

District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries defined by

the Assessment Diagram included within this report and the Assessor Parcel Numbers listed

within the included Levy Roll. The parcels include all privately or publicly owned parcels

within the boundaries, The method used for apportioning the assessment is based upon the

proportional special benefits to be derived by the properties in the Assessment District over

and above general benefits conferred on real property or to the public at large, The

apportionment of special benefit is a two-step process: the first step is to identify the types

of special benefit arising from the improvements, and the second step is to allocate the

assessments to property based on the estimated relative special benefit for each type of
property,

Drscussroru oF BENEFTT

ln summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property,

This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits. Moreover, such

benefit is not based on any one property owner's use of the Assessment Dishict's other

improvements covered by the Assessment or a property owne/s specific demographic

status, With reference to the requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the

Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 states:

"The net amount fo be assessed upon lands within an assessment district

may be apportioned by any formula or method which fairly dlsfnbufes fhe

net amount among a// assessab/e /ofs or parcels in proportion to the

estimated benefits to be received by each such /of or parcel from the

improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XlllD of the California Constitution, has confirmed that

assessments must be based on the special benefit to property:

"The proportionate specialbenefit derived by each identified parcel shallbe

determined in relationship to the entirety of the capikl cost of a public

improvement, the maintenance and operation expenses of a public

improvement, of the cost of the propefi related seruice being provided, No

assessmenf shall be imposed on any parcelwhich exceeds the reasonable

cost of the proportional special benefit confened on that parcel."

Below is a summary of the types of special beneflt to residential and other lots and parcels

resulting from the installation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping and other

improvements to be provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special

Crv or Folsolrr
PnRrnre Onxs Assessuem Dsrnrcr No. 2

ENGINeEn,S REPORT, FY 2021.22

-

SClGonsultlngcroup

Page 294

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 9

benefit are derived from the statutes passed by the California Legislature and other studies

which describe the types of special benefit received by property from maintenance and

servicing of improvements such as those proposed by the Assessment District. These types

of special benefit are summarized as follows:

1. Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment Dishict.

2. Access to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District.

3, lmproved views within the Assessment District.

4, lmproved nighttime visibility and safety from streetlights

ln this case, the SVTA v, SCCOSA decision provides enhanced clarity to the definitions of
special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

Proximity
Expanded or improved access

Views

The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or

improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative

advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are

general benefits. The SVTA v, SCCOSA decision also provides specific guidance that park

improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is proximate to a
park that is improved by an assessment:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives

a diect advantage from the improvement (e.9. proximrty to a park) or
receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public

beneftts of the improvement (e.9. general enhancement of the distncf's
properly values).

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed above

further strengthen the basis of these assessments,

Benrrr FlcroRs
The special benefits from the improvements are further detailed below:

PRoxrlrlrw to rMpRovED LANDScApED AREAS wtTHtN rne Assessmenr DtsrRtcr

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the improvements are included in the

Assessment District. Therefore, property in the Assessment District enjoys unique and

valuable proximity and access to the improvements that the public at large and property

outside the Assessment District do not share.

ln absence of the assessments, the improvements and the landscaping areas in the

Assessment District would be degraded due to insufficient funding for maintenance, upkeep

and repair. Therefore, the assessments provide improvements that are over and above what

Cwor FoLsoM

Pnnrne Onxs Assessuerur Dtsrntcr No.2
ENGTNEER's RepoRr, FY 2021-22

:|-
SClConsukingGroup

Page 295

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 10

otherwise would be provided. lmprovements that are over and above what otherwise would

be provided do not by themselves translate into special benefits but when combined with the

unique proximity and access enjoyed by parcels in the Assessment District, they provide a

direct advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District,

Accrss To tMpRovED opEN spAcE AND LANDScApED AREAs wrrHrN rne Assessuem Dsrntcr

Since the parcels in the Assessment District are nearly the only parcels that enjoy close

access to the improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved

landscaping areas that are provided by the Assessments, This is a direct advantage and

special benefit to property in the Assessment Dishict,

lmpnoveo uEWs wrTHrN THE AssEssMrHt Dlsrncr

The City, by maintaining these landscaped areas, provides improved views to properties in

the Assessment District, The properties in the Assessment District enjoy close and unique
proximity, access and views of the improvements; therefore, the improved and protected

views provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is
uniquely conferred upon property in the Assessment District.

IupnoveO NrcHTlME vISIBILITY AND SAFETY FROM STREETLIGHTS

Well maintained, effective street lighting provides special benefit to proximate parcels, within

the range of the light, because it allows for use of the property in the evenings and night.

Street lighting also provides special benefit as it increases safety and reduces the likelihood

of crime on the proximate parcels. Switching to LED lights is more appealing to residents as

this new system will help reduce the cost of providing lighting in the District in the long term,

GeneRll vERsus Specnl Brnenr
The proceeds from the proposed Assessment District would be used to fund increased levels

of maintenance and improvement to the grounds and public resources proximate to the

properties in the Assessment District, The Assessment District is specifically proposed for

formation to provide additional resources in the Assessment District. ln absence of the new

assessments from the proposed Assessment District, the current revenues are not sufficient

for the proper and adequate maintenance of the landscaping, lighting and other public

resources in the Prairie Oaks L&L and the public resources in the Prairie Oaks L&L would

continue to deteriorate further, which would clearly adversely affect the value and desirability

of properties in the Assessment District. Therefore, the assessments solely provide special

benefit to property in the Assessment District over and above the general benefits conferred

by the general facilities of the City,

Although lhese improvements may be available to the general public at large, the

landscaping within the Assessment District is specifically designed, located and created to
provide additional and improved public resources for property inside the Assessment

District, and not the public at large. Other properties that are either outside the Assessment

District or within the Assessment District and not assessed, do not enjoy the unique
proximity, access, views and other special benefit factors described previously, These

Clw oF FoLSOM

PnRrnre ORxs AssEsstttEnr Dtsrntcr No. 2

ENGIHEcR'S REPORT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultingcroup

Page 296

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee 1 1

improvements are of special benefit to properties located within the Assessment District

because they provide a direct advantage to properties in the Assessment District that would

not be provided in absence of the Assessments.

Special Note Regarding General Benefit and the SVIA v. SCCOSA

Decision:
There is no widely-accepted or statutory formula for calculating general

benefit. General benefits are benefits from improvements or services fhaf

are not special in nature, are not "particular and distinct" and are not "over

and above' benefits received by other properties. The SVTA vs.

SCCOSA decision provides some clarification by indicating that general

benefrts provide "an indirect, derivative advantage" and are not necessarily
proximate to the improvemenfs.

Although the analysis used fo support fhese assessments concludes that
the benefits are solely specia/ (i.e,, benefits are 100% special and 0%

general), as described above, consideration is made for the suggestion that
a poftion of the benefits are general. General benefits cannot be funded by
fhese assessmenfs - the funding must come from other sources.

The maintenance and seruicing of these improvemenfs rs a/so paftially

funded, directly and indirectly from other sources including City of Folsom,

the County of Sacramento and fhe Sfafe of California. This funding comes

in the form of grants, development fees, speclal programs, and general

funds, as well as direct maintenance and seruicing of facilities fe,g. sfreefg
drainage sysfemg etc,) This funding from other sources more than

compensafes for general benefits, if any, received by the properties within

fhe assessmenfs dlsfncf.

ln the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit on

the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided within the

assessment district. lt is also important to note that the improvements and services funded

by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and services funded by the

Assessments described in this Enginee/s Report and the Court found these improvements

and services to be 100% special benefit, Also similar to the assessments in Pomona, the

Assessments described in this Enginee/s Report fund improvements and services directly
provided within the Assessment District and every benefiting property in the Assessment

District enjoys proximity and access to the improvements. Therefore, Dahms establishes a

basis for minimal ot zerc general benefits from the Assessments.

Step 1: Calculation of the General Benefit

The general benefits from this assessment for Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 may be quantilied

as the following:

Cmor Folsol'rt
Pnnrnre Onxs Assessuerur Drsrntcr No. 2

ENcrrueen's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGonsultlngGroup

Page 297

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 12

Motorists traveling along Prairie City Road, lron Point Road, Riley Street and Blue Ravine

Road who are not property owners do not interact with Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 properties

in any way (for example, delivery trucks to properties within the boundary do not contribute

to general benefit) may receive some benefit from the improved landscaping, lighting and

views funded from this proposed assessment. This benefit can be described as general

benefit and should not be funded from the new proposed assessment, However, the majority

of benefit from the improved landscaping and lighting is conferred to the properties within

the assessment district who enjoy the improvements along these major thoroughfares and

the improvements to the interior of Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 and for much longer periods

of time, A liberal estimate of the general benefit conferred to motorists and other travelers

along the exterior thoroughfares who do not own property or engaged the properties in any

way, considering the number of daily trips to the properties and the duration of time enjoying

the improvements is 20%. Therefore,200/o of the funding for the proposed improvements

must come from a source other than this proposed assessment,

Step 2: Calculation of Current General Benefit Contribution from City

The general benefit contribution is satisfied from the sum of the following components:

The City of Folsom owns, maintains, rehabilitates and replaces curb and gutter along the

border of the Assessment Districts improvements. This curb and gutter services to support,

contain, retain, manage irrigation flow and growth, and provide a boundary for the

improvements. The contribution from the City of Folsom toward general benefit from the

maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement of the curb gufter is conservatively estimated

to be 1%.

The City of Folsom owns and maintains storm drainage systems along the border of the

Assessment District's improvements. This system serves to prevent flooding and associated

damage to the improvements, and manage urban runoff including local pollutants loading

from the improvements, The contribution from the City of Folsom towards general benefit

from the maintenance and operation of the local storm drainage systems is conservatively

estimated to be 1%.

The City of Folsom owns and maintains local public streets along the border of the

Assessment District improvements, These public streets provide access to the

improvements for its enjoyment as well as efficient maintenance. The contribution from the

City of Folsom towards general benefit from the maintenance of local public streets is

conservatively estimated to contribute 1%.

Many of the improvements to be serviced by the proposed Assessment District were

constructed by the original owner/develope(s) as a condition of development. The value of
the construction of the improvements can be quantified and monetized as an annuity, Since

this construction was performed and paid by non-assessment funds, this "annuity" can be

used to offset general benefit costs, and is conservatively estimated to contribute 25%,

Cwor FoLsoM

Pnnrne Onxs AssEssuerur Dsrntcr No. 2

EruornEEn's REPoRT, FY 2021-22 --

SClConsultingGroup

Page 298

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnoe 13

Therefore, the total General Benefit that is conservatively quantified a|200/o is more than

offset by the total non-assessment contribution towards general benefit oI28%.

Zoues oF BENEFTT

The creation of zones of beneflt, corresponding to these various areas, are routinely

considered in the development of an assessment district. As part of the engineering work

forthis assessment, an analysis was conducted on the relationship (including proximity, level

of service, etc,), between properties and the primary improvements located throughout the

Assessment District.

The geography, topography, and the access and proximity to the improvements within the

District is relatively consistent, and hence different zones of benefit are not appropriate.

Moreover, the SVIA decision indicates:

ln a well-drawn district - limited to only parcels receiving specialbeneftfs

from the improvement - every parcel within that district receives a shared

special benefit. Under secfion 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be

construed as berng general benefits since they are not "particular and

distinct" and are not "over and above" the benefits received by other
properties "located in the district,"

We do not believe that the voters intended to invalidafe an assessmenf

district that is narrowly drawn to include only properties directly benefiting

from an improvement. lndeed, the ballot materials reflect otheruvise, Thus,

ff an assessment district is narrowly drawn, the fact that a benefit is
conferred throughout the district does nof make it general rather than

special. ln that circumstance, the characterization of a benefit may depend

on whether the parcel receives a direct advantage from the improvement
(e.9., proximtA b par| or receives an indirect, derivative advantage

resulting from the overall public benefits of the improvement (e,9,, general

enhancement of the disfflcf's property values).

ln the proposed Assessment District, the advantage that each assessed parcel receives

from the improvements is direct, and the boundaries include only parcels that benefit from

the assessment, other than the parcels that provide the benefit to the properties, Both the

park and open space provide more special benefit than they receive regardless of how their

maintenance is funded. Therefore, the even spread of assessment throughout is indeed

consistent with the SVTA decision and satisfies the "direct relationship to the "locality of the

improvement" standard,

Mernoo oF ASSESSMENT

As previously discussed, the proposed assessments will provide additional maintenance and

servicing of existing improvements that will clearly confer special benefits to properties in

Grwor Folsom
PnRrnre Olrs ASSESSMENT Dsrnpr No. 2

ENcTNeER's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConeultlngGroup

Page 299

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnor 14

the Assessment District. The allocation of special benefits to property is partially based on

the type of property and the size of property, These benefits can also partially be measured

by the occupants on property in the Assessment District because such parcel population

density is a measure of the relative benefit a parcel receives from the improvements, lt

should be noted that many other types of "traditional" assessments also use parcel

population densities to apportion the assessments, For example, the assessments for sewer

systems, roads and water systems are typically allocated based on the population density

of the parcels assessed, Therefore, the apportionment of benefit is reasonably based the

type of parcel, the size of parcels and the population density of parcels,

The primary step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit for

each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each
property in relation to a single-family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family

Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in

proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis

for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments, For the purposes of this Engineer's

Report, all properties are designated an SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit

in relation to a single-family home on one parcel, ln this case, the "benchmark" property is

the single-family detached dwelling which is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE that

currently total to 899.4.

Moreover, a fixed or flat assessment for all commercial properties of similar type was

deemed to be inappropriate because larger commercial properties receive a higher degree

of benefit than other similarly used properties that are significantly smaller. (For two
properties used for commercial purposes, there is clearly a higher benefit provided to the

larger property in comparison to a smaller commercial property because the larger property

generally supports a larger building and has higher numbers of employees, customers and

guests that would benefit from proximity and improved access to well maintained and

improved landscaped areas. So the potential population of employees or residents is a
measure of the special benefits received by the property.) Larger parcels, therefore, receive

an increased benefit from the assessments,

Finally, the special benefits to be derived from the proposed assessments will be conferred

on property and are not based on a speciflc propefi owner's use of the improvements, or a

specific property owner's occupancy of property or the property owner's demographic status

such as age or number of dependents. However, it is ultimately people who value the special

benefits described above and use and enjoy the Assessment District's landscaped areas, ln

other words, the benefits derived to property are related to the average number of people

who could ootentiallv live on, work at, or othenrvise could use a property, not how the property

is currently used by the present owner. Therefore, the number of people who could or
potentially live on, work at or othenrvise use a property is one indicator of the relative level of
benefit received by a property.

ln conclusion, the Assessment Engineer determined that the appropriate method of
assessment apportionment should be based on the type and use of property, the relative

Cwor Folsom
Pnnrnre ORrs ASSESSMENT Drsrnrcr No.2
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2021-22 --

SClConsultlngcroup

Page 300

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



PnoE 15

size of the property, its relative population and usage potential and its proximity to
landscaped areas. This method is further described below.

Regornnll PnopeRngs

Certain residential properties in the Assessment District that contain a single residential

dwelling unit are assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE, Detached or attached

houses, zero-lot line houses and town homes are included in this category of single-family

residential property. lf there is more than one single-family detached dwelling on a parcel, it

will be charged one SFE per single-family detached dwelling.

Properties with more than one residential unit (other than parcels with more than one

detached single-family dwelling as described above) are designated as multi-family

residential properties. These properties benefit from the improvements in proportion to the

number of dwelling units that occupy each property, the average number of people who

reside in multi-family residential units versus the average number of people who reside in a

single-family home and the relative size of each type of residential dwelling unit. The
population density factors for the area in Sacramento County encompassing the

Assessment District, as depicted in the following table, provide the basis for determining the

SFE factors for residential properties. Using the total population in a certain property type in

the area from the 2019 ACS SYear estimate and dividing it by the total number of such

households, finds that approximately 2.66 persons occupy each single-family residence,

whereas an average of 1,94 persons occupy each condominium. The ratio of 2,66 people

on average for a single-family residence and 1.94 people per dwelling unit in a condominium

unit results in a population density equivalent of 0.73 for condominiums. Next, the relative

building areas are factored into the analysis because special benefits are related to the

average size of a property, in addition to average population densities, For a condominium,

this calculation results in an SFE factor of 0,42 per dwelling unit. Should ADUs be developed

within Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2, the assessment would be 1 SFE for the primary SFR and

.42 for the ADU. A similar calculation is used for the SFE Rates for other residential property

types.

Crv or Folsolr
Pnnrnre Onxs Assessuerur DlsrRtcT N0, 2
ENGINeeR's REPoRT, FY 2021.22

-

SClConeultlngGroup

Page 301

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnce 16

Table 1 - Residential Density and Assessment Factors

Pop.Ilensity
Equivalent

sqR
Factor

SFE

Type of Residential Propefi Factor

Single Family Residential
Condominium
Duplex, Triplex, Fourplex

lvftrlti-Fam ily Residential (5+ U nits )
lr4obile Home on Separate Lot

1.00

0.73

0.77

0.72

0.58

1,00

0.58

0.42

0.30

0.43

1.00

0.42

0.32

0.22

0.25

The single-family equivalency factor of 0.22 per dwelling unit for multi-family residential
properties applies to such properties with 20 or fewer units. Properties in excess of 20 units

typically offer on-site recreational amenities and other facilities that tend to offset some of
the benefits provided by the improvements, Therefore, the benefit for properties in excess

of 20 units is determined to be 0,22 SFE per unit for the first 20 units and 0,10 SFE per each

additional unit in excess of 20 dwelling units.

GommencnUlrousrnnL PRoPERTTES

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of special
benefit on a land area basis between single-family residential property and the average
commercial/industrial property. The SFE values for various commercial and industrial land

uses are further defined by using average employee densities because the special benefit

factors described previously can be measured by the average number of people who work

at commercial/industrial properties,

ln order to determine employee density factors, the findings from the San Diego Association

of Governments Traffic Generators Study (the "SANDAG Study") are used because these

findings were approved by the State Legislature as being a good representation of the

average number of employees per acre of land area for commercial and industrial properties,

As determined by the SANDAG Study, the average number of employees per acre for
commercialand industrial property is 24.

ln comparison, Census data shows that the average number of people residing in a single-

family home in the area is 2,66. Since the average lot size for a single-family home in the

Assessment District is approximately 0,20 acres, the average number of residents per acre

of residential property is 13.30,

The employee density per acre is generally 1.80 times the population density of single-family

residential property per acre (24 employees per acre / 13,30 residents per acre). Therefore,

the average employee density can be used as the basis for allocating benefit to commercial

or industrial property since a commercial/industrial property with 4.8 employees receives
generally similar special benefit to a residential property with 1 resident, This factor of
equivalence of benefit between 1 resident to 4.8 employees is the basis for allocating

CITY OF FOLSOM

Pnnrnre ORrs Assrssuem Drsrnrcr No, 2

ENGINEER,S REPoRT, FY 2O2I-22

-

SClConsuklngGroup

Page 302

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Proe 17

commercial/industrial benefit. Table 2 below shows the average employees per acre of land

area or portion thereof for commercial and industrial properties and lists the relative SFE

factors per quarter acre for properties in each land use category,

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are

more land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage

ratios), As a result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in

excess of 5 acres is determined to be the SFE rate per quarter acre for the first 5 acres and

the relevant SFE rate per each additional acre over 5 acres.

lnstitutional properties that are used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are

also assessed at the appropriate residential, commercial or industrial rate.

Table 2 - Commercial/lndustrial Density and Assessment Factors

1. Source: San Diego Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study.
z. The SFE factors for commercial and industrial parcels are applied by the quarter acre of

land area or portion thereof. (Therefore, the minimum assessment for any assessable
parcel in these categories is the SFE Units listed herein.) The rates apply up to first 5

acres of parcel size. Additional acreage is benefited at the rate shown above per acre or
portion thereof.

Vlcmr PnoprRnrs

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of
improvements on the property, A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is

the average value of land in relation to improvements for developed property. An analysis of
the assessed valuation data from the County of Sacramento found that approximalely 250/o

of the assessed value of improved properties is classified as the land value. lt is reasonable

to assume, therefore, that approximately 250/o of the benefits are related to the underlying

land and 750/o ila related to the improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using

this ratio, the SFE factor for vacanUundeveloped parcels is 0,25 per parcel,

Type of Com m ercl allln d u *l al
Land Us

Average
Employe*
fur Acre I

SFE UnlE
per

Quarter Acrc 2

SFE UnIE
Per

Acrr After 5

Commerclal
Offce
Shopping Center
Ofrce
Self Storage or Parking Lot

24
68
24
24

1

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500
0.o21

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500

Golf Course
Cemeteries
Agriculture

0.10
0.05

0.004
0.002

Ctw or Folsom
PnRrnrr ORxs ASSESSMENT Drsrntcr No.2
Er,rGrNeeR's REPonr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsultlngcroup

Page 303

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pncr 18

Oruen PnopEmrs

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear

and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the

assessment,

All properties that are specially beneflted are assessed. Other publicly owned property that

is used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional uses

is benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property,

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reseryoir or other water rights parcels,

limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically

do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests, Moreover, many of these
parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific

enhancement of property value. Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are

not assessed.

Specru Nore or Exrstrre PlRxllo Opet Spnce Pmcel

There are 2 parcels within the boundary of the proposed Assessment District that require

additional discussion: A park parcel and a City of Folsom-owned open space parcel.

Although, the open space parcel is maintained with funding from the existing assessment

and from the proposed Assessment District, the park parcel is not funded by either source

of revenue. They provide special benefit to the other parcels within the proposed

Assessment District by providing a higher level of proximity, access, and views of improved

landscaping and open space. ln fact, both the park and open space provide more special

benefit to the district parcels than they receive - hence no assessment on these parcels is

appropriate,

Consumen Pnrce luoex Ao,rusTMENTs

The maximum assessment rate within the Assessment District may be increased by an

amount equal to the annual change in the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price lndex,

not to exceed 3% per year. ln the event that the annual change in the CPI exceeds 30/0, att!
percentage change in excess of 3% can be cumulatively reserved and can be added to the

annual change in the CPI for years in which the CPI change is less than 3%,

Cm or Folsoru
Pnnrrue Onxs Assessuerur Drsrnrcr No.2
ENcrrueeR's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

-

SClConsuhingGroup

Page 304

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



PncE 19

Assrssmenr STATEMENT

The City Council of the City of Folsom, County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the
provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XlllD of the California
Constitution (collectively "the Act"), directed the formation of Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2
Landscaping and Lighting District;

The Council directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file a report
presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the Assessment District and an assessment
of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within the
Assessment District, to which the description of the proposed improvements is therein
contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

The undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under the Act and the order of the City
Council of the Ci$ of Folsom, hereby make the following assessment to cover the portion of
the estimated cost of the improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to
be paid by the Assessment District.

The amount to be paid for the improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be paid

by the Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District for the fiscal year 2021-
22 is generally as follows:

Figure 2 - Summary of Combined Cost Estimate

General Maintenance
Proposed New Projects
Service Costs
Repay Owrage
lncidential Costs

$16,600.00
$192,243.06

$10,000,00
$25,000.00
$38,487.59

Net Amount to Assessment $282,330.65

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof
showing the exterior boundaries of the Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting

District. The distinctive number of each parcel or lot of land in the District is its Assessor
Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll,

And I do hereby assess and apportion the net amount of the cost and expenses of the
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and lots

of land within the City of Folsom, Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 Landscaping and Lighting
District, in accordance with the special benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the
improvements, and more particularly set forth in the Cost Estimate and Method of
Assessment hereto attached and by reference made a part hereof,

Cm or Folsolrr
Pnnrnte ORxs AssEssruerur Drsrnlcr No.2
ENGINEER'S REponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneuhlngGroup

Page 305

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Peoe 20

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Prairie Oaks Ranch No.

2 Landscaping and Lighting District in proportion to the special benefits to be received by

the parcels or lots of land, from the improvements.

The assessment is subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Consumer Price lndex for the

San Francisco Bay Area as of December of each succeeding year (the CPI), with the

maximum annual adjustment not to exceed 3%. ln the event that the actual assessment rate

for any given year is not increased by an amount equal to the CPI change, any such deferred

assessment increase may be added to the total amount assessed in any subsequent year.

ln such event, the maximum authorized assessment amount shall be equal to the base year

assessment as adjusted by the increase to the CPl, plus any and all CPI adjustments

deferred in any and all prior years, (This mechanism may be applied to the capital

improvements and deferred and ongoing maintenance portions of the assessment,)

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel

number as shown on the Assesso/s Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal year

2021-22. For a more particular description of the property, reference is hereby made to the

deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of the County,

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the

Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2021-22 for each parcel

or lot of land within the Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 Landscaping and Lighting District.

Dated: July 12,2021

Engineer of Work

qtV
License No, C52091

c 5209r

Cmor Folsott
PnnrnE Onxs AssEsstrrew DrsrRrcr N0.2
ENGINEEn'S RePORT, FY 2021-22

-

SClGoneultlngGroup

Page 306

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee 21

Assessmerr DnGRAM

The boundaries of the Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2 Landscaping and Lighting District in the

City of Folsom are displayed on the following Assessment Diagram,

Crv op Folsolr
Pnnrnrg Onxs Assessuerur Drsrnrcr No.2
EnG rneen's Rrp oRr, FY 2021 -22

-

SClconeuklngGroup

Page 307

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee22

CITY OF FOLSOM
PRAIRIE OAKS NO. 2

LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

'.1 ,

Lcgcnd
Ptr.b
PEiri! Olllr Rrmh tlo 2R

li
t-l

f

-::-:i:
),'

RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CIW CLERK
OF THE CIW OF FOL$OM. COUNTY OF
SACRAII'ENTO, CALIFORNIA. THIS 

-

oAY OF _.2021.

CITY CLERK

AN AgSEgSMENT WAS CONFIRMEDAND
LE\r'IED BY THE CITY COUNCII OF THE CITY OF FOTSOM
ON THE LOTS. PIECES AND PARCELg
OF LAND ON THIS ASSESSMENT OIAGRAM ON THE

DAY OF _,2021
FOR FISCAL YEAR 202I.22 AND SAIOASSESSMENT
DIAGRAM AND THE ASOESSMENT ROLL FOR SAID
FISCAL YEAR WERE FILED IN lHE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTYAUDITOR OF THE COUNW OF SACRAMENTO ON
THE 

- 

DAY OF 

-.

2021. REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID
RECORDEDASSE8SMENT ROLL FOR THE EXrcT
AMOUNT OF EACH ASSESSMENT LEVIED AGA NST
EACH PARCEL OF LAND,

CITY CLERK

SCI Cfi,sufting Gtoup
1ru5 Merrgdls gtud

Feifrsk4 CA 94'531

^A.NORTH

FILEO IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE
CITY OF FOLSOM COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO
CALIFORNIA.
TH|S _DAYOF-2021.

CITYCTERK

F|LED TH|S _ OAY OF _,
2021. ATTHE HOUROF OCLOCK
_, M, IN THEOFFICEOF THECOUNTY
AUDITOR OF THE COUNW OF gACRAMENTO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AT THE REQUEST OF
THE CITY OF FOLSOM CITY COUi.ICIL.

COUNTY AUOITOR, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

Nole
ffJ:tRf Ncl: lS llURl:UY lt4A0[ tO ttll: taPSA{O tx-l-D{;
otj trFCoRt) w rHF oFlrf oF THli ari$Esson 0F rHt
COUNTY OI EACRA4EHTO 

':OR 
A OETNLED DE$CfIPTION OT

t,tE LNESATO D|I€NSONS 0t Ar'ly FARCELS SilOWt'r
IIEREN TXOSE MPS SHAL GOVERN FOR AL IX'TA4.I'
coNcliRNNG TilE t.lNtis ANr/ ofvrtNsx)Ns ol gJclr PAJtctt s
f.Acl t PAtcfl . ts t(x:N IlrttD rN sAD MAPS uY rTs oKrTtNc t rvt
ASSE6€ORE PARCEL NUIIBER

Ctwor Folsoltt
Pnnrnre ORxs ASSESSMENT Drsrnrcr No.2
ENGTNEER's REPoRT, FY 2021-22

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 308

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



Pnee 23

AssessmeruT RoLL

An Assessment Roll (a listing of all parcels assessed within the Landscaping and Lighting

Assessment District and the amount of the assessment) has been filed with the City Clerk

and is, by reference, made part of this report and will be available for public inspection during

normaloffice hours.

Each lot or parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is shown and illustrated on the latest County

Assessor records and these records are, by reference made part of this report. These

records shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or parcels.

Crvor Folsom
Pnntnle Onxs AssEsst',tEnr DlsrRlcr No. 2

Ene rrueen's Reponr, FY 2021-22

-

SClConeuhlngGroup

Page 309

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 310

07/27/2021 Item No.9.



,I',1*bA.SLlFn
(; rrrt(lr.l &i r,\lr tl

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10669 - A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the
Regional Water Authority's Resolution 202I-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in
2021 and Authorizing the City Manager to Implement Any Future Reduction Requirements.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom receives its water supply from the American River at Folsom Reservoir.
On May 10,2021, Governor GavinNewsom issued aproclamation of a State of Emergency to
mitigate the effects of drought conditions in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Watershed
counties including El Dorado, Placer, Sacramento, Sutter and Yolo. Hydrologic conditions in
202I are currently the second driest year since 1977. Folsom Reservoir storage is projected to
remain above the lake level that would require emergency operations from Reclamation, but
there is regional concern that if dry conditions persist into the fall and winter months,
emergency operations to deliver water to the cities of Folsom and Roseville, San Juan Water
District, and Folsom State Prison, may be necessary.

On May 13, 2021, the Regional Water Authority (RWA) Board of Directors approved
Resolution 202I-01, a Resolution ofthe Regional Water Authority Regarding Response to Dry
Conditions in202l. One of the key components of the resolution is a request from RWA to its

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10669 - A Resolution of the Folsom City
Council Supporting the Regional Water Authority's Resolution
2021-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in202I and
Authorizing the City Manager to Implement Any Future
Reduction Requirements

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 311

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



member agencies asking for a reduction in surface water diversions from the American River
watershed. The RWA resolution also asked water agencies to shift from surface water supplies
to groundwater supplies to keep more surface water in Folsom Reservoir. While there are water
agencies within the region that can shift to groundwater supplies, the City does not have access

to groundwater supplies.

On July 15, 2021, the Regional Water Authority (RWA) Board of Directors approved
Resolution 2021-03, a Resolution of the Regional Water Authority Regarding Extreme
Drought Conditions in202l. Included in the Resolution is a request from RWA to its member
agencies asking for a reduction in surface water diversions from the American River watershed

by a minimum of 15 percent andlor additional shifting from using surface water to
groundwater, where feasible.

ANALYSIS

On July 8,2021, Governor GavinNewsom signed Executive OrderN-10-21 adding nine more
counties to the drought proclamation state of emergency, bringing the total number of counties
to 50 out of the 58 counties in California. The order requested that all Californians voluntarily
reduce water use by 15 percent from their 2020levels. The Executive Order suggested the
following actions:

1. Inigate landscape more efficiently, including during cooler times of the days, using a

weather-based inigation controller or by watering one day less per week.

2. Run dishwashers and washing machines only when full.

3. Find and fix leaks.

4. Install water-efficient shower heads and taking shorter showers.

5. Take cars to commercial car washes that use recycled water.

The Executive Order also encouraged California water customers to visit
www.saveourwater.com to find simple ways to reduce water use. Building from this webpage
and information developed by the Regional Water Authority, the City prepared a Folsom Saves

campaign to help City water customers reduce water usage. This campaign includes a road
map to water savings with specific actions that water customers can take indoors and outdoors
to conserve water and is scheduled to land in mailboxes this week. Some examples from the
campaign include:

1. Reducing inigation days to 2-3 times per week

2. Reducing sprinkler run times by 2-3 minutes

3. Installing high-efficiency WaterSense toilets

2
Page 312

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



4. Take showers of 5 minutes or less

In addition to the water savings tips, the City offers several water rebates and services to help
our customers reduce water usage. These are described below:

1. Water Wise House Calls - Receive a visit from one of the City's water conservation
specialists and learn how to reduce water use indoors and outdoors.

2. Commercial Water and Large Landscape Inigation Surveys - These surveys identifu
potential water savings and rebates available to our business and commercial customers
and provide a review of outdoor inigation systems and recommend ways to be more
water efficient.

3. Rachio Smart Controller Rebate - The City is offering residents a rebate to purchase
this smart controller for a reduced rate of $75 plus tax (nearly a 65 percent savings).

4. Inigation Efficiency Upgrades - Upgrade your current outdoor irrigation systems with
efficient equipment (up to $SOO1, including irrigation controllers, sprinkler nozzles or
drip system retrofits.

5. High Efficiency Toilets - Replace toilets with high efficiency toilets (up to $175)

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10669 - A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the
Regional Water Authority's Resolution 202I-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in
202I andAuthorizing the City Manager to Implement Any Future Reduction Requirements.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10669 - A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the
Regional Water Authority's Resolution 202I-03 Regarding Extreme Drought
Conditions in 2021 and Authorizing the City Manager to Implement Any Future
Reduction Requirements

2. Regional Water Authority Resolution 2021-03
3. Executive Order N-10-21

Submitted,

p!.*w"'*

Marcus Y , Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 313

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 314

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10669

A RE,SOLUTION OF THE FOLSOM CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING THE REGIONAL
WATER AUTHORITY'S RESOLUTION 2021-03 REGARDING EXTREME DROUGHT
CONDITIONS IN 2021 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO IMPLEMENT

ANY FUTURE REDUCTION REQUIREMENTS

WHEREAS, on May 10, 202I, Governor Gavin Newsom issued a proclamation of a

State of Emergency to mitigate effects of drought conditions in the Sacramento-San Joaquin
Delate Watershed; and

WHEREAS, on July 8,2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed Executive Order N-10-21
issuing a further proclamation of a state of emergency due to drought conditions; and

WHEREAS, on May 23,2021, the Regional Water Authority adopted Resolution 202I-
01 calling on actions in response to dry conditions to decrease surface water diversion from the
American River Watershed; and

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2021, the Regional Water Authority adopted Resolution 202I-
03 to further drought response efforts due to extreme dry conditions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
supports the Reginal Water Authority's Resolution 2021-03 regarding extreme drought
conditions in202l.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Folsom authorizes the City Manager to implement any future reduction requirements as

described in Folsom Municipal Code Section 13.26 to align with any state requirements.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tn day of July 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10669
Page I of I

Page 315

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 316

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION 2021.03
A Resolution of the Regional Water Authority

Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in 2021

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Authority's (RWA) mission includes protecting and enhancing
the reliability, availability, affordability, and quality of water resources; and

WHEREAS, on May 10,2021, the Governor issued a proclamation of a State of Emergency to
mitigate the effects of drought conditions in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Watershed
counties including El Dorado, Placer, Sacramento, Sutter, and Yolo counties; and

WHEREAS, on May 13,2021, the RWA Board adopted Resolution 2021-01, which called for
the consideration of actions that would result in reduction of surface water diversions from the
American River watershed to protect the environment of the lower American River and to
preserve local water supplies should dry conditions persist; and

WHEREAS, the actions of RWA Resolution 202I-0I called for voluntary reductions of water
use by 10 percent, shifting diversions from the lower American River to the Sacramento River,
andlor shifting from using surface water to groundwater as a supply source as part of the region's
plan for sustainability; and

WHEREAS, the projected inflow from upstream sources into waterways and surface storage has

been less than projected and has resulted in less water in reservoirs than anticipated; and

WHEREAS, high air temperatures and dry conditions have further created additional water
temperature stress on lower American River ecosystems; and

WHEREAS, Folsom Reservoir, being a primary source of water for several RWA member
agencies in the region, is vulnerable to worsening drought conditions; and

WHEREAS, hydrologic conditions leading into water year 2022 are uncertain, in which
continued dry conditions may lead to water shortages and extreme stress to fisheries; and

WHEREAS, shifting to groundwater during this year's drought, while encouraged, should also
be managed carefully to ensure adequate water supplies for our communities in the event that
water year2022 is also dry; and

WHEREAS, RWA member agencies have taken steps since RWA Resolution 2021-01to
voluntarily conserve between 10 and 20 percent, shift to alternate water sources, share water
resources throughout the region, and make releases to support the fishery of the lower American
River;and

WHEREAS, on July 8,2021, the Governor issued an Executive Order calling for voluntary
conservation efforts of 15 percent by all Californians by taking commonsense measures with
both indoor and outdoor water use; and

Page 317

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, RWA immediately calls upon on its member agencies to
consider actions that will result in further reductions in surface water diversions from the
American River watershed to protect the environment of the lower American River and to
preserve local water supplies should dry conditions persist. These actions include asking
customers to voluntarily reduce their water use by a minimum of 15 percent, and may consider
additional shifting from using surface water to groundwater, where feasible, as a supply source
as part of the region's plan for sustainability; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, RWA acknowledges that individual member agencies may
encourage additional conservation and RWA will support those agencies; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, all other prior actions from RWA Resolution 2021-01 shall
remain in full effect.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Authority held on July 15, 2021.

Page 318

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENT"3

Page 319

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXECUTIVE ORDER N.IO.2I

WHEREAS communilies ocross Colifornio ore experiencing more frequenl,
prolonged, ond severe impocls of climole chonge including cotoslrophic
wildfires, extreme heot ond unprecedenledly dry conditions thol lhreolen the
heolth of our people, hobitot for species ond our economy; ond

WHEREAS severe droughl otflicts lhe Americon West ond increosingly
worming temperotures driven by climote chonge exocerbote hormful drought
etfecls including disruplion of drinking woler ond inigotion supplies, degrodotion
ol fish ond wildlife hobilot, ond heighlened flommobilily of wildlond vegetotion;
ond

WHEREAS on April2l ond Moy 10,2021,1issued proclomolions lhot o stote
of emergency exists in o totol of 4l counties due lo severe drought conditions
ond dhecled slote ogencies to ioke immediote oction to preserve crilicolwoler
supplies ond mitigote the effects of drought ond ensure lhe protection of
heolth, sofely, ond lhe environment; ond

WHEREAS lodoy, I issued q further proclomolion of o slole of emergency
due to drought conditions in nine odditionolcounlies (lnyo. Morin, Mono,
Monlerey, Son Luis Obispo, Son Moteo, Sonlo Borboro, Sonlo Cloro, ond Sontq
Cruz), ond direcled slote ogencies to loke further oclions io bolster drought
resilience ond prepore for impocts on communities, businesses, ond ecosystems;
ond

WHEREAS droughi condilions present urgent chollenges, including the risk

of drinking woler shortoges in communities, greotly increosed wildfire octivily,
diminished woler for ogricullurol production, odverse impocls on fisheries, ond
odditionolwoter scorcity if drought condilions continue inlo next yeor; ond

WHEiEAS ogricullure is on importont economic driver in Coliforniq thol hos
mode significont invesfmenls in inigotion efficiencies such thot neorly 70 percenl
of the nolion's formlond using ddp ond micro-inigofion is locoled in Colifornio,
ond despite thol invesimenl, mony ogricullurol producers ore experiencing
severe reductions in woter supplies ond ore following lond in response to cunent
dry conditions; ond

WHEREAS oction by Colifornions now lo conserve woter ond to extend
locol groundwoter ond surfoce woter supplies will provide greoler resilience if
lhe drought conlinues in fulure yeou ond

WHEREAS during lhe 2012-2016 drought, Colifornions did their port lo
conserve woler, with mony loking permonenl qclions lhot continue lo yield
benefiis; per copito residenliolwqter use stolewide declined 2l percent
between the yeors 2013 ond 201 6, ond hos remqined on overoge l6 percent
below 2013 levels os of 2020; ond

WHEREAS locol woter suppliers ond communilies hove mode stroiegic
qnd forword-looking inveslmenls in woter recycling, stormwqter copture ond
reuse, groundwoter storoge ond other sirolegies to improve droughl resilience;
ond

Page 320

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



WHEREAS lhere is now o need io ougment ongoing woler conservqtion
ond drought resilience investmenis wllh odditionolociion lo extend ovoiloble
supplies, protecl woter reseryes in cose drought conditions extend to o lhhd
yeor ond mointoin criiicol flows for fish ond wildlife.

NOW THEREFORE, l, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of lhe Stote of Colifornio, in

occordonce with the oulhority vested in me by the Stole Conslitulion ond
stoluies, do hereby issue the following order to become effective immedioiely.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

I ) To preserve the Stote's surfoce ond groundwoler supplies ond betler
prepore for the potentiol for conlinued dry conditions next yeor, ond to
join existing efforts by ogriculturol woter users, public woter systems, ond
governmenlol ogencies to respond to woter shortoges, I coll on oll
Colifornions to voluntorily reduce their woler use by 15 percenl from lheir
2020levels. Commonsense meosures Colifornions con undertoke to sove
woter ond money include:

o. lnigoting londscopes more efficiently. As much os 50 percent of
residentiolwoier use goes to outdoor inigotion, ond much of thot is

wosted due to evoporotion, wind, or runoff coused by inetficienl
inigotion methods ond systems. Wolering one doy less perweek,
nol wotering during or immedioiely ofter roinfoll, wotering during
the cooler ports of the doy ond using o weolher-bosed inigotion
controller con reduce inigotion woter use, soving neorly 8,800
gollons of woter per yeor.

b. Running dishwqshers ond woshing mochines only when full. Full

loundry loods con sove l5-45 gollons per lood. Full dishwosher
cycles con sove $-15 gollons per lood.

c. Finding ond fixing leoks. A leoky foucet thot drips of lhe role of one
drip per second con woste neorly 3,200 gollons peryeor.

d. lnslolling woter-efficienf showerheods ond toking shorter showers.
Keeping showers under five minutes con sove 12.5 gollons per
shower when using o woter-efficient showerheod.

e. Using o shul-off nozle on hoses ond toking cors lo commerciolcor
woshes lhot use recycled woler.

The Slote Woter Resources Conlrol Boord (Woter Boord) sholltrock ond
report monthly on lhe Stole's progress loword ochieving o l5-percent
reduction in slolewide urbon woter use os compored to 2020 use.

2) Stote ogencies, led by the Deportment of Woter Resources ond in
coordinotion wilh locologencies, shollencouroge octions by oll
Colifornions, whelher in their resideniiol, industriol, commerciol,
ogricullurol, or institutionql use, lo reduce woter usoge, including through
lhe siolewide Sove Our Woter conservolion compoign ot
SoveOurWoter.com, which provides simple woys for Colifornions to
reduce woter use in lheir everydoy lives.

3) The Deportmenl of Woter Resources shollmonilor hydrologic conditions
such os cumulotive precipilotion, reservoir storoge levels, soil moislure ond
other melrics, ond the Woter Boord sholl monilor progress on voluntory

Page 321

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



conservolion os ongoing indicotors of woter supply risk thot moy inlorm
fulure drought response qctions.

This Order is nol inlended lo, ond does not, creote ony rights or benefits,

substonlive or procedurol, enforceoble ol low or in equily, ogoinst the Stote of
Colifornio, ils ogencies, deportmenis, enlities, officefs, employees, or ony other
person.

lT lS FURIHER ORDERED thol os soon os hereofler possible, lhis Order be
filed in the Office of the Secrelory of Stole ond thot widespreod publicily ond
notice be given of this Order.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF I hove hereunlo set

my hond ond coused the Greot Seolof the
Stote ol Colifornio lo be offixed this 8th doy
of July I

of

ATTEST:

IRLEY W
of

PH.D

Secrel

'sPage 322

07/27/2021 Item No.10.



ffi
'[''{-!i-,ft*Ll jt}I

Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance
of a Proposition 218 Notice for Proposed Five-Year Rate
Adjustment for Solid Waste

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Proposition 218 Notice for Proposed
Five-Year Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

ln20l9 the Solid Waste Division (Division) conducted a comprehensive rate study including
evaluation of operational and capital needs. R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) along with City
staff analyzed the revenue requirements and rate structures for each line of service.

The rate study incorporated costs associated with meeting current needs; however, it did not
account for additional staffrng or other operational costs required to meet pending regulatory
requirements relating to California's Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy (SB
1383). The regulations necessary for compliance with SB 1383 were still being developed so

the costs were unknown.

At the time of the previous rate study, solid waste rates had not been adjusted since 2003.
Despite the impending unknown expenses associated with SB 1383, the financial position of
the Division necessitated proceeding with arate adjustment in advance of the regulations. Staff
expressed to City Council that it would be necessary to return with additional increases once
the costs of SB 1383 could be predicted. The regulations were finalizedinNovember of 2020
and the Division is now able to anticipate the cost of compliance.

I
Page 323

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



The mandated programs required by SB 1383 will significantly increase costs. These include
weekly collection of all organic material from all residents and businesses, community
outreach and education, procurement of products made from recycled organic material, edible
food recovery, and enforcement. The Division has been working with R3 over the past few
months to incorporate the new program expenses into the City's existing rate model.

In addition, there are increases in two existing expenses included in the updated rate model.
Since the last rate study Sacramento County has significantly increased the tipping fees (the

cost to dispose of material) at Kiefer Landfill. Currently, the City of Folsom is contracted to
take material to Kiefer at a reduced rate; however, the agreement expires June 30, 2022. Staff
reached out to County staff to inquire what we should anticipate paying in the future. Based

on our tonnage, an initial increase of $600,000 per year is anticipated.

The other large expense not directly related to SB 1383 is the addition of two electric collection
trucks to our fleet. In September of 2020 Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-79-20
requiring all heavy-duty trucks sold in California to be zero emission by 2045. Since this
technology has the potential to save costs in the long run, the Division is requesting funding to
pilot two vehicles to evaluate their effectiveness in the operation. The Division has been

awarded some grant funding; however, due to the high initial cost of converting to clean

energy, there is still a significant investment required from the City. This is currently estimated

at $930,000.

POLICY / RULE

Prior to approving any rute adjustments, the City must comply with the requirements of
Proposition 218 notice, protests and hearing by doing the following:

o Mail information regarding the proposed rate(s) to every property owner receiving solid
waste service from the City.

o Conduct a Public Hearing regarding the proposed rate(s) at least 45 days after the notice
is mailed to the property owners.

o Identifu in the notice, the time, date, and location of the Public Hearing.
o Include in the notice a location where property owners can send in written protests.

. City Council must reject the proposed rate adjustments if written protests are presented

by a majority of the affected property owners.
o At the Public Hearing, City Council must hold a hearing to consider all objections or

protests to the proposed rate adjustments.

2Page 324

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



The schedule below reflects approval of Resolution No. 10673.

Item Date
Direction to staff to Initiate Proposition 218 Notice July 27,2021 (Tuesday)

Finalize Proposition 218 Notices August 27, 2021 (Fridav)

Final Day to Mail Proposition 218 Notices - in order
to meet the 45-day notification requirements under
Proposition 218 prior to Public Hearing

October 22, 2021 (Friday)

Public Hearing - City Council Regular Meeting December 14, 2021 (Tuesday)

Implementation of new rates January l, 2022 (Saturday)

ANALYSIS

User rates must be set at a level where a utility's operating and capital expenses match the

revenues received from customers. To evaluate the adequacy of the existing tates, a

comprehensive rate study is often performed. These studies help develop utility rates that are

cost-based and proportional to the cost of service attributed to a specific customer class.

Currently, the City uses the "cash basis" approach for establishing their revenue requirement
and setting rates. This approach conforms to most public utility budgetary requirements and

the calculation is easy to understand.

After the total revenue requirement is determined, it is then proportionally allocated to the
users of the specific utility service. The allocation, usually analyzed through a cost of service

analysis, reflects the cost relationships for collecting and disposing of solid waste. At the
conclusion of the cost of service study, two key pieces of information are provided. First, the

cost of service provides an understanding ofthe total revenues to be collected from each class

of service. The other important piece of information provided by the cost of service analysis

is the average unit costs.

To adjust for the impacts of SB 1383, City staff and R3 have completed arate study to include
programs costs that are mandated by the new regulations. An initial analysis of the fund status

was completed to establish the need for a rate adjustment. The base year of the established rate

model was then set to fiscal year 2020-21 andprojected SB 1383 program fees and other new
costs were incorporated into Division expenses. The rates were then adjusted for each customer
class to determine the rates necessary to meet the new requirements.

Due to the high cost of SB 1383 programs, the rate increases needed to cover costs were as

high as 22o/o for commercial customers and 44Yo, or $15.25 per month for the average

residential customer. In an effort to mitigate such a large initial increase to cover the high cost

of mandated programs, staff updated the model to include some strategies to increase rates

moderately each year to spread the impact to customers.

Mitigation strategies include an intemal loan, a temporary surcharge that sunsets after the full
implementation of SB 1383 programs, and charges for currently subsidized extra programs.

The proposed loan is for $5,000,000 and includes a five-year payback period. The surcharge

a
J

Page 325

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



would provide the Division with funds needed for initial startup costs, five years of operating
costs, and identifu the purpose of the charge for customers.

The last mitigation strategy, charging for currently subsidized programs, has multiple parts.

The Bulky Waste Program currently provides three pickups for no additional charge. The
proposed rates include a fee of $25 for each pickup to recover a small percentage of the cost

from the customers directly receiving the service. The same strategy would be used to recover

a small amount from customers using the Door-to-Door Household Hazardous Waste Service
(HHW). The proposed fee for HHW is $15 per appointment.

Staff is also proposing to charge for additional organics and recycling containers. Currently
residents are provided with up to two recycling and two green waste containers for no

additional charge. There is a nominal monthly fee of $2.75 per container for three or more

containers. Under the new rate structure green waste containers will be referred to as organics
containers to indicate acceptance of all compostable material. Additionally, residents will be

required to accept both an organics and recycling container. The base rate will include just one

of each container and all additional containers will have a fee associated with them. The
proposed charge for each additional organics container is $8.40 and for each additional
recycling container is $5.50. Under the requirements of SB 1383 organics will be collected

weekly so residents who surrender their second can will not lose overall capacity.

The impacts of SB 1383 and the associated rate study have been presented and discussed with
the Utility Commission (UC) on four occasions. In a special meeting on July 6,2021, the UC
formally supported moving forward with a rate adjustment by passing the following motion:

The Utility Commission recommends to the City Council that it adopt a Solid Waste

rate increase which encompasses:
a. an internal loan not to exceed $5 million;
b. a moderate increase to the monthly solid waste rate and an SB1383 surcharge;

c. a nominal fee charged for currently subsidized waste programs such as bulky
waste and household hazardous waste collection; and

d. an educational program to inform the public on the same.

Following the special meeting, City staff completed a rate schedule showing all proposed rates

over next five-year period. The draft analysis of the proposed revenues and expenditures was
presented to the City Council at the regular City Council meeting on July 13,2021.

4
Page 326

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



Proposed Five-Year Rate Increases

Jan.2022 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26

Residential65 Gallon $ 1.7s $ s.sO $ 6.2s $ 1.50 $ 1.50

Residential95 Gallon $ 2.00 $ 6.2s $ 7.00 $ l.7s $ 1.75

65 GallonLow-Income $ 1.2s $ 4.2s $ s.00 $ 0.s0 $ l.so

65 GallonMobile Home $ 1.7s $ s.sO $ 6.2s $ 1.s0 $ l.s0

65 Gallon Mobile Low-Inconre $ l.2s $ 4.50 $ s.2s $ 1.s0 $ l.s0

SB 1383 Surcharge (all residential accounts) $ 10.00 $ 8.00 $ 8.00 $ 8.s0 $ 9.00

Comnrercial 4 CY 2xlweek $ 16.00 $ 16.00 $ 18.00 $ 28.00 $ 30.00

The proposed increases for some of the typical services are shown below.

The typical residential customer has a 65-gallon trash can, one recycling can and one organics
can. The proposed monthly solid waste charges for the typical residential customer are shown
below and a complete rate schedule is provided as an attachment.

Typbal Resllerfial Bill

Descrbtion Cufe$Rate vu2022 7nn022 7lt/2023 71U2024 7lv202s

Solid Waste (65 gallon) $ 34.50 $ 36.25 $ 41.7s $ 48.00 $ 49.50 $ 51.00

SB 1383 Sucbarge NA $ 10.00 $ 8.00 $ 8.00 $ 8.50 $ 9.00

Monttty Blll $ 3450 $ 46.25 s 49.7s s 56.00 $ 58.00 $ 60.00

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The implementation of SB 1383 is projected to cost $4,280,000 with ongoing operational
expenses near $2,000,000. Proposed rate increases and other mitigation strategies will provide
sufficient revenue to meet these obligations.

Failure to comply with the regulations of SB 1383 could result in fines of up to $10,000 per

violation per day, or potentially $3,650,000 annually for a single violation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

These rate studies are exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental

Quality Act, per Section 15273 of the CEQA Guidelines.

5Page 327

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Proposition 218

Notice for Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste

2. Proposed Solid Waste Rate

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Works Director

6Page 328

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



AfiACHMENT 1

Page 329

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10673

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A PROPOSITION 218 NOTICE
F'OR PROPOSED FIVE.YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT X'OR SOLID WASTE

WHEREAS, the solid waste fund of the City of Folsom is an enterprise fund, operated in
a manner that only actual costs of service are charged for each service; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom identified cost and rate adjustment requirements in solid
waste; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill SB 1383, California's Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction

Strategy, has regulated program changes that will increase costs; and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department reviewed the actual cost of service compared

to the current revenues and determined that in order to meet operational and capital plans the rate

increase is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department reviewed the details of the financial analysis

and proposed utility rates with the Utilities Commission and the Utilities Commission agreed with
the rate study findings; and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department presented the rate study and proposed rates to
the City Council on July 13,2021:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the Issuance of a Proposition 218 Notice for Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment for
Solid Waste.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tn day of July,202I, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10673
Page I of I Page 330

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 331

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



Solid Waste Rate Adjustment Proposal 2021

RESIDENTIAL RATES*

Present JAN.

FY2022 2022 FY2023** FY2024t* FY2025 FY2026

65 Gallon Trash 534.50 $36,25 541'75 548,00 549.50 Ssr'oo

95 Gailon Trash 39,25 541.25 547.50 554.50 556.25 558.00

65 Gailon Low-rncome 26.50 s27.75 s32.00 s37.00 s37.50 s39.00

95 Gallon Low-rncome 31.25 532.75 Szt.ls 543.50 Sqq'zs 546.00

65 Gailon Mobite Home 30.00 s31.75 s37.2s s43.50 s4s.00 s46.50

95 Gallon Mobile Home 34.75 s35.75 s43.00 950.00 s51.75 s53.50

65 Gallon Mobile Low-lncom e 22.00 523.25 527J5 Sss'oo 534.50 Ss6.oo

95 Gallon Mobile Low-lncom e 26.75 S28'2s 533.50 Seg.so S41.25 543.00

sB 1383 surcharge (all residential accounts) -- 10'00 58.00 8.00 8.50 9.00

Additional Services (Monthlv Charsel

Extra Trash Can (65 Gallon) s29.00 s3O.5O $35.00 s40,25 s40.25 s40,25

Extra Trash Can (95 Gailon) 33.75 $35.50 540.75 546.75 546.75 546.75

Extra Green Waste (excess of 2 cans) 2.75 8.40

Extra Recycle (excess of 2 cans) 2.75 5.50

Extra Organics (excess of 1 can)*t* 9.75 1l'25 11'50 L1,75

Extra Recycle (excess of 1 can)*** 6.25 7.25 7'50 7'75

Additional Charses (per Occurrencel

Extra Pickup (any Can)

can cleaning

Can Replacement (other than normal wear)

Temporary Three Yard Dumpster

Extra Pickup - Three Yard Dumpster

Bulky Waste (up to 3x per year)***
Household Hazardous Waste***
Service Changes***

$4o,oo

s3o.oo

S86.oo

S83.oo

S47.oo
25.00

15.00

15.00

s45.oo

S3s.oo

S99.oo

S9s.oo

ss4.oo
s29.oo

s17.00

Su.oo

Ss3.oo

S40.oo

s114,00

S1o9.oo

s52.oo

S33.oo

s2o.oo

s20.00

Ss3.oo

S4z.oo

s121.00

S11s.00

S66.oo

S3s.oo

$z2.oo

s22.00

S40.oo
30.00

86.00

83.00

47.O0

ss3.oo

S41.oo

S117,oo
s112.00

s64.oo

s34.oo

s21.oo

Szr.oo

NONRESIDENTIAI RATES*

Monthty Iixed chorges include one pickup per week. The charge for multiple pickups is a fdctor of the bose rate for one pickup.

Monthlv Fixed Charge

2 Yard Trash or Green Waste
3 Yard Trash or Green Waste

4 Yard Trash or Green Waste

5 Yard Trash or Green Waste

3 Yard Trash Compactor

4 Yard Trash Compactor

3 - 6 Yard commingled Recycling

3 - 6 Yard Cardboard Recycling

8 Yard Cardboard Recycling

2 Yard Food Scraps

Additlonal Services (Monthlv charEel

Recycle 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every other

week)
Green Waste 95 Gallon (up to 2 cans, serviced every

other week)

Recycle 95 Gallon (1 can, every other week)***
Green Waste 95 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)***
Organic 54 Gallon (1 can, serviced weekly)***

Organic 65 Gallon (Extra can)***
Trash 95 Gallon*r{
Recycling Compliance Fee (waived if use City

recycling service)

Sunday Service Premium

Additional Charses (per occurrencel
Dumpster Switch Out (Any Size!

Dumpster Service Return

Standby Service (per 5 minutes)

Lock Replacement

Extra pickup 2 yard (any material)

Extra pickup 3 yard (any material)

Extra pickup 4 yard (any material)

Extra pickup 6 yard (any material)

Extra pickup Compactor 3 yard

Extra pickup Compactor 4 yard

Universal Waste Pickup***+
Bulky waste pickup

s132

s14s
S1G7

s201

s276
S336

Ss8

s8e

S1o7

s3s7

s82
Szs

Sz8

S17

S38

543

S48

ss8
slos
Slos

s20
5s8

s126
5t42
Srsg
s1s1

s263
S32o

Ss3

s8s

$102

$378

547

5qt

s145
S164

s184

5222
s3os
S371

s1o8

se8

$u8
S438

S139

S1s6

5r7s
52rr
s290

s3s3

s1o3

se3

5r72
5417

s16e
S189

s213

$237

s3s3
Sqzg

S12s

s113

5137

$so6

S1s7

5r76
s1s8
S239

S328

s3es
s115

slos
5127

s47L

s1o4
Szg

Ss+

522
S48

Sss

Ssr
574

S134

S134

S26

574

Ss7

527

$32

s20

s4s

ss1

ss7
S6e

s12s
S12s

s24
55s

s49.2s

S49.2s

S76.50

S63.7s

549.25

S34.oo

S34.oo

Sst.zs
Ss1.7s

$80.zs

S67.oo

Ss1.7s

S3s.7s

S3s.7s

5s4.2s

ss4.2s
S84.2s

;7o.zs
ss4.2s

s37.so

s37.so

Ss8.2s

Ss8.2s

Sso.so

S7s.so

Ss8.2s

S39.50

S3e.so

s62.so

s62.so

S97.2s

S81.2s

S62.so

s42.so
s42.so

Seo

S25

s30

s1e
$qz

s47
ss3

s54
Su6
s116
5zz
s54

S85

524
s2s
S18

s40

s4s

ss0
S61

s110
S11o

s27
S51

s34

s34

s82
S23

s28

517

S36

S41

546

sss
$1oo
sloo

Sss

Page 332

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



Solid Waste Rate Adjustment Proposal 2021

ROLI-OFF {NONRESIDENTIAL AND TEMPORARY LOCATIONS)

Present JAN.

charses (oer Haull FY 2022 2022 FY 2023** FY 2024** FY 2025 tY 2026i
case of revenue. Revenue from the sole of the moterial will be applied toward the haul cost up to the houl cost only.

10 yard Trash s484 s484 s523 s554 ss82 s611

20 yard Trash s484 s484 sSZg sss4 sssz s0rr
3oyard Trash Sqaa 5484 Sszg Sss4 Ss82 5611

4Oyard Trash 5484 5484 5523 Sss4 5582 5511

20 Yard compacted rrash 5484 5484 Sszs 5554 5582 5611

30 Yard Compacted Trash s484 s484 s523 sss4 s582 s611

40 Yard Compacted Trash s484 s484 s523 s554 s582 s611

30 Yard compacted lndustrial Trash 5484 5484 5523 5554 5582 5611

40 Yard compacted lndustrial Trash $484 5484 5523 5554 5582 $611

20 Yard compacted Food waste s484 s484 s523 s554 sSgZ s611

30 or 40 Yard compacted cardboard S4s4 5484 5523 5554 5582 5611

20 Yard Sanipak (Treated Medical) 5484 5484 5523 5554 5582 5611

20 - 40 yard wood s484 $484 ss23 sss4 ss82 s611

20 yard Sheet Rock s484 s484 s523 s554 s582 s611

30 yard Sheet Rock sqaa s4s4 s523 sss4 s582 s611

10 yard concrete s484 s484 s523 sss4 ss82 s611

7 yard Mixed tnerts s484 s484 ss23 s554 SSAZ s611

20-40 Yard cardboard s4s4 s484 ss23 s554 s582 s611

20 Yard Green Waste 5484 5484 SSz: 5554 5582 50rr
30 yard Green waste Sqe+ 5484 Sszs Sss4 5582 5611

40 yard Green Waste 5484 S4s4 5523 5554 5582 5511

10 Yard Construction and Demolition S4S4 S+e+ 5523 5554 SSAz 5611

20 yard Construction and Demolition 5484 5484 5523 5554 5582 5611

30 Yard construction and Demolition S4s4 $484 Sszs 5554 S582 S0fl
40 Yard Construction and Demolition S4S4 5484 5523 5554 5582 5611

Additional Charges lper Occurrence)

Relocation Fee (any size)

Per Ton Contamination Fee (C&D, Organics, Sheetrocl

Per Load Minimal Contamination Fee (lnerts)

Per Load Moderate Contamination Fee (lnerts)

Per Load Excessive Contamination Fee (lnerts)

Per Load Contamination Fee (Bins at projects

required to recycle, in addition to disposal fee)

Daily Charge Beyond 14-Day Rental Period

Compactor Rotation

5Lt7
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

s148
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

s148

s14

s44

S141

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

s141

s13

s42

s134
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

s134
s12

s40

s125
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

st26
s11

s38

S117

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

s117

s10

s3s

srt7
s10
s3s

*Can sizes are approximate and may vary by manuldcturer. Cunent purchases ore lor 65 and 95 gallon,
**FY 2023 and FY 2024 rdtes are higher than previously approved due to tanudry 2022 in$ease,
***New tates,
****lJniveral waste includes elec,ttonics, batteries, and bulbs. Rate includes pickup only, Disposal and/or recycling cost of all
items will be theosa dt the currcnt rate

SPECIAL EVENTS

Delivery and One Pickup tor up to 14 cans,

(combination of 64 or 95-gallon recycling or garbage

Cans)

Extra Pickup ($1.50 ea./S21 minimum of same

material type-up to 14 Cans)

Extra Pickup (lncludes up to 14 Cans of the same

material type; additional cans S2.00 each)

Special Event 3-6 yard Garbage Service - delivery

with one pickup

Special Event 3-6 yard Recycling Bin - delivery with

one pickup

Special Event Each Additional Pickup for 3-6 yard

Garbage Service

Special Event Each Additional Recycling Bin Pickup

Special Event Recycling Contamination Fee - all

containers

s276

N/A

ss0

s1o4

S1o4

Sog

$ss

$ss

S2so

N/A

ss3

s1o9

s109

$72

ss8

$s8

s3os

N/A

ss6

s114

s114

Szo

s61

s61

S32o

N/A

5se

s12o

s12o

s80
s64

s64

5344

N/A

s63

s129

5129

$86

s6s

s6e

s370

N/A

s68

s13e

s13e

Sgz

s74

s74

Page 333

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 334

07/27/2021 Item No.11.



ffi
jt"'il_s.[,s {f sr
(, br'ra.t..r ti lntl 1a

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10575 - A
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring Its Intent to Initiate
Procedures to Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based Elections Pursuant to
California Elections Code Section 10010 and Authorize Related Actions.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

This matter was first heard by the City Council at its regular meeting on January 12,2021
Following public comment, the Council tabled the matter to a future meeting and gave

direction to staff to engage in public outreach and solicit input regarding Folsom voters'
preferences.

The prescribed timelines in the California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) had been suspended

during the COVID-I9 public health emergency by Governor Newsom through Executive
Orders N-34-20 (signed March 20,2020) and N-48-20 (signed April 9, 2020). Under
Executive Order N-08-21 (signed June 11,2011), the suspension was lifted effective July 1,

2021, hence it is time to bring this matter back to the Council for further consideration.

By way of background, Section2.0l of the Folsom City Charter provides that members of
the Folsom City Council are elected'oatlarge" to serve a four-year term. The terms of the

1

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10575 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Folsom Declaring Its Intent to Initiate Procedures to
Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based Elections
Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 and
Authorize Related Actions

FROM: City Attorney's Office

Page 335

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



Councilmembers are staggered, with three Councilmembers elected at one General
Municipal Election, and two Councilmembers elected at the following General Municipal
Election two years after. Once elected, each Councilmember represents all citizens
throughout the City.

CVRA was signed into law in2002, and it prohibits anat-large method of election that
impairs the ability of a protected class (e.g., race, color or language minority group) to elect
candidates of their choice or their ability to influence the outcome of an election. An "at-
large" method of election means that the electors from the entire city vote for members of
their city council, regardless where they reside in the city (as opposed to a "by-district"
election system, which means that the councilmember is elected only by the voters residing
within that councilmember's district).

In passing CVRA, the California Legislature made the process easy for plaintiffs to sue and

prevail in lawsuits against public entities that have an at-large election system whenever
"racially polarizedvoting" can be shown. Racially polarized voting occurs when there is a
difference in the choice ofcandidates that are preferred by voters ofa protected class, and in
the choice of candidates that are preferred by voters in the rest of the electorate. This
phenomenon has been demonstrated consistently in CVRA lawsuits, often and typically
without any discriminatory intent.

Proving a CVRA violation does not require proof of discriminatory intent or historic
discrimination. Partly (or specifically) due to the extremely low threshold in proving a

CVRA violation, no cities have prevailed in defending CVRA lawsuits. If the plaintiff wins
the CVRA lawsuit, the court may impose by-district election on the city, and can determine
district boundaries with input solely from the plaintifPs attorney and consultants without
input from the City Council or the local community. A prevailing plaintiff may also recover
attorneys' fees and costs, which could be substantial. Some cities, after spending a
significant amount of taxpayers' money (hundreds of thousands of dollars to over $5 million)
in legal fees and costs, eventually transitioned to by-district elections as a result of settlement
or enforcement of an adverse court order.

Here in the greater Sacramento metropolitan area, many cities that used to have at-large
elections have received demand letters from law firms representing voters challenging their
at-large election system. Due to threats of CVRA litigation, in the past couple of years, the
cities of Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, and Roseville , as well as the Folsom Cordova Unified
School District ,have voluntarily transitioned to a "by-district" election system. If a city
follows the prescribed steps and voluntarily transitions to "by-district" election after
receiving a demand letter, the plaintiff is only entitled to claim up to $30,000 in fees and

costs (adjusted annually by the Consumer Price Index).

The City received such a demand letter on October 30,2020 from CVRA attorney Scott
Rafferty, representing Neighborhood Elections Now, the Bay Area Voting Rights Initiative,
the Folsom Area Democratic Club, and a number of registered voters in Folsom having legal
standing to sue the City under CVRA. Following the Council's decision to table the

2Page 336

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



proposed Resolution of Intention on January 12,2021, the City was served with a CVRA
lawsuit on January 20,202I. The lawsuit was filed on January 5,2021by Hari Shetty,
Kavita Sood, and Neighborhood Elections Now.

CVRA prohibits the filing of a lawsuit until 45 days have elapsed after the targeted political
entity has received the demand letter and fails to pass a Resolution of Intention to transition
from at-large to by-district elections. Due to the fact that the demand letter was sent after the
Governor suspended the CVRA timelines, the 45-day deadline had not kicked in, and the

City was able to successfully demur to the plaintiff s complaint and have the lawsuit
dismissed on this technical ground on March 17,202I. Following the lifting of the CVRA
timelines, the City's 45-day safe harbor window started to run on July I,202I, and this
matter is being brought back to the City Council for consideration in order to meet the 45-day
timeline.

POLICY / RULE

California Government Code Section 34886 authorizes the legislative body of a city to adopt
an ordinance that requires the members of the legislative body to be elected "by district",
without being required to submit the ordinance to the voters for approval. The change must
be made in furtherance of the purposes of the California Voting Rights Act.

ANALYSIS

To create districts, five public hearings are required to meet legal requirements:

o Two public hearings to receive public input and discuss composition of the voting
districts before proposed district maps can be drawn.

o Two additional public hearings to receive public input on the proposed district
maps, with the maps published at least seven days before consideration by the City
Council.

o A final public hearing to introduce an Ordinance establishing by-district elections,
with the Ordinance taking effect thirty days after the second reading and adoption.

The timeline for the aforementioned events cannot yet be determined since the U.S. 2020
Census data for the City is not yet available. However, the typical framework for the
required public hearings and community engagement can be described as follows:

Date Meeting
Type

Public
Hearing

Item Topic at Meeting

TBD Public Hearing 1 Public input on composition of
districts (before maps drawn
hold 2 public hearings on
composition of districts over

JPage 337

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



period of no more than 30
davs)

TBD Public Hearing 2 Further public input on
composition of districts (must
held within 30 days of
Public Hearing 1)

TBD Public Hearing 3 Discussion of proposed
district maps and sequence of
elections. First draft of map
must be published 7 days
before Public Hearins No. 3

TBD Public Hearing 4 Public input and possible
revisions to proposed District
Map (hold 2 public hearings
within 45 days of Public
Hearinq No. 3)

TBD Public Hearing 5 Adoption of District Map,
transition to district elections
Ordinance introduced

TBD Regular Meeting Second reading of Ordinance
(effective 30 days after)

As directed by the City Council, the City published information regarding CVRA on its
website, and mailed 30,836 informational mailers to Folsom residents. In the mailer, there
was a request for public feedback, and the City received a total of 474 feedback forms from
Folsom residents as follows:

In favor of at-large elections: 295
In favor of by-district elections: 154

Undecided:25

While there is no evidence of "racially polarized voting", vote dilution, or violation of the
CVRA in Folsom Municipal Elections, ultimately the decision to transition to a 

ooby-district"

election is one based on financial considerations to avoid paying substantial legal fees and
lose local control over the districting process. Voluntarily committing to making a switch to
by-district election safeguards the City's financial resources and maintains local control over
how the City's districts will be drawn.

4
Page 338

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

The services of a demographer are required to assist the City transition to a by-district
election system under specific aggressive timelines as required by the California Elections
Code. Staff anticipates the cost to be approximately $40,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to activities that will not
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, or is
otherwise not considered a project as defined by Public Resources Code $21065 and CEQA
Guidelines 915060(c)(3) and $15378. The Council's decision regarding district-based
elections meets the above criteria and is not subject to CEQA. No environmental review is
required.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10575 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring Its
Intent to Initiate Procedures to Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based
Elections Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 and Authorize Related
Actions.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Steven W*g, City Attorney

5Page 339

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10575

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF FOLSOM DECLARING
ITS INTENT TO INITIATE PROCEDURES TO TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE
ELECTIONS TO DISTRICT.BASED ELECTIONS PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA

ELECTIONS CODE SECTION lOOlO AND AUTHORIZE RELATED ACTIONS

WHEREAS, members of the City Council of the City of Folsom ("City") are currently
elected in "at-large" elections, in r,vhich each councilmember is elected by the registered voters
of the entire City without regard to where the candidates reside; and

WHEREAS, throughout California, including in the Sacramento region, litigants are

alleging that cities and special districts who conduct at-large elections violate the California
Voting Rights Act ("CVRA"), and the City is aware of the threat of litigation if the City does

not voluntarily change to a "district-based" system for electing our councilmembers; and

WHEREAS, courts have opined that the CVRA and its goal of preventing voter
dilution is a matter of statewide concern and, therefore, applies to charter cities; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Elections Code section 14028, a violation of the
CVRA may be established if it is shown lhatracially polarized voting occurs in elections.
Pursuant to California Elections Code section I4026(e),"racialIy polarized voting" is voting in
which there is a difference in the choice of candidates that are preferred by voters in a protected
class and between the choice of candidates that are preferred by voters in the rest of the
electorate; and

WHEREAS, the City Council denies that its election system violates the CVRA or any
other provision of law, and asserts that the City's election system is legal in all respects, and
further denies any wrongdoing whatsoever in connection with the manner in which City Council
elections have been conducted; and

WHEREAS, the City is committed to diversity and inclusion with respect to its
elections; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is aware of the exorbitant cost that multiple cities and
other public entities have faced in defending and/or settling CVRA litigation, and the impact that
the expenditure of such costs could have on the City's ability to provide essential services to the
City's residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the California Legislature, in amendments to California Elections Code
Section 10010, has provided a method whereby a jurisdiction can expeditiously transition to a
"district-based" election system and thereby avoid the high cost and risk of litigation under the
CVRA; and

Resolution No. 10575
Page I of4 Page 340

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



WHEREAS, under a "by-district" election system, each City councilmember will be

elected only by the voters in the district in which the candidate resides;

WHEREAS, Government Code section 34886 authorizes the City to adopt an ordinance
to change to a "by-district" system of electing City Councilmembers without submiuing the
ordinance to the voters for approval; and

WHEREAS, public interest would be served and the purposes of CVRA would be

furthered by the City Council consideration of a proposal to transition to a "district-based"
election system because of the uncertainty of litigation and the potential extraordinary cost of
defending a CVRA lawsuit, even if the City ultimately were to prevail; and

WHEREAS, prior to the City Council's consideration of an ordinance to establish
district boundaries for a "district-based" election system, California Elections Code Section
10010 requires all of the following:

1. Prior to drawing a draft map or maps of the proposed boundaries of the
districts, the City Council shall hold at least two public hearings over a period of no more than
30 days, at which the public will be invited to provide input regarding the composition of the
districts.

2. After all maps are drawn, the City shall publish and make available for release

at least I draft map and, if members of the City Council will be elected in their districts at
different times to provide for staggered terms, publish the potential sequence of the elections.

3. The City Council shall also hold at Ieast2 additional hearings over a period of
no more than 45 days, at which the public shall be invited to provide input regarding the content
of the draft map or maps and the proposed sequence of elections, if applicable.

4. The first version of a draft map shall be published at least 7 days before
consideration at a hearing. If a draft map is revised at or following a hearing, it shall be
published and made available to the public for at least 7 days before adoption; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. 2020 Census data needed to develop a proposal for a "district-
based" election system is not yet available from the United States Census Bureau; and

WHEREAS, the adoption of a "district-based" election system will not affect the terms
of any sitting Councilmember, each of whom will serve out his or her current term.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby expresses its intent to transition to a "by-district"
(district-based) system of election of its five City Councilmembers, as set forth herein.

SECTION 2. The City Council intends to and shall consider adoption of an ordinance to
transition to a "by-district" (district-based) election system as authorized by California
Government Code Section 34886 for use in the City's general municipal election for

Resolution No. 10575
Page2 of4 Page 341

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



councilmembers, beginning in November 2022 or the next earliest municipal election if the

Sacramento County Voter Registration and Elections Department is unable to implement the new
"district-based" election areas for the November 2022 election. The City Council does not, at

this time, decide the nature of such "district-based" election. Rather, the details of such system

shall be determined only after community outreach and appropriate public hearings.

SECTION 3. The City Council intends to commence the process for drawing of district
maps for district boundaries consistent with the procedures set forth in Elections Code section
10010, including the holding of public hearings and meetings as required by Elections Code
section 10010 andlor other applicable law, once the U.S. 2020 Census data (California
redistricting file) is made available from the United States Census Bureau.

SECTION 5. The City Council directs staff to work with the City's demographer, and
with other appropriate consultants as needed, to provide a detailed analysis of the City's current
demographics and any other information or data necessary to prepare a draft map that divides the
City into voting districts in a manner consistent with the intent and purpose of the CVRA and the
Federal Voting Rights Act.

SECTION 6. Once the process has been initiated following receipt of the U.S. 2020

Census data (California redistricting file), the City Council directs staff to post or have the

demographer post information regarding the proposed transition to a "by-district" (district based)

election system, including maps, notices, agendas and other information, to establish a means of
communication to answer questions from the public, and to otherwise take the steps necessary to
comply with the applicable provisions of the Elections Code.

SECTION 7. As soon as the U.S. 2020 Census data (California redistricting file) is
released by the U.S. Census, the City will set forth tentative timelines for conducting a public
process to solicit public input and testimony on proposed "district-based" electoral maps before
the City Council adopts any such map.

SECTION 8. If any provision or clause of this Resolution is held invalid,
unconstitutional, or otherwise repealed by act of law, such invalidity shall not affect any other
provisions or clauses of the same which can be given effect without the invalid provision, clause,
or application. To this end, the provisions and clauses of this Resolution hereto are declared to be

severable.

SECTION 9. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and

adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tth day of July,202l by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Resolution No. 10575
Page 3 of4

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Page 342

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10575
Page 4 of4 Page 343

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 344

07/27/2021 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 712712021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Folsom Proclaiming Existence of a Local Emergency
Due to Extreme Fire Danger

FROM: Fire Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and approve Resolution No.
10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Proclaiming Existence of a
Local Emergency Due to Extreme Fire Danger.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Warmer spring and summer temperatures, reduced snowpack, and little rain create longer and

more intense dry seasons that decrease vegetation fuel moisture, making the open spaces much
more susceptible to severe fire. After another dry year on record for California following a

devastating 2020 fire season for the state, the fire risks this summer are extreme. Wildfires
can be the result of both human and natural activity, but the vast majority of the fires in open

spaces are human caused. With approximately 1,000 acres of city-owned open space, it
becomes even more dire to restrict human access to open space areas. Activities such as

discarded cigarettes, unattended campfires, the buming of trash, and any use of open flame in
a dry environment are some of the common causes that lead to fires. Open space vegetation
fires very rarely happen due to natural causes, with the exception of lightning, without some
type of associated human element.

There are 5,371wildfire incidents with233,405 acres burned, and 135 structures destroyed
that have been reported in California this year so far. Some of the large and intense wildfires
currently burning and threatening life and property near the Sacramento Region include the
8,000acre Dixie Fire that prompted evacuation orders in parts of Plumas County as well as

parts of Butte County that were ravaged by the Camp Fire in 2018, the Beckwourth Complex

1

Page 345

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



fire that has burned more than 105,000 acres in the Plumas National Forest and destroyed more
than 30 homes in the town of Doyle where fire officials observed and described'oextreme fire
behavior" with difficulty of containment, the River Fire along the Mariposa-Madera county
line that has burned more than 9,500 acres, and the Tamarack Fire that has exploded to over
39,045 acres and threatening the town of Markleeville.

Over the past year, the Folsom Fire Department has responded to 47 fires in the City's open

space areas. Many of these fires require the assistance of partnering agencies within our region
due to the magnitude and involvement to mitigate.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.28.040(A) of the Folsom Municipal Code provides that the City Council may
proclaim the existence of a local emergency.

ANALYSIS

According to San Jose State University's Wildfire Interdisciplinary Research Center, the only
wildfire research center in California, noted that fuel moisture content (moisture in plant life),
which is normally at its peak in April, is far below both its annual average and previous record
lows. Average fuel moisture content during April is I37% and a low fuel moisture content is
lI5%. The findings this year were at 97o/o, an all-time low.

The fuel moisture index is a tool that is widely used to understand the fire potential for locations
across the country. Fuel moisture is a measure of the amount of water in a fuel (vegetation)

available to a fire and is expressed as a percent of the dry weight of that specific fuel. For
example, if a fuel were totally dry, the fuel moisture content would be zerc percent. Fuel
moisture is dependent upon both environmental conditions (such as weather, local topography,
and length of day) and vegetation characteristics. When fuel moisture content is high, fires do
not ignite readily, or at all, because heat energy must be used to evaporate and drive water from
the plant before it can burn. When the fuel moisture content is low, fires start easily and will
spread rapidly - all the heat energy goes directly into the burning flame itself. When the fuel
moisture content is less than 30 percent, that fuel is essentially considered to be dead. Dead
fuels respond solely to current environmental conditions and are critical in determining fire
potential. Throughout the City of Folsom's open space, there are dry grasses, downed limbs,
and tree litter that are all considered dead fuels which exacerbate the potential for intense fire
conditions.

City staff utilizes a ooFireHazard Rating System" to prioritize ladder fuel and weed abatement
projects. The methodology is a rating system comprised of six indicators, threat to structures,

fire history, emergency vehicle access, fire spread potential, population use, and proximity to
homes or businesses, to determine an overall hazard rating. Three phases were created for the
City of Folsom based on the hazards and geographical locations (see Attachment 2).

2
Page 346

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



As part of the proposed Proclamation of a Local Emergency, the City Council is asked to
leverage subsection 105.6,52 of the Folsom Fire Code, under Section 8.36.080 of the Folsom
Municipal Code, which provides that an operational permit is required to conduct activities in
hazardous fire areas when, inthe opinion of the Fire Chief, it is necessary to preserve the public
health, safety, or welfare. "Hazardous fire area" is defined in the Folsom Fire Code as land
covered with grass, grain, brush, or forest, whether privately or publicly owned which is so

situated or is of such inaccessible location that a fire originating upon such land would present

an abnormally difficult job or suppression or would result in great and unusual damage through
fire or resulting erosion.

The Fire Chief respectfully requests that the City Council designate all City-owned open space

areas as "Hazardous Fire Areas" under the Folsom Fire Code so that some or all City-owned
off-trail open space areas may be closed as determined by the Fire Chiel in consultation with
the City Manager, and the individuals accessing closed open space areas can be directed to
vacate immediately in order to reduce and minimize fire danger and the spread of potentially
catastrophic wildfire throughout the City. Existing City trails and bicycle paths may remain
open for normal use; however, entrance into closed open space areas require an operational
permit from the Fire Chief under the Folsom Fire Code.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Costs associated with implementing this resolution are nominal, including posting signs, fire
prevention public outreach, and staff costs in enforcement, all of which may be reimbursable
if the County or the State declare a similar state of emergency. Savings to the City's General
Fund may be realized from reduced firefighting in the City open space areas.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the Califomia
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Proclaiming Existence of a Local Emergency Due to Extreme Fire Danger

2. Ladder Fuel Phase Map

Submitted,

J

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

Page 347

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



Attachment I

Resolution 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Proclaiming
Existence of a Local Emergency Due to Extreme Fire Danger

Page 348

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10674

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
PROCLAIMING EXISTENCE OF'A LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE TO

EXTREME FIRE DANGER

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed on May I0,202I, a

State of Emergency to exist in the Klamath River, Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, and Tulare
Lake Watershed Counties due to extreme drought conditions caused by high temperatures, low
precipitation, and extremely dry conditions that, among other perils, pose an increased risk of
wildfire; and

WHEREAS, prior to the start of the surlmer season and since the beginning of July, the
western United States has been experiencing unprecedented major heat waves with daily
temperatures breaking records and commonly exceeding 100 degrees, resulting in the death of
many as reported by the news media; and

WHEREAS, the Sacramento region registered temperatures above 110 degrees on July
10 and 11, with no measurable relief overnight and no precipitation projected in the near future,
posing extreme danger to the elderly and other vulnerable populations without access to adequate

cooling; and

WHEREAS, in light of the extreme fire danger, the City's Director of Emergency
Services issued Emergency Order DES-06-20 on March 8,2021 (ratified by the City Council on
March 23,2021in Resolution No. 10600), and directed weed abatement and ladder-fuel clearing
in open space areas for the purpose of protecting the public's health, life and safety by
preventing the start and spread of wildfire to surrounding residential homes and structures; and

WHEREAS' in light of the extreme fire danger, the City Council adopted Ordinance No.
1313 on May 25,2021 and imposed social host liability for illegal fireworks that posed clear
threat to the public health, safety, and general welfare of the City's residents and businesses and

have resulted in fire to structures and open space areas; and

WHEREAS, extreme fire dangers are curently existing throughout Northem Califomia
in nearby counties such as, for example, the 8,000-acre Dixie Fire that prompted evacuation
orders in parts of Plumas County as well as parts of Butte County that were ravaged by the Carnp

Fire in 2018; and

WHEREAS, as of July 19, 2021, the Beckwourth Complex fire has burned more than
100,000 acres in the Plumas National Forest, the Sugar Fire has burned more than 104,000 acres

and destroyed more than 30 homes in the town of Doyle where fire offrcials observed and

described "extreme fire behavior" with difficulty of containment, more than 9,500 acres are

burning in the River Fire along the Mariposa-Madera county line, and the Tamarack Fire has

exploded to over 18,000 acres and threatening the town of Markleeville; and

Resolution No. 10674
Page I of3 Page 349

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



WHEREAS' over the past year the Folsom Fire Department had responded to and
extinguished 47 fires in the City's open space areas, sometimes requiring mutual aid support
from other fire agencies due to the scale and the intensity of those fires; and

WHEREAS' on July t6,202I, a grass fire along Humbug Willow Creek at Blue Ravine
Road and East Bidwell Street posed imminent threat to life and numerous structures due to its
intensity and extreme dry conditions in the open space area; and

WHEREAS' subsection 105.6.52 of the Folsom Fire Code, under Section 8.36.080 of the
Folsom Municipal Code, provides that an operational permit is required to conduct activities in
hazardous fire areas when, in the opinion of the Fire Chief, it is necessary to preserve the public
health, safety, or welfare. ooHazardous fire area" is defined in the Folsom Fire Code as land
covered with grass, grain, brush, or forest, whether privately or publicly owned which is so

situated or is of such inaccessible location that a fire originating upon such land would present an

abnormally difficult job or suppression or would result in great and unusual damage through fire
or resulting erosion; and

WHERAS, local authorities are inadequate to cope with unprecedent heat waves,

extremely dry conditions, and extreme fire dangers over a wide region under Section 8558 of the
Government Code that, by reason of their magnitude, are potentially beyond the control of the
services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City of Folsom and requires the combined
forces of a mutual aid region or regions to contain, control, combat, treat and mitigate; and

WHEREAS' the California Emergency Services Act empowers the City Council to
proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when the City is affected or
likely to be affected by a public calamity; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has been requested by the Fire Chief and the City's
Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence of a local emergency due to the
existence of extreme fire danger; and

WHEREAS' the City Council does hereby find that conditions of extreme peril to the
safety of persons and property have arisen within the City of Folsom, caused by the
unprecedented heat, lack of precipitation, and occulrences of wildfire in open space areas

throughout the City, commencing the 16th day of Jiuly,202l, and that the aforesaid conditions of
extreme peril warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency due to extreme fire danger to life and property, as

evidenced by the latest fast and intense grass fire on July 16,2021 along Humbug Willow Creek
at Blue Ravine Road and East Bidwell Street that posed imminent threat to life and numerous
structures, and that said local emergency continues to exist throughout the City of Folsom.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the existence of this local emergency, all
City-owned open space areas are hereby designated as"Hazardous Fire Areas" under the Folsom

Resolution No. 10674
Page2 of3

Page 350

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



Fire Code.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the existence of this local emergency, some

or all City-owned off-trail open space areas shall be closed as determined by the Fire Chief, in
consultation with the City Manager, and any individuals accessing said closed open space areas

are directed to immediately vacate to reduce and minimize fne danger and the spread of
potentially catastrophic wildfire throughout the City. Existing City trails and bicycle paths may
remain open for normal use. Entrance into said closed open space areas shall require issuance of
an operational permit by the Fire Chief under the Folsom Fire Code.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that during the existence of said local emergency the
powers, functions and duties of the Director of Emergency Services and the emergency
organization of this City shall be those prescribed by state law, by charter, ordinances and
resolutions of the City of Folsom.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said local emergency shall be deemed to continue
to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the City Council of the City of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this2Tth day of July,202I,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10674
Page 3 of3 Page 351

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



Attachment 2

Ladder Fuel Phase Map

Page 352

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



Ladder Fuel Phase Map

Cily l.edftrFucl
3 I t0il

Page 353

07/27/2021 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 354

07/27/2021 Item No.13.


	Top
	07/27/2021 Item No.1.	New Utility Bill and Payment Portal Presentation
	07-27 STAFF REPORT NEW UTILITY BILL PAYMENT PORTAL 

	07/27/2021 Item No.2.	Ordinance No. 1315 – An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control (Second Reading and Adoption)
	07-27 STAFF REPORT ORD 1315 WATER SYSTEM CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL

	07/27/2021 Item No.3.	Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with West Yost & Associates, Inc. for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10660 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT WATER SYSTEM REHAB 2

	07/27/2021 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10661 ADMIN SERVICES FOR WATER SYSTEM REHAB 2

	07/27/2021 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Caggiano General Engineering Inc. for the Construction of the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10663 CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WATER SYSTEM REHAB 2 

	07/27/2021 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10670 TOLL BROTHERS SUB IMP AGREEMENT

	07/27/2021 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10671 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five Solid Waste Collection Vehicles
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10671 PURHCASE 5 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLES

	07/27/2021 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10636 – A Resolution of the City Council Approving Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement with the Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building Located at 200 Wool Street
	07-27 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10636 AMEND 2 LEASE AGREEMENT 200 WOOL ST

	07/27/2021 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10672 – A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report, Confirming the Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for Maintenance and Servicing of Improvements within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-2022
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10672 L AND L PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH 2 ENGINEERS REPORT

	07/27/2021 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10669 – A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the Regional Water Authority’s Resolution 2021-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in 2021 and Authorizing the City Manager to Implement Any Future Reduction Requirements
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10669 SUPPORT FOR RWA DROUGHT RESO

	07/27/2021 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Proposition 218 Notice for Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10673 RATE ADJUSTMENT FOR SOLID WASTE

	07/27/2021 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10575 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring Its Intent to Initiate Procedures to Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based Elections Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 and Authorize Related Actions
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10575 TRANSITION TO DISTRICT-BASED ELECTIONS

	07/27/2021 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Proclaiming Existence of a Local Emergency Due To Extreme Fire Danger
	07-27 STAFF REPORT RES 10674 LOCAL EMERGENCY FIRE DANGER

	Bottom

